
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Major Applications 
Planning 
Committee 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY 
10 DECEMBER 2013 
 

Time: 8.00 PM OR ON THE 
RISING OF THE NORTH 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER  
CIVIC CENTRE 
HIGH STREET 
UXBRIDGE UB8 1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 
John Hensley (Vice-Chairman) 
Janet Duncan (Labour Lead) 
David Allam 
Dominic Gilham 
Michael Markham 
John Morgan 
Brian Stead 
 

  
Published: Monday, 2 December 2013 

 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact: Danielle Watson 
Tel: Democratic Services Officer - 01895 
277488 
Fax: 01896 277373 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=325&Year=2013 

Public Document Pack



Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Electronic devices 
 
Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is 
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make 
their way to the signed refuge locations. 
 

 



 

A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 
 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.  
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.  
Recording of meetings – This is not allowed, 
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more borough residents can speak at a 
Planning Committee in support of or against an 
application.  Petitions must be submitted in 
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.  
Where there is a petition opposing a planning 
application there is also the right for the 
applicant or their agent to address the meeting 
for up to 5 minutes.   
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  
Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 
 
 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  
Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   
The procedure will be as follows:-  
1. The Chairman will announce the report;  
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 

 

followed by any Ward Councillors; 
4. The Committee may ask questions of the 
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  
Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  
When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   
If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  
 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 
October 2013 

1 - 14 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent  

5 To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered inpublic 
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private 

 

 

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press 
 

 

Major Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

6 26-36 Horton Road 
Yiewsley  
 
3507/APP/2013/2327 
 
 

Yiewsley 
 

Demolition of existing buildings 
and redevelopment to provide 50 
residential units in 3 buildings with 
associated car parking and cycle 
parking spaces, communal 
amenity areas, landscaping, 
private gardens and balconies 
utilising existing access. 
 
Recommendation: Approval, 
subject to a S106 Agreement 

15 - 68 



 

7 Old Coal Depot 
Tavistock Road 
Yiewsley  
 
18736/APP/2013/1784 
 
 

Yiewsley 
 

Demolition of existing buildings 
and redevelopment of site to 
provide a materials recovery and 
recycling facility and Civic Amenity 
Site, incorporating a recovery and 
recycling building, storage bays, 
administration office/training 
building, external processing and 
storage area, two weighbridges, 
reuse and extension of railway 
sidings, and Civic Amenity Centre, 
together with associated car 
parking, landscaping, fencing and 
infrastructure (additional 
documents received 11/11/13). 
 
Recommendation : Delegated  
Refusal, subject to no direction 
from the Mayor for London  

69 - 124 

 
Major Applications without Petitions 
 

 Address Ward Description & 
Recommendation 

Page 

8 272-276 Bath Road 
Heathrow  
 
464/APP/2013/2115 
 
 

Heathrow 
Villages 
 

Change of use of existing building 
from office (Use Class B1(a)) to 
Hotel (Use Class C1), including 4-
storey side extension (to rear of 
adjacent petrol station), and 4-
storey rear extensions, and 
associated amendments to 
landscaping and car parking. 
 
Recommendation : Approval, 
subject to a S106 Agreement. 
 

125 - 154 



 

9 Former RAF Uxbridge 
Hillingdon Road 
Uxbridge  
 
585/APP/2013/2719 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North 
 

Reserved matters (appearance, 
layout, scale and landscaping) in 
compliance with conditions 2 and 
3 for Phase 3, First Application 
(Western Side of District Park) of 
planning permission ref: 
585/APP/2009/2752 dated 
18/01/2012 for the proposed 
mixed-use redevelopment of St 
Andrews Park (Former RAF 
Uxbridge site). 
 
Recommendation : Approval  

155 - 168 

10 Uxbridge Technical 
College 
Park Road Uxbridge  
 
1127/APP/2013/2739 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North 
 

Amendment to appearance and 
layout of the south block 
previously approved under 
planning permission 
1127/APP/2009/443 dated 14-05-
10 (Section 73 application to vary 
condition 28 of the original 
planning permission). 
 
Recommendation : Approval, 
subject to a S106 Agreement.  

169 - 206 

11 Former NATS 
Headquarters  
Porters Way 
West Drayton  
 
5107/APP/2013/2325 
 
 

West 
Drayton 
 

Reserved matters (appearance 
and landscaping) in compliance 
with conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 
3, Block D (76 residential units) of 
planning permission ref: 
5107/APP/2009/2348 dated 
01/10/2010. 
 
Recommendation : Approval  

207 - 228 

12 Former NATS 
Headquarters 
Porters Way 
West Drayton  
 
5107/APP/2013/2747 
 
 

West 
Drayton 
 

Reserved matters (appearance 
and landscaping) in compliance 
with conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 
3, second application ('Block G' 
comprising 107 residential units) 
of planning permission ref: 
5107/APP/2009/2348, dated 
01/10/2010: Proposed mixed-use 
redevelopment of the Former 
NATS Site. 
 
Recommendation : Approval  

229 - 246 



 

13 21 High Street 
Yiewsley  
 
26628/APP/2013/2604 
 
 

Yiewsley 
 

Reserved matters (appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale) in 
compliance with conditions 2 and 
4 of planning permission ref: 
APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 
03/12/2010 for Redevelopment of 
site for mixed use development 
comprising a 44-unit apartment 
hotel, 1,320 m² of office space 
and 135 m² restaurant/bar, with 
associated access, car parking 
and landscaping (Outline 
application for approval of 
access). 
 
Recommendation : Approval  

247 - 268 

14 Charles Curran House 
Boniface Road 
Ickenham   
 
1022/APP/2013/2347 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

Demolition of existing care home 
and construction of 6 semi-
detached 4-bed dwellings, 
together with associated car 
parking, landscaping and new 
pedestrian access. 
 
Recommendation : Approval 
subject to a S106 Agreement 

269 - 292 

15 Charles Curran House 
Boniface Road 
Ickenham  
 
1022/APP/2013/2345 

Ickenham 
 

Conservation Area Consent for 
the demolition of existing care 
home. 
 
Recommendation : Approval  

293 - 298 

 
Part 2 - Members Only 
 
Any Items transferred from Part 1 
 
Any Other Business in Part 2 
 
Plans for North Planning Committee                    Pages 299 – 506  



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
 
MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
30 October 2013 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
 Committee Members Present:  

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 
John Hensley (Vice-Chairman) 
 Janet Duncan (Labour Lead) 
David Allam, Dominic Gilham 
 John Morgan 
Brian Stead 
 Carol Melvin  
  
LBH Officers Present:  
Matthew Duigan (Planning Service Manager) 
Adrien Waite, Major Applications Manager 
Manmohan Ranger, Highways Engineer 
Nicole Cameron, Legal Advisor 
Nadia Williams, Democratic Services 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies had been received from Councillor Michael Markham and Councillor Carol 
Melvin attended in his place. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 

 There were no declarations of interest declared.  
 

3. TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8 OCTOBER 
2013  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 8 October 2013 were agreed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

4. MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT  (Agenda Item 
4) 
 

 There were no matters notified in advance or urgent. 
 

5. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN 
PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 

 It was confirmed that all items would be considered in Part 1.  
 
 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 3

Page 1



  
6. FORMER BRITISH LEGION CLUB, SIPSON ROAD   829/APP/2013/1618  (Agenda 

Item 6) 
 

 The redevelopment of the existing vacant club/pub site at 560 Sipson Road to 
accommodate a new 4 storey 54 room hotel with associated parking and 
landscaping. 
 
Officers introduced the report and directed Members to note the changes in the 
addendum sheet circulated at the meeting. Officers asked the Committee to give 
authority to add additional standard conditions in respect of plant noise and gate. 
 
Condition 11 was deleted to avoid duplication with Condition 4 and Condition 5 was 
deleted as this was not required. 
 
Conditions 9 and 13 were combined to avoid duplication together with an additional 
informative relating to food hygiene.   
 
The recommendation with the changes to conditions, additional conditions and 
informative was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved  
 
1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and 
Culture to grant planning permission, subject to: 
 
A) The Council entering into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of 
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to 
secure: 
 

i) Highways: all necessary works and the provision of a Travel Plan. 
 
ii) Construction Training: Either if the construction time exceeds 3 months 

and the construction cost is in excess of £2m. 
 
(iii) Air Quality: a contribution for the sum of £12,500. 
 
(iv) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a financial contribution equal 

to 5% of the total cash contribution. 
 
B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant 
meets the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278 
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being 
completed. 
 

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the 
proposed agreement and conditions of approval. 
 
D) If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, delegated 
authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to refuse 
planning permission for the following reason: 
 
'The applicant has failed to agree to undertake all necessary highway works and 
to provide contributions towards the improvement of air quality and construction 

Page 2



  
and employment training. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy EM8 of the 
Local Plan Part 1 and Policy R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the Council's 
Planning Obligations SPD.' 
 
E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the 
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to 
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant. 
 
F) That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set out in 
the officer’s report,  the changes in the addendum sheet and amended 
conditions, additional conditions and informative set out below be imposed 
subject to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and 
Culture prior to issuing the decision: 
 
Amended conditions  
 
Condition 9 
 
‘Prior to first occupation of the development an air quality action plan shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
action plan shall set out the measures to be undertaken to promote, encourage 
and install measures to reduce impacts on air quality.  The development must be 
operated in accordance with the approved plan.   
 
Reason 
To reduce the impacts on air quality in accordance with Policy EM8 of the Local 
Plan Part 1.’ 
 
Condition 13 
 
‘Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed 
accommodation from external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by 
the LPA. Any works which form part of such a scheme shall be completed before 
any part of the development is first occupied or used and measures put in place 
to ensure it is maintained for the life of the development. 
 
Reason  
To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon 
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).’ 
Additional Conditions  
 
Standard conditions - Plant and Noise 
 
‘No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the 
control of noise and odour emanating from the site has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include 
such combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA.  Thereafter, the 
scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the 
approved measures. 
 
Reason 
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in 
accordance with policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies 

Page 3



  
(November 2012).’ 
 
Standard Condition - Gates: 
 
‘Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the operation of the 
main access way gate by disabled persons, and manual operation of any gates in 
the event of power failure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the secure access arrangements shall be 
installed in accordance with the approved details and maintained so long as the 
development remains in site. 
 
Reason 
In order to ensure the development achieves an appropriate level of accessibility 
in accordance with Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (July 2011).’ 
 
Additional Informative  
 
‘The Council’s Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the 
use of the premises, so as to ensure compliance wit the Food Safety Registration 
Regulations 1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The 
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: 
Commercial Premises Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 
1UW (Tel: 01895 250190).’  
 

7. LAND AT 37-45 DUCKS HILL ROAD, NORTHWOOD    59214/APP/2013/2269  
(Agenda Item 7) 
 

 Variation of Condition 4 (Approved Drawings) to allow the enlargement of the 
single storey rear additions, changes to disabled facilities and fenestration to 
Plots 4, 5, 6, 7 and 10 of planning permission granted 16/11/10, ref. 
59214/APP/2010/1776: Erection of 8 detached and 6 semi-detached dwellings 
with associated access, parking and landscaping. 
 
Officers introduced the report and directed Members to note the changes in the 
addendum sheet circulated at the meeting. Members were asked to amend Condition 8 
to ensure that 11 November 2013 matched the date of the signing of the Legal 
Agreement.  
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved  
 
1. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces 

and Culture to grant planning permission, subject to the following: 
 

(i) A financial contribution of £117,713 for education facilities and 
places. 

(ii) A financial contribution of £11,678.51 for healthcare facilities and 
places. 

(iii) A financial contribution of £20,000 towards community facilities/the 
public realm. 

(iv) A financial contribution of £1,239.70 towards libraries. 
(v) A financial contribution towards training initiatives equal to £2,500 

for every £1million build cost. 
Page 4



  
(vi) The applicants pay a sum to the Council of 5% of the value of 

contributions for specified requirements to project. manage and 
oversee implementation of elements of the completed planning 
(and/or highways) agreement(s). 

(vii) The applicant shall agree to the full and complete costs to undertake 
the necessary works, as identified by the Council, for off site 
highway works, including: 

 
 a) Junction improvements to the site access with Ducks Hill Road. 
 
(viii) Agreement that if the applicant implements this permission, they will 

not implement permission 59214/APP/2005/951 or any part there of. 
 

2.  That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant 
meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the S106 
Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being 
completed. 

 
3.  That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and 

the S106 legal agreement has not been finalised by the 11 November 2013, 
or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Green 
Spaces and culture, then delegated authority be granted to the Head of 
Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to refuse the application for the 
following reason: 

 
‘The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the 
improvement of services and facilities as a consequence of demands 
created by the proposed development (in respect of education, health, 
community facilities and libraries, construction and employment training 
facilities, monitoring and highway junction works). The proposal therefore 
conflicts with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP 
Policies (November 2012). 

 
4.  That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by 

the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, 
subject to the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with 
the applicant. 

 
5.  That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set out 

in the officer’s report, the changes in the addendum and amendment to the 
date of the legal agreement be attached. 

 
8. 428A VICTORIA ROAD, RUISLIP    64445/APP/2013/1050  (Agenda Item 8) 

 
 Variation of condition No.1 of planning permission ref. 64445/APP/2008/1295 

dated 03/09/2008 to allow the sale of A1 non food goods and preclude the sale of 
food and drink (variation of condition 2 of planning permission ref. 
3953EG/96/1602 dated 09/05/97 to allow for extension of the range of goods 
available for sale from the premises to allow for the sale of sports goods and 
equipment, bicycles and associated equipment, play equipment, baby equipment 
and products, electronic games and equipment and other products associated 
with toys and children's entertainment). 
 

Page 5



  
Officers introduced the report and directed Members to note the changes in the 
addendum sheet circulated at the meeting. 
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved 
 
That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and 
Culture to grant planning permission, subject to the following: 
 
A.  That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicant under 

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) or 
any other legislation to secure the following: 

 
1.  Employment Strategy: An employment strategy to be entered into and 

adhered, to address how local people will gain access to employment 
opportunities. 

 
2.  Travel Plan. 
 
B.  That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the 

preparation of the Section 106 agreement and any abortive work as a 
result of the agreement not being completed. 

 
C.  That the officers be authorised to negotiate the terms of the  proposed 
 agreement. 
 
D.  That, if the Section 106 agreement has not been finalised within 3 

months, under the discretion of the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and 
Culture, the application is refused under delegated powers, on the basis 
that the applicant has refused to address planning obligation 
requirements. 

 
E.  That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set 

out in the officer’s report and changes on the addendum circulated at the 
meeting be attached. 

 
9. 428A VICTORIA ROAD, RUISLIP    64445/APP/2013/1000  (Agenda Item 9) 

 
 Refurbishment of Unit A involving installation of mezzanine floor, installation of 

shop front, alterations to elevations, installation of trolley bays, alterations to car 
parking arrangements, involving demolition of existing mezzanine floor, external 
sales area, entrance porch and canopy. 
 
Officers introduced the report and directed Members to note the changes in the 
addendum sheet circulated at the meeting. 
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved 
 
That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and 
Culture to grant planning permission, subject to the following: 
 

Page 6



  
A.  That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicant under 

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) or 
any other legislation to secure the following: 

 
1.  Employment Strategy: An employment strategy to be entered into and 

adhered, to address how local people will gain access to employment 
opportunities. 

 
2.  Travel Plan. 
 
B.  That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the 

preparation of the Section 106 agreement and any abortive work as a 
result of the agreement not being completed. 

 
C.  That the officers be authorised to negotiate the terms of the  proposed 
 agreement. 
 
D.  That, if the Section 106 agreement has not been finalised within 3 

months, under the discretion of the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and 
Culture, the application is refused under delegated powers, on the basis 
that the applicant has refused to address planning obligation 
requirements. 

 
E.  That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set 

out in the officer’s report and changes on the addendum circulated at the 
meeting be attached. 

 
10. UNITS 1-4, RUISLIP RETAIL PARK    3510/APP/2012/3176  (Agenda Item 10) 

 
 Variation of Condition 11 of planning permission ref. 43510/APP/2000/2485 dated 

14/03/2003 to remove the restrictions on the sale of goods that can be sold from 
Unit 3 and vary restrictions on the goods that can be sold from Units 1, 2 and 4. 
 
Officers introduced the report and requested the Committee to grant delegated 
authority to officers to liaise with legal services on the final wording of condition 2 
restricting the sale of goods.  
 
The recommendation and amendment to condition 2 was moved, seconded and on 
being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved 
 
A. That the Council enters into a legal agreement with the applicant under 

Section 106 of the 1990 Town & Country Planning Act (as amended) or other 
appropriate legislation to secure: 
 

1. The gross internal floor area authorised for open A1 use shall not exceed 
2,564m² within Unit 3. 

 
2.  No more than 40% of the gross internal floor area authorised for open A1 use 

shall be used for the sale of convenience goods within Unit 3. 
 
3.  Goods restriction conditions on Units 1, 2 and 4. 
 

Page 7



  
4.  Neither permission implemented independently of the others. 
 
5.  Employment Strategy 
 
B. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the 

proposed agreement. 
 
C. If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, delegated 

authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to 
refuse planning permission for the following reason: 
 

 'In the absence of adequate controls to restrict the gross internal floor 
area and convenience goods sale area, the development would cause 
harm to the vitality and viability of town and local centres. Accordingly, the 
proposal is contrary to Policy E5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- 
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 2.15 of the London Plan (July 2011) 
and the NPPF'. 

 
D. That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set out in 

the officer’s report and amended condition 2 set out below be attached:  
 
‘Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order 
1987 (as amended) or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) or any order revoking and re-enacting 
that Order with or without modification units 1, 2 and 4 shall not be used  for  the  
retail sale of  food (other  than  refreshments  restricted  for  consumption  on  
the  premises  by  customers),clothing and footwear (other than clothing, 
footwear and accessories intended for use in connection with  building  and  
construction, DIY, motor  cycling,  cycling  or  vehicle  repair and maintenance 
activities), cosmetics, toiletries, pharmaceutical products, photographic 
equipment, newspapers, magazines and books  (other  than  those  related  to 
DIY goods, vehicle repair and maintenance), stationery, jewellery, toys, luggage 
and sports goods. 
  
Unit 3 may be used for any purpose within Use Class A1 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended).’ 
 

11. UNIT 3, RUISLIP RETAIL PARK    43510/APP/2012/3179  (Agenda Item 11) 
 

 Removal of Condition 6 of planning permission ref. 43510/APP/2010/1979 dated 
10/02/2011 to allow the sale of any goods within Use Class A1 from Unit 3. 
 
Officers introduced the report and requested the Committee to grant delegated 
authority to officers to liaise with legal services on the final wording of condition 
restricting the sale of goods. 
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved 
 
B. That the Council enters into a legal agreement with the applicant under 

Section 106 of the 1990 Town & Country Planning Act (as amended) or other 
Page 8



  
appropriate legislation to secure: 
 

1. The gross internal floor area authorised for open A1 use shall not exceed 
2,564m² within Unit 3. 

 
2.  No more than 40% of the gross internal floor area authorised for open A1 use 

shall be used for the sale of convenience goods within Unit 3. 
 
3.  Goods restriction conditions on Units 1, 2 and 4. 
 
4.  Neither permission implemented independently of the others. 
 
5.  Employment Strategy. 
 
B. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the 

proposed agreement. 
 
C. If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, delegated 

authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to 
refuse planning permission for the following reason: 
 

 'In the absence of adequate controls to restrict the gross internal floor 
area and convenience goods sale area, the development would cause 
harm to the vitality and viability of town and local centres. Accordingly, the 
proposal is contrary to Policy E5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- 
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy 2.15 of the London Plan (July 2011) 
and the NPPF'. 

 
D. That if the application is approved, the conditions and informatives set out in 

the officer’s report and amended condition 2 set out below be attached: 
 
‘Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order 
1987 (as amended) or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) or any order revoking and re-enacting 
that Order with or without modification units 1, 2 and 4 shall not be used  for  the  
retail sale of  food (other  than  refreshments  restricted  for  consumption  on  
the  premises  by  customers),clothing and footwear (other than clothing, 
footwear and accessories intended for use in connection with  building  and  
construction, DIY, motor  cycling,  cycling  or  vehicle  repair and maintenance 
activities), cosmetics, toiletries, pharmaceutical products, photographic 
equipment, newspapers, magazines and books  (other  than  those  related  to 
DIY goods, vehicle repair and maintenance), stationery, jewellery, toys, luggage 
and sports goods. 
  
Unit 3 may be used for any purpose within Use Class A1 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended).’ 
 

12. FORMER RAF UXBRIDGE, HILLINGDON ROAD, UXBRIDGE    585/APP/2013/1963  
(Agenda Item 12) 
 

 Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in compliance 
with conditions 2 and 3 for the construction of the central access of planning 

Page 9



  
permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18/01/2012, for the proposed mixed-use 
redevelopment of the RAF Uxbridge site. 
 
Officers introduce the report.  
 
In response to concerns raised about access and the potential traffic issues that may 
occur, officers advised that the application before Members was in respect of reserved 
matters.  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote 
was agreed. 
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officer’s report. 
 

13. FORMER RAF UXBRIDGE, HILLINGDON ROAD, UXBRIDGE    585/APP/2013/2474  
(Agenda Item 13) 
 

 Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in compliance 
with conditions 2 and 3 for the construction of the northern access of planning 
permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated 18/01/2012, for the proposed mixed-use 
redevelopment of the RAF Uxbridge site. 
 
Officers introduced the report.  
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote 
was agreed. 
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officer’s report. 
 

14. KITCHENER HOUSE, WARWICK ROAD, WEST DRAYTON    18218/APP/2013/2183  
(Agenda Item 14) 
 

 Erection of a part single, two, three and 4 storey building to provide 23 
residential units, consisting of 14 x 2 bedroom, 8 x 1 bedroom flats and 1 x 1 
bedroom disabled unit, together with 250sqm of retail/commercial space, with 
associated parking, cycle and bin storage and amenity space, involving 
demolition of existing buildings. 
 
In introducing the report, officers directed the Committee to note the changes in the 
addendum sheet circulated at the meeting. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution, a representative of the petitioners 
addressed the meeting. The petitioners objecting to the proposed development made 
the following points: 
 

• This was a residential area with mainly family homes consisting of two- storey 
houses, maisonettes and single-story bungalows. 

• Whilst keen to see the sight developed, the proposal would be substantially 
taller, overbearing and would resulting in blocking light, which would have a 
detrimental effect on the neighbouring properties.  

•  Concerned about the use of articulated delivery vehicles which would create 
parking problems, as Warwick Road was narrow and could be easily blocked. 

Page 10



  
• Concerned about the scale of the building compared to properties in the road 
which consisted mostly of a maximum of two-storey buildings and the 
bungalows, which were even lower. 

• Suggested that the design of the three-storey building would be overbearing - it 
would be more sensible to have as two-storey. 

• Suggested that if the proposal was approved, the parking permit scheme 
currently operating in Warwick Road should be extended from 5pm to 6.30pm. 

• Saw no real benefit of the provision of A1 premises as an additional unit would 
provide no amenity residents. 

• Provision of dental facilities currently not available to residents in West Drayton 
would be beneficial. 

 
The agent addressed the meeting and made the following points: 
 

• Had come up with the current application as a result of extensive work with 
planning officers.  

• Advised that the officer’s report was thorough and balanced and satisfied that all 
issues had addressed.  

• Had already provided the Council with additional information regarding light to 
neighbouring properties.  

• Detailed discussions had been held with Highways and had agreed to widen the 
highway. 

 
• The scheme represented an application to re-develop the site and had taken 
several class uses to bring different ownership together, as well as providing 
much needed residential unit to local residents. 

• Suggested that the opportunity to have a dental surgery would not be ruled out. 
• Stated that existing use generated a lot of traffic, where as the new use would 
have more residents in a residential area and would create less disruption. 

• Indicated that the height of the building would be similar to two-storey houses in 
terms of roof and would be identical to having two-storey houses. 

 
In response to a query regarding the extension of the width of the highway and how 
this would affect the footway for residents, the agent explained that the pavement was 
oversized and therefore would be reduced.  
 
A Member suggested that the proposed building appeared to grow taller, as it got 
closer to the station and stated that this did not appear to have been included in the 
drawings in relation to the station. The agent explained that the mass could rise 
towards the railway and that often buildings were taller near stations.  
 
A Member expressed concern about the residential development being closest to 
where the greatest noise would be emitted.  
 
With regard to concerns raised about privacy and light, officers explained that the 
Council’s guidelines required two-storey buildings to be 15 metres from the nearest 
property and this proposal was 18 metres away. Officers did not consider that there 
would be any substantial loss of daylight to properties. 
 
Officers clarified that, although some of the plans pack were not in line with the 
presentation, all the plans listed in the report were correct.  
 
In response to a query regarding delivery times, officers advised that service 

Page 11



  
restrictions would be subject to a S106 Agreement.  
 
A Member questioned the applicant’s intention to widen the highway on land that was 
on adopted highway. 
 
 Members expressed concern about the dominance of three-storey building and 
indicated that this would be excessive in that area, they also indicated that it would be 
helpful to ascertain what effect the building would have against the station, particularly 
as the station was a locally listed building. To this end therefore, it was suggested that 
a site visit would be useful to the Committee.  
 
A Member requested the provision of shadowing diagrammes in respect of the ground 
floor flat and highlighted that there appeared to be no amenity space proposed on the 
ground floor.  Officers explained that the ground floor flat was set back quite a distance 
in order to provide some amount of space between the street and the window.  
 
Members discussed the fact that Tachbrook was used by other businesses in the area 
and asked what that area would be used for once it was removed.  Clarification was 
sought regarding the noise mitigation and air space that had been proposed with a 
request for officers to look at the height of the proposed development against the 
existing buildings.  
 
Following discussion, the Committee indicated that the application should therefore be 
deferred for Members to make a site visit and for further details and clarification to be 
provided with regard to the issues that had been raised. 
 
It was moved and seconded that the application be deferred for a site visit and for 
further clarifications as listed below, and on being put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the application be deferred for a site visit and the further details/clarification 
as follows: 
 

• The proximity of the building, particularly the 4 storey portion next to the 
listed railway station in more detail to ascertain whether the relationship 
was acceptable 

• The issue of noise in respect of the proximity of the residential apartments 
to the railway and further details about the acoustic attenuation of flats 
and amenity areas to ascertain whether this was acceptable 

• Investigate the lack of parking for customers and staff of the retail unit  
• The viability of controlling the hours for deliveries and whether the this 

could be adequately to controlled by the legal agreement  
• Further details about the viability of road widening proposals and how this 

would work and clarification of the ownership of that part of the road 
• Shadowing diagrams to show/illustrate the impacts on the surrounding 

neighbours  
• The exact dimensions of the garden to the front of the ground floor 

unit/maisonette  
• Further examination of the height and bulk of the of the 4 storey building 

in respect of it being overly dominant and comparison plans (existing and 
proposed) to better compare the height and bulk  

• Further details as to the way in which the amenity space on the roof would 

Page 12



  
work and why this was acceptable 

• Further details about how Tachbrook would be used in the future, given 
concerns about its misuse and anti-social behaviour. 

 
  

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.20 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Nadia Williams on 01895 277655.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

26-36 HORTON ROAD YIEWSLEY 

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment to provide 50 residential
units in 3 buildings with associated car parking and cycle parking spaces,
communal amenity areas, landscaping, private gardens and balconies
utilising existing access.

14/08/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 3507/APP/2013/2327

Drawing Nos: A2353 100 REV. P1
A2353 302 REV. P2 MATERIALS
A2353 400 REV. P2
A2353 401 REV. P2
A2353 402 REV. P2
A2353 150 REV P2
EAS 347 SK05 Access
A2353 200 P3
A2353 201 P3
A2353 202 P3
A2353 203 P3
A2353 204 P3
A2353 205 P3
A2353 210 P1 Block A Accessibility Plan
Letter dated 13 July 2013
A2353 211 P1 Block B Accessibility Plan
A2353 212 P1 Block C Accessibility Plan
A2353 220 P1 Parking and Vehicle tracking Plan
A2353 700 P11 Horton Road Schedule
Tree Protection Plan
CSH Assessment
Arboricultural Survey
Ecology Report
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy
Geo-Environmental Desk Study
Planning Noise Assessment
Planning Statement
Planning Statement Appendices
Code for Sustainable Homes - Pre-Assessment Report
Sustainability & Energy Statement
Transport Assessment

Date Plans Received: 15/08/2013
07/11/2013

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of 3 residential appartment blocks, to
provide 50 residential units, comprising 13 one bedroom, 35 two bedroom and 2 three
bedroom apartments  together with associated parking, involving demolition of existing
industrial buildings. The proposal includes parking for 54 cars, 50 secure cycle spaces

15/08/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

and integral bin stores, together with associated landscaping.

94 local residents, businesses and local amenity groups were consulted. In total, 5
individual letters of objection and one petition have been received, objecting to the
planning application, primarily on the grounds of loss of privacy and traffic generation.

There is no land use policy objection to the principle of a residential use development of
the site given the town centre location of the site, which is in an identified 'growth area'
and will be the focus for housing developments, with the area's improved transport links;
the focus for new employment and economic growth is in the Uxbridge and Hayes Town
Centres and Heathrow Opportunity Area, in highly accessible locations; the oversupply of
employment land in Hillingdon; the de minimus loss of only 3.8% of West Drayton and
0.9% of Hillingdon's total available commercial floorspace; the limited attractiveness of
the site to prospective commercial users for business purposes; the potential conflict with
surrounding residents; the impact on residential amenity of adjoining properties and the
regeneration opportunity provided by this site to improve the character and appearance
of the canal side.

The proposed regeneration of the site for residential development will make efficient use
of the land, with an improved visual, design and landscaped quality, complimentary to the
character and appearance of the street scene and neighbouring properties. The scheme
also seeks to maximise the site's canal side location and improve the setting and
environment along the canal towpath. The proposed scheme is considered to be of an
acceptable design which would be compatible within the local context and result in an
adequate standard of amenity for future occupiers.

The proposal would not detrimentally impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring
occupiers whilst highway, ecological and drainage issues have been satisfactorily
addressed.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions and the
signing of a S106 Legal Agreement.

2. RECOMMENDATION

A. That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:
(i) Transport: All on site and off site highways works as a result of this proposal,
including improvements to the site access.
(ii) Education: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £176,170 towards
school places in
the area, commensurate with the estimated child yield of the development 
(iii) Health: The applicant provides a financial contribution of  £23,068.85 towards
health care in the area 
(iv) Libraries: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £2,448.81 towards
library provision in the area 
(v) Construction Training: Either a construction training scheme delivered during
the construction phase of the development or a financial contribution of  £35,000
(vi) Air Quality: The applicant provides a financial contribution in the sum of
£12,500.
(vii) Community Facilities/Public Realm, including towpath improvements: The
applicant provides a financial contribution of  £50,000 
(vii) Affordable Housing review mechanism

Page 16



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

T8

RES7

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Materials (Submission)

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details
shall include:
(i)   fenestration and doors
(ii)  balconies including obscure screening 
(iii) boundary walls and railings
(v)   external lighting
(vi)  comprehensive colour scheme for all built details

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.
Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and to safeguard the
privacy of residents in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE24 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

1

2

(viii) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the
total cash contribution to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting
agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised by 20th. December 2013, or any other
period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture,
then the application may be referred back to the Committee for determination.

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed subject
to any changes negotiated by the Head of Planning, Heritage and Green Spaces
prior to issuing the decision.

Page 17



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES6

RES4

DIS5

H1

Levels

Accordance with Approved Plans

Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & Wheelchair Standards

Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:
A2353 100 REV. P1
A2353 302 REV. P2 MATERIALS
A2353 400 REV. P2
A2353 401 REV. P2
A2353 402 REV. P2
A2353 150 REV P2
EAS 347 SK05 Access
A2353 200 P3
A2353 201 P3
A2353 202 P3
A2353 203 P3
A2353 204 P3
A2353 205 P3
A2353 210 P1 Block A Accessibility Plan
A2353 211 P1 Block B Accessibility Plan
A2353 212 P1 Block C Accessibility Plan
A2353 220 P1 Parking and Vehicle tracking Plan
A2353 700 P11 Horton Road Schedule

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). and the London Plan (July 2011).

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further, five of the units hereby approved shall be
designed to be fully wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for residents who are
wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document
'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

3

4

5

6

Page 18



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

N1

RES24

Visibility Splays

Details of Modified Access

Noise-sensitive Buildings - use of specified measures

Secured by Design

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be permanently
retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a
minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may
share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The access for the proposed development shall be provided with 2.4m x 2.4m pedestrian
visibility splays in both directions and the visibility splays shall be maintained free of all
obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the
adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy AM7 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Development shall not begin until details of the modified access off Horton Road,
including details of the pedestrian crossing point (tactile paving) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be
occupied until the works which have been approved by the Local Planning Authority have
been completed.

REASON
In the interests of highway safety and in compliance with Policy AM7 of the the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Development shall not begin until a sound insulation and ventilation scheme for
protecting the proposed development from road, air traffic and other noise has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
meet acceptable internal noise design criteria. All works which form part of the scheme
shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter shall be
retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by road traffic, air traffic and other noise, in accordance with Policy
OE5 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 7.15 of the London Plan.

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the

7

8

9

10

Page 19



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES25

RES15

NONSC

No floodlighting

Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

Surface Water Run Off

Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policies BE13
and OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to
protect the ecological value of the area in accordance with Policy EC3.

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime. 
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

11

12

13

Page 20



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES8

RES9

Tree Protection

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the adjacent Grand
Union Canal, details shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in prior to the commencement of development, and thereafter implemented in
accordance with the agreed details unless otherwise agreed in writing.

REASON
To determine the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water.
Potential contamination of the waterway and ground water from wind blow, seepage or
spillage at the site, and high volumes of water should be avoided to safeguard the
waterway environment and integrity of the waterway infrastructure, in compliance with
Policy OE8 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and policy 5.12 of the London Plan.

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1.    Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a  Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b  Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c  Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities

14

15

Page 21



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Imported Soils

Parking Allocation

where appropriate
1.d Full details of the proposed hard and soft landscaping scheme for the waterside area

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage
2.b Cycle Storage for 50 bicycles
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Car Parking Layouts (including details of 5 active and 6 passive electric vehicle
charging points)
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials
2.f External Lighting
2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance
4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,  BE38
and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage), 5.3 (sustainable travel) of
the London Plan (July 2011).

All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of
contamination. Site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted for approval to the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other off site receptors, in accordance with Policy OE11
of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

16

17

Page 22



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

RES16

NONSC

NONSC

Ecological Enhancement

Code for Sustainable Homes

Waterside Risk Assessment

Waterbourne Freight

No part of the development shall be occupied until details of the method of control for the
designation and allocation of parking spaces has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be retained
for the sole use of the individual flats in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
In order to ensure that sufficient parking is provided, in accordance with Policies AM14
and AM15 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Prior to commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly detail measures to promote and enhance roosting and foraging opportunities for
bats including the incorporation of new roosting facilities within the fabric of the buildings.
The scheme shall also demonstrate how the development will contribute to wider wildlife
benefits through the use of nectar rich green roofs and walls, habitat walls and wildlife
specific landscaping. The development must proceed in accordance with the approved
scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
Policy EM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan (2011).

The dwellings shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received.  The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a Risk Assessment and
Method Statement outlining all works to be carried out adjacent to the water (Grand
Union Canal) shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The risk assessment shall also include details of the proposed safety equipment along
the canal frontage, which shall be installed prior to first occupation of the development
herby permitted. 

REASON
To ensure the proposed works do not have any adverse impact on the safety of
waterway users and the integrity of the Navigation.

18

19

20

21

Page 23



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Ingress of Polluted Air

Air Quality and Energy Provision

Contamination

Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a feasibility study shall be
carried out to assess the potential for moving freight by water during the demolition and
construction cycle (waste and bulk materials) and following occupation of the
development (waste and recyclables). The use of waterborne transport shall be
maximised during the construction of the development unless the above assessment
demonstrates that such use of the Grand Union Canal is not physically or economically
feasible.

REASON
To encourage the use of the canal for transporting waste and bulk materials in
accordance with policy 7.26 of the London Plan.

Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed
accommodation from external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by the LPA.
Any works which form part of such a scheme shall be completed before any part of the
development is first occupied or used and measures put in place to ensure it is
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON: To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policy OE1 of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Before the energy provision is installed, details of any plant, machinery or fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision for the development shall be submitted to the LPA for
approval. This shall include suitable pollutant emission rates with and without mitigation
technologies, which needs to be considered as part of a wider air quality assessment if
necessary, as set out in the EPUK CHP Guidance 2012 (September 2007). Details to
limit and/or control air pollution for any CHP shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall be provided prior to the occupation
and thereafter implemented and maintained for the lifetime of the development unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the site and neighbouring properties in
accordance with policy OE1 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA). The scheme shall include the following measures unless the LPA
dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing:
(a)   A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;
(b)   A site investigation, including where relevant, soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use; and
(c)   A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the

22

23

24

Page 24



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

RPD2

Japanese Knotweed Removal

Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an
addendum to the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to
implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No development shall take place until a detailed method statement and procedure for
dealing with the eradication of Japanese Knot Weed on the site has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved statement. 

REASON
(i)  This is an invasive plant, the spread of which is prohibited under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act. 
(ii) To benefit local wildlife and to help maintain the regions natural balance of flora, in
compliance with Policies EC1 and EC5 of the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and policy 7.19 of the London Plan (July 2011).

The east facing first and second floor seconary windows in Block A, serving units A 1.2,
A 1.3, A 1.4, A 2.2, A 2.3 and A 2.4  facing 38A Horton Road and the north facing landing
windows in Block C facing 14-24 Horton Road shall be glazed with permanently obscured
glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor
level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

25

26

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8

Page 25



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

AM14
AM15
AM7
AM9

BE13
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24

BE26
BE32

BE38

H4
H5
H8
LE4

OE1

OE5
OE8

R17

LPP 5.1
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 7.28
HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

NPPF

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings
Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Change of use from non-residential to residential
Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Renewable energy
(2011) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network
Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

Page 26



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I6

I2

I1

I11

I12

I14C

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Encroachment

Building to Approved Drawing

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

Notification to Building Contractors

Compliance with Building Regulations Access to and use of

3

4

5

6

7

8

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate

Page 27



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15

I16

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Directional Signage

9

10

against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from www.drc-
gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6 and 8.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You are advised that any directional signage on the highway is unlawful. Prior consent
from the Council's Street Management Section is required if the developer wishes to
erect directional signage on any highway under the control of the Council.

Page 28



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I19

I21

I25A

I3

I9

Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

Street Naming and Numbering

The Party Wall etc. Act 1996

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Community Safety - Designing Out Crime

11

12

13

14

15

16

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE.
Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1) carry out work to an existing party wall;
2) build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
3) in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control
will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Before the submission of reserved matters/details required by condition  x you are
advised to consult the Metropolitan Police's Crime Prevention Design Advisor, Planning &
Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250538).

It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land

Page 29



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

to drain onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system. The hard
standing shall therefore be so designed and constructed that surface water from the
private land shall not be permitted to drain onto the highway or into the highway drainage
system.

With regard to the external materials (condition 2), you are advised that it will be
important to ensure that the materials match those older buildings in the locality. The
drawings are annotated as being dark red/brown tiles and these are considered
appropriate. The drawings also show stock brick, which should be a deep red, rather
than the yellow/buff shown in the perspectives.

In seeking to discharge condition 17 (car parking), the applicant is advised that the
preferred solution is to allocate 2 parking spaces each for the 3 bedroom flats and 1
space each for the smaller units.

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. Where the
developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water
Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777. With
regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Three Valleys Water
Company.

Specific security needs identified for the application site include CCTV coverage of
certain key areas within the development, namely the underground car park and the main
vehicular entrance to the development. This could be a simple fixed camera system for
deterrence and retrospective investigation only and not monitored system. You are
advised to submit details to expedite the specified security needs. In addition to the
above, for this site to achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation, you are advised to
consult with the local Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA). The CPDA's
contact number is 0208 246 1769.

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Acts.

The applicant is encouraged to discuss with Council officers in conjunction with the
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer whether on site CCTV cameras can be
linked to the Council's central CCTV system.

Page 30



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

24

25

26

27

28

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. At this time the
Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £40,3550.00 which is due on
commencement of this development. The actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be
calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a separate liability notice
will be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require further information
please refer to the Council's Website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738"

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

The applicant/developer should refer to the current "Code of Practice for Works affecting
the Canal  to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-
property)."

The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment or access onto the canal
towpath requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact
the Canal & River Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young
(jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) regarding the required access agreement."

If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the adjoining Grand
Union Canal waterway, details submitted pursuant to the discharge of conditions relating
to drainage will be subject to consultation with the Canal & River Trust, in order to assess
the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water. 

The applicant is advised that surface water discharge to the Navigation will require prior
consent from the Canal & River Trust. Please contact Nick Pogson from the Canal &
River Trust Utilities team (nick.pogson@canalrivertrust.org.uk).

The applicant is also advised to ensure that potential contamination of the waterway
(Grand Union Canal) and ground water from wind blow, seepage or spillage at the site,
and high volumes of water be avoided, to safeguard the waterway environment and
integrity of the waterway infrastructure.

You are advised that details submitted pursuant to the discharge of conditions relating to
external lighting, CCTV scheme, the  proposed hard and soft landscaping
scheme/boundary treatment for the canal waterside area, Waterborne Freight Feasibility

Page 31



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is a roughly 'T' shaped relatively flat plot of land, 1 acre or 0.42ha in area,
situated to the south of Horton Road. The primary axis is  north-south with a western spur.
The Grand Union canal defines the southern boundary. here are currently a number of
dilapidated industrial buildings within the site with a large service yard and parking area to
the north of the buildings. The industrial buildings also directly abut the canal towpath to
the south of the site. 

The surrounding area is largely residential in nature with groups of terrace properties to
the east and west of the site with a frontage onto Horton Road and terrace housing on the
opposite side of the road. The site borders residential properties to the north fronting
Horton Road and to the east, including a 1980's residential development, Knowles Close.
Commercial development is located to the west.

The application site falls within the a Growth Area as defined in Hillingdon's Local Plan:
Part 1- Strategic Policies. The site is located within the Yiewsley/West Drayton Major
Town Centre, but outside both the primary and secondary shopping areas. 

There is a tree preservation order TPO No 365 to the east of the site. The site has a
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2-3.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for a residential development in three blocks, to provide 50
residential units (13 x 1 bed (26%), 35 x 2 bed (34%) and 2 x 3 (4%) bed appartments).
The proposals include 54 parking spaces (including 5 disabled spaces) and 50 cycle
parking spaces.

Block A fronting Horton Road would be 3 storey and accommodate 14 units. Block B to
the rear (south)of the site adjacent to the canal would be  part four, part 5 storey (with the
fifth floor contained within the roof space). This building would accommodate 30 units.
Block C is 3 storey  and would be located on the western arm of the site. This building
would accommodate 6 units.

Entrances to the buildings are via circulation cores accessed off a new estate road.
Refuse and cycle stores are integrated within the buildings A and B. Parking for the
development is located around the development in landscaped shared surfaces.  The
existing access off Horton Road will be retained and improved, to provide access to the
site.

The amenity spaces are provided around the buildings and on the canal frontage. A
central communal amenity area will be provided, which will include a play area and
landscaping. In total, 903sqm of communal amenity space, together with private
balconies/gardens amounting to 865qm are proposed for the majority of flats.

The proposal will involve the demolition of all the existing buildings on the site.

study and the Risk Assessment and Method Statement will be subject to consultation
with the Canal & River Trust.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 32



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application is supported by a number of reports that assess the impact of the
proposal. A summary and some key conclusions from these reports are provided below:

· Planning Statement
The statement describes the development and provides a policy context and planning
assessment for the proposal. The statement concludes that the proposal is well
conceived, robust and in accordance with the proper planning of the area.

· Marketing Report / Employment Land Analysis

· Design and Access Statement
This report outlines the context for the development and provides a justification for the
design, number of units, layout, scale, landscaping, appearance and access for the
proposed development.

· Arboricultural survey
The statement has been prepared to ensure good practise in the protection of trees during
the construction and post construction phases of the development.

· Japanese Knotweed Assessment

· Energy Statement and 
· Sustainability Statement
The sustainability credentials of the scheme are assessed in respect of renewable energy
resources and achieving savings in terms of CO2. The assessment concludes that the
use of Photo Voltaic panels is the preferred option for renewable energy technology.

· Code for Sustainable Homes Pre-assessment Report

· Ecological Report
The report summarises the findings of a walk over survey, desk study and protected
species assessment. Recommendations for protected species surveys have been made. 

· Planning Noise Assessment
The assessment concludes that the site is suitable for residential development subject to
a suitable scheme of mitigation measures being incorporated into the design.

· Transport Assessment
The assessment considers the accessibility of the site, examines predicted generation
trips by all modes, assesses the effect of the development on surrounding transport
infrastructure and considers surfacing and refuse collection facilities. The assessment
concludes that the development benefits from good levels of public transport accessibility,
that net trip generation can be accommodated on the surrounding transport infrastructure
and that the development through its design, will encourage the use of sustainable modes
of transport.

· Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy July 2013
The assessment considers flood and drainage related matters. Thereport notes that the
site is in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore not at risk of flooding formmain rivers.

· Geo-environmental Desk Study
The objectives of ther study are to:
· To determine the nature and where possible the extent of contaminants potentially

Page 33



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There have been no recent applications to redevelop this site previously.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

present
· To establish the presence of significant pollutant linkages 
· To obtain documentary or other information to assess whether the land appears to be
contaminated
· To assess whether the site is safe and suitable for the purpose for which it is intended,
or can be made so by remedial action.

· Statement of Community Involvement
The document summarises the consultation strategy with statutory and non statutory
consultees, including local politicians, local community groups and neighbours.

· Viability Report

· Illustrative Visuals

PT1.BE1

PT1.E1

PT1.E5

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM3

PT1.EM6

PT1.H1

PT1.H2

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land

(2012) Town and Local Centres

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Blue Ribbon Network

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Housing Growth

(2012) Affordable Housing

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

AM15

AM7

AM9

BE13

BE19

BE20

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 34



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE26

BE32

BE38

H4

H5

H8

LE4

OE1

OE5

OE8

R17

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.7

LPP 7.28

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

NPPF

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Town centres - design, layout and landscaping of new buildings

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Change of use from non-residential to residential

Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and
Business Areas

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Restoration of the Blue Ribbon Network

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Not applicable19th November 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application has been advertised under Article 13 of the Town and Country Planning General
Development Management Order 2010 as a Major Development. 94 surrounding property
owners/occupiers have been consulted. At the time of writing the report, 5 letters have been
received objecting on the following grounds:
1. As a company we welcome the development, but have a number of concerns 
2. There should be no access from adjoining premises whilst building is in progress.
3. An additional 50 units in Horton Road would cause more traffic congestion

Page 35



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Currently Horton Road is a major link and highly congested at many peak periods. 
5. The Council needs to make improvements to keep traffic moving freely. 
6. Reduction of on street parking especially in areas where this causes issues to traffic flow 
7. Reducing the amount of sunlight that we receive into our rear garden during the
late afternoon/early evening. 
8. Our privacy can also be effected with potential occupiers being able to overlook into our garden
from their windows/balconies.
9. Lack of parking for future occupiers

Petition
One petition bearing  21 signatures organised by an adjoining industrial unit has been received
objecting on the following grounds:
1. the erection of a 2.5m high solid timber acoustic fence will clearly affect our right to light. At
present this is open land and has been since we have been in occupation for over 30 years.
2. the erection of a 2.5m high solid timber acoustic fence so close (ie 1 metre) to our boundary
wall, will severely limit the ability of people to exit the facility safely and effectively. This is especially
the case for any people in wheelchairs or with other physical impairments.
3. our business will be  overlooked and there will be a loss of privacy. This will be severely
detrimental to our business and could lead to its closure and the loss of local
jobs.
4. Given our need for privacy and secrecy we cannot authorise the demolition of a party wall.
5. Noise from surrounding commercial premises will affect future occupiers.
6. There is no Fire Assessment.

As well as the consultations carried out by the Council, the applicants organised a public exhibition
at St Matthews Church and Parish Hall, Yiewsley, West Drayton on the 10th May 2013 to residents
and businesses. Prior to the exhibition, approximately 200 flyers were hand delivered to local
businesses and residents within the vicinity of the site. The majority of respondents also supported
the redevelopment of the site for residential use within the town centre.

CANAL AND RIVERS TRUST

The British Waterways Board (Transfer of Functions) Order 2012 has substituted references to
British Waterways in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure)(England) Order 2010 to the Canal & River Trust. As such, local planning authorities are
now required to consult the Canal & River Trust on applications for planning permission in the
same way as British Waterways was previously consulted. In addition, under the British Waterways
Board Transfer Scheme 2012 (also made under the Public Bodies Act 2011) all the property of
British Waterways in England and Wales has now vested in the Trust.

The Canal & River Trust is a company limited by guarantee and registered as a charity.It is
separate from government but still the recipient of a significant amount of government funding. The
Trust has a range of charitable objects including:
· To hold in trust or own and to operate and manage inland waterways for public benefit, use and
enjoyment;
· To protect and conserve objects and buildings of heritage interest;
· To further the conservation, protection and improvement of the natural environment of inland
waterways; and to promote sustainable development in the vicinity of any inland waterways for the
benefit of the public.

After due consideration of the application details, the Canal & River Trust has no objection to the
principle of redevelopment of this site, which currently has no positive relationship with the Grand
Union Canal. We have the following comments about the submitted proposals:

Page 36



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Scale and Layout
In principle, we support the opening up of the canalside and the development's potential for
interaction with the waterside. However, we have some concern about the height of the canalside
block adjacent to the towpath. We acknowledge that this has been moved slightly further away
from that proposed at pre-app stage, and its height has been reduced, but we still feel that its
height and proximity are unduly overbearing, and out of character in this location. We accept the
applicant's comparisons with the other tall buildings, existing and permitted, nearby, but feel that
this location is different. The other examples given are offside (on the non-towpath side), where
historically, industrial sites were often close to the waterfront, and they also form a bit of a group
close to the high street. This site and its surrounds, on the north side of the canal, is characterised
by slightly lower development, with a more traditional scale and form. We are keen to avoid a
canyoning effect on the canal corridor. We would therefore like to the see the development moved
further back from the towpath, with a reduced height, stepping down towards the canalside.

Access to Canalside
Any new accesses onto the towpath require a commercial agreement with our Estates team, and
we request an informative below regarding this.

We support the principle of improved access onto the towpath, but we are also aware that the
development will bring more visitors to the site and the canal environment. They will make use of
the towpath and waterspace as a valuable amenity resource, and also a useful walking and cycling
route to West Drayton Station and other destinations. While we support increased access to this
resource, we would request appropriate mitigation towards the increased use of the towpath and
canal environment, such as upgrading of the towpath, through a S106 agreement. I am hoping to
get potential costs for this from colleagues, so will get back to you shortly with this.

Ecology and Sustainability
We support the introduction of habitat enhancements such as new bird and bat boxes. We assume
these will be within the site.

The development may benefit from utilising its waterside location for moving demolition waste and
materials from the site by barge. The site is within a lock-free section of the Grand Union Canal,
which may make deliveries to the Powerday site (which has a wharf) at Willesden Junction more
efficient than by road, as well as offering other benefits to the wider community. Please see the
condition requested below.

If the Council is minded to grant planning permission, it is requested that the following conditions
and informatives be attached to the decision notice (in addition to a S106 contribution towards the
upgrade of the towpath environment):

Conditions
"Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a Risk Assessment and Method
Statement outlining all works to be carried out adjacent to the water must be submitted and
approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust. The
risk assessment shall also include details of the proposed safety equipment along the canal
frontage, which shall be installed prior to first occupation of the development herby permitted.
Reason: To ensure the proposed works do not have any adverse impact on the safety of waterway
users and the integrity of the Navigation."

"Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, a feasibility study shall be carried
out to assess the potential for moving freight by water during the construction cycle (waste and bulk
materials) and following occupation of the development (waste and recyclables). The use of
waterborne transport shall be maximised during the construction of the development unless the
above assessment demonstrates that such use of the canal is not physically or economically

Page 37



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

feasible. Reason: To encourage the use of the canal for transporting waste and bulk materials in
accordance with the London Plan."

"Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, full details of the proposed hard
and soft landscaping scheme for the waterside area shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust. The landscaping shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To improve the appearance of the site when viewed from the waterside and to enhance
the biodiversity of the area. Earthworks and associated landscaping also have the potential to
impact on the integrity of the waterway and it is necessary to assess this and determine future
maintenance responsibilities for any planting."

"If surface water run-off and ground water is proposed to drain into the waterway, details shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Canal &
River Trust prior to the commencement of development, and thereafter implemented in accordance
with the agreed details unless otherwise agreed in writing.
Reason: To determine the potential for pollution of the waterway and likely volume of water.
Potential contamination of the waterway and ground water from wind blow, seepage or spillage at
the site, and high volumes of water should be avoided to safeguard the waterway environment and
integrity of the waterway infrastructure."

"Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, full details of any proposed
lighting and CCTV scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Canal & River Trust. The approved lighting and CCTV scheme
should be implemented prior to first occupation of the development. Reason: In the interest of
crime prevention, ecology, visual amenity and the waterway setting."

Informatives

"The applicant/developer should refer to the current "Code of Practice for Works affecting the
Canal & River Trust" to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-property)."

"The applicant is advised that surface water discharge to the Navigation will require prior consent
from the Canal & River Trust. Please contact Nick Pogson from the Canal & River Trust Utilities
team (nick.pogson@canalrivertrust.org.uk)."

"The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment or access onto the canal towpath
requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact the Canal & River
Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young (jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) regarding the
required access agreement."

In addition, in order for the Canal & River Trust to monitor our role as a statutory consultee, please
send me a copy of the decision notice and the requirements of any planning obligation.

METROPOLITAN POLICE  C P D A

Concerns are raised over the the open nature of the canal side frontage. I would suggest 1.8m park
style railings as being a suitable barrier. A gate could be incorporated in it for use of the residents,
though locking arrangements would certainly be a necessity. In addition, the communal garden
area, containing the LAP, should also have 1.2m railings and a gate, to help designate this as an
amenity area for the new residents, and to help empower them (and the Police) to challenge youths
from further afield who might decide to use and abuse this space.

Page 38



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

Noise
After reviewing the noise survey, a condition requiring a sound insulation and ventilation scheme for
protecting the proposed residential development from road traffic, air traffic and other noise is
recommended. The scheme should ensure that internal LAeq,T and LAmax noise levels meet
appropriate noise criteria. All works which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented
before the residential development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in
good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed residential development is not
adversely affected by road traffic, air traffic and other noise in accordance with policy OE5 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (July
2011) Policy 7.15.
(Officer Comment: A condition has been  added).

Please add the standard construction works Informative:

Air Quality
No information was submitted with regard to air quality. Besides the impact of the development on
the existing residents, air quality consideration also needs to be given to the impact on the
proposed development of existing air quality in the area, as a number of new sensitive receptors
are being introduced to the site.

The proposed development is within the declared AQMA and in an area that is likely to be slightly
below the European Union limit value for annual mean nitrogen dioxide (40.0 mg/m3). Modelling
undertaken by CERC for Hillingdon indicated the worst location on site exceeded the limit value at
41.8 mg/m3 and was just below the limit value adjacent to Horton Road varying from 39.5 mg/m3 to
39.29 mg/m3.

There is a NOx diffusion tube (HD51) located near the junction of Horton Road on Colham Road
(approximately 250 metrers from the High Street and 185 metres from the railway). This tube
location has measured bias adjusted annual mean for NO2 over the last few years as follows: 2008
- 36.2 mg/m3, 2009 - 34.3 mg/m3, 2010 - 34.2 mg/m3, 2011 - 33.2 mg/m3, 2012 - 36.2 mg/m3. As
the application site is located nearer to the High Street and the Railway line, it is possible the NO2
annual mean on the application site is higher, however, it is anticipated it is likely to be a little below
40 mg/m3.

The development is introducing sensitive receptors into a poor air quality area. As no air quality
assessment has been provided, it is unclear if air quality will improve as a consequence of the
development. It is likely any improvement would be negligible. As the development is in and may
cause increases in an area already suffering poor air quality a S106 obligation up to £12,500
should be sought for contribution to the air quality monitoring network in the area.

It is considered that the current proposal with unrestricted accesss to the canal would result in a
good deal more crime and anti social behaviour on the site if these measures are not put in place,
which is of course, the essence of 'designing out crime'.

With respect to the other requirements of Secured by Design, these will be the standard ones as
listed in on the application form on the SBD website. 

THE INLAND WATERWAYS ASSOCIATION - No response.

Page 39



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The Sustainability and the Energy Strategy indicates natural ventilation at the site, along side high
efficiency boilers and photovoltaic panels. It is recommended the facade of the building along
Horton Road is located further away from Horton Road, especially in the absence of any mitigating
factors. As no clarification has been provided with regard to air quality, it may be advisable to
include the ingress of polluted air condition, especially for the block nearest Horton Road.
REASON: To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (September 2007).

(Officer Comment: An Air Ingress condition has been added)

Notes: In areas where there the air pollution levels are above, or close to, the national and
European limits, this is designed to safeguard the future residents/users of the site from the ingress
of the poor outdoor air quality. The design must take into account climate change pollutants and
ensure there are no trade-offs between local and global pollutant emissions. Suitable ventilation
systems will need to: take air from a clean location or treat the air and remove pollutants; designed
to minimise energy usage; be sufficient to prevent summer overheating; have robust arrangements
for maintenance.

It is noted from the Code for Sustainable Homes Pre-assessment, there is a target to get 3 points
for NOx emissions which would mean each of the 50 properties will have emissions with a dry NOx
level of less than 40 mg/kWh. A condition is advised in relation to providing details of the final
energy provision at the site. Details of any plant, machinery or fuel burnt, as part of the energy
provision for the development inclding suitable pollutant emission rates with and without mitigation
technologies should be provided, which will need to be considered as part of a wider air quality
assessment if necessary, as set out in the EPUK CHP Guidance 2012 (September 2007). Details
to limit and/or control air pollution for any CHP should also be submitted. 
REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the site and neighbouring properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Notes: This condition relates to the operational phase of residential and commercial development
and is intended for the protection of future residents in a designated AQMA and Smoke Control
Area. Advice on the assessment of CHPs is available from EPUK at:
http://www.iaqm.co.uk/text/guidance/epuk/chp_guidance.pdf. An area up to a distance of 10 times
the appropriate stack height needs to be assessed. They should contact the Environmental
Protection Unit if they have any queries.

Transport Statement refers to 54 car parking spaces. It also proposes to provide a travel plan for
the development. It may be advisable to include a green travel plan condition on any permission
that may be given. Based on estimates for trips generated for a use similar to the former use, the
Transport Statement indicates trip generation as a consequence of the development is expected to
be lower than in the current use.

Land and Contamination.
The following information was submitted with regard to land contamination issues:

·  Geo-Environmental Desk Study for 26-36 Horton Road, West Drayton by Jomas Associates Ltd
for Clearview Homes Ltd (Final v1.0), dated April 2013

A desk top study for the site has been submitted which is based on documentary information and a
site walkover. The qualitative assessment of risk with regard to the future residential development
is considered 'moderate'. Potential sources of contamination identified at the site include made
ground under the areas of hard standing and possibly associated with the infilled dock and
contamination from fuel storage and spillages at the site. The report recommends ground
investigations are required to identify contamination at the site and the investigations should include

Page 40



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

a ground gas/vapour assessment. Any assessment should also include groundwater testing where
this is found. Our concerns relate primarily to human health with regard to any groundwater
contamination.

The report also identifies the presence of Japanese knotweed on site and a contractor has
recommended treatment. The Environment Agency may wish to be consulted with regard to this,
and possible groundwater contamination, although the extent of this is unknown at this point.

The standard contaminated land condition is recommended for any permission that may be given.
The site will require imported top soil for landscaping purposes and separate condition to ensure
the imported soils are independently tested to ensure they are suitable for use is also
recommended.

Contaminated Land Condition
(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance
Document on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The
scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing:
(a)   A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and provide
information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate all potential
sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other identified receptors relevant
to the site;
(b)   A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater sampling,
together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by a suitably qualified
and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly identify all risks, limitations and
recommendations for remedial measures to make the site suitable for the proposed use; and
(c)   A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to
commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation scheme
is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to the remediation
scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a comprehensive
verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Condition to minimise risk of contamination from garden and landscaped area

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be
independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON:To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil

Page 41



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice when using this
condition.

ACCESS OFFICER

The site is occupied by 3 industrial buildings that would be demolished to make way for new
residential accommodation. The proposal primarily comprises a mix of 1 and 2 bedroom dwellings
with a number of three-bedroom flats. The proposed parking layout provides 54 parking bays, of
which 5 would be accessible. Whilst the aspiration to comply with Approved Document M to the
Building Regulations is noted, there appears to have been no reference to London Plan July 2011,
Policy 3.8(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible
Hillingdon" adopted May 2013.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan. In addition, 10% of new housing should be built to wheelchair home
standards and should accord with relevant policies, legislation and adopted guidance.
The following access observations are provided:
1. A minimum of five fully wheelchair accessible units should be incorporated into the scheme.
These residential units should be clearly identifiable on plan and include the all relevant
specifications required for wheelchair accessible accommodation.
2. From the internal face of the front door, the wheelchair standard flats should feature an
obstruction free area not less than 1500 mm wide and 1800 mm to any
door or wall opposite
3. Level access should be achieved. Details of level access to and into the proposed dwelling
should be submitted. A fall of 1:60 in the areas local to the principal entrance should be
incorporated to prevent rain and surface water ingress. In addition to a levels plan showing internal
and external levels, a section drawing of the level access threshold substructure, and water bar to
be installed, including any necessary drainage, should be submitted.
4. In the smaller blocks, one Part M compliant passenger lift should be provided. In larger blocks
two lifts should be featured to allow for increased use and to maintain wheelchair access in the
event of a lift breakdown. Further details should be obtained from the above-mentioned
Supplementary Planning Document which can be downloaded from the Council's website.
5. The width of the proposed hallway and doorways should be of sufficient width to allow a
wheelchair user to pass through at an angle.
6. The 45 Lifetime Home standards flats should all provide a minimum of one bathroom that
achieves at least 700 mm from one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided between the front edge
of the toilet pan and any obstruction opposite.
7. To allow bathrooms to be used as wet rooms in future, plans should indicate floor gulley
drainage.

Officer Comments: The Council's Access officer raised a number of detailed points relating to the
original plans. Amended plans have been received, including dedicated accessibility plans,
demonstrating compliance with Lifetime Homes criteria and general compliance with Accessible
Hillingdon SPG. The Access Officer raises no objections to the revised plans.

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER

COMMENTS: Whilst there are no objections in principle to the redevelopment of this site for
housing, or to the design approach to the scheme, there are concerns re the proposals, which are
as follows:

Page 42



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

· The height and massing of block B should more closely reflect the scale of the surrounding
housing area, i.e. predominantly 2-3 storeys, to create linkage and integrate the scheme with its
context. At 3-5 storeys, it takes its cue in terms of scale from the group of large housing
developments located within the town centre area, which has quite a different scale and character
to this area.

Officer note: This issue has been addressed in the report.

· Block C has its main entrance to the rear, which would not be good in terms of site legibility, street
activity or also possibly safety. Two of the ground floor patios are hard up against parking spaces,
with no buffer zone of planting to provide privacy. 3 of its 4 elevations face onto parking areas and
the other, the northern elevation, has only staircase windows, the rest is blank. Given this includes
the front door of the building, this should be its principal elevation, yet this would be a largely dead
frontage with little activity or natural surveillance of the door, or the space beyond the building.

Officer note: Revised plans have been submitted showing a new entrance to Block C on the south
elevation. A new path leads to the entrance.  The old entrance on the northern elevation has been
retained for two reasons: firstly to minimise the route to the bin store and to accord with carry
distances in the guidance, and secondly it allows an 1800mm wide path to meet Accessible
Hillingdon standards.

· Block A should have a main entrance onto Horton Road, to create an active frontage. It is also
difficult to see how useable the two patio areas that front onto Horton Road will be, as not only do
they face the main road, but they would also be at a lower level to it and hence not very private.

Officer note: This issue has been addressed in the report.

· There are runs of proposed parking spaces across the site that need to be "broken up" with
additional tree planting. 

Officer note: Revised plans have been received showing spaces adjusted north and south to allow
for additional planted area / trees between spaces to further break them up. 

WASTE MANAGER

Flats: I would estimate the Weekly Waste Arising from the development would be 7,970 litres. The
above waste would therefore be accommodated in a total of 8 x 1,100 litre bulk bins. Initially all bulk
bins on site would be for residual waste; then some of these could be exchanged for recycling at a
latter date, or an additional recycling bins added. Space would have to be allocated for the above
waste and recycling storage.

The bin enclosures / bin storage area must ensure there is at least 150 mm clearance in between
the bulk bins and the walls of storage area. The size and shape of the bin enclosures must also
allow good access to bins by residents, and if multiple bins are installed for the bins to be rotated in
between collections. The dimension of an 1,100 litre bulk bin are shown in the table below: -
Bin Size Height Depth Width 1,100 litre Eurobin 1,370 mm 990 mm 1,260 mm.

Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the bin stores with water and disinfectant. A
hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage should be by means of trapped
gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store area should have a suitable fall (no
greater than1:20) towards the drainage points.

The material used for the floor should be 100 mm thick to withstand the weight of the bulk bins.

Page 43



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Ideally the walls of the bin storage areas should be made of a material that has a fire resistance of
one hour when tested in accordance with BS 472-61.

The gate / door of the bin stores need to be made of metal, hardwood, or metal clad softwood and
ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes when tested to BS 476-22. The door frame should be
rebated into the opening. Again the doorway should allow clearance of 150 mm either side of the
bin when it is being moved for collection. The door(s) should have a latch or other mechanism to
hold them open when the bins are being moved in and out of the chamber.

Internal bin chambers should have appropriate passive ventilators to allow air flow and stop the
build up of unpleasant odours. The ventilation needs to be fly proofed. If the chambers are inside
the building they should have a light. The lighting should be a sealed bulked fitting (housings rated
to IP65 in BS EN 60529:1992).

The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no more than
1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the storage area is raised
above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move
the bin to level of the collection vehicle. The access the roadway to the bins must be constructed to
withstand the weight of a RCV; 26 tonnes.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER / CONTEXT: The site is occupied by a warehouse building on an
industrial estate, accessd from Horton Road on its northern boundary.  The plot is arranged on a
north-south axis with the towpath of the Grand Union canal defining the southern boundary. To the
east of the plot is Knowles Close, a residential estate built in the 1980's. A spur of land within the
site projects to the west into an arera of industrial and commercial buildings.
Within the site there are few trees. However, it benefits from the 'borrowed landscape' provided by
mature off-site trees along the eastern boundary within the housing land, some of which are
protected by TPO No.365.  There are also established off-site trees on the towpath, along the
southern boundary.

PROPOSAL:   The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings and redevelop the site to provide
50 residential units in 3 buildings with associated car parking and cycle parking spaces, communal
amenity areas, landscaping, private gardens and balconies utilising existing access. 

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.

· Issael's Design & Access Statement, describes the amenity space and landscaping in section
7.11.  The amenity space provision includes the use of private balconies, private gardens and
patios. There will also be two shared communal spaces.
· One of the key design objectives (discussed during a pre-application meeting) is to provide an
attractive visual (and physical) link between Horton Road and the canalside.  This has partly been
achieved by the introduction of an estate road which leads directly to the canal. 
· Reference is made to the attention to detail of the external landscape materials. However, there is
little information regarding the landscape masterplan and no r details, or palette of materials, to
illustrate the intended design quality.
· An Arboricultural Survey to BS5837:2012, by Merewood has assessed 24No individual trees and
one group (G1). Of these only T8,9,10,11 and 12 are within the site. These are all 'C' grade trees
which will be removed to facilitate the development. All other (off-site) trees which influence / or
may be influenced by the development have been  assessed and taken into account in the site
layout.

Page 44



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

· No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal. - Merewood's Tree
Protection Plan and report should ensure that these trees are safeguarded, provided that the
recommended measures are adhered to. 
· In terms of the masterplan and site layout, much of the pre-application advice is reflected in the
proposal.  However, there is a paucity of tree planting along the north south road axis, where tree
cover is required to complement and soften the impact of the built development.
· There are also too many car parking spaces grouped together without relief along the north-south
access road - and particularly around the western-most block which appears to be stranded in a
sea of parking.
· If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the area.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
No objection subject to the above observations and conditions RES6, RES7, RES8, RES9 (parts
1,2,5 and 6), RES10 and RES11.

FLOOD AND DRAINAGE OFFICER

The Flood risk Assessment (FRA) does not provide calculations to demonstrate that the area set
aside for suds is sufficient. In order to inform this infiltration tests must be done rather than
assuming infiltration is appropriate from previous arrangements. It also shows formal piped
drainage where sheet flow across the site into dished areas would reduce the maintenance
requirements.

I do note that it suggests that water butts etc are to be provided, but makes no mention of
rainwater/ grey water reuse for flushing toilets etc, which should be explored.

The access to the canal and area adjacent to the canal is much improved and am happy with this
meeting the requirements of our policy on the Blue Ribbon Strategy.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER

I have no objections to the proposed development and consider it to be a well considered scheme
that would result in an improved natural environment in this area.  The links through and frontage
next to the canal need a bit of work, but in general this development should result in an improved
canal frontage and increased use of the tow-path.  I therefore have no objections subject to the
following comments and conditions:

Ecology

The site is next to the Grand Union Canal which is a site of metropolitan grade importance for
nature conservation.  The development needs to actively contribute to measures to enhance
wildlife. The following condition is therefore necessary:

CONDITION
Prior to commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly detail measures
to promote and enhance roosting and foraging opportunities for bats including the incorporation of
new roosting facilities within the fabric of the buildings.  The scheme shall also demonstrate how
the development will contribute to wider wildlife benefits through the use of nectar rich green roofs
and walls, habitat walls and wildlife specific landscaping.  The development must proceed in
accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON

Page 45



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with Policy EM7
(Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

Energy
The broad energy statement outlines that Code Level 4 will be applied to the development. I
support this provision which would comply with policy 5.2 of the London Plan and would
recommend this is secured by way of condition.

Landscaping
The applicant must be made aware that the landscaping plans should clearly incorporate the canal
frontage with a view to maximising its relationship with the development.  The Canal & River Trust
should be consulted on the discharge of this part of the condition.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER

No objection to the above application on condition the applicant satisfactorily addresses the
concerns and the conditions referred to below.

Summary
·Trip Generation and impact -satisfactory and impact negligible
·Car parking/disabled and cycle parking allocations -compliant with Borough and London
·Traffic conflict issue, so suggested removal of one car parking bay nearest to access
·Access road(shared  surface) to be revised up- from 5.5 to 6m for road safety reasons
·Electrical charging points-11 needed, 5 active and 6 passive

. Trip generation and impact

Based on TRAVL and TRICS the Trip generation and Traffic impact from the proposal are
satisfactory. The TRAVL two way car trip rates for the development of 50 Flats are 0.01 in and 0.07
out for the A M peak period, and 0.5 in/ 0.3 out for the PM peaks plus 0.75 trips for all day. The
estimated generated car trips are 4 morning peak and 3 for the evening peak and 37 for all day.
The non car trips is also estimated at18 morning peak and 15 evening and 215 all day trips. TRICS
give rise to 31 AM trips and 24 trips for the PM peak for the 1900msq.  The proposed generated
vehicular trips will there have negligible impact on the road network.

Car and Cycling Parking Allocation
Parking allocation for the PTAL Index 3 for the area is compliant with the Borough and London
Plans. Disabled parking space provision of 10% of the 54 total parking bays is equally compliant
with Hillingdon and London plan parking standards.

Visibility Splays - Pedestrian
The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions and shall
be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the
level of the adjoining highway.  From the submitted drawing SKO5 the visibility splay extends
beyond the development boundary and may not able to implement it. The Applicant would have to
demonstrate to Highways that it would not cause adverse affect on vehicular and pedestrian inter
visibility at the proposed Horton Road access.

Highways has concerns with the proposed width of the shared surface it should revised up to 6m
to  accommodate the  access and egress manoeuvres of vehicles associated with the site. It also
evident from the submitted drawing reversing vehicles will conflict with those entering the
development as such the developer will need to provide Highways with information demonstrating
that would the case. The applicant could consider removing the bay as an option. Reason: To

Page 46



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The site is not a designated Industrial or Business Area in the adopted UDP or the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies, Employment and Land Map.  Saved Local
Plan Part 2 Policy LE4 relates to the loss of employment land outside identified Industrial
and Business Areas. Briefly, this policy protects such uses subject to certain criteria.
Addressing each of the Saved Policy LE4 criteria in turn, the applicant contends that there
is a strong case to support the loss of employment use at the application site:

(i) The existing use seriously affects amenity, through disturbance to neighbours, visual
intrusion or an adverse impact in the character of an area; 

The site is used for general industrial purposes falling within Class B2 & Class B8 of the
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) including
manufacturing, storage and a large service yard with access onto Horton Road. The use
appears to be long established and is un-restricted in planning terms, with no conditions
controlling hours of operation, noise levels or vehicle movements to and from the site for
the current use. As the commercial use of the site is unregulated, the use of the site for
industrial purposes has the potential to now and in the future, have a detrimental impact

safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of theHillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Electric charging
The Prior to the commencement of development a plan showing provision for electric charging
points to serve 20% of all car parking spaces should be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The plan shall set out the location of the charging points, the chosen
technology and clear presentation of how the bays will be marked. The development shall proceed
in accordance with the approved plan. Highway suggests the provision of 5 active and 6 passive
electric points for the initial period after the development. Reason: To provide car parking for
electric vehicles to help tackle air quality impacts to meet the climate change challenges in
accordance with Policy 6.13 of the London Plan.

Parking for Wheelchair Disabled People
The applicant should ensure it provides parking spaces (with dimensions of 4.8m x 3.6m , to allow
for wheelchair transfer to and from the side of car shall be reserved exclusively for people who are
mobility impaired and/or using a wheelchair,  in accordance with the approved Parking Control
Methodology, and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such parking
spaces shall be sited in close proximity to the nearest accessible building entrance with dropped
kerbs provided from the car park to the pedestrian area. 

Highways also require for approval suitably scaled drawings showing the revised proposed car
parking layout within the site and proposed alteration to existing access site. These scale drawings
should be superimposed with vehicle swept paths of servicing vehicles access/ egressing the site
and manoeuvring within the site boundary. The swept path details are required to show all vehicle
details and include a 300mm margin of error.

No part of the development shall be occupied until details of the method of control for the
designation and allocation of parking spaces has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be retained for the sole use of the
individual flats in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to ensure that sufficient parking is provided, in accordance with Policies AM14
and AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 47



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

on the prevailing residential character, amenity and outlook of residents in the area.

It is also considered that the character and appearance of the site at present creates a
poor visual and physical environment, to the detriment of neighbouring residents, the
canal side and the area generally, given that the site has been neglected and the majority
of the buildings and front service area are not well maintained.

It is considered that residential use of the site would be a more compatible use given  the
large number of residential properties directly adjacent to, or within the vicinity of the site,
as well as creating a better environment for the canal side.

(ii) The site is unsuitable for industrial redevelopment because of the size, shape, location
or lack of vehicular access;

The application site is designated as being located within the town centre on the 'saved'
UDP Proposals Map. It is neither a Strategic Industrial Location nor a Preferred Industrial
Location in the London Plan, an Industrial and Business Area in the adopted UDP or a
Locally Significant Industrial Site (LSIS) and Locally Significant Employment Location site
(LSEL) in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies.

There is currently 358 ha of designated employment land in the Borough, with the
Employment Land Study (2009) concluding that employment has become increasingly
office based and such uses have tended to consolidate in accessible and designated
business / office parks in Uxbridge, Stockley Park and around Heathrow. 

It is recognised that there has been a steady decline in industrial and warehousing
floorspace. However, the Council has maintained an effective employment land supply,
such that any release of land over the past 10-20 years has not harmed employment or
business functions within the Borough. In this context, isolated employment sites, such as
the application site are considered to be unattractive to prospective users.

In support of demonstrating compliance with Policy LE4, the applicants commissioned a
market assessment of commercial sites within the area and the potential market demand
for the application site. The assessment concludes that as this site is surrounded by
residential housing with a canal to the rear, industrial occupiers would not view this as a
prime industrial site. Much of the industrial occupation happens closer to the Stockley
Park roundabout where road access is better. As such, the site would be more suited for a
change of use away from its current planning designation.

The applicants also contend that the site in its current condition is unlikely to attract any
interest from potential occupiers, due to its dilapidated state. A large amount of
refurbishment works would therefore need to be undertaken in order to attract occupiers.
However, this may not be viable, as potential occupiers would be concerned about the
surrounding residential dwellings, which could potentially lead to complaints and restrict
any noisy operations or 24 hour uses. Concerns could also be raised regarding heavy
duty vehicles travelling through the residential area, which could pose a hazard to local
pedestrians. Access to the site is restricted as there is only one point of access in and out
of the site, which would be difficult to modify due to the bus stop located in front of the
site. There is also a risk of damage to the adjoining houses from large HGV movements. 

The applicants further submit that the irregular shaped site does not lend itself well for re-
development for a single unit. Furthermore, smaller occupiers would still require larger
vehicles delivered to them, which would be likely to cause congestion on the Estate,

Page 48



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

backing up into the surrounding highway network. 

For the reasons given above, it is considered that a robust case has been put forward as
to why the site is unsuitable for industrial redevelopment.

(iii) There is no realistic prospect of the land being used for industrial or warehousing
purposes in the future;

The applicants contend that the location of the site is unattractive to potential business /
commercial users of the site. To reinforce this conclusion, an independent market report
has been submitted in support of this application. The report highlights the poor prospect
of successful sale / lease of the site for its future utilisation for industrial, storage or
commercial purposes, due to its town centre location, its relatively inferior location
compared to purpose built employment centres / business parks in the Borough, access
restrictions, the current state of repair of existing site buildings, high potential for conflict
with adjacent residential uses (noise, disturbance, hours of operation, highways safety
etc) and financial and market conditions.

Based upon the quantitative oversupply, an independent market assessment and the
evidence from the current owners of the site, it is concluded that there is no realistic
prospect of the application site being used for commercial purposes in the future. The loss
of employment from the site is therefore considered acceptable, in accordance with
criterion (iii) of "saved" adopted HUDP Policy LE4 2007.

(iv) They are in accordance with the Council's regeneration policies for the area.

The NPPF, The London Plan (2011), the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic
Policies and the saved Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Policies (2007) all support the
provision of residential accommodation in appropriate locations. London Plan Policy 3.3
(increasing housing supply) seeks to increase London's housing supply, enhance the
environment, improve housing choice and afforability and to propvide better
accommodation for Londoners. Local Plan Policy PT1.H1 affirms the London Plan targets
to deliver 4,250 hew homes in the Borough from 2011 to 2021 or 6,375 dwellings up to
2026. The proposal includes 50 residential units, which will contribute towards the
Council's housing supply as prescribed in the London Plan and emerging local policy.

The Local Plan lists individual strategic policies including Policy E1 relating to Managing
the Supply of Employment Land and states the Council will accommodate growth by
protecting Strategic Industrial Locations and the designation of Locally Significant
Industrial Sites (LSIS) and Locally Significant Employment Locations (LSEL) including the
designation of 13.63 hectares of new employment land. The site which is the subject of
this application does not fall within a LSIS or LSEL.

The application site falls within the a Growth Area as defined in Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (2012) with the regeneration of the area being driven by improved public
transport links to and from London including the Crossrail link from West Drayton due to
open in 2018. This corridor will play a key role in delivering the housing targets set out
within the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 (2012). The improved Crossrail stations
will provide the catalyst for the regeneration of West Drayton and Hayes, bringing extra
travellers through these stations whilst facilitating the provision of additional homes and
housing growth to ensure Hillingdon's housing target figures are met. Proposed public
transport improvements, such as improved interchanges, are located within the
Yiewsley/West Drayton/Hayes growth areas. Residential accommodation in sustainable

Page 49



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02 Density of the proposed development

town centre locations such as this, in an area which has been identified by the Council as
a 'growth area' in the coming years is therefore supported in policy terms. 

The Employment Land Study 2009 and 2010 update confirms that there is an oversupply
of industrial land in Hillingdon.  The loss of the 2,044 sqm of existing commercial / light
industrial floorspace on the application site represents only 3.8% of the total industrial land
availability in West Drayton Sub-Market and 0.9% of the total industrial floorspace in
Hillingdon. The loss of this employment land is considered to be de minimus to the overall
oversupply of employment land in Hillingdon. West Drayton has a good supply of stock at
present and is considered unlikely to suffer a significant detriment with the loss of this site
to a different use.

Policy H4 the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) also
seeks to encourage additional housing in town centres. The supporting text states:
"The Council recognises the importance of residential accommodation in town centres as
a part of the overall mix of uses which is necessary to ensure their vitality and
attractiveness. Such housing offers particular advantages in terms of accessibility to town
centre facilities, employment opportunities and public transport. In order to maximise the
residential potential of town centre sites, residential development within them should
comprise predominantly one or two-bedroom units."

Conclusion

It is considered that the applicant has demonstrated that the proposed scheme  satisfies
all four of the criteria of Policy LE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012). 

Approval for the loss of employment and future residential use of the application site could
be considered an appropriate "windfall" site, assisting in providing a balanced approach to
future development and much needed family housing units in the Borough. 

Saved Policy H8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states amongst other things, that the conversion or change of use of premises to
residential use will only be acceptable if a satisfactory residential environment can be
achieved. As detailed in other sections of this report, the proposed use could provide an
adequate residential environment, notwithstanding the specific site constraints, such as
the proximity of the site to the canal and other commercial uses. 

The principle of the proposed uses therefore meets the policy requirements of the
adopted Development Plan, emerging policy. No objections are therefore raised to the
priniciple of residential use on the site.

London Plan Policy 3.4 sets out density requirements for new residential development
within London Boroughs within Table 3.2. In urban areas with a PTAL rating of 2-3, it is
suggested that a scheme comprising 1, 2 and 3-bed units should show a density between
55 and 170 dwellings per hectare (dph). The application scheme represents a density of
108dph, and therefore is considered to be appropriate for its location.

The proposal seeks to provide 50 residential units totalling 147 habitable rooms. This
equates to a density of 123 u/ha or 350 hr/ha. This level of development is within the
guidelines set out within Table 3.2 density matrix of the London Plan, assuming a PTAL of
2.

Page 50



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

It will therefore be important to demonstrate that the units will have good internal and
external living space, and that the scale and layout of the proposed development is
compatible with sustainable residential quality, having regard to the specific constraints
ofthis site. It is considered that this residential scheme has been designed at to meet the
relevant policy standards and targets, with Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 being
targeted and provision of at least 10% wheelchair housing.

UNIT MIX

In ensuring a range of housing choice is provided to residents, Policy 3.8 states that new
developments should offer a range of choices, in terms of the mix of housing sizes and
types, and ensuring that all units are built to Lifetime Homes Standards. The proposed
scheme provides a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bed units and is therefore compliant with London
plan Policy 3.8.

Saved Policies H4 and H5 seek to ensure a practicable mix of housing units are provided
within residential schemes. One and two bedroom developments are encouraged within
town centres, while larger family units are promoted elsewhere. 

The residential unit mix is provided below:
1 bed 2 person x 13
2 bed 3 person x 23
2 bed 4 person x 12 
3 bed 5 person x 2

This mix of units is considered appropriate for this town centre location. The proposed
development accords with the requirements of national policy and the Development Plan
by making effective and efficient use of redundant Brownfield Land whilst respecting the
surrounding context and adjacent Grand Union Canal.

The site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority Area and there are no Conservation
Areas or Listed Buildings within the vicinity.

There are no airport safeguarding issues related to this development.

There are no Green Belt issues associated with this site.

Part 1 policy BE1  requires all new development to improve and maintain the quality of the
built environment in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods. Saved
Part 2 Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development complements or
improves the character and amenity of the area, whilst Policy BE38 seeks the retention of
topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting and landscaping in
development proposals. 

Policy BE26 seeks to ensure that within town centres, the design, layout and landscaping
of new buildings should reflect the role, overall scale and character of town centres as a
focus for shopping and leisure activity. The suporting text to Policy BE26 states that the
design of buildings and external spaces should increase the visual and functional
attractiveness of town centres, in order to attract people and investment; and new
buildings should maintain the feeling of bulk and scale of the town centres while creating
variety and interest in themselves.

Page 51



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

London Plan Policy 7.1 sets out a series of overarching design principles for
developmentin London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world-class, high quality design
and design-led change in key locations. In addition to Chapter 7, London Plan policies
relating to density(3.4) and sustainable design and construction (5.3) are also relevant.

The scale, bulk and siting of buildings are key determinants in ensuring that the amenity
and character of established residential areas are not compromised by new development.
The main constraints and opportunities of the site have been identified, in particular its
relationship to neighbouring residential and industrial properties and the potential to open
up physical / visual links from Horton Road to the canal side. As such, the proposals need
to be considered with regard to the impact on Horton Road and the Grand Union Canal.

The current buildings are considered to have a relatively poor relationship to the street
and the canal, with no active frontage or natural surveillance to either Horton Road or the
waterway. The redevelopment of the site therefore presents an  opportunity to improve the
site's relationship with the street frontage and canal, with the potential to provide
pedestrian access to and views to the towpath from Horton Road.

Layout

The residential blocks have been sited to ensure that a sufficient gap exists between each
building to provide visual permeability within and from outside the site and that an
acceptable living environment is created for prospective residents in terms of privacy and
overlooking. Distances of between 18 to 21 metres are maintained between individual
blocks, which will be used to make provision towards private amenity space and car
parking.

The design approach of the scheme with regards to the building form along Horton Road
has been to follow prevailing building lines, in order to respect the existing urban grain.
The new building along Horton Road (Block A ) has been set half way back
(approximately 5 metres) between the frontage of the two adjacent terraces. It is not
considered practical to provide direct access to Block A from Horton Road due to the
change in ground levels. 

Block B has been set back some 14 metres from the canal edge to the south. 

In terms of the relationship of the blocks to adjoining residential development a distance of
at least 15 metres is mantained  beween Block C and the rear of properties in the terrace
fronting Horton Road (Nos. 14-24). With respect to Block A distances of between 5 and
12 metres have been maintained with the eastern boundary with 38A Horton Road.

No objections are raised to the siting of the play area which is centrally located with good
natural surveilance.

Scale

The immediate area does not have one specific architectural style with a variety of
different residential buildings and some industrial and warehouse buildings with heights
ranging from 2 to 6 storeys in places.

Block A would front Horton Road, whilst blocks B and C would be sited further into the site
and would therefore have relatively little impact on the street scene.

Page 52



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The proposed residential block A is 3 storey. The scale of this building has been designed
in order to integrate it into the existing street pattern, on Horton Road. It is considered that
this block would not appear unduly prominent within the street scene and would be
compatible with the scale of surrounding  development.  The scale of the buildings have
been designed in order to integrate it into the existing street pattern, on Horton Road.  It is
considered that the proposed building will fit in with the scale of existing commercial and
residential buildings to the south and will not obstruct views to any key focal points.

With regard to Block B at the rear of the site, one of the key areas of concern with the
proposed development is the relationship of this building to the Grand Union Canal. The
Urban Design Officer raises concerns with regard to the height of this block in terms of the
appearance of this building viewed from the canal.  Block B would be 4 and a half stories
fronting the canal, approximately 12.5.m in height to to the eaves and 15.7 metres to the
ridge. The block would then reduce to 4 stories further back into the site (11 metres in
height to to the eaves and 13.4 metres to the ridge). However, the block would be set in
14.2 metres from the canal.  Although this block would be taller than  other buildings
fronting the canal in the immediate vicinity, it is noted that the height of this building is not
dissimilar from other recently approved canal side development in the area. The site falls
within a town centre location and given the intervening landscaped area and tree planting
between the block and the tow path, it is not considered that the block would  appear
unduly prominent when viewed from the canal.

In addition, to resolve concerns from the Canal and Rivers Trust that the development will
impact on the quality of the environment enjoyed by users of the towpath, the developers
have agreed that this could be alleviated through other improvements to the quality of the
towpath.

It is not considered that Block B would  appear unduly prominent within the street scene
as it is set deep within the site, at least 58 metres from the road frontage.

The proposals respond to the local architectural context, including the areas canal
heritage, whilst addressing the more domestic scale of properties onto Horton Road. It is
considered that the layout would satisfactorily reflect the established suburban character
of the townscape context of the site.

Appearance

The scheme is accompanied by illustrative material, as set out within the Design & Access
Statement, which identifies the possible appearance of the proposed residential blocks.
The external design of the buildings and proposed building materials, such as facing
bricks, render, and tiled roofs maintain a balanced and appropriate design response with
regard to the scale and context of the site. It is considered that a condition should be
imposed on any permission requiring the submission of external materials details prior to
the commencement of works. 

Subject to compliance with the above mentioned condition, it is considered that the
scheme is compliant with Policies BE13, BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), relevant London Plan policies and design
guidance.

Outlook and Light

Page 53



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Policy BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the Local Planning Authority will seek to ensure that buildings are laid out so
that adequate daylight, sunlight and amenities of existing houses are safeguarded. Policy
BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states
that planning permission will not be granted for new development, which by reason of its
siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential amenity of
established residential areas.

The supporting text to Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states 'that while some proposals of substantial
width, height and depth, may not cause loss of amenity by reason of daylight or sunlight,
these may nonetheless still be over-dominant in relation to the adjoining property and/or
its private amenity space. This in turn can result in a depressing outlook detracting from
residential amenity'. The Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Hillingdon Design
and Access Statement' (HDAS) 'Residential Layouts' states that where a two or more
storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance should be maintained to
overcome possible over domination. The distance provided will be dependent on the bulk
and size of the building but generally 15m would be the minimum acceptable separation
distance.

The closest residential properties to the site are to the east within Knowle Close and to the
terraced properties to the east and west of the site with a frontage onto Horton Road. 

Outlook

In relation to outlook,  adequate distance has been maintained to avoid over dominance,
in compliance with design guidance. Block A steps away from the existing adjacent
gardens to avoid overdominance from adjacent rear gardens, whilst a distance of at least
15 metres is maintained between Block C and  the rear of adjoining properties fronting
Horton Road. The proposal complies with the guidance and is not considered to result in
an over dominant form of development which would detract from the amenities of
neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Sunlight/Overshadowing

Similarly, it is not considered that there would be a material loss of daylight or sunlight to
neighbouring properties, as the proposed buildings would be sited a sufficient distance
away from adjoining properties. Given its orientation and relationship with neighbouring
residential windows, and as demonstrated in the daylight/sunlight shadow diagrams within
the DAS), the proposals would not create a material loss of daylight or sunlight to
neighbouring properties or gardens.

It is also considered given its layout that there will be a good level of day lighting for the
proposed development. The proposal is considered to be consistent with Policy BE20 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies(November 2012) and relevant
design guidance.

Privacy

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the design of new buildings should protect the privacy of occupiers and their
neighbours. Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary

Page 54



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Planning Document: Residential Layouts, which was also specifically set out in the pre-
application response, sets out a minimum distance of 21m between facing habitable room
windows, as measured at a 45 degree line from the centre of the nearest first floor
window.

Whilst the scheme has been designed to ensure that the majority of units are dual aspect,
these have also been carefully considered so that in critical positions windows do not
overlook neighbouring gardens or windows.

Building A has been designed to  increasingly step back from the boundary with No 38a.
to ensure that a minimum of 21m is maintained between habitable windows which fall
within the 45 degree line of vision. It is considered that the careful use of setbacks has
resulted in an acceptable relationship to neighbouirng residential properties in this regard.
Where Block A is less than 21m away from its neighbours to the east and west (fronting
Horton Road), it faces existing blank flank walls with no windows. Flats to the east side of
Building A that could potentially overlook the neighbours have windows facing south and
carefully designed balconies with appropriate screening to encourage views towards the
canal. Other windows to the east elevation face the blank flank wall of the neighbouring
building or use obscure glazing to non-habitable rooms. In summary, the building steps
away from the existing adjacent gardens to avoid overlooking into gardens. whilst
windows have been sensitively placed to avoid directional overlooking into habitable
rooms.

Building B is over 28m away from the nearest neighbouring building to the east, 76-87
Knowles close. 

Flats with habitable rooms to the west side of Building C that could potentially overlook the
neighbours to the north east have windows facing south and carefully design balconies
with appropriate screening to ensure there is no overlooking. Building C within the
development is at least 15m from the rear of the terrace houses on Horton Road with the
only north facing windows within this building serving a stair core (non-habitable windows)
to the building, which can be treated with obscure glazing, to ensure there is no
overlooking issue. The windows to the west elevation fall within the overlooking zone of
the neighbouring Crusader House, but the design of the window bays prevent overlooking
by angling the clear glazing to the south.

Subject to conditions to ensure that the first and second floor secondary east facing
windows to habitable rooms in Block A and the north facing landing windows in Block C
are obsuure glazed and none opening (except at top vent level), it is not considered that
there would be a loss of privacy to adjoining occupiers, in accordance with Policy BE24 of
the Local Plan Part 2  and relevant design guidance.

External Amenity Areas

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires the provision of external amenity space, sufficient to protect the amenity of the
occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings and which is usable in terms of its
shape and siting. The Council's SPD Residential Layouts specifies amenity space
standards for flats.

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary Planning
Document - Residential layouts, suggests that the following shared amenity space for flats

Page 55



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

and maisonettes is provided:
1 bedroom flat - 20m2 per flat
2 bedroom flat - 25m2 per flat
3+ bedroom flat - 30m2 per flat

Based on the current accommodation schedule, this would equate to a total of 1,255 m2
of shared and private amenity space for 50 dwellings. The current development proposal
provides 903 m2 of useable communal amenity space, including 100 m2 of play space
provision. The majority of the units also benefit from private space in the form of balconies
or small terrace garden areas, which make up an additional area 865 sqm. This would
provide an overall total of 1,768 m2 of amenity space which would exceed the relevant
standards contained in the HDAS. The amenity space provided is considered acceptable,
in compliance with the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Residential
Layouts and Saved Policy BE23 of the Local plan.

The children's play space would be located within the central communal amenity area,
which has good natural surveillance from the proposed apartments either side. The site is
also within easy walking distance of Yiewsley Recreation Ground (approximately 450m to
the north, which offer child play facilities for elder children), and Kingston playing fields
(approximately 600m east).

Each of the units benefit from a reasonable level of privacy, outlook and light and overall,
it is considered that good environmental conditions can be provided for future occupiers in
compliance with relevant UDP saved policies and supplementary design guidance.

Unit size

Planning policy requires that all new housing should be built to Lifetime Homes standards,
with 10% of new housing designed to be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan endorses a range of
minimum unit sizes for new residential development in London.  All the individual flats
meet London Plan minimum floorspace standards set out at Table 3.3 and those set out
within the London Housing Design Guide, providing a good standard of accommodation to
future residents. In addition, the submitted plans and documentation, including the
planning statement and Design and Access Statement illustrate that lifetime homes and
wheel chair standards could be achieved,  in accordance with London Plan Policy 3.8 and
the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon" adopted January
2010.

Outlook and Light

The units have been designed wherever possible to be dual aspect with no north facing
single aspect units. Only 11 of the flats (22%) are single aspect and are orientated to
ensure they receive good levels of lighting. All of these flats also either have a private
garden or balcony as well as access to the two communal amenity areas within the
scheme. Each of the units are considered to benefit from a reasonable level of outlook
and light, in compliance with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), HDAS: Residential Layouts and the provisions of
the London Plan.

Privacy

Saved Policy BE24 states that the design of new buildings should protect the privacy of

Page 56



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

occupiers and their neighbours. A minimum separation distance of 21 metres is required
to avoid overlooking and loss of privacy. It is considered that the  design of the
development would protect the privacy of future occupiers, in accordance with Policy
BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
relevant design guidance.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.
Paragraph 35 of NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should
be located and designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and
cyclemovements; create safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic
and cyclists or pedestrians.

Local requirements in relation to impacts on traffic demand, safety and congestion are set
out in Local Plan Part 2 policy AM7 which states:
The LPA will not grant permission for developments whose traffic generation is likely to:
(i) unacceptably increase demand along roads or through junctions which are already
used to capacity, especially where such roads or junctions form part of the strategic
London road network, or
(ii) prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety

Traffic Generation

The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment to consider the traffic impacts on
the existing road capacity. It demostrates that the level of increase in peak hour traffic
resulting from the proposed development can be accommodated on Horton Road. The
proposed residential use is likely to result in fewer car trips than the existing use. Even if
the existing use were not discounted, the potential 37 all-day residential car trips
generated by the proposal is unlikely to have any significant impact upon the local
highway network. The Highway Engineer therefore raises no objections on traffic
generation grounds.

Access

The Highways Engineer advises that the proposed width of the shared surface should
revised up to 6m, in order to accommodate the  access and egress manoeuvres of
vehicles associated with the site. These issues can be addressed by imposing a condition
requiring the submission ansd approval of the final details of the on site highway works. 

A swept path analysis of all required delivery and servicing vehicles has been completed.
The Highway Engineer is satisfied that all required vehicles can adequately use the
internal site layout.

In light of the above considerations, subject to conditions, it is considered that the
development would not give rise to conditions prejudicial to free flow of traffic and highway
and pedestrian safety. The development therefore accords with Policy AM7 of the
Huillingdon Local plan Part 2.

Parking

Page 57



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

It is considered that the proposals strike the requisite balance between parking restraint,
to promote alternative travel modes and the provision of adequate parking. The proposed
level of parking meets LBH's UDP standards as well as all London Plan standards.

The London Plan Policy 6.1 states that 'the need for car use should be reduced, with
Table 6.2 stating that there should be a maximum of 1 space for 1-2 bed units. 

The application proposes a total of 54 parking spaces, including 10% of these spaces for
people with a disability. This equates to 1.08 spaces per unit. The Council's standards
allow for a maximum provision of 1.5 spaces per residential unit, a total of 75 spaces in
this case. The site has a PTAL rating of 2-3 and it is considered that residents of the
proposed development would have relatively good access to all day to day facilities and to
the wider London area, via good public transport connections. The proposed 1.08 parking
spaces per dwelling therefore meets the NPPF policy guidance by being in line with
expected existing and future need, taking into account the type, mix and use of the
development.

It also evident from the submitted drawings that reversing vehicles from the parking bay
closest to the entrance could potentially conflict with vehicles entering the development.
This may result in the loss of one parking bay from the development. The loss of one
parking space would still result in the proposed parking provision meeting the London
Plan and Hillingdon parking standards.

As such, the Council's Highways Engineer has raised no objection to the level of car
parking. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Local Plan Part 2 Saved
Policies AM14 and AM15 and London Plan Policy 6.1.In addition the provision of electric
charging points can be secured by condition. The proposal therefore accords with the
aims of Policy AM14 and AM15 of the Local Plan Part 2.

The submitted plans indicate that secure cycle storage can be provided for 50 cycles, in
the form of cycle stores wihin the demise of Blocks A and B. The scheme would be in
accordance with the Council's standards and Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies AM9.

SECURITY

The metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer has expressed concerns over the
proposals to create a new public route from Horton Road to the canal and has suggested
a fence around the development to close it off from the canal, together with a fence
around the central landscaped space (play area). Details of fencing and other security
arrangements, including the canal side boundary treatment and CCTV have been secured
by condition.

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from direct discrimination on the basis of a protected characteristic, which includes those
with a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead to take steps to address barriers likely have a defined model that meets best
practice design guidance. The submitted documentation has explained how the principles
of access and inclusion have been applied to this scheme. 

The Access Officer has made a number of observations in relation to the original

Page 58



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

sbmission. In  response to these comments, a separate set of accessibility plans have
been submitted which demonstrate compliance with the 16 Lifetime Homes criteria and
general compliance with Accessible Hillingdon SPG, including the SPG 'Wheelchair
Standard Homes' for the wheelchair units. The later are all located on the ground floor of
the three blocks (5 units). Wheelchair parking spaces have been moved such that each
building has a wheelchair space for its wheelchair flats. The internal layouit of the
wheelchair flats have been adjusted where possible, to meet the general principles of the
guidance. Examples of these changes include increasing main bedroom size, increasing
bathroom size, and increasing door sizes. In addition, the site entrance has been updated
pulling back the wall to allow for a safer transition from the footpath to the shared surface.

Although lifts are not provided  the applicants have stasted that the common stairs are
capable of being retrofitted with a chairlift, to provide the required accessibility and
adaptation of the buildings. It is not considered that the lack of lifts in the 3 blocks is a
sustainable reason to refuse the application, as this is not one of the Lifetime Home
criteria and all of the disabled units are located on the ground floor.

The Access officer has reviewed the revised plans and raises no objections. Subject to
conditions, it is considered that lifetime homes and wheel chair standards can be
achieved,in accordance with the London Plan Policies 3.8, 7.1 and 7.2 and in general
compliance with the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon".

The development would introduce a total of 50 dwellings, therefore triggering the
affordable housing requirement threshold of 10 units as set out in London Plan policy
3.13. A full GLA Toolkit Appraisal has been carried out in support of this application

Policy H2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies relates to Affordable
Housing with the Council seeking 35% of all new units in the borough delivered as
affordable housing. The Council note however, subject to the provision of robust evidence,
it will adopt a degree of flexibility in its application of Policy H2 to take account of tenure
needs in different parts of the borough as well as the viability of schemes.

The statement in support of this application and the Financial Viability Appraisal (FVA)
concludes that the scheme cannot support any affordable housing. The FVA has been
heavily scrutinsed and is accurate. It is not considered that affordable housing could be
achieved without reducing other obligations (which officers do not feel would be
appropriate). However, the issue of affordable housing will be subject to review

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

Local Plan Part 2 Policy BE38 stresses the need to retain and enhance landscape
features and provide for appropriate (hard and soft) landscaping in new developments.

 An arboricultural survey has been carried out making an assessment of existing trees on
and within the vicinity of the site. Within the site there are few trees. However, it benefits
from the  'borrowed landscape' provided by mature off-site trees along the eastern
boundary within the housing land, some of which are protected by TPO No.365.  There
are also established off-site trees on the towpath, along the southern boundary. The trees
would be largely unaffected by the development proposals, other than the removal of an
ash (T5) along the tow path and the need to remove a few insignificant and/or poor quality
trees to the west side of the site. The development of the site would give rise to new
landscaping opportunities that would potentially benefit the visual amenity of this part of

Page 59



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15 Sustainable waste management

West Drayton.

One of the key design objectives is to provide an attractive visualand physical link
between Horton Road and the canalside. This has partly been achieved by the
introduction of an estate road which leads directly to the canal, with a canal side
landscaped area. 

The Tree and Landscape Officer raises no objections subject to conditions to ensure that
the detailed landscape proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of
the area and off It is considered that the scheme is on the whole acceptable and in
compliance with Saved Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

ECOLOGY

Saved Policy EC2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) seeks the promotion of nature conservation interests. Saved policy EC5 seeks the
retention of features, enhancements and creation of new habitats. London Plan Policy
7.19[c] seeks ecological enhancement. Although the trees in the site may be valuable for
biodiversity, the application site itself is not considered to have a high ecological value,
due to the lack of potential for protected species. However, it is not appropriate to only
protect sites with protected species, which by their nature are not abundant. Policy 7.30
seeks the protection of the Blue Ribbon Network (a network of strategic waterways
identified within the London Plan with measures taken to improve the habitat and amenity
value of the waterways.

A Phase 1 Habitat Survey, protected species assessment and bat survey of the site were
carried out on 28th May 2013. The bat survey found no evidence of bats and the
asseeement concludes that there is very limited potential for single or small numbers of
bats at this site. The only ecological constraints identified in relation to this site are the
presence of Fallopia japonica (Japanese Knotweed) and the possible presence of nesting
birds. The former would need to  be treated by a specialist eradication company and this
is secured by condition. Avoidance and precautionary measures can be applied to avoid
impacts on nesting birds when site clearance begins. 

The Canals and Rivers Trust support the introduction of habitat enhancements and it is
considered that the proposed soft landscaping adjacent to the canal will contribute
towards  Local and London Plan policies to improve the habitat and amenity value of the
waterway.

A condition is recommended requiring the submission and approval of an ecological
enhancement scheme. The scheme shall include detailed measures to promote and
enhance roosting and foraging opportunities for bats including the incorporation of new
roosting facilities within the fabric of the buildings and also demonstrate how the
development will contribute to wider wildlife benefits, through the use where feasible, of
nectar rich green roofs and walls, habitat walls and wildlife specific landscaping. 

Subject to this condition, it is considered that the ecological mitigation is considered
satisfactory. The proposal therefore complies with Policy 7.19 of the London Plan which
requires that development protects and enhances biodiversity, and Local Plan Part 1
Policy EM7 and relevant Local Plan Part 2 polices.

Page 60



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.16

7.17

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Refuse is provided in 2 refuse stores at ground floor level in Blocks A and B. The level of
waste and recyclig provision is acceptable and vehicle tracking diagrams have been
submitted demonstrating that the development can be adequately serviced by refuse
vehicles.

Sustainability policy is now set out in the London Plan (2011), at Policy 5.2. Part A of the
policy requires development proposals to make the fullest contribution to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions by employing the hierarchy of: using less energy; supplying
energy efficiently;and using renewable technologies. Part B of the policy currently requires
non domesticbuildings to achieve a 25% improvement on building regulations. Parts C &
D of the policy require proposals to include a detailed energy assessment.

At the time of the application being submitted, the 2011 London Plan required major
developments to demonstrate a 25% reduction from a 2010 Building Regulations
compliant development. A Sustainability Statement has been submitted in support of the
application. This report demonstrates how a variety of technologies could be incorporated
into the design to reduce the CO2 emissions for an approximate average of 25%
reduction in CO2 over building regulations 2010.

A pre-assessment report has also been carried out in relation to the Code for Sustainable
Homes (November 2010 technical guide). The report shows how the proposed scheme
can achieve Code Level 4 through a combination of high performance building fabric, high
efficiency gas boilers and photovoltaic panels. A condition is therefore recommended
requiring an Interim certificate to be submitted prior to commencement, showing the
development complies with Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. In addition prior to
the occupation of the development a completion certificate showing the development
complies with Code 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes will be required. This is also
covered by condition.

Subject to a condition securing that the development achieves Level 4 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes, it is considered that the scheme will have satisfactorily addressed the
issues relating to the mitigation and adaptation to climate change and to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions, in compliance with Policies 5.2, 5.13 and 5.15 of the London
Plan, Policy PT1.EM1 of Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and the NPPF.

Policies OE7 and OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that new development incorporates appropriate
measures to mitigate against any potential risk of flooding. The site falls outside any flood
zones as defined in the Council's own Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) and is
with flood zone 1 on the Environment Agency maps. Although a flood risk assessment is
therefore not a requirement, given the proximity of the canal, a Flood Risk and Drainage
Strategy has been submitted, to demonstrate that it would incorporate sustainable
drainage techniques and reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with the requirements
of Polciies 5.11, 5.12 and 5.13 of the London Plan and the NPPF.

The Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy concludes that as the site is within Zone 1 of the
Environment Agency (EA) flood zone maps, there is no risk of flooding from rivers and
sea, with an annual probability of under 0.1%. Recommendations are however proposed
and form part of the drainage strategy of the site.
· A new linear drain across the site entrance be introduced to prevent surface water runoff
into the development site from Horton Road;
· The detailed drainage design of the proposed infiltration techniques be carried out to

Page 61



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

meet the requirements of BRE365, Ciria SuDS guidance and Building Regulations Part H;
and;
· Further assessment of groundwater levels will take place as part of the intrusive site
investigation.

The report concludes that the development proposals comply with the guidance provided
in the NPPF, and the London Plan (2011), and that no reason exists to object to the
proposals in terms of flood risk or drainage.

The Canal & River Trust maintains the water level of the adjoining Grand Union Canal,
using reservoirs, feeders and boreholes, and thereafter manages the water by transferring
it within the canal system. The level of the water in canals is normally determined
predominantly by the use of  weirs and is therefore controlled. The Trust notes that water
levels in river navigations are affected by the flow in the river and will fluctuate more
widely than canals.

The Flood and Drainage Officer notes that the FRA does not provide calculations to
demonstrate that the area set aside for suds is sufficient and points out that infiltration
tests must be done rather than assuming infiltration is appropriate from previous
arrangements. Given that a final drainage strategy has not been agreed, a condition is
recommended requiring the submission and implementation of a detailed surface water
drainage scheme, based on the agreed Flood Risk Assessment(FRA). The drainage
strategy would have to demonstrate the surface water run-off generated to and including
the 1 in 100 year critical storm will not exceed the run-off from the undeveloped site
following the corresponding rainfall event. The scheme would also need to include
provision of on-site surface water storage to accommodate the critical duration 1in 100
year storm event, with an allowance for climate change. Subject to compliance with this
condition, it is considered that the scheme will have satisfactorily addressed drainage and
flood related issues, in compliance with the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies OE7 and
OE8, Policies 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan and the aspirations of the NPPF.

Policy 7.15 of the London Plan seeks to reduce noise and minimise the existing and
potential adverse impacts of noise on, from, within, or in the vicinity of, development
proposals. A noise assessment has been carried out in support of the application and
concludes that the principle of residential accommodation in acceptable in this location,
subject to mitigation measures outlined within the report.

The Government's National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which replaces PPG24
(Planning and Noise) gives the Government's guidance on noise issues.

A baseline noise survey was undertaken to establish prevailing noise levels across the
development site.

The application site is on a busy high road and sited next to commercial premises. It is
therefore reasonable to expect that traffic and industrial noise from the neighbouring print
works is likely to be high enough to affect the residential amenities of future occupiers.
Although the print works operate occasionally during the night, it is noted that when the
site is not in operation prevailing background noise levels at night will be significantly
lower at this location. It should also be noted that there are numerous existing residential
properties in the area that are subject to the same noise environment.

Based on the results of the noise survey, guidance on maximum allowable noise

Page 62



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

emissions for any proposed plant serving the development has been proposed to ensure
the local authority's emissions criteria can be met at nearby noise sensitive receptors. It is
concluded that the site is suitable for residential development subject to a suitable scheme
of mitigation measures being incorporated into the design. Further detail on noise control
measures will be provided during detailed design.

It is considered that flatted development is acceptable in principle, subject to adequate
sound insulation. The acoustic assessment contains recommendations, including a 2.5
metre high acoustic fence on the boundary with the neighbouring commercial premises,
which, if implemented, would reducenoise to levels that comply with reasonable standards
of comfort, as defined in British Standard BS 8233:1999 'Sound insulation and noise
reduction for buildings - Code of Practice'. It is considered that the issue of sound
insulation can be addressed by the imposition of suitable conditions, as suggested by the
Council's Environmental Protection Unit. Subject to compliance with these conditions, it is
considered that the scheme would be in compliance with  Policy OE5 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan part 2.

Air Quality

No information was submitted with regard to air quality. Besides the impact of the
development on the existing residents, air quality consideration also needs to be given to
the impact on the proposed development of existing air quality in the area, as a number of
new sensitive receptors are being introduced to the site.

The proposed development is within the declared AQMA and in an area that is likely to be
slightly below the European Union limit value for annual mean nitrogen dioxide (40.0
mg/m3). Modelling undertaken by CERC for Hillingdon indicated the worst location on site
exceeded the limit value at 41.8 mg/m3 and was just below the limit value adjacent to
Horton Road varying from 39.5 mg/m3 to 39.29 mg/m3.

There is a NOx diffusion tube (HD51) located near the junction of Horton Road on Colham
Road (approximately 250 metrers from the High Street and 185 metres from the railway).
This tube location has measured bias adjusted annual mean for NO2 over the last few
years as follows: 2008 - 36.2 mg/m3, 2009 - 34.3 mg/m3, 2010 - 34.2 mg/m3, 2011 - 33.2
mg/m3, 2012 - 36.2 mg/m3. As the application site is located nearer to the High Street
and the Railway line, it is possible the NO2 annual mean on the application site is higher,
however, it is anticipated it is likely to be a little below 40 mg/m3.

The development is introducing sensitive receptors into a poor air quality area. As no air
quality assessment has been provided, it is unclear if air quality will improve or by how
much, as a consequence of the development.  The Council's Environmental Protection
Unit has therefore requested conditions to provide details of the final energy provision at
the site. and a Section 106 obligation up to £12,500 for contributions to the air quality
monitoring network in the area.

Subject to the above mentioned conditions and planning obligation, it is considered that
the impact of the development on the air quality of the area can be mitigated, to the extent
that refusal of the application on these grounds would not be justified, in accordance with
Policy EM8 of the Local Plan Part 1.

The main issues raised have been dealt with in the main body of the report. 

Page 63



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20 Planning obligations

·Access from adjoining premises whilst building is in progress is not a planning matter.
·Traffic generation and parking provision has been assessed by the Highway Engineer
and is considered acceptable
·The parking provision has been assessd and is adequate to meet the needs of the
development.
·Non of the development proposed falls outside the application site. The erection of a
2.5m high solid timber acoustic fence an the boundary with the adjoining commercial
premises does not raise any planning related issues.
·There are no policies protecting commercial premises from loss of privacy.
·Ancient rights of light are covered by separate legislation.
·The issue of noise from surrounding commercial premises  affecting future occupiers is
addressed in the relevant section of this report.
· The issue of Fire Assessments and evacuation routes of adjoining  commercial site is
covered by separate legislation.
·Damage to adjoining properties during construction activities is subject to separate
legislation and is not a planning matter.

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) is
concerned with securing planning obligations to supplement the provision recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals. These saved UDP policies are supported by more specific
supplementary planning guidance.

The Council's Section 106 Officer has reviewed the proposal, as have other statutory
consultees, including the Canals and Rivers Trust.. The comments received indicate the
need for the following contributions or planning obligations to mitigate the impacts of the
development, which have been agreed with the
applicant:
(i). Transport: All on site and off site highways works as a result of this proposal, including
improvements to the site access.
(ii) Education: The applicant provides a financial contribution towards school places in
the area commensurate with the estimated child yield of the development amounting to
£176,170
(iii) Health: The applicant provides a financial contribution of  £23,068.85 towards health
care in the area 
(iv) Libraries: The applicant provides a financial contribution of £2,448.81 towards library
provision in the area 
(v) Construction Training: either a construction training scheme delivered during the
construction phase of the development or a financial contribution of  £35,000
(vi). Air Quality: The applicant provides a financial contribution in the sum of £12,500.
(vii) Community Facilities/Public Realm, including towpath improvements: The applicant
provides a financial contribution of  £50,000 
(vii) Affordable Housing review mechanism
(viii) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contribution to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting agreement.

The applicant has agreed to these proposed Heads of Terms, which are to be secured by
way of the S106 Agreement. Overall, it is considered that the level of planning benefits
sought is adequate and commensurate with the scale and nature of the proposed
development, in compliance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

Page 64



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues
There are no enforcement issues associated with this site.

CONTAMINATED LAND

A Geo-Environmental Desk Study has been submitted in support of the application. The
qualitative assessment of risk with regard to the future residential development is
considered 'moderate'. Potential sources of contamination identified at the site include
made ground under the areas of hard standing and possibly associated with the infilled
dock and contamination from fuel storage and spillages at the site. The report
recommends ground investigations to identify contamination at the site, which should
include a ground gas/vapour assessment. Any assessment should also include
groundwater testing where this is found.

The Environmental Protection Unit's concerns relate primarily to human health with regard
to any groundwater contamination and raises no major concerns with regard to ground
contamination. However, in light of the above assessment, conditions are recommended
to effect the removal of the oily ground and any unknown contamination to assess gas
levels and ensure that imported soils are free from conatmination. Subject to these
conditions, it is considered that the proposal can be implemented without the future
occupiers of the development development being subject to any risks from soil or ground
water contamination, in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

The report also identifies the presence of Japanese knotweed on site and a condition is
recommended reqiring a scheme of eradication.

BLUE RIBBON NETWORK (The provision of wharfage, impact on the canal)

Policy AM 18 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal, where appropriate, to secure
canal side facilities for canal borne freight, as well as for recreation, amenity and nature
conservation. London Plan (July 2011) policy 7.26 states that new development close to
navigable waterways should seek to maximise water transport for bulk materials,
particularly during demolition and construction phases, while Policy 7.30 seeks the
protection of the Blue Ribbon Network (a network of strategic waterways identified within
the London Plan with measures taken to improve the habitat and amenity value of the
waterways.

These, and other issues, have been raised in the consultation responses from The Canals
and Rivers Trust, which has recommended a condition requiring a feasibility study to
assess the potential for moving freight by water during the construction cycle and
occupation phase of the development (waste and recyclables). The Trust has also
recommended a series of conditions to protect and enhance the canal side environment
and has sought a contribution towards towpath improvements.

Paragraph 4.23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies states the Grand
Union Canal will be a key open space and blue/ green corridor with improved public
access, strong biodiversity habitats, and increased opportunities for recreation and leisure
activities. In addition, the Council is seeking to maximise the potential of the Grand Union
Canal as a regeneration opportunity. Projects that help to meet this objective, such as the

Page 65



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

upgrade of the canal towpath will be supported. The proposed scheme is considered to
contribute towards these policy objectives.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010). 

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."

Page 66



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

No objection is raised to the principle of the residential use of this site. The density of the
proposed development falls within London Plan guidance. It is considered that the design,
scale and layout of the development will introduce a built form that is appropriate to its
town centre context and character of the area and views from the neighbouring Grand
Union Canal.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would provide good living
conditions for all of the proposed units and protect the residential amenity of surrounding
occupiers in terms of outlook, privacy and light.

The applicant has offered an acceptable package of contributions to be secured by way of
a proposed S106 Agreement. In addition, access, parking and highway safety issues have
been satisfactorily addressed.

It is recommended that the application should be supported subject to a Section 106 Legal
Agreement and conditions.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (8th November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan 2011
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
The Greater London Authority Sustainable Design and Construction (2006)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)

Karl Dafe 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 67



Court

WSLEY

56 to 65

Centre

4

44

5 to 1

67

Horton Parade

Works

82
 to

 8
7

2

94

Crusader

SL
12

30.7m

32.7m

66 to 71

88
 to

 9
3

2

76
 to

 8
1

3

Works

Yiewsley

1 to 4

4

67

2a

Works
MP 13.25

M
oPs

Grand Union Canal

27

El Sub Sta

30.6m

1

1 1a

SLs

97

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

72

75

House

to

14

ATION APPROACH

KNOWLES CLOSE

Ashley

K
 R

O
A

D

10

Sub

West Drayton Station

26 to 32

to

Works

El

Health

Sta

19
 to

 2
5

Path

16

38

7 to 9

Bignell House

12a

Horton house

22

1 to 6

Deen Court

24

2 to 6
Boro Const & Ward Bdy

CR
38a

1 to 12

31
29

59
57

23
25

31

4 2

1

17
a

15
a

3

13

11
13

15

´

December
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

26-36 Horton Road
Yiewsley

Major Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

3507/APP/2013/2327

Page 68



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OLD COAL DEPOT  TAVISTOCK ROAD YIEWSLEY 

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of site to provide a
materials recovery and recycling facility and Civic Amenity Site, incorporating
a recovery and recycling building, storage bays, administration office/training
building, external processing and storage area, two weighbridges, reuse and
extension of railway sidings, and Civic Amenity Centre, together with
associated car parking, landscaping, fencing and infrastructure.

27/06/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 18736/APP/2013/1784

Drawing Nos: pp-004 rev p
pp-010
pp-011 rev p
pp-012 rev p
pp-013 rev p
pp-014 rev p
pp-015 rev p
Environmental Statement Volumes 1, 2 & 3
Planning Statement
Design & Access Statement
17388 L6
pp-016
pp-005 rev p
pp-006 rev p
pp-008 rev p
pp-001 rev p
pp-002 rev p
pp-003 rev p
pp-007 rev p
pp-009 rev p
Addendum to Transport Statement Nov 2013
Trabvel Plan - Nov 2013

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The planning application is for the development of a Waste Material Recycling &
Recovery Facility (Proposed Development) which would upon completion consist of the
following elements: a)  A Materials Recovery and Recycling Building (MRF): consisting of
one building incorporating three operational areas, for the preliminary separation,
treatment and storage of reclaimed or salvaged materials and onward transfer for re-use
and energy production;  b)  Storage Bays:  including aggregate and sand for onward
sale, general construction materials and materials for energy use for delivery by road or
rail to other sites secured by contract; c)  An Office Building:  to accommodate Powerday
Plc's administrative activities ancillary to the operations to be undertaken at the Site and
the provision of a Training and Education Centre and the provision of staff
accommodation and facilities, staff parking; d)  External Processing and Storage Areas:
external processing area to include concrete and wood  processing and storage areas for

27/06/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 69



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

inert materials on the western side of the site boundary; and container storage (in
association with the rail operation and maintenance); e) Two Weigh bridges; f)Re-use
and extension of railway sidings; g)  Civic Amenity site (CA): including 22 parking bays
and provision for 8 containers to receive normal waste from households as well as other
wastes, which because of its nature or composition is similar to waste from households,
from the local community; h) Landscaping and fencing; i)  Associated infrastructure:
including roads, hardstanding and parking areas.

A total of 974 neighbouring properties were consulted. In addition to this Officers posted
Site Notices in 22 locations in the Yiewsley and West Drayton areas including in local
supermarkets to inform residents of the proposed development. 204 representations
have been received. Of these 1 has been in support, 9 have been general comments and
193 have objected to the scheme. Issues relating to highways and traffic impacts, the
scale of the development and air quality have all been raised. In addition, a petition of
3224 signatures objecting to the scheme has been received. Given the scale of the
development it is referable to the Mayor of London. 

The development would integrate an appropriate level of inclusive design, measures to
reduce energy use and other sustainable design features. Furthermore, subject to
appropriate conditions the development would not have any adverse impacts on the
amenity of residential occupiers by way of noise. 

However, the Council's Highways Officer has raised significant concerns about the
quality and accuracy of the Transport Assessment. It is considered that the development
would have significant adverse impacts on the free flow of the highway network in the
Yiewsley & West Drayton Area and on highway or pedestrian safety. 

In addition the Council's Air Quality Officer has also raised significant concerns regarding
the acceptability, robustness and accuracy of the Air Quality Assessment which is
underpinned by the the unacceptable Transport Assessment. The transport assessment
needs to be refined using more sufficiently robust and accurate data.  In particular,
greater clarity and assessment of the amount of HGVs including the presumed impact of
the rail. HGVs are considerably more polluting than light vehicles and need to be given
appropriate attention in assessment.

The applicant has also failed to enter into a S106 Agreement.

NON2 Highways

The proposal involves a significant number of traffic movemments, including many by
heavy goods vehicles and the application fails to provide an accurate assessment of
highways and transportation impacts associated with the proposed development and as
such the scheme fails to demonstrate that it would not be detrimental to highway and
pedestrian safety and the free flow of traffic contrary to policies AM7 and LE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Polciies (November 2012) policies 5.17 and 6.3 of the
London Plan (July 2011) and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

That should the Mayor not direct the Council under Article 6 to refuse the
application, or issue a direction under Article 7 that he is to act as the Local
Planning Authority for the purposes of determining the application, delegated
powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to refuse
planning permission for the reasons set out below and any other material planning
reasons which might be raised by H.M. Railway Inspectorate:

Page 70



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

NON2

Level Crossing

Air Quality

Planning Obligations

The proposed development will significantly increase the traffic passing over the level rail
crossing, and in the absence of a full risk assessment in respect of the use of the level
crossing the application fails to demonstrate that it would be safe for the public and rail
operators, contrary to policies AM7 and AM11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved
Polices (November 2012), policies 2.6, 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4 of the London Plan (July 2011)
and paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the air quality impacts of the development
would not be unacceptable. The scale and magnitude of the development requires a
much greater understanding of the air quality impacts and without this no proper
assessment of mitigation can occur. The extent of the impacts is not sufficiently clearly
set out in the Air Quaslity Assessment. Accordingly the proposal is contrary to Policy 7.14
of the London Plan and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Air Quality
and the provisions set out in the National Planning Policy Framework.

The applicant has failed to provide a contribution towards the improvement of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development in
respect of construction training, Highways matters, air quality monitoring, environmental
mitigation (including but not limited to measures to control impacts of activities that would
impacts on residential amenity) and project management.  The proposal therefore
conflicts with Policies AM1, AM11 and R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
Saved Polciies (November 2012) and Policies 4.1, 4.12, 6.7 and 7.1 of the London Plan
(July 2011) and the London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary
Planning Document.

2

3

4

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM12

AM13

Promotion of traffic management measures which give priority to
buses
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street

Page 71



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM14
AM15
AM18

AM2

AM7
AM8

AM9

BE10
BE13
BE19

BE21
BE25
BE34

BE35

BE38

BE4
LE1
LE2
LE7

OE1

OE11

OE3

OE8

LPP 2.11
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.4
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.16
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.2

furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities
for canal borne freight
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on
rivers
Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road
and rail connections to Heathrow and central London
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas
Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and
business development
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
(2011) The Central Activities Zone - strategic functions
(2011) Outer London: economy
(2011) Outer London: Transport
(2011) Developing London's economy
(2011) Managing Industrial Land & Premises
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Water use and supplies
(2011) Waste self-sufficiency
(2011) Waste capacity
(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

Page 72



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located off Tavistock Road in West Drayton, and comprises the Old
Coal Depot. It is 3km from Junction 4 of the M4 motor way, with the M4 and M25
interchange a further 2km to the west; junction 1 of the M40 is approximately 7km to the
north. Heathrow Airport is located approximately 5km to the south, within the Borough,
and Central London is approximately 28km to the east. The centre of Slough is
approximately 10km to the west.

The Application Site is irregular in shape, comprising approximately 5.57 hectares.
Excluding the access track to  the east, the Application Site measures approximately
470m x 170m, at its widest points. Vehicular access is gained from Tavistock Road to the
east along a narrow two way tarmac carriageway, which measures approximately 215m in

3. CONSIDERATIONS

LPP 5.20
LPP 5.21
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.5
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.11

LPP 6.12
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.14
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5

LPP 6.9
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.24
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.7
LPP 7.8
LPP 8.2
LPP 8.3
AM11

LPP 6.2

LPP 6.4
LPP 2.6
NPPF

(2011) Aggregates
(2011) Contaminated land
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Decentralised energy networks
(2011) Renewable energy
(2011) Strategic Approach
(2011) Walking
(2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and
reducing traffic
(2011) Road Network Capacity
(2011) Parking
(2011) Freight strategy
(2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) Improving air quality
(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Blue Ribbon Network
(2011) Designing out crime
(2011) Local character
(2011) Location and design of tall and large buildings
(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology
(2011) Planning obligations
(2011) Community infrastructure levy
Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus
and rail interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure
improvement in public transport services
(2011) Providing public transport capacity and safeguarding land for
transport
(2011) Enhancing London's Transport Connectivity
(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

Page 73



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

length and truncated by the level rail crossing.

The majority of the Application Site contains a mixture of small scale light industrial and
commercial business uses. There is a two storey brick office building, occupied by Euro
Storage (UK), located in the south east corner of the main part of the Application Site,
plus a number of other temporary units and storage containers scattered throughout.

Given its previous and current uses, the Application Site is wholly covered by
hardstanding with no existing vegetation apart from a small area of dense woody scrub in
the north western corner, scattered patches of scrub, trees, tall ruderal and
ephemeral/short perennial vegetation and some boundary planting. 

The land in the vicinity of the Application Site lies  within  the floodplain of the River Colne
and its tributaries, albeit the site itself  lies at a man-made higher elevation of
approximately 30.0m Above Ordnance Datum (AOD). The relatively flat natural
topography characterises the surrounding area of the Application Site to the north, west
and south.

To the south, the Application Site is separated from the Great Western Railway West
Wales to London Paddington Main Line by a swathe of land currently utilised as a
minerals and aggregate storage depot, which contains some existing scrub and tree
planting. A further scrub and tree belt lies between the Application Site and the swathe of
land mentioned above, directly south of the existing office building towards the south
eastern corner of the Application Site.

Residential properties lie further to the south of the Application Site, beyond the Main
Line, with the properties in Weirside Gardens, Fairway Avenue, Fairway Close, Humber
Close and Colham Mill Road being the closest. The Weirside Gardens, Fairway Avenue
and Fairway Close area (and beyond) is designated as an Area of Special Local
Character in the adopted Unitary Development Plan (UDP);  West Drayton Conservation
Area lies further to the south east.

Another railway line, which is used for aggregates traffic, diverges from the Main Line to
the east of the Application Site, and follows the northern and western boundaries of the
Application Site before continuing directly south past the M4 and M25 interchange. 

A railway embankment separates the northern and western boundaries of the Application
Site from the railway line. A number of residential properties lie further to the north,
beyond the railway line, in Trout Road and Trout Lane, along with further
business/industrial uses, mainly comprising storage/haulage type uses, all of which are
located within Colne Valley Park. This area is designated Green Belt and includes the
Slough Arm section of The Grand Union Canal and Little Britain, Cowley, both of which
are Nature Conservation Sites of Metropolitan or Borough Grade I Importance; Cowley
Lock Conservation Area lies further north.

Colne Valley Park, is a large north/south linear park that runs from the northern edge of
Staines in the south to the southern edge of Rickmansworth in the north, wraps around
the Application Site from the north to the west, where the administrative boundary of
Hillingdon ends and gives way to South Buckinghamshire District Council; the River Colne
runs north south through the park. The Iver Water Treatment Works lies further to the
west, inside the M25.

A small copse, which the Fray's River runs through and falls within the Little Britain,

Page 74



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Cowley Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan Importance, is located immediately
adjacent to the site to the east/north east. 

Tavistock Road, which lies further to the east/north east, comprises a mix of residential
development and industrial, retail and office units. Beyond that lies the Yiewsley Town
Centre area, consisting of a number of common High Street services and facilities.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The planning application is for the development of a Waste Material Recycling & Recovery
Facility (Proposed Development) which would upon completion consist of the following
elements:-

i) A  Materials Recycling Building (MRF):  Measuring 192m at its maximum length by
103m  and provide 15,581m2 gross floorspace with a maximum height of 18.5m which
would be located  centrally  within the Site.  This would be a clad steel framed structure
with curved roof.  Vehicle entrance to the building would be provided on the eastern,
western  and northern elevations away from residential properties located to the south of
the Site.  There will be a  single opening along the southern elevation for service and
maintenance requirements only. The building would be open plan allowing maximum
flexibility for the siting of equipment and general operations. 

ii) Storage Bays:  It is proposed that the storage area would also house materials
associated with the construction industry as well as providing storage in association with
the wood and concrete processing. 

iii) External Processing and Storage Areas (to include concrete and wood processing and
inert material storage): To be provided on the western side of the site boundary in
proximity to the railway and container storage (in association with the rail operation and
maintenance).

iv) Offices and associated car parking for Powerday. The offices would be contained in a
newly constructed two-storey building located just to the east of the existing entrance to
the Site, which would have a gross floorspace of approximately 480m2 . The office
building would consist of a reception area, meeting rooms and an education/training
centre on the ground floor and general office accommodation throughout the remainder of
the building.  The office car parking would be provided for both employee and visitor use
in line with the Council's standards.

v) A  platform  measuring approximately 220m in length and 4.5 - 12m in width would be
constructed to allow for the loading and unloading of material from trains halting at the
Site. An existing rail siding would be retained and extended to provide rail access to the
Site. A buffer would be required at the western end of the sidings for the purposes of rail
safety.

vi) Two  weighbridges  to be located at the Site entrance. One will weigh vehicles entering
the site and the second leaving the site.

vii) A  Civic Amenity site (CA): including 22 parking bays and provision for 8 containers to
receive normal waste from households as well as other wastes, which because of its
nature or composition is similar to waste from households, from the local community. 

viii) Landscaping and fencing  to include tree planting, the erection of an acoustic barrier
fence and palisade fence.

Page 75



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ix) Associated infrastructure: including roads, hardstanding and parking areas.

The proposed development would deal with a wide range of waste types including:- 

i) Inert; 
ii) Non Hazardous; 
iii) Hazardous (Limited to Lower Risk Types). 

Inert waste as defined by The Landfill Directive 1999, is waste that does not undergo any
significant physical, chemical or biological transformations. It does not dissolve, burn or
otherwise physically or chemically react, biodegrade or adversely affect other matter with
which it comes into contact in a way likely to give rise to environmental pollution or harm
to human health; and its total leachability and pollutant content and the ecotoxicity of its
leachate are insignificant and, in particular, do not endanger the quality of any surface
water or groundwater. Such wastes include sand and concrete. 

Non-hazardous waste is not specifically defined in the revised Waste Framework Directive
(rWFD  -  Directive 2008/98/EC on waste and repealing certain Directives). "Waste" and
"hazardous waste" are defined in that document.  Hazardous waste is defined as "waste
which displays one or more of the hazardous properties listed in Annex III", Annex III of
the rWFD sets out the 15 hazardous properties which can render waste as hazardous.  By
inference, non-hazardous waste is that waste which is not hazardous. 

The rWFD makes reference to "List of waste" at Article 7 and further refers to the
Commission Decision that sets out the list of waste referred to as the European Waste
Catalogue (EWC). This list, implemented in England by the List of Wastes (England)
Regulations 2005, classifies wastes by their source and their type (e.g. soil and stones
produced by construction and demolition activities).  The EWC code list also identifies
hazardous waste by use of an asterisk.  The non-asterisked waste is therefore non-
hazardous.

All the above waste streams can be found in commercial and industrial (C&I) waste,
construction and demolition (C&D) waste and municipal solid waste (MSW) in varying
degrees, all of which are proposed to be accepted at the site subject to the Environment
Agency permitting. However it is proposed that Hazardous waste types will be limited to
lower risk types as identified in the EWC 2002. 

The site would also handle aggregate and sand for onward sale and delivery to
development sites in the locality. The opportunity would also be taken to convert
construction and demolition wastes into recycled aggregate as well as processing wood
for use in the energy sector. 

The different tonnages of the industrial waste streams and aggregates/sand to be
managed on the site would be dependent on the terms of new contracts, market
conditions and the physical capacity of  the site to manage the material. The amount and
proportion of material processed and managed at the site would vary over time in
accordance with market conditions. 

The capacity of the site is determined by its physical size, the floorspace of the proposed
buildings, the processing equipment that can be accommodated, the material being
managed, the level of processing that takes place and the capacity of the transport
infrastructure to accommodate the import and export of material.

Page 76



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Of these constraints, the capacity of the transport infrastructure to import and export
material sets the maximum capacity of the site, and a significant amount of material can
be delivered to or exported from the site by rail. The application seeks to prices the
following capacity of waste (Tonnes per annum):

By Road - 600,000 
By Rail - 350,000 
TOTAL - 950,000 

Materials Recycling Building 

The Materials Recycling Building (MRF) would accept commercial/industrial waste,
demolition and construction waste and municipal solid waste. 

The MRF is a specialised plant, which separates and processes recyclables that have
been collected in order to recover secondary materials for onward shipment to recycling
plants or for use with further reprocessing. The main components of a MRF include: 

- Weighing inbound and outbound materials to record loads; 
- Delivery and storage of incoming wastes; 
- Processing of wastes; and 
- Storage of recovered products and by-products. 

All processing of waste would take place within the MRF building with the exception of
concrete and wood processing and inert materials storage.  These proposed processing
activities would be carried out in the western corner of the site on impermeable
hardstanding. The MRF building has been sized and designed to accommodate the
necessary plant and equipment.

Processed materials, depending on type, would either be baled or stockpiled ready for
use, onward reprocessing, transfer for use as Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) in an offsite
Energy from Waste (EFW) facility.  The stockpiled and baled material would be stored
within the building or in the storage area located within the western section of the Site. It is
intended that materials would be exported from the Site to their point of use.

It is proposed to accept a limited range of hazardous waste for a limited range of
assessment and treatment. The definitive list of acceptable wastes will be determined
through the environmental permitting process and determined and regulated by  the
Environment Agency. All activities relating to Hazardous waste treatment will take place
within the MRF.

Storage Bays and External Processing Areas 

The Storage Bays (SB) would provide a storage area for waste materials awaiting 
processing or onward movement following processing.  The SB would deal with residual
material from the MRF as well as general waste loads. The material would be stored on
Site within the general storage areas located to the west of MRF building. It would
subsequently be bulk transferred off Site for re use.

Storage areas would be for general construction material including processed concrete 
and wood. This activity would be undertaken in the identified storage areas to the west of
the site.

Page 77



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There is no directly relevant planning history.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The site would accept aggregate, sand and similar bulk construction materials, which 
would be stockpiled in the storage bays.  This material would be sold on or mixed with
recycled inerts processed at the MRF to provide a product for the construction industry.
The aggregates or product would be exported from the Site to their point of use. Where
aggregate would be delivered to the Site by train, the material would be discharged from
the wagons by hopper and conveyor to covered bays along the western side of the MRF
building. General construction material would be transported to the Site and stockpiled
temporarily before being transferred by road or rail. 

The two weighbridges would ensure the tonnage of material entering and leaving the site
could be measured and recorded for permitting, planning enforcement and commercial
reasons.

Civic Amenity Site 

The Civic Amenity Site (CAS) would consist of 8 container bays which would accept
normal household waste including, but not limited to inert materials, MSW, wood, metals,
general waste and garden waste.  The containers will then be transferred directly to the
MRF building for processing, limiting transport requirements. There will be 22 parking
bays available for members of the public to utilise the CAS.

PT1.BE1

PT1.E1

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM11

PT1.EM3

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

PT1.EM8

PT1.HE1

PT1.T3

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Managing the Supply of Employment Land

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Blue Ribbon Network

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Heritage

(2012) North-South Sustainable Transport Links

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 78



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM12

AM13

AM14

AM15

AM18

AM2

AM7

AM8

AM9

BE10

BE13

BE19

BE21

BE25

BE34

BE35

BE38

BE4

LE1

LE2

LE7

OE1

OE11

OE3

OE8

LPP 2.11

LPP 2.7

LPP 2.8

Promotion of traffic management measures which give priority to buses

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities for canal
borne freight

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on rivers

Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road and rail
connections to Heathrow and central London

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and business
development

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

(2011) The Central Activities Zone - strategic functions

(2011) Outer London: economy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

Page 79



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 4.1

LPP 4.4

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.15

LPP 5.16

LPP 5.17

LPP 5.2

LPP 5.20

LPP 5.21

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.5

LPP 5.7

LPP 6.1

LPP 6.10

LPP 6.11

LPP 6.12

LPP 6.13

LPP 6.14

LPP 6.3

LPP 6.5

LPP 6.9

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.14

LPP 7.15

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.24

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.7

LPP 7.8

LPP 8.2

LPP 8.3

AM11

LPP 6.2

LPP 6.4

LPP 2.6

(2011) Developing London's economy

(2011) Managing Industrial Land & Premises

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Water use and supplies

(2011) Waste self-sufficiency

(2011) Waste capacity

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Aggregates

(2011) Contaminated land

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Decentralised energy networks

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Walking

(2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and reducing traffic

(2011) Road Network Capacity

(2011) Parking

(2011) Freight strategy

(2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Blue Ribbon Network

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Location and design of tall and large buildings

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2011) Planning obligations

(2011) Community infrastructure levy

Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus and rail
interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure improvement in public
transport services

(2011) Providing public transport capacity and safeguarding land for transport

(2011) Enhancing London's Transport Connectivity

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

Page 80



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NPPF

Not applicable25th July 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

A total of 974 neighbouring properties were consulted. In addition to this Officers posted Site
Notices in 22 locations in the Yiewsley and West Drayton areas including in local supermarkets to
inform locals of the proposed development. 204 representations have been received. Of these 1
has been in support, 9 have been general comments and 193 have objected to the scheme. 

The objections have been raised on the following grounds:

1. Additional heavy lorry movements 7 days a week.
2. Even greater congestion on already heavily congested roads which often are a standstill already.
3. Proximity of the proposed development to residential areas
4. Pollution from the development. The area is already heavily polluted from the M4, M25 an
Heathrow Airport. 
5. Poor and limited vehicle access to the site which will force lorries to go through West Drayton &
Yiewsley.
6. Poor Access to the site will be hazardous and a danger to road users.
7. The site is to be used 24/7 365 days a year will cause dust and noise problems to local
residents.
8. Contravenes Human Rights Act.
9. Raised site means that disturbance from the site would have a detrimental effect on both
adjacent housing and properties further away.
10. This highly populated area is unsuitable for a waste facility.
11. Impact on peoples health resulting form air quality impacts of the development.
12. Impact on quality of life for residents.
13. Pollution form the site old be pumped into the air whilst winds would carry the nauseating
gasses and smells to homes and businesses.
14. Air Pollution.
15. Noise pollution.
16. Fall out from the development would cause closure of Paddington to est Country mainline. 
17. Injuries and possible fatalities due to close proximity and density of the community.
18. Public road transport will suffer due to increased congestion. 
19. Planning Guidance (May 2006) states that waste facilities should not impact on the well being
of the local community and environment. The Powerday proposals will. 
20. The site was removed from the West London Waste Plan as it was found to be inappropriate
therefore the proposal cannot be deemed acceptable on this site. 
21. The sludge lagoon would be a health hazard.
22. Light Pollution.

In addition 9 petitions in objection to the scheme have been received. These have between 20 and
3244 signatures on them. 

The petitioners raise objections on the following grounds:

Page 81



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1. The development would adversely affect the local community and would undermine the quality of
life.
2. Access to the site would be severely restricted by a low railway bridge and the adjacent railway
and bus stations. 
3. The detrimental impact will have on local businesses.
4. Loss of local jobs from the existing site and local shops and businesses
5. Negative environmental impact on residents and all those visiting and doing business in the area.
6. Health and welfare on children
7. Loss of a site which could generate 100's of jobs
8. Loss of job generating rail head
9. Traffic gridlock
10. Loss of benefits to the area arising from Crossrail
11. Pollution, including noise and light generated from the crushing and shredding activities which
take outside the main plant.
12. Rats and other vermin will be attracted to the site. 

JOHN RANDALL MP
I have been approached by many local residents in addition to local Residents' Association in the
proximity of this site.

Before dealing with the application itself I have been asked to obtain from the LBH a list of those
properties which have been or will be notified about this application as it is a very substantial
proposal with potentially severe consequences for local residents.

I am personally very concerned at the traffic implications in an area that has already has had real
problems over a lengthy period. There was a similar application a few years ago which I objected to
on many ground. Many of those will be repeated here.

I am personally very concerned at the traffic implications in an area that has already has had real
problems over a lengthy period with very difficult and restricted access from a residential road off
the main high road. For northbound traffic the residential road is a sharp left turn immediately after
going under a railway bridge where the main road is at its narrowest and is subject to flooding.
There is only one way into and out of the site by a narrow ramped access way and therefore there
will inevitably be traffic queueing.

The health of local residents, especially children, is already affected by high pollution levels coming
from heavy traffic, particularly lorries. All heavy goods traffic would have to come through the town
centre where local residents are already saying they only want cars, vans and buses to have
access.

Small suburban centres are not suitable for large volumes of heavy goods vehicles. There are
already major hold-ups of traffic and peak and other times at this junction. In addition I thoroughly
concur with the views of the West Drayton Garden City Residents' Association in the following
points:-

The main road is a route to school as there is a primary school on the main road in Yiewsley
Centre.

The site is immediately adjacent to a zone 3b Flood Risk Area.

The site is immediately adjacent to the Green Belt.

JOHN MCcDONNELL MP
I am writing with regard to the planning application by Powerday for an industrial waste recycling

Page 82



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

centre at the old coal depot in Tavistock Road, West Drayton.

As you are aware, the local area is already heavily congested. The majority of the waste material
will be coming in by road and will dramatically increase the traffic movements in the area. In
addition there is only one way in and out of the site via a residential road off the main high street.

The town centre is not equipped to deal with large volumes of heavy goods vehicles. Lt is not
acceptable to expect small suburban towns to absorb this type of traffic. Up and down the country
town centres are closing their roads to lorries in the interest of the residents who are being exposed
to traffic fumes and restricted movement.

I share residents' concerns that the access point will be opposite West Drayton bus and train
station. Not only will this cause chaos on the High Street and surrounding roads but buses and
passengers alike will have to negotiate with huge lorries that will be trying to access the plant.
This proposed development is in the heart of a densely populated area. I believe that such a
development will have a detrimental impact for those working and living in the vicinity and beyond.

This proposed development does not provide any benefits for the local community and will
undoubtedly affect the residents' quality of life as they will be exposed to noise, light and air
pollution as well as an increase in traffic 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. I am therefore writing to
place my objection to this planning application on record and would strongly urge that this
application is rejected.

I would also request that the London Borough of Hillingdon consults as widely as possible as an
application such as this will have a huge impact on the wider area and the views of all those who
will be affected need to be taken in to account.

GLA STAGE 1
London Plan policies on principle of development, waste, employment, urban design, inclusive
access, air quality, noise, sustainable development and transport are relevant to this application.

The application broadly complies with the London Plan, there are some outstanding issues that
need to be resolved and these and their potential remedies are set out below.

Principle of development: The development proposals have significant potential to support and
capture the benefits of waste recycling, contribute to the Mayor's recycling level targets, while
delivering the Mayor's waste policy and therefore, are supported in principle. Further consideration
will need to be given to the imminent WLWP (Proposed Submission version) and its general
conformity with the London Plan and details of Network Rail requirements for this site.

Employment: The proposals will make a valuable contribution to the generation of jobs and the
development is accepted strategically in this regard.

Urban design: The proposed design is generally accepted and in line with policies contained in
chapter seven of the London Plan.

Inclusive access: Clarity of how inclusive access has been considered with regards to areas of the
public realm is also sought for the scheme to be in line with London Plan policies 7.2.

Air quality: Before the scheme is referred back at stage two, relevant planning conditions will need
to be secured by the Council.

Noise: Before the scheme is referred back at stage two, relevant planning conditions will need to be
secured by the Council.

Page 83



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Climate change: The scheme fully complies with London Plan policy 5.2.

Transport: In order for the application to comply with the transport policies of the London Plan TfL
requires that the applicant provides additional information on how freight will access the site by both
road and rail, amend both the impact assessment and DSP, confirm the number of cycle and car
spaces proposed, undertake a pedestrian audit and finally provide a Workplace travel plan for
assessment.

STOCKLEY PARK ESTATE MANAGEMENT
Garden City Estates Resident's Association has made us aware of the above planning application
by Powerday to open an industrial waste recycling plant in Yiewsley. In considering the application,
would you please review any potential implications that additional traffic may have on Stockley
Park.

We have reported on numerous occasions that traffic on the A408 Stockley Road has caused
congestion resulting in delays of more than an hour to residents trying to leave Stockley Park. We
would be concerned if additional traffic from the proposed recycling plant were to exacerbate this
situation.

NERL
The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company
("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

However, please be aware that this response applies specifically to the above consultation and only
reflects the position of NERL (that is responsible for the management of en route air traffic) based
on the information supplied at the time of this application. This letter does not provide any indication
of the position of any other party, whether they be an airport, airspace user or otherwise.  It remains
your responsibility to ensure that all the appropriate consultees are properly consulted.

If any changes are proposed to the information supplied to NERL in regard to this application which
become the basis of a revised, amended or further application for approval, then as a statutory
consultee NERL  requires that it be further consulted on any such changes prior to any planning
permission or any consent being granted.

CROSSRAIL

Thank you for your letter dated 2 July 2013 and the accompanying planning application documents
relating to the above site, requesting the views of Crossrail Limited on the above application.
Again, please accept my apologies for the delay in responding.

Crossrail is a proposed new railway that will link Heathrow and Maidenhead in the west to
Shentield and Abbey Wood in the east using existing Network Rail tracks and new tunnels under
Central London.

The Crossrail Bill which was introduced into Parliament by the Secretary of State for Transport in
February 2005 was enacted as the Crossrail Act on the 22nd July 2008. The first stage of
Crossrail preparatory construction works began in early 2009. Main construction works have
started with works to the central tunnel section to finish in 2018, to be followed by a phased
opening of services.

Crossrail Limited administers a Direction issued by the Department for Transport on 24th January
2008 for the safeguarding of the proposed alignment of Crossrail. The site of this planning
application is identified within the limits of land subject to consultation under the Safeguarding

Page 84



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Direction.

The implications of the Crossrail proposals for the application have been considered and I write to
inform you that Crossrail Limited do not wish to make any comments on this application as
submitted.

You may inspect and/or purchase copies of Plans, Sections, Environmental Statements,
Explanatory Notes and Non-Technical Summaries pertaining to the Crossrail proposals at specified
Libraries, Local Authority Offices or directly from Crossrail Limited at "28th Floor, 25 Canada
Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LQ". In addition, the latest project developments can be
found on the Crossrail website www.crossrailco.uk/safeguarding, which is updated on a regular
basis.

I hope this information is helpful, but if you require any further assistance then please feel free to
contact a member of the Safeguarding Team on 0345 602 3813, or by email to
safeguarding@crossrail.co.uk

HEATHROW EDUCATION AND WELFARE ASSOCIATION
I write on behalf of the Heathrow Education and Welfare Association (HEWA) concerning the
above planning application submitted by Powerday to develop the Coal Yard site in Tavistock Road
Yiewsley for industrial waste recycling. We object in the strongest terms to this application.

As a place of worship, education and welfare based in the area, we believe that the site is
unsuitable for the proposed large scale operation. We believe that the facility, if approved,
would materially damage both the financial and business environment of Yiewsley and West
Drayton as well as our own charitable institution. The sole access to the site via the High
Street/Station Road and onto Tavistock Road is already heavily congested for most of the working
day and therefore any development which could bring further heavy lorries to this major road artery
is viewed with grave concern by our organisation.

Our Centre at 1 Colham Mill Road is just a few metres away from the Tavistock Road entrance to
the site, and many of our worshippers and others attending our meetings are already disturbed by
the heavy traffic which passes our centre. We are of the opinion that the development on the Coal
Yard site for up to 950,000 metric tons of industrial waste per year will bring many additional HGVs
and skips to the area, so polluting the area and causing considerable disturbance to those visiting
and doing business. 

Air quality in Yiewsley and West Drayton is already poor, and the queueing of heavy lorries trying to
get in and out of the site will, we believe increase pollution levels even further. We therefore ask
the Council to refuse this application when it is considered by the Committee.

I write on behalf of the Heathrow Education and Welfare Association (HEWA) concerning the
above planning application submitted by Powerday to develop the Coal Yard site in Tavistock Road
Yiewsley for industrial waste recycling. We object in the strongest terms to this application.

As a place of worship, education and welfare based in the area, we believe that the site is
unsuitable for the proposed large scale operation. We believe that the facility, if approved,
would materially damage both the financial and business environment of Yiewsley and West
Drayton as well as our own charitable institution. The sole access to the site via the High
Street/Station Road and onto Tavistock Road is already heavily congested for most of the working
day and therefore any development which could bring further heavy lorries to this major road artery
is viewed with grave concern by our organisation.

Our Centre at 1 Colham Mill Road is just a few metres away from the Tavistock Road entrance to

Page 85



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the site, and many of our worshippers and others attending our meetings are already disturbed by
the heavy traffic which passes our centre. We are of the opinion that the development on the Coal
Yard site for Upton 950,000 metric tons of industrial waste per year will bring many additional HGVs
and skips to the area, so polluting the area and causing considerable disturbance to those visiting
and doing business. Air quality in Yiewsley and West Drayton is already poor, and the queueing of
heavy lorries trying to get in and out of the site will, we believe increase pollution levels even
further. We therefore ask the Council to refuse this application when it is considered by the
Committee.

THAMES WATER
With the information provided Thames Water, has been unable to determine the waste water
infrastructure needs of this application. Should the Local Planning Authority look to approve the
application ahead of further information being provided, we request that the following 'Grampian
Style' condition be applied - "Development shall not commence until a drainage strategy detailing
any on and/or off site drainage works, has been submitted to and approved by, the local planning
authority in consultation with the sewerage undertaker. 

No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the public system until the
drainage works referred to in the strategy have been completed". Reason - The development may
lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to cope with the new
development; and in order to avoid adverse environmental impact upon the community. Should the
Local Planning Authority consider the above recommendation is inappropriate or are unable to
include it in the decision notice, it is important that the Local Planning Authority Liaises with
Thames Water Development Control Department (telephone 0203 577 9998) prior to the Planning
Application approval.

Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a
developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In
respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is
proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal
of Ground Water. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval
from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845 850
2777. Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to
the existing sewerage system. There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. In
order to protect public sewers and to ensure that Thames Water can gain access to those sewers
for future repair and maintenance, approval should be sought from Thames Water where the
erection of a building or an extension to a building or underpinning work would be over the line of,
or would come within 3 metres of, a public sewer. 

Thames Water will usually refuse such approval in respect of the construction of new buildings, but
approval may be granted in some cases for extensions to existing buildings. The applicant is
advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the options
available at this site.

A Trade Effluent Consent will be required for any Effluent discharge other than a 'Domestic
Discharge'. Any discharge without this consent is illegal and may result in prosecution. (Domestic
usage for example includes - toilets, showers, washbasins, baths and canteens), Typical Trade
Effluent processes include: - Laundrette/Laundry, PCB manufacture, photographic/printing, food
preparation, abattoir, farm wastes, vehicle washing, metal plating/finishing, cattle market wash
down, chemical manufacture, treated cooling water and any other process which produces
contaminated water. Pre-treatment, separate metering, sampling access etc, may be required
before the Company can give its consent. Applications should be made at

Page 86



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

http;//wwwthameswater.co.uk/business/9993.htm or alternatively to Waste Water Quality,
Crossness STW, Belvedere Road, Abbeywood, London. SE2 9AQ. Telephone: 020 3577 9200. 

Thames Water would recommend that petrol/oil interceptors be fitted in all car
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol/oil interceptors could
result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses.

Water Comments
With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Affinity Water Company.
For your information the address to write to is - Veolia Water Company The Hub, Tamblin Way,
Hatfield, Herts, AL1O 9EZ - Tel - 0845 782 3333.

Supplementary Comments
No documentation containing details of the proposed drainage plan could be located on the local
authority website. In order for Thames Water to determine whether the existing sewer network has
sufficient spare capacity to receive the increased flows from the development, a drainage strategy
must be submitted detailing the proposed foul and surface water strategies. Details of any
proposed alterations to the connection points to the public system, and calculated increase in
discharge rate must be included in the drainage strategy.

If initial investigations conclude that the existing sewer network is unlikely to be able to  support the
discharge anticipated from this development, it will be necessary for developers to fund studies to
ascertain whether the proposed development will lead to overloading of existing waste water
infrastructure.

HEATHROW AIRPORT SAFEGUARDING
We refer to your email dated 2nd July 2013, received in this office on the same day.

The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and
could conflict with safeguarding criteria unless any planning permission granted is subject to the
condition detailed below:

Submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan
Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details of: 

- management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which may be
attractive to nesting, roosting and "loafing" birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice
Note 8 'Potential Bird Hazards from Building Design' attached * See para below for information *

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion of the
development and shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the
plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: It is necessary to manage the flat roofs in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds
which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Heathrow Airport.

Information
The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be constructed to
allow access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The
owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made
weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the breeding season. Outside of the breeding
season gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked regularly to ensure that gulls do not

Page 87



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

utilise the roof.  Any gulls found nesting; roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the
owner/occupier when detected or when requested by BAA Airside Operations staff. In some
instances it may be necessary to contact BAA Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes
place. The owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain
the appropriate licences where applicable from Natural England before the removal of nests and
eggs.

We would also make the following observation:

Cranes
Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required during its
construction.  We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the
aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.  This is explained further in
Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available at
http://www.aoa.org.uk/operation & safety/safeguarding.htm 

We, therefore, have no aerodrome safeguarding objection to this proposal, provided that the above
condition is applied to any planning permission.

It is important that any conditions requested in this response are applied to a planning approval.
Where a Planning Authority proposes to grant permission against the advice of BAA, or not to
attach conditions which BAA has advised, it shall notify BAA, and the Civil Aviation Authority as
specified in the Town & Country Planning (Safeguarded Aerodromes, Technical Sites and Military
Explosive Storage Areas) Direction 2002.

NETWORK RAIL
Thank you for your email dated 2nd July, together with the opportunity to comment on this
proposal.

After studying the proposals detailed in the application and consultation with our Level Crossing
Manager and Drainage Engineer, Network Rail objects to this application as currently proposed.

The proposed development will significantly increase the use of the Level Crossing which we
believe will not be suitable for heavy public use which will be the case when it becomes a civic
amenity site.

We therefore request the following details from the applicant which we will need to assess prior to
submitting our final comments.

The applicant will need to carry out a full risk assessment and safety works on the level crossing;
details are to be submitted to Network Rail for review.

We require drainage details at this location due to the size of the proposed facility and car parking
area as there is a risk of runoff in the area toward the railway infrastructure. Until we have received
the above, our objection to this application remains.

You are also obliged to consult with H.M. Railway Inspectorate at the Office of Rail Regulation on
the application (in accordance with the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General
Development Procedure) Order 2010, SI:2010 No.2184 and Paragraph 13, Appendix B of
Department of Environment Circular 9/95).

Page 88



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
Further to my letter dated 23 July I am writing to confirm that we do not have any additional
objections to make with respect to groundwater and contaminated land.  Therefore our Flood Risk
objection remains our formal response, which I include below for reference. 

We object to the application as submitted for the following reasons:

i) The applicant has not demonstrated that the storage volume required to attenuate surface water
run-off from the critical 1 in 100 chance in any year storm event, with an appropriate allowance for
climate change, can be provided on site. 
ii) The applicant has not demonstrated that sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) will be used on
site to provide storage for surface water generated on site, in line with the National Planning Policy
Framework paragraph 103, that requires development to give priority to the use of SuDS. 
iii) The applicant has not demonstrated that the peak discharge rate for all events up to and
including the 1 in 100 chance in any year critical storm event, including an appropriate allowance
for climate change, will not exceed 50% of the existing run-off rate. 

Surface water for up to the 1 in 100 chance in any year storm event, including an allowance for
climate change, must be safely contained on site. It is acceptable to partially flood the site during
this event, ensuring that buildings are not affected by flooding and the site can be safely navigated
by users. Where this flooding will be within roads or pathways, the applicants must ensure that safe
access and egress is still available. 

The surface water strategy must demonstrate that the use of SuDS has been given priority over
more traditional pipe and tank systems, providing justification where it is not considered practicable
to utilise SuDS on site. The surface water strategy should be carried out in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework and PPS25 Practice Guide giving preference to infiltration
over discharge to a watercourse, which in turn is preferable to discharge to surface water sewer. 

The applicant must demonstrate through their surface water strategy that the proposed
development will not create an increased risk of flooding from surface water and that the surface
water run-off rate has been reduced by at least 50% in line with the London Plan Policy 5.13 and its
supplementary Planning Guidance on Sustainable Design and Construction. 

Guidance on the preparation of surface water strategies can be found in the Defra/Environment
Agency publication "Preliminary rainfall runoff management for developments". Guidance on
climate change allowances can be found within the National Planning Policy Framework Technical
Guidance.

The applicant should, as part of the surface water strategy, demonstrate that the requirements of
any local surface water drainage planning policies have been met and the recommendations of the
relevant Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water Management Plan have been
considered. The strategy should also meet Policy 5.13 of the London Plan (July 2011). Policy 5.13
states that: "developers should aim to achieve greenfield runoff from their site through
incorporating rainwater harvesting and sustainable drainage", with a 50% reduction in the runoff
rate being the essential standard that must be achieved (London Plan Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Sustainable Design and Construction).

Surface water run-off should be controlled as near to its source as possible through a sustainable
drainage approach to surface water management (SUDS). SUDS are an approach to managing
surface water run-off which seeks to mimic natural drainage systems and retain water on or near
the site as opposed to traditional drainage approaches which involve piping water off site as quickly
as possible. SUDS involve a range of techniques including soakaways, infiltration trenches,
permeable pavements, grassed swales, ponds and wetlands. SUDS offer significant advantages

Page 89



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

over conventional piped drainage systems in reducing flood risk by attenuating the rate and
quantity of surface water run-off from a site, promoting groundwater recharge, and improving water
quality and amenity. 

Further information on SUDS can be found in: 
- PPS25 Practice Guide 
- CIRIA C522 document Sustainable Drainage Systems - design manual for England and Wales 
- CIRIA C697 document SUDS manual 

On overcoming the above objection, we will have further comments and conditions to provide with
respect to permitting and groundwater and contaminated land issues. 

Advice to applicant 
Please note that there may be other sources of flooding that affect this site that are not within our
direct remit, but nevertheless are important considerations for managing flood risk for this
development. Under the Flood and Water Management Act, the Local Authority has the lead role in
these matters and consideration of these other sources of flooding may be necessary to inform
suitable mitigation measures to reduce the impact of flooding.

OFFICER COMMENT: It should be noted that since the Environment Agency commented on this
application, a Framework Agreement has been agreed between the EA and Hillingdon giving the
Council's Flood Risk & Water Management Specialist sole responsibility for all Flood Risk related
issues thus removing the need to consult the EA on such matters. Given this, it is considered that
the Council's Flood Risk & Water Management Specialist's flood risk comments are take
precedent. As such no objection has been raised in relation to flood risk subject to a water
management condition.The application is therefore considered to be acceptable in this regard.

NATURAL ENGLAND
Protected species Bats
It is noted that a survey for European Protected Species has been undertaken in support of this 
proposal. Natural England does not object to the proposed development. On the basis of the 
information available to us, our advice is that the proposed development would be unlikely to affect
bats.

For clarity, this advice is based on the information currently available to us and is subject to any
material changes in circumstances, including changes to the proposals or further information on the
impacts to protected species.

Local wildlife sites 
If the proposal site is on or adjacent to a local wildlife site, eg Site of Nature Conservation 
Importance (SNCI) or Local Nature Reserve (LNR) the authority should ensure it has sufficient 
information to fully understand the impact of the proposal on the local wildlife site, and the 
importance of this in relation to development plan policies, before it determines the application. 

Biodiversity enhancements 
This application may provide opportunities to incorporate features into the design which are 
beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities for bats or the installation of
bird nest boxes. The authority should consider securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of
the site from the applicant, if it is minded to grant permission for this application.

This is in accordance with Paragraph 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Additionally, 
we would draw your attention to Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
(2006) which states that 'Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far
as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving 

Page 90



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

biodiversity'. Section 40(3) of the same Act also states that 'conserving biodiversity includes, in 
relation to a living organism or type of habitat, restoring or enhancing a population or habitat'. 

Landscape enhancements 
This application may provide opportunities to enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment; use natural resources more sustainably; and bring 
benefits for the local community, for example through green space provision and access to and 
contact with nature. Landscape characterisation and townscape assessments, and associated 
sensitivity and capacity assessments provide tools for planners and developers to consider new 
development and ensure that it makes a positive contribution in terms of design, form and location, 
to the character and functions of the landscape and avoids any unacceptable impacts.

SOUTH BUCKS DISTRICT COUNCIL
No objections raised.

TFL
TfL requires that the applicant address the following matters in order for the application  to  be
considered  acceptable  and  compliant  with  the  transport policies of the London Plan: 

i) Provide further information on how the road and rail freight targets will be enforced 
ii) Provide additional information on how the baseline scenario has been established 
iii) Provide additional tracking of vehicles accessing the site in addition to addressing the HGV
vehicular conflict when leaving the site heading south 
iv) Provide information on the suitability of HGVs utilising both Horton and Falling Lane
v) Confirmation is required on the number of car and cycle spaces and how they will be allocated
in-between land use
vi) Provide TfL with a pedestrian audit and confirm that TfL's initial recommended improvements
would be undertaken 
vii) Carry out an all by road sensitivity test 
viii) Provide information on the rail operations on site
ix) Revise the DSP in line with TfL's recommendations in addition to providing a CLP to the Council
x) Provide a workplace travel plan for review

GARDEN CITY RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

These are the comments of the Garden City Residents' Association (GCERA) on the further
documentation submitted by Powerday (PD) on November 11th 2013 in support of their application
to develop a Materials Recycling Facility(MRF) and Civic Amenity Site(CAS) at the Old Coal Yard,
Yiewsley.

These comments are in addition to the comments GCERA made earlier, and dated 18th August
2013.

1. These comments are made in light of 3 documents that have become available since the original
submission, which are: a) Cannon's document, prepared for PD, Addendum to the Transport
Assessment, dated February 2012
b) Letter from Transport for London(TfL) to PD, dated 24/5/2012 
c) GLA's comments on this application, sent to London Borough of Hillingdon (LBH), dated:
14/8/2013.Timeliness

2. The first 2 of these documents had been sent to Powerday last year by their authors (Cannon
and TfL). It seems a curious oversight that they were not made available with the original
application. The remarks by TfL are very relevant to any assessment of the application's merits, to
which we return below.

Page 91



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3. The first document (a) has, in fact, been updated this year. It is on those updates that PD rely
not only to meet the comments originally made by TFL but also the GLA.
Main points

4. The new material from the applicant is notable for the complete absence of new data, e.g.. on
traffic flows, both baseline and proposed. Nor are there any further calculations offered in support
of such data as already exists; to rectify the lack of clarity noted in the original submission both by
GLA/TfL (and GCERA).

5. The new material only attempts to strengthen the arguments originally made. This approach, and
what is said in further support of the application only strengthens our view that Powerday are
caught up in two dilemmas. 

Rail

6. On the one hand, PD make much use in their application of the potential of the railhead, serving
the Old Coal Yard, for the import and export of material; whether original waste or materials from
waste - after processing. Further, there is a policy expectation that they should do so. Indeed, more
than once in the GLA comments, reference is made to the need for detailed and documented
understanding of what contacts PD have made with Network Rail(NR) about their planned use of
the network; with requests for commitment to the quantity of expected rail borne tonnage in and
out.

7. On the other hand, nowhere either in this material or in the main submission, are PD prepared
make such a commitment. Rather, to quote from the submitted Addendum, "it is difficult
commercially to commit to a minimum amount of importation by rail as this would constrain the
ability to operate the site."

8. The document also says that, in no circumstance could the 600,000 tonnes by road be
exceeded. What is not said is that, should PD be unable to enter ' into contracts for materials
movement by rail, that would increase the pressure on them to move more waste by road, within
the ceiling. 

Road

9. PD proposals on road use to/ from the site contain 2 key factors: 

i) that the number of traffic journeys generated by their proposed development will not exceed that
of the baseline (prior) use of the CoalYard.
ii) that their intent is to maximise the use of larger vehicles. PD's business model is to import waste
in quantity e.g.. from Waste Transfer Stations, and to discourage traffic from smaller operations;
indeed the tenor of PD's new material is that all traffic to the site, aside from that to the CAS, will be
under contract to PD. Further, on materials outwards, the number of road journeys will be reduced
by 'backfilling.' 

10. But the consequence of this is that, compared with the existing traffic, the average size of the
vehicles using the site will increase, compared with the baseline. And those vehicles, on average,
will be more heavily loaded. Note: the baseline use of the Coal Yard is for the (overnight) parking of
empty vehicles.

11. This traffic will, according to PD, be routed through the West Drayton station mini -roundabout,
over the [Grand Union] canal bridge then in their favoured option, along Horton Rd.

12. Larger and heavier waste vehicles have, at least, two drawbacks.

Page 92



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

i) they are a manifestly more visually intrusive in a local area that includes small shops, routes to
school(s), and much pedestrian traffic. This intrusion will reduce the amenity of the area, and act as
a perceived it may be actual, . threat to pedestrians, both local and visiting the area. This threat is
not only to amenity, and safety, but also to local businesses. (These movements may well also
increase, locally, the level of exhaust, and noise pollution.) 
ii) manoeuvring these large vehicles into and out of Tavistock Rd can only  add further to the
current problems of rapid traffic build up by the railway bridge in both directions. Note: we are
aware that PD propose a 'Delivery Management Plan' to spread HGV movements through the day.
But, at any time of day, it only takes one wide, large and slow -moving lorry meeting a surge of
traffic, e.g. when the lights change by the station (an event which, of its nature, cannot be
predicted), for traffic to build up rapidly.

'Pinch points'
13. The concerns of TfL about the potential for conflicts between PD related HGVs and buses on
route 350 are analysed in detail: it is for TfL to comment on this analysis.

14. However, nothing is said about the effects of additional, laden, large HGVs on all the other
vehicles that uses this junction. Moving the focus from TfL's concerns to those of local residents
and businesses, we need to have it on record that, in both directions, these HGVs will have to:

i) enter the High St from Horton Rd, up a noticeable gradient, to turn left; or cross the oncoming
south bound traffic to turn right
ii) manoeuvre, in both directions, through the mini roundabout by the station; a station, fairly soon,
not only servicing bus and mainline but Crossrail traffic
iii) enter or leave the High St. to/from Tavistock Rd where, in close proximity to the 'yellow box', is a
wide zebra crossing. 

Traffic tonnage

15. Much is made, in PD's comments, of the 2 journeys per hour in, and 2 out, of the largest HGVs.
To put this in context a context not summarised by PD, GCERA do the following calculation.

16. Stated maximum tonnage per annum by road is 600,000 inwards and so 600,000 out; and see
paragraph 8 above about use of rail. The maximum annual days of operation, say 360. Maximum
hours of road traffic operations, 24.

17. So, assuming even flows of material 24/360, gives (600,000 x 2)/ (360 x 24) = 38.9 tonnes per
hour. Again, assuming flows in and out are evenly spread, this equates to near enough 70 tonnes
per hour in both directions, _ every hour of the day (nearly) every day of the year. 

18. In GCERA's view this puts in context the, in our view, specious argument at the end of para 6.1
in the Addendum, "Therefore there is no net change in vehicle numbers on the network as a result
of the development and the impacts are therefore low. " (Our emphasis, with the comment that it
not vehicle numbers but vehicle types, and their loads that is the principal issue here. In number
terms, the largest HGV and a 'Smart' car both count as one.)

19. Thus, it is GCERA's position that PD have failed to show how this volume of material, however
broken down into individual loads, can be got through this route with no additional impact on other
traffic; and on pedestrians. Further, it's arguable that any option to handle this annual throughput
through increasing traffic in 'quiet hours' would add to the impact on local residents; not least those
living in the now -approved development of housing in Tavistock Rd, on the site opposite the
entrance to the access road to the Coal Yard. 

Rail Sidings and Network Rail

Page 93



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

20. (and see Section 8 of Addendum). Para. 21 of the GLA comments, on the original application,
says: "applicant needs to set out what discussions it has had with Network Rail and whether
Network Rail requires this site for uses other than that proposed by the applicant. Such information
is needed to assess whether the application complies with London Plan policy 6.1 (f) facilitating the
efficient distribution of freight traffic." The further documents received are silent on both these
points.
21. However, para 8.1 of the Cannon document does say: "...the 350,000t of waste import by rail
per annum would generate around 9 trains a week." Throughout the submitted documents, PD
place much weight on the merits of their planned use of rail, both in terms of this application, and
when praying in aid the West London Waste Plan(\X/LWP). Does '9 trains a week' measure up to
the expectations generated?

22. It is GCERA's view that such a valuable railhead could be better utilised than traffic of just over
one train a day. Further, the grant of use of this yard to PD would nullify any better use of this
railhead for an unknown, but certainly lengthy period of years (Note: we cannot comment on rail
traffic - out except to refer again to our remarks, in para 7, where we note that PD will not commit to
any rail traffic.)

23. There is a practical means to hand to test this argument. In their case, when dealing with road
traffic, PD makes much use of detailed traffic data from their existing site, at 'Old Oak Sidings.'
That site is also served by rail. PD should provide details of the actual rail traffic at that site, say in
calendar 2012 and 2011, with any caveats re differences between that and their proposed, Coal
Yard operations.

West London West Plan

24. In section "Source/destination of waste processed, and West London Waste P1an(\WLWP)" of
our original comments, we note that PD was told at a pre application meeting with the GLA in 2012
that the Coal Yard site had been removed from the 'WLWP'. In the note of the later pre application
meeting with TfL, just sent in by PD, the point is made again: "The planning status of the site will
need to be confirmed at the point of any application."

25. Neither the original nor the additional material submitted by PD confirms the status of this
application. However, it is in the public domain that the Leader of Hillingdon Council said, at a
public meeting in November 2011 that LBH was removing the Coal Yard site from the WLWP.
Have PD any evidence that the Coal Yard has been re instated, in the West London Waste Plan?

Other waste management developments

26. Para 24 of the GLA's comment says "The applicant should set out where it expects the material
generated through the MRF process will be used." GCERA raise this matter here for two reasons.
Firstly, we have been unable to find, in the new material submitted by PD the answer to this
question.

27. More widely, it begs the question to what extent PD have established a need for a facility of the
size they propose sited locally in the Coal Yard in Hillingdon, more widely in West London. While
PD have been developing their application, other developments in waste management have moved
on. (N 0te: Hillingdon's letter to Barton Willmore, acting for PD, in November 2009 records receipt
of PD's original 'Scoping Report' on 17/9/2009.) 

28. On 22 August 2013, LBH wrote formally to agents for F M Conway giving permission for: 
"Redevelopment of the site to provide an aggregate recycling and processing plant, asphalt plant
and storage facility, gully waste recycling plant, aggregate storage facility, and term maintenance
depot, with ancillary offices, structures and facilities, car and lorry parking, regrading, and

Page 94



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

URBAN DESIGN & CONSERVATION
The site is quite discretely located at the western end of Tavistock Road. It contains a number of
what appears to be temporary storage and industrial uses and has an unkept and untidy
appearance. It was not developed until the 20th century and comprises made up ground, as the
site level was raised by approximately 4m in the 1930s. 

The site is bounded by railway tracks to the north, west and south and a wooded area and the
Fray's River to the east. Beyond the railway, to the north and west are areas of open space
designated as Green Belt and the Garden City, West Drayton Area of Special Local Character
(ASLC) lies to the south. Whilst there are three listed buildings to the east and south east of the
site and also the West Drayton Green Conservation Area, it is considered that none of these
Historic Assets will be affected by the development. The Archaeological Report attached to the
application confirms the above and that the likelihood for archaeological finds is low. It also advises
that the impact of the new development on the archaeology of the site would be limited to within the
depth of the made up ground.

Whilst the development would include one very large new structure, together with smaller buildings
and a parking area, it would generally represent an improvement in the overall appearance to the
site. The large building would, however, be visible in some views from the Area of Special Local
Character, the housing area to the North West and also from the Green Belt. At present a
landscaping scheme is proposed for the southern boundary, which should provide additional
screening to the ASLC, but further consideration should be given to the planting and bunding on
the other site boundaries. In particular, consideration should be given to the creation of an area of
"buffer" planting outside of the new boundary walls, to allow planting to soften their appearance-
the walls are proposed to be between 4-6m in height. At present views of the site are filtered by off
site trees and vegetation that cannot be controlled as part of this application and hence their
presence cannot be guaranteed long term. 

In addition to the above, if the scheme is recommended for approval details of the colours and
finishes of the buildings should be sought, together with details of the design and materials of the
boundary walls and railings.

landscaping. {That is at) Former Powergen Site North Hyde Gardens, Hayes."

29. As these comments are being finalised, in the 20th November issue of the Uxbridge Gazette,
LBH give details of a 25 -year contract let to SITA UK by West London Waste Authority that "will
start in 2014 and provides for up to 300,000 tonnes of waste that west London's 1.6 million
residents haven't recycled to be treated each year. " This waste will be sent by mil to a new energy
recovery facility. . . " (my emphasis).

30. Lastly, the WLWA in October this year advertised in the Official ]ournal of the EU for a
Transport Service Provider to bid for work whose objective is ".. to harmonise the transport of
residual waste between the eight Household Re use and Recycling Centres (HRRC) and the
Authority's rail waste transfer stations at Transport Avenue, Brentford and Victoria Road, South
Ruislip."

31. It would be helpful if at the initial hearing or should application proceed, at a later stage, PD
were able to detail how their plans will fit in with these other developments; not least because of the
emphasis throughout their application on the use of rail.

YIEWSLEY & WEST DRAYTON TOWN CENTRE ACTION GROUP
Formal comments are awaited.

Page 95



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

No objection in principle in design and conservation terms, however, further landscaping should be
required to improve the appearance of the boundaries of the site and to safeguard views from
locally sensitive areas.

FLOODING & DRAINAGE OFFICER
The application for me is acceptable, but please add the following condition:

The application has been extensively discussed between me and the Environment Agency officer
and it has been agreed that a condition would address flood risk and surface water drainage
issues. The submission demonstrates that a suitable scheme to address our concerns is feasible. 

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision
of sustainable water management has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it follows the strategy set out in
Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water Drainage Strategy, produced by Cannon Consulting
Engineers dated August 2010, and incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the
hierarchy set out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:
i. provide details of the surface water design including all suds features and how it will be
implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from commencement of construction and during
any phased approach to building.
ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. 
iii. provide details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and
maintenance plan.
iv. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified as well
as any hazards.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water, and
will:
iii incorporate water saving measures and equipment.
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance with
these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

Reason
To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-
Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (July 2011)
and Planning Policy Statement 25. To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance
with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (July 2011), and conserve water supplies
in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (July 2011).

The condition ensures that a final scheme evolves the flood risk assessment and surface water
drainage strategy continue to meet our requirements.

EPU - CONTAMINATED LAND
I refer to your consultation of 2 July 2013 regarding the above application. There has been a
combined desk study and ground investigation of the land in 2009 as referenced above. The report
is summarised in the Environmental Statement and appended in full with the application. The coal
yard was the main use with a number of other businesses on the site, some not documented very
well. The coal yard was closed in the 1990s and since then the site has had a number of uses such
as for lorry haulage and a scrapyard. It has also been used by a train company and I recall that

Page 96



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

perhaps some train maintenance was carried out in the sidings. The past historical uses are listed
in the report. Therefore there is significant possibility of ground contamination. The report details a
borehole investigation (18 boreholes) and chemical testing of the soils and waters. The boreholes
show made ground up to 8 metres depth with groundwater standing at 5 to 6 metres. Although
some lead and PAH was identified the testing did not show elevated soil contaminants for an
industrial commercial use using the guidelines at the time in 2009. The risk to groundwater was not
thought to be a problem after some arsenic and mercury in the water were assessed. The advice of
the EA would be needed on the controlled waters assessment methodology. 

At present the report has not identified soil contamination at a level that is a concern for a
commercial use. Some levels of carbon dioxide gas were found and passive gas protection
measures (Characteristic 2) were recommended for buildings. I would advise that the site is a
significant area and further investigations are necessary to cover the whole site and target specific
areas of former contaminative uses. The risk assessment will also need to be updated using
current guidelines. 

The report would support the planning application however should the development be given a
consent a condition is required as more investigation and assessment will be necessary. I would
advise applying our standard condition.

EPU AIR QUALITY
Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of site to provide a materials recovery and
recycling facility and Civic Amenity Site, incorporating a recovery and recycling building, storage
bays, administration office/training building, external processing and storage area, two
weighbridges, reuse and extension of railway sidings, and Civic Amenity Centre, together with
associated car parking, landscaping, fencing and infrastructure.

Air Quality Comments
I object to the proposed development as the air quality assessment fails to adequately consider the
impacts from the development.

Previous comments sought confirmation and clarification on a number of air quality matters.
Importantly, they required determination of the adequacy of the transport assessment which directly
informs the air quality assessment.

The comments on the TA have now been provided.  It is therefore necessary to finalise the position
on air quality in light of the comments on the TA.

Summary
The main problem with the air quality stems from the inadequacy of the transport assessment (TA).
 Comments from the Highways Officer detail the main faults with the TA.  As there is some dispute
about the impacts on transport, it is not possible to determine the impacts on air quality.  The
primary problem is that the applicant is using data collected from a single day in 2008 to compare
the traffic generated from the new development.

The applicant claims that the traffic generation from the new development has been tailored to
reflect the 2008 survey count, and is conveniently almost identical with only three vehicle
movements different.

This allows the applicant to present a case that the proposed development has a negligible impact.
The Council is not in position to agree with this assessment and therefore not able to judge how the
traffic movements, particular regarding HGVs, are different before and after the development.
Notwithstanding the problems with the TA, there are some inherent problems with the Air Quality
Assessment.

Page 97



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Of particular concern is the modelled baseline data that shows Yiewsley High Street to be
significantly failing EU Emissions Objectives.  The air quality in this area as a damaging impact with
respect to health and must be treated as highly sensitive.

The applicant then presents a case that regardless of whether the development happens or not,
there will be nearly a 15% improvement in air quality from 2011 to 2015.  The Council queries the
starting baseline as being very high and the reduction in 4 years as being highly questionable.
Furthermore, the application was submitted in 2013, half way through their suggested period of
significant reduction.  The data should therefore have been updated with a new projection set for
the future years. 

With respect to the above, it is not possible to make an informed decision on the air quality impacts
from the proposed development.  Given the significantly poor air quality presented by the applicant
in this area, it is necessary to determine the impacts prior to determination.  If the improvements in
air quality are not as they have been presented, then the development may need to be altered to
be viable.

EPU - NOISE
No objection subject to following conditions:

The development shall not begin until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be made for the
control of noise and vibration emanating from all internal and all external operations on the site
including but not exclusive to rail and road deliveries, loading, unloading , concrete crushing, timber
shredding and timber crushing has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.  The scheme shall include such combination of physical, administrative measures, noise
limits, and other measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the
scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan part 2.

he rating level of the noise emitted from the site shall be at least 10dB below the existing
background noise level.  The noise levels shall be determined at 1m from the boundary of the
nearest noise sensitive premises.  The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance to the latest British Standard 4142, 'Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed
residential and industrial areas'. With all machinery operating together. 

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan 2. 

TREES & LANDSCAPING
The site is occupied by a railway yard, formerly used as a coal depot to the west of Yiewsley Town
Centre.  It is bounded to the south by the Great Western Main Line Railway with a residential area
(Area of Special Local Character) extending southwards from the toe of the railway embankment.
The northern boundary is defined by the wooded slopes of the River Frays on the north east
boundary and the West Drayton to Colnebrook Railway Line which loops around to the west before
heading south. The whole site is on elevated land which overlooks the Green Belt and a Nature
Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance to the north and north-west.
Due to the practical and operational use of the site, there are few trees within the site and or
particular merit.  None of the trees on, or close to, the site are affected by Tree Preservation Order
or Conservation Area designation. 
That said, the largely self-set trees and woodland along the site edges, both on-site and off, play an

Page 98



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

important role in screening / softening views into the site. 

The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings and redevelop the site to provide a materials
recovery and recycling facility and Civic Amenity Site, incorporating a recovery and recycling
building, storage bays, administration office/training building, external processing and storage area,
two weighbridges, reuse and extension of railway sidings, and Civic Amenity Centre, together with
associated car parking, landscaping, fencing and infrastructure.

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Existing trees
a) The tree survey by Forbes-Laird, ref.CC31-1035, dated October 2011, is almost two years old
and was carried  out  in accordance with BS5837:2005 - which has since been superseded by the
BS5837:2012.  However, due to the nature of the site, many of the trees have been assessed in
groups, or as boundary woodland and the comments are still relevant - albeit the trees may require
a further review.
b) In addition to the tree survey and accompanying plans, 12No. photographs have been submitted
which illustrate the character of the site and its vegetation. An accompanying A4 sheet describes
the views - although the description and photos are not quite correlated (for example, photo No. 8
is described by item 10). The tree survey notes the presence of Japanese Knotweed - a non-native
very invasive species which will require a programme of eradication using a methodology approved
by the Environment Agency. (See T1001 and WG1)
c) The survey identifies and assesses 16No. individual specimens, of which there are no 'A' grade
trees, 10No. 'B' grade, 4No.'C' grade and 2No.'R' (T1010 and T1014) which 'should be removed in
the interests of sound arboricultural management'. 
d) There are 18No. tree groups, with no grade 'A' groups, 2No. grade 'B', 12No. grade 'C' and 2No.
grade 'R' (TG1007 and TG1008) - Leyland cypress hedge in poor condition.
e) There is also one woodland group WG1, lining the River Frays corridor in the north-east corner
of the site.  This is valuable for its landscape and visual  contribution. However, it is self-set
secondary woodland in poor condition.  The area contains past workings and dumped metal debris
is present. It is also affected by Japanese Knotweed. - The report recommends that this area
should be cleared of Knotweed and either left to develop naturally (excluding public access) or,
more radically, it could be clear felled and re-planted / positively managed.

Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)
a) An LVIA has been carried out on 'Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment'
Second Edition (Spon Press 2002).  This guidance has recently been superseded by the Third
Edition, published in March 2013. The Landscape Institute advises that it should be acceptable for
LVIA's which commenced prior to the release of the revised guidelines to be based on the Second
Edition.
b) The Methodology is described and includes baseline studies, the identification and assessment
of landscape and visual effects, sensitivity of receptors and magnitude of change, the significance
of effects, effects during construction and mitigation.
c) A summary of the Landscape and Visual likely significant effects of the proposed development is
set out in Table 8.3, in Appendix 8.3. The Visual Effects Table includes a brief description of
proposed mitigation measures and summarises the residual effects (Year 15, with mitigation) in a
range between 'moderate adverse / minor adverse'(at the worst case) to 'slight beneficial / minor
beneficial' (at best).
d) At 8.184 the visual effects of the development from sensitive receptors are specified as, and
limited to, specific residential properties and the subsequent effect on residential amenity.
e) At 8.185 the report conclude that, given the context of the site, no significant landscape effects
are predicted.

Page 99



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Landscape Proposals
a) The landscape proposals are best indicated on Barton Wilmore's Landscape Strategy Plan, ref.
L6.
B) A range of boundary treatments is proposed including, 4 metre high acoustic fencing, 4 metre
high concrete 'push' walls, 4 metre high concrete 'push' walls with 2 metre high acoustic fence on
top, 6metre high acoustic fence and 3 metre high metal palisade fencing. Details of the materials
and appearance of these boundary features should be carefully considered - including the
specification  of green / living walls.
c) The legend on plan lists the planting typologies to be used on the site.  This primarily addresses
the landscape buffer along the southern boundary and the smaller scale buildings and car parks
around the eastern site entrance. The legend indicates a mix selected specimen trees, native
woodland and under-storey planting, structural shrub planting, hedges and ornamental shrub
planting.
d) Most of the boundaries appear to rely on the existing off-site trees and woodland for screening
purposes, with the new boundary treatment defined by the fences and walls described above. 
e) The Landscape Strategy Plan  includes an indicative schedule of plants which includes Ash
Fraxinus excelsior. Due to the outbreak of Ash Dieback Chalara fraxinea an alternative species is
required, as Ash should not be planted. 

Recommendations

i) Prior to development a management plan to eradicate the Japanese Knotweed should be
prepared and put into action, in accordance with a methodology approved by the Environment
Agency.
ii) The colour and materials used for the cladding of the building, the roof and all ancillary structures
should be selected to be as recessive as possible, in order  to reduce the apparent bulk and visual
impact on the landscape.
iii) The selection of plants for inclusion in this scheme should be reviewed and amended in the
interests of plant health and bio-security.  In particular a Ash should not be planted. A suitable
substitute is required.
iv) A belt of tree planting or native woodland should extend around the west boundary to provide
some screening from the Green Belt.
v) If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the area.

No objection subject to the above considerations and conditions COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5 and 6),
COM26.

S106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS OFFICER
I have taken a look at the proposal and consider the following to be the likely heads of terms
dependent upon the requests of other specialist officers.

1. Highways: either a s278 and or s38 agreement may be required to address any and all highways
matters arising from the proposal.
2. Environmental mitigation: depending upon further comments received there may be the need for
environmental mitigation measures in the form of a financial contribution or delivery of measures
this will be dependent upon comments received form EPU, sustainability and ecology. 
3. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the location of the proposal it is likely that EPU will
seek a contribution towards air quality mitigation. Please liaise with EPU in the first instance.
4. In the event that a s106 agreement is entered into then a financial contribution equal to 5% of
the total cash contributions should be secured to enable the management and monitoring of the
resulting agreement.

Page 100



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ACCESS OFFICER
The proposal seeks to develop a new state-of-the-art Materials Recovery and Recycling Facility.
The Design & Access Statement states that 2 accessible parking bays would be provided or 5% of
total capacity, with an additional space provided for every disabled employee.  Whilst the proposed
number of parking spaces may fall below the 10% requirement prescribed by Local Plan policy
AM15, the provision is considered to be acceptable for the development as proposed. 

However, the following informative should be attached to any grant of planning permission:

1. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a disability. As
part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their
building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative
ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address barriers
that impede disabled people.

WASTE SERVICES
As the application is for a complex waste management facility I would defer to the opinion of my
colleagues in the Planning Section, and in addition recommendations from the Environment Agency
with regard to the overall design and compliance with relevant environmental legislation and
standards.

I note that the submission incorporates a Civic Amenity site. At present the Council has an
arrangement with the site owners, Powerday, to have a temporary Civic Amenity site operation on
the last weekend of every month. The Council pay an agreed amount for this. Although a
permanent Civic Amenity site would be to the advantage of residents in the South of the Borough a
clear basis for the costs and funding of the site would have to be confirmed, before proceeding with
such a venture.

LEAD WEST LONDON WASTE PLAN OFFICER 
The Regulation 18 consultation on the draft West London Waste Plan took place in February 2011.

Following this consultation work has been ongoing on the plan and has reached an advanced
stage. Cabinet authority is being sought in January 2014 to undertake the Regulation 19
consultation on the submission document.

The Old Coal Depot Site on Tavistock Road is not identified within the most recent version of the
plan as being required or safeguarded for waste purposes.

The plan identified that there is sufficient capacity to meet all waste stream management needs up
to 2013, without waste facilities being provided on this site.

SUSTIANABILITY OFFICER 

Proposal
Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of site to provide a materials recovery and
recycling facility and Civic Amenity Site, incorporating a recovery and recycling building, storage
bays, administration office/training building, external processing and storage area, two
weighbridges, reuse and extension of railway sidings, and Civic Amenity Centre, together with
associated car parking, landscaping, fencing and infrastructure.

I have no objections to the proposed development.  However, there are a number of deficiencies
within the proposals which need to be addressed through the following:

Page 101



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

S106 Contribution for Ecology
Ecology Enhancement condition
Living walls and roof condition
Sustainable water consumption condition
Detailed Energy comments 

Ecology Comments

The proposed development is adjacent to a Metropolitan Site of Importance for Nature
Conservation.  On the site, there are pockets of natural areas that would support the wider SINC.
The ecology chapter within the ES reports that approximately 0.25 hectare of woodland and
vegetation will be lost.

I believe the loss to be close to 0.4hectares.  Regardless of this, there are a number of mature
trees as well as ground scrub to be removed to make way for the development.  I do not agree that
these areas are of low ecological value simply because they do not hold protected species.

I also do not consider that the onsite landscaping adequately considers the loss of trees and
vegetation nor their relationship with the wider SINC.  In particular, the loss of vegetation near to
the Frays River is a concern.  The lost areas need to be considered as part of the mitigation
strategy.  Unfortunately, there is insufficient room on the site to fully integrate a sufficient amount of
mitigation.  The proposed offer by the applicant is therefore inadequate.  The only solution to
mitigate for the loss of the onsite vegetation and wildlife areas is to provide an offsite contribution
as well as providing the minimal onsite measures.

As a consequence a sum of £30,000 needs to be paid to the Council to help manage and enhance
existing areas of Little Britain SINC.

In addition the following condition is necessary:

CONDITION
Prior to commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly detail measures
to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the landscaping and the fabric of the buildings.
 These shall include bat and bird boxes, habitat walls and a range of plants to encourage and
support wildlife.  The scheme shall aim to include an area of land dedicated to wildlife habitat.  The
development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with Policy EM7
(Local Plan) and Policy 7.28 of the London Plan.

Living Walls and Roofs
The development is within an air quality management area and needs to improve opportunities for
wildlife.  Living walls and roofs can improve air quality, operate as carbon sinks and also be of
importance for nature conservation.  The following condition is therefore necessary:

Condition
Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living walls, roofs and
screens shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme
shall provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and methods of
maintenance where necessary.  The development should proceed in accordance with the approved
plans.

Page 102



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Reason
To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with Policy 5.11 of
the London Plan and Policy EM1 of the Local Plan.

Water Efficiency
The Council is in a severely water stressed area and is therefore mindful of the additional burdens
placed on water consumption by new development.  Hotels require significant consumption of water
and therefore will place further burden on the diminishing water supplies.   The following condition
is therefore necessary:

Condition
Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for the reduction in water use including the
harvesting and recycling of grey water and rain water, shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly set out how collected water will be reused in
areas where potable water is not required, i.e. toilet flushing, vehicle washing and irrigation of
landscaped areas.  The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason
To ensure the development reduces the pressure on potable water in accordance with Policy 5.15
of the London Plan.

Energy Comments 

The energy solution focuses on a large photovoltaic array and predominantly reduces the
unregulated energy demand.  I have no objections to this approach and support the principle.
However, at 1910m2 is an exceptionally large area for a building and is costly.

The development must proceed in accordance with the submitted 'Sustainable Energy Statement,
Silcock Dawson and Partners, V1.2, April 2013'

Any changes to these proposals will require an amendment to the application.

S106 OFFICER
I have reviewed the proposal and consider the following to be the likely heads of terms dependent
upon the requests of other specialist officers. 

1. Highways: either a s278 and or s38 agreement may be required to address any and all highways
matters arising from the proposal. 
2. Environmental mitigation: depending upon further comments received there may be the need for
environmental mitigation measures in the form of a financial contribution or delivery of measures
this will be dependent upon comments received form EPU, sustainability and ecology. 
3. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the location of the proposal it is likely that EPU will
seek a contribution towards air quality mitigation. Please liaise with EPU in the first instance. 
4. In the event that a s106 agreement is entered into then a financial contribution equal to 5% of
the total cash contributions should be secured to enable the management and monitoring of the
resulting agreement. I trust the above assists in the first instance.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER
The site is located to the south of Tavistock Road in Hayes, close to the junction of Tavistock Road
and High Street, which is a priority controlled junction. There is a short right turn lane on the High
Street opposite the Tavistock Road approach. A mini-roundabout at the junction of High Street and
Station Approach is located in close proximity to the north. 

South of the High Street and Station Approach junction, the road slopes down to gain sufficient

Page 103



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

head room under the existing railway bridge resulting in a considerable level difference. 

The main pedestrian crossings at/in proximity to the aforementioned road junctions are; zebra
crossing on Tavistock Road between its junction with the site access and High Street, signalised
puffin crossing on High Street north of its junction with Station Approach, and dropped kerbs across
Station Approach immediately east of its junction with the High Street. 

The site largely falls within a low PTAL rating of 1, however West Drayton rail station is located
nearby and there are also 5 bus services nearby. The station forms part of London's Crossrail
route, which is planned to be operational in 2018. The station will therefore in future benefit from
improved public transport, reduced travel times and improved rail connections with access to
central and east London. 

The site was historical used as a coal concentration yard and depot, which is reported to be ended
in the 1980's. The baseline traffic generation of the site is based on surveys undertaken in 2008,
which captured traffic generation of the unauthorised uses at the time. The TA reports that the site
is currently occupied by multiple businesses falling within light industrial, manufacturing and
distribution/storage uses. It is understood that there are also other types of unauthorised uses
operating from the site. An adjacent concrete crushing site is understood to be the only authorised
use.

The development will utilise the existing vehicle access, located south of Tavistock Road, some
35m west of the Tavistock Road and High Street junction. The access road is at an acute angle.
Vehicles departing the site have poor visibility of vehicles approaching from the west on Tavistock
Road and vice versa. Also, sightlines to the west of the access point are difficult. The access road
averages approximately 6.5m in width and has a level crossing facility around 150m into the site.  A
risk assessment should be provided for the level crossing. 

There are inadequate pedestrian facilities to cross the site access. To the west there is a narrow
strip of footway and to the east there is no footway in front of the commercial units. Moreover, the
access road does not have a delineated provision for pedestrians to enable safe movements. 

Considering the level of traffic generation, including a significant increase in public use and a
relatively high proportion of lorry movements, safe access arrangements should be provided to limit
the risks posed to other road users and the rail operations. 

Baseline Scenario

The Transport Assessment (TA) submitted with the application is outdated, being prepared in 2011
and is based on outdated surveys and data. 

The key assessment to identify the existing baseline traffic generation is based on a survey
undertaken on behalf of Eurostorage on Monday 17th March 2008, for a historic submission on Air
Quality matters. The survey was a 12 hours Manual Turning Count between 7am and 7pm at the
junction arrangement of High Street/Station Road/Tavistock Road/Access Road (referred to in the
survey as a 'Slip Road'). 

The survey was carried out only on one day (Monday) and does not capture the daily/weekly
variations in traffic flows during the relevant peak periods.  Furthermore, the survey was not
undertaken in a neutral month as defined by the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges and
referenced in the Communities and Local Government and Department for Transport (2007)
Guidance on Transport Assessments. It is likely therefore that the traffic flows collected during
March 2008 could be affected by seasonal variations, which can lead to non-representative traffic

Page 104



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

flows.

In order to assess a hypothetical scenario of future traffic generation, a sensitivity test is
undertaken on the assumption that of the identified total site area of 5.57 hectares, 40% of the land
is developable land, which equates to an average GFA of approximately 22,280 sq.m. The TRICS
database is interrogated to estimate vehicular trips based on trip rates from the chosen sample
sites for B2 Industrial, B8 Warehousing, and B8 Parcel Distribution. These uses are chosen on the
basis that the site is allocated as an employment site within the LB Hillingdon's (LBH) Local Plan
that could contain industrial and storage uses. It should be noted that the LBH's site allocation
identifies the type(s) of uses to be considered acceptable in principle for development purposes
within the allocated sites; however, any development would still be required to meet detailed
requirements including highway and transport matters. Traffic generation therefore can only be
confidently estimated when a scheme is devised. 

For B2 General Industrial use, 7 sample sites are chosen from the TRICS database to estimate
vehicle traffic generation. The TA does not provide details of the chosen sample sites and their
comparison with the application site to justify selection. All of the chosen sites are out of London,
where Freight/Delivery/Servicing operations are generally not entirely comparable with the
operations at the site in subject. The TA does not provide a rank order scatterplot, which is needed
to determine a reasonable level of reliability for the estimated trip rates.  Using TRICS/TRAVL it is
possible to produce results in minutes, without necessarily giving sufficient thought to the filter
options at the start and the appropriateness of the comparison that has been made. The submitted
estimates do not meet the applicant's responsibility to ensure that the reasons behind all selections
made are explained in full throughout the report and that the procedures followed in producing the
trip rates supplied are sound and do not incorporate any pre-determined preferred trip rate levels. 

For Parcel and Distribution use, 4 sample sites are chosen from the TRICS database, of which, 2
are located within Greater London and the other 2 are located in East Anglia and the North. To
estimate vehicular trips for the Warehousing use, 10 sample sites are chosen, of which, 2 are
located in Greater London and the others are located in South East, South West, East Midlands,
West Midlands, North West, and the North. There is insufficient information to validate the
comparability of the sample sites and the validity of surveys, which leads to the risk of using
unreliable data for estimating trip generation. The information required is the same as commented
above under the B2 General Industrial use. 

The future estimated baseline scenarios are created by combining various surveys, applying traffic
growth factors, and adding committed development flows. There are a number of concerns on the
accuracy and robustness of the baseline scenarios as discussed in the following comments. 

The baseline traffic is estimated by combining various surveys from difference years, months, and
traffic links and database listed below: 

- Traffic surveys and flows from a Tesco Planning Application in 2007 (60929/APP/2007/3744)
extracted to estimate baseline for the junction of A408 Falling Lane/A408 High Street/Trout
Road/Yiewsley High Street. Surveys for the Tesco development were originally undertaken in 2004;
- Traffic flows on A408 Stockley Road, Yiewsley High Street and Horton Road are obtained from
the survey undertaken in March 2010; 
- Traffic flows on M4 are obtained from TRADS database; and 
- Traffic flows at the site access/Tavistock Road/High Street/Station are obtained from a survey
undertaken in March 2008 for air quality matters. 

Information from the above sources is then combined to create links of traffic flow on the highway
network. TEMPRO growth factors are applied to try to establish count data for 2011, which is
assessed as a baseline year. The calculated growth factors to be applied to surveys from different

Page 105



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

years are not provided. It is important that the calculated growth factors are submitted and that
correct allowance is made for the growth in traffic.

There is no information submitted to verify and validate an up-to-date baseline situation, including
traffic flows, turning movements, direction of travel, traffic growth factors, vehicle proportions by
type, and the traffic peak periods. The accuracy and validity of the baseline scenarios created by
combining various surveys and growth factors is very uncertain leading to a high risk of the
assessment being flawed.

The AM and PM peaks of 8-9am and 5-6pm are assessed on the assumption that these coincide
with the network peak periods. Supporting information at 15 minutes intervals should be provided to
validate that the chosen peak times coincide with the highway network peak periods. 

A comprehensive set of traffic counts should be undertaken to provide a true baseline of the
existing traffic flows and turning movements within the study area, which together with up-to-date
growth factors will enable an accurate and robust assessment. The traffic counts and modeling will
identify the existing critical links and junctions on the highway network by way of calibrated tests. 

Two major developments were granted planning permission in 2013, namely Padcroft Works, and
Former Bentley's. These committed developments are not considered in the TA.
It is noted that 2011 is assessed as the baseline year, because the TA was prepared back in Aug
2011 and not updated for the application in subject. It is crucial that an up-to-date TA is prepared to
assess up-to-date and accurate baseline and future scenarios. The assessment should include an
up-to-date assessment of baseline, opening, and 5 years after the date of registration of the
planning application. Due to the uncertainty in accuracy of estimating 10 or more years of traffic
growth, a 10 years assessment can only be considered for indicative purposes. 

The TA includes an obsolete drawing of the Yiewsley/West Drayton town centre improvement
scheme at Appendix-J. The scheme was drafted in 2010 as part of the town centre improvement
project and was later amended as a result of detailed considerations. 

Accident Analysis

The assessment of the Personal lnjury Accidents is also out-of-date. It is imperative to undertake
an up-to-date analysis of the Personal lnjury Accidents in the surrounding area, to establish any
common causes of accidents and related road safety issues.

Proposed Development 

The proposed development will deal with a range of different types of commercial and domestic
waste. The operations will involve a materials recovery facility (MRF), and processing, recycling
and storage. The proposals also include a Civic Amenity site (CAS). 

The proposals will generate substantial volumes of traffic including a significant increase in public
use. A number of concerns are raised in connection with the safety of the access arrangements
and the absence of risk assessment for the level crossing as discussed above under the heading of
introduction, which should be addressed by the developer. 

The TA suggests that the development will have an imported waste capacity of 950,000 tonnes per
annum. The resultant tonnage to be exported per year will be lower, mainly due to reasons relating
to processing and storage. As part of the development, it is proposed to refurbish and extend one
of the rail sidings for part of the proposed operations. The TA suggests that when the development
operations are established, up to 350,000 tonnes of imported material could be transported to and
from the site by means of rail. 

Page 106



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Due to the uncertainty associated with the rail mode for transporting materials, for robustness, a
sensitivity assessment should be undertaken based on a lower or no use of rail. 

A Delivery Management Plan (DMP) is proposed to be prepared and implemented to manage the
timing and routing of delivery vehicles, which is welcomed. However it is considered that from a
practical perspective, strict compliance with delivery arrangements requiring high level of
management intervention cannot be relied upon for the life of the development.   Notwithstanding
the DMP, it is crucial to undertake an accurate and robust assessment of the traffic impacts. 

Two HGV routes are identified to/from site, one via Horton Road and the other via Falling Lane.
The routes have not been thoroughly assessed in the TA, which is needed to demonstrate
suitability for the proposed use. Furthermore, swept paths are provided for only part of the
proposed routes, showing turning manoeuvres at the point of access, High Street/Tavistock Road
junction, and High Street/Horton Road junction. 

Turning manoeuvres at the junction of Tavistock Road/High Street/Station Approach are analysed
through swept paths for a 16.5m long articulated vehicle and a 11m long rigid vehicle. There are a
number of deficiencies in the swept paths such as the absence of error margins, vehicle positioned
too close to the kerbline, vehicles in path of other traffic, and impracticality of driving over land
immediately east of the site access that is usually occupied by parked vehicles. Notwithstanding the
deficiencies, the swept paths show that the turning movement from the south into Tavistock Road
is unsatisfactory due to encroaching into the lane of oncoming traffic in Tavistock Road. Swept
paths for turning into Travistock Road from the north are not drawn properly. The manoeuvre
shown can only be performed if there is no northbound traffic. Vehicles should be shown to fully
enter the right turning lane and positioned suitably before manoeuvring in the gap in the opposing
stream of traffic. 

Turning movements at the junction of High Street and Horton Road are analysed through swept
paths. Again, there are a number of deficiencies in the swept paths relating to the absence of error
margins, vehicles positioned too close to the kerb line, vehicles in path of the opposing traffic, and
failure to take account of the up-to-date town centre improvements scheme. 

It is proposed to control the movements of larger vehicles to/from the north, which will form part of
the DMP. The preferred HGV route to A408 is proposed to be via Horton Road, which is identified
as being a route through a partially industrialised area with a few frontage residential properties
along its length. Whilst it is accepted that lorry movements associated with the proposed
development will be better managed than the existing/historic uses, hence reducing the likelihood
of HGVs travelling to/from south at the junction of High Street and Travistock Road, it is important
the residual traffic impacts and the proposed lorry routes are assessed in detail. 

Estimated Development Vehicle Trip Generation and Impact

MRF: Vehicle profile of the Old Oak Sidings site in Willesden is used to estimate traffic generation
for the proposed MRF. Whilst, there is no objection in principle on this approach, however there a
number of concerns regarding lack and transparency of information. The TA does not provide
details of how the traffic data was developed/surveyed and the occupancy level of the site when
surveyed.

The vehicle profile at the Old Oak Sidings is based on vehicle profile from October 2009 and March
2010 provided by Powerday, where March is not a neutral month. The information shows a monthly
average of 37,926 tonnes of imported waste and 18,027 tonnes of exported waste, which equates
to 455,112 tonnes and 216,324 tonnes per annum of imported and exported waste respectively.
Whereas in comparison, the development proposes 950,000 tonnes of imported waste, which is
considerably higher than the Old Oak site. 

Page 107



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Notwithstanding the above issues, the numbers of waste related two-way vehicle movements at the
Old Oak Sidings are reported to be 13,308 monthly and 493 daily. The reported vehicle movements
demonstrate that MRF of a much smaller size than the one proposed, generates high volumes of
traffic. A number of assumptions and adjustments are made in the TA to extrapolate the Old Oak
vehicle data to try to fit in with the business case assumptions for Tavistock Road, which questions
the validity and compatibility of the data used. The assumptions are based on strict controls over
delivery/servicing vehicles, requiring a high level of management intervention, which cannot be
relied upon for the life of the development.

Traffic generation is estimated on the basis that the development will import 600,000t per annum by
road and 350,000t by rail. No details are provided to show how much (if any) materials were
transported by rail at the Old Oak site. As commented above, due to the uncertainty associated
with the rail mode for transporting materials, for robustness, a sensitivity assessment should be
undertaken based on a lower or no use of rail. 

The TA includes an estimation of the development HGV trip generation on the basis of estimated
trip generation for the MRF site at Hannah Close in Neasden, London. 

Vehicle trip generation for the CAS is based on sample sites from the TRICS database with number
of bays being the criterion used for estimating trip rates. TRICS output report is not provided, which
is required to evaluate and verify estimated trip generation for the proposed CAS. 

A first principles approach is adopted to estimate vehicle trip generation for staff. The anticipated
times of trip generation are based on the expectation that the 24 hours operation of the site will be
separated into 3 shifts of 06:00-14:00, 14:00-22:00, and 22:00-06:00. It is noted that these are
expected and not the proposed/actual shift patterns and therefore the actual trip generation times
could be different. The shift patterns should be clarified and covered by way of a suitable planning
condition/S106 agreement. 

The TA estimates that there will be approximately 60 numbers of staff. All the employees are
assumed to arrive or depart within 1 hour of the shift stating or finishing. 67% of the 60 estimated
employees are expected to travel by car, resulting in 40 car trips within 1 hour of the shift starting or
finishing. This equates to 240 two-way car trips associated with staff. Subject to the shift patterns
being confirmed, the estimated staff trip generation is considered acceptable. 

Vehicle trip generation for the office element is based on sample sites from the TRICS database
with GFA being the criterion used for estimating trip rates. There a number of issues concerning
the comparability and validation of the selected sample sites and the associated data. Of the five
chosen sample sites, except the one located in Merton, all of the others are located within Inner
London, where travelling is known to be less car dependent. The selection criteria used for
choosing sample sites has not been justified, however it is noted that it includes larger office sites
surveyed between Jan 2002 and Oct 2009. 

A comparative vehicle trip generation is provided comparing the development's trip generation with
the observed unauthorised uses on site and a hypothetical development scenario under B2 use. In
light of the issues discussed in connection with the baseline and development trip generation, the
results of the comparative assessment cannot be relied upon. 

The proposed scenarios are derived through applying the estimated vehicle trip generation to the
base model and replacing the trip generation and directional splits of traffic flow to/from the site
with the estimated traffic for the proposed development. Considering that there are fundamental
issues with the base models and the estimated vehicle trip generation, the proposed scenarios
cannot be confirmed to be accurate and robust. 

Page 108



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The NPPF sets out the Core Planning Principles which should underpin both plan-making
and decision-taking. This includes proactively driving and supporting sustainable
economic development and supporting the transition to a low carbon future, and
encouraging the reuse of existing resources. The Government also encourages the
effective use of land by utilising brownfield land. 

With regard to delivering sustainable development, paragraph 21 states that investment in
business should not be over burdened by the combined requirements of planning policy
expectations. In addition, paragraph 22 goes on to state that planning policies should
avoid the long-term protection of sites allocated for employment use where there is no
reasonable prospect of a site being used for that purpose.

The development site is opened for CAS use on a monthly basis. Observations were carried on a
CAS use weekend on 30th and 31st Oct 2010 to record the distribution of traffic arriving and
departing the site. A summary of survey results is shown at tables 7.1 and 7.2 of the TA, however
the actual survey data has not been provided. The observed traffic distribution is applied to
distribute estimated traffic at the site access, which is then amalgamated with traffic distributed on
the wider network based on other surveys. Notwithstanding the absence of information on the CAS
sample sites for trip generation purposes and the absence of actual survey date to consider validity
of the information reported in the TA, there is a high risk of inaccuracies by combining different sets
of data. It should be noted that trip generation from the TRICS database is spread between 7am
and 9pm, whereas the opening hours of the proposed CAS are not known. If the CAS will operate
on reduced hours, it is likely to give rise to higher vehicle trips within individual time periods.

In light of the concerns raised on the baseline and estimated future scenarios, the results of the
traffic models cannot be relied upon. Furthermore, the models have not been validated and the
diagrams of geometric measurements used to develop the models have not been provided. This
information is crucial to assess the accuracy and validity of the models, which will inform the
requirement and impact of any associated mitigation measures. 

A weekend assessment has not been undertaken, which is required to evaluate the proposed CAS.

Conclusion

In light of the issues discussed above, the application is not considered to be supported by an
accurate, robust and comprehensive TA, which is required to demonstrate the highways and
transport aspects of development are acceptable. 

Comments on Additional Information

Additional highways and transport information was received on 8th November 2013. It is noted that
the addendum to the TA is dated February 2012, which is again out-of-date. The information has
been reviewed, however it does not address the main concerns raised in the comments above. 

In addition to the issues raised on traffic generation and impact, there are still concerns on
inadequate assessment of the proposed lorry routes and inaccuracies of swept paths. The
additional swept paths show situations detrimental to highway safety and capable of interfering with
the flow of traffic. The road safety concerns raised in relation to the site's access also remain. 

It should be noted that reference is made to discussions with LBH on HGV routing via Horton Road.
However, the Council's comments are reported out of context and are therefore somewhat
misleading.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 109



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Chapter 4 on promoting sustainable transport states that encouragement should be given
to solutions which support reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and reduce
congestion. Paragraph 32 sets out that development should only be prevented or refused
on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.

National Guidance relating to waste planning is contained within Planning Policy
Statement 10. This indicates that applications for waste sites which are not allocated in
the development plan for waste facilities should be considered favourably when consistent
with National Planning Policy and the core strategy (development plan). 

Policy 5.17 of the London Plan states that The Mayor supports the need to increase waste
processing capacity in London. He will work with London boroughs and waste authorities
to identify opportunities for introducing new waste capacity, including strategically
important sites for waste management and treatment, and resource recovery
parks/consolidation centres, where recycling, recovery and manufacturing activities can
co-locate.

B. Proposals for waste management should be evaluated against the following criteria:

a) locational suitability (see LDF preparation paragraphs F and G below)
b) proximity to the source of waste
c) the nature of activity proposed and its scale
d) a positive carbon outcome of waste treatment methods and technologies (including the
transportation of waste, recyclates and waste derived products) resulting in greenhouse
gas savings, particularly from treatment of waste derived products to generate energy 
e) the environmental impact on surrounding areas, particularly noise emissions, odour and
visual impact and impact on water resources
f) the full transport and environmental impact of all collection, transfer and disposal
movements and, in particular, the scope to maximise the use of rail and water transport
using the Blue Ribbon Network.
The following will be supported:
g) developments that include a range of complementary waste facilities on a single site
h) developments for manufacturing related to recycled waste
i) developments that contribute towards renewable energy generation, in particular the
use of technologies that produce a renewable gas
j) developments for producing renewable energy from organic/biomass waste.

C. Wherever possible, opportunities should be taken to provide combined heat and power
and combined cooling heat and power. 

D. Developments adjacent to waste management sites should be designed to minimise
the potential for disturbance and conflicts of use. 

E. Suitable waste and recycling storage facilities are required in all new developments.

In terms of point 5.17 B (f) the Council's Highway Officer has raised significant concern
that the applicants assessment of highway impacts is seriously flawed. There is not
evidence to show that the proposed development would not result in unacceptable
impacts on the local road network.

In terms of Local Planning Policy the site is located within a designated Industrial and
Business Area (IBA) and Policies LE1 and LE2 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (September 2007) seek to retain land within these areas for B1, B2, B8 and

Page 110



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

appropriate sui generis uses.

Policy LE1 of the Local Plan part 2 states that: 

All proposals for industry (B2), warehousing (B8) and business (B1) development will be
assessed by taking into account other policies of this plan and, where appropriate, the
following considerations:- 

(i) whether the proposal conflicts with the local planning Authority's overall objective of
securing the development or regeneration of an area; 
(ii) outstanding unimplemented planning permissions, development under construction
and vacant floorspace elsewhere in the plan area; 
(iii) the availability and capacity of public transport facilities to serve proposals for
employment intensive uses; 
(iv) the ability of the road system, as existing or taking due Account of committed
improvements, to accommodate at normal peak hours the additional traffic generated; 
(v) whether any proposal for major development will create  unacceptable demands for
other land to be developed (for  example, to provide for new housing or community
facilities);
(vi) the provision for access by people with disabilities and other accessible facilities both
to and within buildings.

In terms of point iv (ability of road network to accommodate additional traffic at peak
hours) it is considered that for the reasons set out in part 7.10 of this report the proposed
development would have unacceptable and severe impact on the local road network
particularly at peak times which already see high levels of congestion in the West Drayton
and Yiewsley area particularly Yiewsley High Street. 

Policy LE2 requires that Industrial and Business Areas (IBAs ) are designated for
Business, Industrial and Warehousing purposes (Use Classes B1 - B8) and for Sui
Generis uses appropriate in the an Industrial Area. The proposed uses fall within Use
Classes B2 - B8. As such the proposals are considered to comply with Policy LE2. 

Policy EM11 of Local Plan Part 1 (Strategic Policies) states that The Council will aim to
reduce the amount of waste produced in the Borough and work in conjunction with its
partners in West London, to identify and allocate suitable new sites for waste
management facilities within the West London Waste Plan to provide sufficient capacity to
meet the apportionment requirements of the London Plan which is 382 thousand tonnes
per annum for Hillingdon by 2026. 

While certain types of waste management facility may be considered appropriate within an
IBA, it should be noted that the London Boroughs of Brent, Ealing, Harrow, Hillingdon,
Hounslow and Richmond upon Thames have prepared the draft West London Waste Plan
(WLWP).

The Regulation 18 consultation on the draft West London Waste Plan took place in
February 2011. Following this consultation work has been ongoing on the plan and has
reached an advanced stage. Cabinet authority is being sought in January 2014 to
undertake the Regulation 19 consultation on the submission document.

The Old Coal Depot Site on Tavistock Road is not identified within the most recent version
of the plan as being required or safeguarded for waste purposes. The plan identified that
there is sufficient capacity to meet all waste stream management needs up to 2013,

Page 111



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

without waste facilities being provided on this site. However, this document is not yet
adopted, and therefore this document carries less weight than PPS10, which indicates
that there would not be an in-principle objection subject to compliance with the
development plan.

The assessment of the proposal against the development plan is set out in the
subsequent sections of this report.

This is not applicable to this type of development.

The proposal site does not lie in an archaeological priority area, Conservation Area, does
not contain any listed buildings and is not in an area of special local character.

Both NERL and Heathrow Airport Safeguarding have been consulted and raised no
Safegauarding concerns. No airport safeguarding issues arise from the proposed
development.

Policy BE36 states that areas sensitive to high buildings or structures will only be
permitted if they will not mar the skyline, intrude unacceptably into important local views or
interfere with aviation or navigation. The site is adjacent to areas to the east, west and
north which are considered sensitive to high buildings. Policy OL5 states that development
adjacent or conspicuous from the Green Belt will only be permitted if it would not injure the
visual amenities of the Green Belt, by reason of siting, materials, design, traffic or
activities generated. This is reflected in the NPPF, which advises that the visual amenities
of the Green Belt should not be injured by development conspicuous from it of a kind that
might be visually detrimental by reason of siting, materials or design. 

The site is not located within the green belt. However the majority of the northern
boundary is bound by a railway line which is a buffer to Green Belt Land immediately to
the north of the site. Land to the north of the site is Green Belt.  Green Belt is
predominantly open land around built-up areas which has the strategic role of defining the
edge of London, limiting urban sprawl, preventing neighbouring towns from merging into
one another, safeguarding open countryside from development, assisting in urban
regeneration and providing areas for open recreational activity.

The site is quite discretely located at the western end of Tavistock Road. It contains a
number of what appears to be temporary storage and industrial uses and has an unkept
and untidy appearance. It was not developed until the 20th century and comprises made
up ground, as the site level was raised by approximately 4m in the 1930s. 

The site is bounded by railway tracks to the north, west and south and a wooded area and
the Fray's River to the east. Beyond the railway, to the north and west are areas of open
space designated as Green Belt and the Garden City, West Drayton Area of Special Local
Character (ASLC) lies to the south.

Whilst the development would include one very large new structure, together with smaller
buildings and a parking area, it would generally represent an improvement in the overall
appearance to the site. The large building would, however, be visible in some views from
the Area of Special Local Character, the housing area to the North West and also from
the Green Belt. At present a landscaping scheme is proposed for the southern boundary,
which should provide additional screening to the ASLC, but further consideration should

Page 112



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

be given to the planting and bunding on the other site boundaries. In particular,
consideration should be given to the creation of an area of "buffer" planting outside of the
new boundary walls, to allow planting to soften their appearance- the walls are proposed
to be between 4-6m in height. At present views of the site are filtered by off site trees and
vegetation that cannot be controlled as part of this application and hence their presence
cannot be guaranteed long term.

Overall, it is considered that the scheme adequately protects the environment in terms of
the landscape and Green Belt subject to some further details of boundary planting. It is
considered that a mitigation scheme could be secured by way of an appropriately worded
condition sufficient to mitigate any potential harm to the Green Belt. On  balance, the
proposal therefore complies with Policies BE26, BE38, PR23 and OL5 of the Local Plan.

Policies BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to ensure that new development makes a positive contribution to the character and
amenity of the area in which it is proposed. Policy BE13 states that, in terms of the built
environment, the design of new buildings should complement or improve the character
and appearance of the surrounding area and should incorporate design elements which
stimulate and sustain visual interest. Policy BE38 requires new development proposals to
incorporate appropriate landscaping proposals. 

The proposed buildings would be set within the site and not visible from the street.  It must
be remembered that this is an industrial site.  The site is bounded by railway tracks to the
north, west and south and a wooded area and the Fray's River to the east. 

Beyond the railway, to the north and west are areas of open space designated as Green
Belt and the Garden City, West Drayton Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) lies to
the south. Whilst there are three listed buildings to the east and south east of the site and
also the West Drayton Green Conservation Area, it is considered that none of these
Historic Assets will be affected by the development. The Archaeological Report attached
to the application confirms the above and that the likelihood for archaeological finds is low.
It also advises that the impact of the new development on the archaeology of the site
would be limited to within the depth of the made up ground.

Whilst the development would include one very large new structure, together with smaller
buildings and a parking area, it would generally represent an improvement in the overall
appearance to the site. The large building would, however, be visible in some views from
the Area of Special Local Character, the housing area to the North West and also from
the Green Belt. 

At present a landscaping scheme is proposed for the southern boundary, which should
provide additional screening to the ASLC, but further consideration should be given to the
planting and bunding on the other site boundaries. In particular, consideration should be
given to the creation of an area of "buffer" planting outside of the new boundary walls, to
allow planting to soften their appearance- the walls are proposed to be between 4-6m in
height. At present views of the site are filtered by off site trees and vegetation that cannot
be controlled as part of this application and hence their presence cannot be guaranteed
long term. This could be secured by condition should the application be approved.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would have an acceptable
appearance within the area, and having regard to the benefits and location within a
Industrial Business Area adjacent to a railway of the proposal the scale of the

Page 113



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

development is justified and appropriate.

Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to prevent developments which would be detrimental to the
amenity of nearby occupiers by way of their siting, bulk, proximity or loss of light.

There are no residential properties that directly abut the site. The nearest residential
properties are in Tavistock Road, some 60m away from the proposed Civic Amenity
section of the site. The closest properties to the Waste Recycling Facility are some 75m
away. Properties to the South of the site, on the other side of the Great West Mainline
railway are some 100m away from the site. The development would be separated from
residential properties by a railway on both sides. This separation is considered adequate
to ensure the development does not have adverse impacts on the amenity of residential
occupiers in respect of dominance or loss of light.

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)seeks to ensure that new developments do not have adverse impacts on the
amenity of existing residential properties due to loss of privacy.

The proposed Waste Material & Recycling & Recovery Facility building would be between
70m (to the north) and 110m (to the south) from the nearest residential dwellings and
would be separated by a railway line in both instances. This is sufficient to ensure no
harm to the residential occupiers by loss of privacy. Accordingly, the proposal would
comply with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

Accordingly, the proposal would comply with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Issues relating to air quality and noise (for example noise generated by activities occuring
at the site (inside or outside buildings) are dealt with elsewhere in this report.

This is not applicable to this type of development.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.
Paragraph 35 of NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should
be located and designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and cycle
movements; create safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and
cyclists or pedestrians. 

London Plan (July 2011) policy 5.17 states that proposals for waste management should
be evaluated against the full traffic impact of all collection, transfer and disposal
movements.  Policy 6.3 notes that Development proposals should ensure that impacts on
transport capacity and the transport network, at both a corridor and local level, are fully
assessed. It also requires that development should not adversely affect safety on the
transport network.

Local Plan requirements in relation to impacts on traffic demand, safety and congestion
are set out  in Local Plan Part 2 policy AM7 which states that the LPA will not grant

Page 114



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

permission for developments whose traffic generation is likely to (i) unacceptably increase
demand along roads or through junctions which are already used to capacity, especially
where such roads or junctions form part of the strategic London road network, or (ii)
prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment (TA) dated August 2011. The
Council's Highways Engineer has reviewed the TA and advised that it is out of date and
raised are numerous fundamental highways and traffic issues, which are reported in full
within the internal consultee section of this report (section 6).

Additional highways and transport information was received on 8th November 2013. It has
been reviewed and the Council Highways Engineer has advised that the addendum to the
TA is also out of date, being dated February 2012 and does not address the main
concerns raised on the 2011 TA. It is not considered that the application demonstrates
that the scheme would not cause unacceptable highway impacts.  It should be
remembered that most of the waste (600,000 tonnes) would be transported by road, no
doubt by heavy goods vehciles, which would have the potential to radically disrupt the
local highway network.  There is an objection to the scheme in terms of traffic impacts.

National Planning Practice Guidance notes that Local planning authorities may wish to
consult the relevant bodies on planning applications likely to affect transport infrastructure,
such as Rail Network Operators where a development is likely to impact on the operation
of level crossings.  In this case Network Rail were consulted as there is a level crossing
on the site.  The comments from Network Rail are reported at section 6 of this report, in
essence in the absence of a risk assessment and safety works there is a safety concern
over the use of the level crossing.  There is an objection to the scheme in this regard.

It is not considered that the development of the site would directly result in any security
issues, safety concerns, or anti-social behaviour.  Any of these issues resulting from the
proposed use would be controlled and dealt with under legislation outside of planning
controls.

Urban design and access are dealt with in other sections of this report.

The proposal seeks to develop a new state-of-the-art Materials Recovery and Recycling
Facility.  The Design & Access Statement states that 2 accessible parking bays would be
provided or 5% of total capacity, with an additional space provided for every disabled
employee.  Whilst the proposed number of parking spaces may fall below the 10%
requirement prescribed by Local Plan policy AM15, the provision is considered to be
acceptable in terms of disabled access for the development as proposed.

Overall, the Access Officer is satisfied with the level of facilities provided and as such the
scheme is considered to accord with Policies 3.4 and 7.2 of the London Plan July 2011,
the Hillingdon Design and Access Statement (HDAS) Accessible Hillingdon and Policy
AM15 of the UDP.

This is not applicable to this type of application.

TREES/LANDSCAPING

Policy BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies states, amongst other things

Page 115



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15 Sustainable waste management

that development proposals will be expected to retain and utilise topographical and
landscape features of merit.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has made the following recommendations:

i) Prior to development a management plan to eradicate the Japanese Knotweed should
be prepared and put into action, in accordance with a methodology approved by the
Environment Agency. 
ii) The colour and materials used for the cladding of the building, the roof and all ancillary
structures should be selected to be as recessive as possible, in order  to reduce the
apparent bulk and visual impact on the landscape.
iii) The selection of plants for inclusion in this scheme should be reviewed and amended in
the interests of plant health and bio-security.  In particular a Ash should not be planted. A
suitable substitute is required.
iv) A belt of tree planting or native woodland should extend around the west boundary to
provide some screening from the Green Belt.
v) If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be
imposed to ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and
appearance of the area. 

It is considered that if the scheme was to be approved these matters could all be dealt
with by way of appropriately worded conditions. As such no objection is raised in this
regard.

ECOLOGY
The proposed development is adjacent to a Metropolitan Site of Importance for Nature
Conservation.  On the site, there are pockets of natural areas that would support the wider
SINC.  The ecology chapter within the ES reports that approximately 0.25 hectare of
woodland and vegetation will be lost.

The Council's Sustainability officer has calculated the loss to be close to 0.4hectares
(mainly a triangular area of land to the north west of the site.  Regardless of this, there are
a number of mature trees as well as ground scrub to be removed to make way for the
development.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has raised concern that the onsite landscaping
adequately considers the loss of trees and vegetation nor their relationship with the wider
SINC.  In particular, the loss of vegetation near to the Frays River is a concern.  The lost
areas need to be considered as part of the mitigation strategy. There is however
insufficient room on the site to fully integrate a sufficient amount of mitigation. The
proposed offer by the applicant is therefore inadequate. The only solution to mitigate for
the loss of the onsite vegetation and wildlife areas is to provide an offsite contribution as
well as providing the minimal onsite measures.

As a consequence a financial contribution to the sum of £30,000 would need to be
secured to enable the Council to help manage and enhance existing areas of Little Britain
SINC. An ecological enhancement scheme is also required. This could be secured by
condition should the application be approved.

As discussed in the principle section above, this proposal is considered to accord with
policy EM11 in Part One of the Hillingdon Local Plan. It entails the reduction of waste
going to landfill by the treatment processes involved and will help the borough and its

Page 116



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.16

7.17

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

West London Waste Plan colleagues meet the London Plan policies regarding waste self-
sufficiency and increasing waste management capacity in London.

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (July 2011) requires development proposals to make the
fullest contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions.  Major development schemes
must be accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 25% target
reduction in carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement and a
Sustainability Checklist to demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be met.  In
addition to energy efficient building measures, photovoltaic panels would be provided to
provide a portion of the site's energy needs through the use of a renewable energy.
These measures would achieve a 26% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions above Part
L of the Building Regulations in compliance with London Plan requirements.  The
applicant is also to include the capture of waste heat as requested by the GLA.

The energy solution focuses on a large photovoltaic array and predominantly reduces the
unregulated energy demand. The councils Sustainability Officer has raised no objections
to this approach and supports the principle. The development must proceed in
accordance with the submitted 'Sustainable Energy Statement, Silcock Dawson and
Partners, V1.2, April 2013'. This could be secured by condition.

London Plan policy 5.11 states that major development proposals should provide green
roofs. The development is within an air quality management area and needs to improve
opportunities for wildlife.  Living walls and roofs can improve air quality, operate as carbon
sinks and also be of importance for nature conservation.  Whilst the development does
not propose any living walls or green roofs it is considered that this could be achieved by
way of an appropriately worded condition.

Subject to the imposition of relevant conditions on any consent, the proposed scheme is
considered to comply with relevant London Plan policies, and the Council's Sustainability
Officer does not raise any objections to the proposal, subject to the scheme being carried
out in accordance with the submitted energy statement and details of living walls/roofs
being submitted.

A very small area of the site access road, (effectively the area covered by level crossing
over the railway) lies within flood zones 2 and 3. No other part of the site is within a flood
zone. It noted that Network Rail have raised a question in relation to drainage affecting
the railway line.

A Flood Risk Assessment was submitted with the application. This was assessed by the
Environment Agency, who have raised an objection in relation to surface water drainage.
However, the Council's own Flooding and Water Management Specialist has also
assessed the Flood Risk Assessment and found it to be acceptable. It should be noted
that since the Environment Agency commented on this application, a Framework
Agreement has been agreed between the EA and Hillingdon giving the Council's Flood
Risk & Water Management Specialist sole responsibility for all Flood Risk related issues
thus removing the need to consult the EA on such matters. Given this, it is considered that
the Council's Flood Risk & Water Management Specialist's flood risk comments are take
precedent.

The Council's Flood Risk & Water Management Specialist is of the view that appropriate

Page 117



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

drainage can be secured by conditions application cannot be refused on these grounds.
As such no objection has been raised in relation to flood risk subject to a water
management condition.The application is therefore considered to be acceptable in this
regard.

AIR QUALITY

The main problem with the air quality stems from the inadequacy of the transport
assessment (TA).  Comments from the Highways Officer detail the main faults with the
TA.  As there is some dispute about the impacts on transport, it is not possible to
determine the impacts on air quality.  The primary problem is that the applicant is using
data collected from a single day in 2008 to compare the traffic generated from the new
development.

The applicant claims that the traffic generation from the new development has been
tailored to reflect the 2008 survey count, and is conveniently almost identical with only
three vehicle movements different.

This allows the applicant to present a case that the proposed development has a
negligible impact.  The Council is not in position to agree with this assessment and
therefore not able to judge how the traffic movements, particular regarding HGVs, are
different before and after the development.
Notwithstanding the problems with the TA, there are some inherent problems with the Air
Quality Assessment.

Of particular concern is the modelled baseline data that shows Yiewsley High Street to be
significantly failing EU Emissions Objectives.  The air quality in this area as a damaging
impact with respect to health and must be treated as highly sensitive.

The applicant then presents a case that regardless of whether the development happens
or not, there will be nearly a 15% improvement in air quality from 2011 to 2015.  The
Council queries the starting baseline as being very high and the reduction in 4 years as
being highly questionable.  Furthermore, the application was submitted in 2013, half way
through their suggested period of significant reduction.  The data should therefore have
been updated with a new projection set for the future years. 

With respect to the above, it is not possible to make an informed decision on the air
quality impacts from the proposed development.  Given the significantly poor air quality
presented by the applicant in this area, it is necessary to determine the impacts prior to
determination. If the improvements in air quality are not as they have been presented,
then the development may need to be altered to be viable.

Firstly, the 47.6 2011 figure (as existing) is unusually high.  The Council's modelled data
has this considerably below this figure.  This is an important part of the assessment as it
is effectively the starting point.  An over inflation of this figure would allow future
developments to be presented as improving the situation. 

Secondly, the assessment shows that with no intervention or improvements, there would
be nearly 12% worth of improvement.  Again this is highly unlikely.  Regardless of this,
what the assessment concludes is that because the proposed transport is the same as
existing, there is unlikely to be change in air quality levels.

Page 118



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

There is no suitable justification for the significantly high baseline, or the subsequent drop.
Nonetheless the modelled data shows that Yiewsley High Street is exceeding minimum air
quality standards and cannot be determined as a negligible impact.

The applicant needs to refine the transport assessment using more sufficiently robust and
accurate data.  In particular, greater clarity and assessment of the amount of HGVs
including the presumed impact of the rail.  HGVs are considerably more polluting than
light vehicles and need to be given appropriate attention in the assessment.

An improved TA will then need to inform a more suitable air quality assessment that
accurately reflects the existing situation and adequately qualifies the current air quality
problems.  The applicant will then need to tailor mitigation, changes to operation and
throughput of waste to reflect the impacts on air quality.

NOISE
In order to reduce the adverse noise and vibration impacts at the closest residential
properties close to the vicinity of the site, the following measures form part of the
proposed scheme: 

i) The structural steel frame of the building will have no rigid structural connections to the
internal plant. This will reduce the vibrational energy transferred to the structure and thus
reduce any noise re-radiated by the cladding. Where structural support of the plant is
provided by the concrete push wall, the connection will be made using anti-vibration pads
if this is anticipated to provide a benefit in terms of noise impact. 

ii) A 4 m high acoustic barrier in addition to that proposed in the scheme may be provided
between the freight siding and the Lafage site. This will reduce noise impact on properties
to the south of the development site from activity relating to the freight train. 

iii) An extension of the 4 m high acoustic barrier which is located along the western site
boundary, and an additional 6 m high acoustic barrier may be erected along part of the
northern boundary as appropriate. This will reduce predicted noise levels at properties to
the north and north-east of the site due to yard activity and the opening of the C&D
building when doors are opened to permit access. 

It is considered that the proposed measures would likely mitigate any noise and vibration
resulting from HGV deliveries, internal loading/unloading and processing of recycling
materials. The Council's Noise Officer has reviewed the application. No objections have
been raised in this regard. Conditions have been recommended by the EPU Noise Officer
in the event that application is approved limiting future noise levels and requiring further
details of noise and vibration mitigation measures particularly for all external works,
including the loading and unloading of trains and the external recycling works including
the concrete crushing and timber shredding.

All the issues raised have been taken into account in the assessment of the proposals and
are reflected in the reasons for refusal or this report itself. The concerns raised by
residents, politicians, local groups and local businesses into a number of categories.
These are Highways concerns (including traffic congestion and safety of road users and
pedestrians), health concerns stemming from the perceived pollution impacts of the
scheme, noise issues and suitability for the site for a Waste Recycling Facility. These
concerns have been taken into account, particularly in the Principle of Development
section of the report, the Traffic Impact section, Impact on Neighbours and Noise or Air

Page 119



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Quality Issues sections as well as throughout the remainder of the report.

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) is
concerned with securing planning obligations to supplement the provision recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals. These saved UDP policies are supported by more specific
supplementary planning guidance.

The Council's Section 106 Officer has reviewed the proposal, as have other statutory
consultees, including the Greater London Authority and Transport for London.  The
comments received indicate the need for the following contributions or planning
obligations to mitigate the impacts of the development:

1. Highways: either a s278 and or s38 agreement may be required to address any and all
highways matters arising from the proposal. 
2. Environmental mitigation: depending upon further comments received there may be the
need for environmental mitigation measures in the form of a financial contribution or
delivery of measures this will be dependent upon comments received form EPU,
sustainability and ecology. 
3. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the location of the proposal it is likely that
EPU will seek a contribution towards air quality mitigation. Please liaise with EPU in the
first instance. 
4. In the event that a s106 agreement is entered into then a financial contribution equal to
5% of the total cash contributions should be secured to enable the management and
monitoring of the resulting agreement.

Overall, it is considered that the level of planning benefits sought would be adequate and
commensurate with the scale and nature of the proposed development. However the
S106 has not been signed and as such the proposal fails to accord with Policy R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

None.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and

Page 120



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010). 

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."
Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme does not accord with relevant National, Regional and local Plan
Policies. Whilst it is generally acceptable in terms of appearance, impact on the visual
character of the area and disabled access provisions, it fails to demonstrate that the
development would be acceptable in terms of highway and transport impacts as well as air
quality.

The application is therefore contrary to policies LE1, AM7, AM11 an R17 of the Local Plan
Part 2 and policies 2.6, 4.1, 4.12, 6.2, 6.3, 6.4, 6.7, 7.1 and 7.14 of the London Plan (July
2011) and paragraph 32 of the NPPF, and is recommended for refusal.

Page 121



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
PPS10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management
Draft West London Waste Plan
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Matt Kolaszewski 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 122



´

December
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Old Coal Depot
Tavistock Road

Major Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:3,500

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

18736/APP/2013/1784

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

272-276 BATH ROAD HEATHROW 

Change of use of existing building from office (Use Class B1(a)) to Hotel
(Use Class C1), including 4-storey side extension (to rear of adjacent petrol
station), and 4-storey rear extensions, and associated amendments to
landscaping and car parking.

25/07/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 464/APP/2013/2115

Drawing Nos: 1243/20
1243/21
1243/22
1243/23
1243/24
1243/25
1243/26
1243/27
1243/28
1243/29
1243/30
1243/31
1243/32
1243/33
1243/34
1243/35
1243/36
1243/37
1243/38
1243/39
MCA-1513/01
Noise Impact Assessment - 11/09/13
Phase I Desk Study - September 2013
Air Quality Assessment - 17/09/13
Energy Statement - 11/07/13
Marketing Letter - 23/07/13
Landscape Specification - September 2013
Planning Statement - 24/07/13
Transport Statement - Issue A (08/07/13)

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the existing building
from office (Use Class B1(a)) to a Hotel (Use Class C1), including 4-storey side
extension (to the rear of the adjacent petrol station) and 4-storey rear extension, together
with associated amendments to landscaping and car parking.

Given the site's context the scheme raises no adverse amenity issues to residential
neighbours nor does the new building's massing and outlook prejudice the existing

17/09/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 8

Page 125



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

developments on the adjacent sites.  The car parking provision and highway access
arrangements are considered consistent with planning policy and acceptable including
the arrangements for service delivery and guest arrivals/departures.

The height of the development is consistent with the surrounding development and in
visual appearance terms the treatment of the elevations is considered appropriate and
the proposed landscaping to street adequate. In summary the scheme is considered to
comply with relevant London Plan and Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and Part 2 policies
and, accordingly, approval is recommended subject to appropriate conditions and
planning obligations.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions and the
signing of a S106 Legal Agreement.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and
Culture to grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

A) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

1. Highways: to secure all necessary works and the provision of a Travel Plan,
including Sustainable Transport Measures (such as a hopper bus service).

2. Construction Training: either a financial contribution, or an in-kind scheme
delivered during the construction phase of the development, should be secured (in
either event the 'obligation' should be delivered equal to the formula of £2,500 for
every £1 million build cost).

3. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the site is located in an air quality
management area then a contribution in the sum of £25,000.

4. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a financial contribution equal to 5% of
the total cash contributions towards the management and monitoring of the
resulting agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and any abortive
work as a result of the agreement not being completed. 

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval. 

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S106 legal agreement has not been finalised before 17/12/2013, or such other date
as agreed by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture, delegated authority
be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to refuse planning
permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of
services and the environment as a consequence of demands created by the
proposed development (in respect of construction training and air quality). The

Page 126



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM3

COM4

COM5

NONSC

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

Ingress of Polluted Air

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1243/20; 1243/21;
1243/22; 1243/23; 1243/24; 1243/25; 1243/26; 1243/27; 1243/28; 1243/29; 1243/30;
1243/31; 1243/32; 1243/33; 1243/34; 1243/35; 1243/36; 1243/37; 1243/38; 1243/39;
MCA-1513/01, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Noise Impact Assessment - 11/09/13
Phase I Desk Study - September 2013
Air Quality Assessment - 17/09/13
Energy Statement - 11/07/13
Marketing Letter - 23/07/13
Landscape Specification - September 2013
Planning Statement - 24/07/13
Transport Statement - Issue A (08/07/13)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed
accommodation from external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by the LPA.
Any works which form part of such a scheme shall be completed before any part of the

1

2

3

4

proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the
Council's Planning Obligations SPD and Air Quality SPG.'

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant. 

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

Page 127



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

COM17

Air Quality - Energy Provision

Air Quality - CHP

Control of site noise rating level

development is first occupied or used and measures put in place to ensure it is
maintained for the life of the development.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of residents in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Note: In areas where there the air pollution levels are above, or close to, the national and
European limits, this is designed to safeguard the future residents/users of the site from
the ingress of the poor outdoor air quality. The design must take into account climate
change pollutants and ensure there are no trade-offs between local and global pollutant
emissions. Suitable ventilation systems will need to: take air from a clean location or treat
the air and remove pollutants; designed to minimise energy usage; be sufficient to
prevent summer overheating; have robust arrangements for maintenance.

Before the development is commenced, details of any plant, machinery or fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision for the development shall be submitted to the LPA for
approval. This shall include suitable pollutant emission rates with and without mitigation
technologies, which needs to be considered as part of a wider air quality assessment, as
set out in the EPUK CHP Guidance 2012 (September 2007).

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Note: This condition relates to the operational phase of residential and commercial
development and is intended for the protection of future residents in a designated AQMA
and Smoke Control Area. Advice on the assessment of CHPs is available from EPUK at:
http://www.iaqm.co.uk/text/guidance/epuk/chp_guidance.pdf. An area up to a distance of
10 times the appropriate stack height needs to be assessed. They should contact the
Environmental Protection Unit if they have any queries.

Before the development is commenced, details to limit and/or control air pollution for any
CHP shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
measures shall be provided prior to the occupation of the relevant phase in which the
CHP is to be constructed and thereafter maintained for the lifetime of the development
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The rating level of the noise emitted from the site shall be at least 5dB below the existing
background noise level.  The noise levels shall be determined at the boundary of the
nearest residential property.  The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance to the latest British Standard 4142, 'Method for rating industrial noise
affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the

5

6

7

Page 128



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM25

COM30

Loading/unloading/deliveries

Contaminated Land

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The premises shall not be used for the delivery and loading or unloading of goods,
including the collection of refuse and recycling, outside the hours of 0800 and 1800,
Monday to Friday, and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on Saturdays.  No deliveries
shall take place on Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;
(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use.
(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any
part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported
soils for landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part
of the development is occupied, all imported soils shall be independently tested for
chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping
purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable

8

9

Page 129



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM15

NONSC

COM31

Sustainable Water Management

Energy Efficiency

Secured by Design

risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime. 
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.
Thereafter the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and policy 5.12 of the London Plan (July 2011).

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be
submitted showing how the development will reduce carbon emissions by 40% from a
2010 Building Regulations compliant development.  The assessment shall clearly show:

i) the baseline energy demand (kwhr and kgCO2) for each element of the regulated
energy use (e.g. space heating, hot water and electricity) for all the relevant uses (e.g.
residential, commercial etc).
ii) the methods to improve the energy efficiency of the development and how this impacts
on the baseline emissions and where they will be included within the development.
iii) the inclusion of CHP to service the whole development, the specification of the
technology to be used, the inputs and outputs (in kwhr and associated kgCO2) of the
CHP unit and the impacts on the baseline emissions.
iv) roof plans and elevations showing the inclusion of the PVs. 
v) how the technology will be maintained and managed throughout the lifetime of the
development.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure a sustainable approach to energy efficiency and carbon reductions is met
across the site, in accordance with Policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the London Plan (2011).

10

11

12

Page 130



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM7

COM9

Materials (Submission)

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

The building shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (July 2011).

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

1. Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage
2.b Cycle Storage (including secure storage for at least 10 cycles)
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Car Parking Layouts (including the provision of at least 3 disabled parking spaces,
and demonstration that at least 2 parking spaces are served by electrical charging
points)
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials (including a kerbed access route from Bath Road to the
main entrance of the building)
2.f External Lighting
2.g Other structures (such as furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a A scheme for the inclusion of living walls, roofs and screens.  The scheme shall
provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and methods of
maintenance where necessary
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

13

14

Page 131



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Fire Evacuation Plan

Facilities for People with Disabilities

Car Parking for guests and staff only

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance
4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
policies 5.11 and 5.17 of the London Plan (July 2011).

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved a comprehensive fire
emergency plan that demonstrates how disabled people will be safeguarded from fire
and enabled to evacuate the building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

The development hereby approved shall ensure the quantity of accessible bedrooms as
a percentage of the total number of  bedrooms (as detailed in BS 8300:2009) is no less
than:

i. 5% without a fixed tracked-hoist system; 
ii. 5% with a fixed tracked-hoist system, or, similar system giving the same degree of
convenience and safety; 
iii. 5% capable of being adapted in the future to accessibility standards (i.e. with more
space to  allow the use of a mobile hoist, wider doors, provision for services and with
enclosing walls capable of supporting adaptations, e.g. handrails); 
iv. 50% of en-suite bathrooms within the required accessible bedrooms to have a level
access shower.

REASON
To ensure that London's visitor infrastructure is accessible and welcoming to all sections
of the population, including older and disabled people in accordance with policy AM13 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policies
3.1, 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2011).

15

16

17

Page 132



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The car parking facilities provided at the hotel shall be used by hotel staff and guests
only and strictly for the duration of their stay at the hotel.  Prior to occupation of the hotel,
a car parking management strategy shall be submitted to demonstrate how this will be
managed and to ensure the efficient operation of the car park, especially at peak
demand  periods.  The approved strategy shall be implemented as soon as the hotel is
brought into use and the strategy shall remain in place thereafter.  Any changes to the
strategy shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure suitable parking provision is provided on the site, in accordance with policies
AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2

AM7
AM8

AM13

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE18
BE20
BE21
BE24

BE38

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Page 133



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I14C Compliance with Building Regulations Access to and use of3

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:

· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within

OE1

OE8

OE11

T2
T4

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.7
LPP 2.8
LPP 4.1
LPP 4.5
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.4
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.21
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.5

LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.11

LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15
LPP 8.2

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities
Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location,
amenity and parking requirements
(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2011) Outer London: economy
(2011) Outer London: Transport
(2011) Developing London's economy
(2011) London's Visitor Infrastructure
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation
(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Retrofitting
(2011) Renewable energy
(2011) Urban Greening
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Contaminated land
(2011) Strategic Approach
(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Walking
(2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and
reducing traffic
(2011) Parking
(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Designing out crime
(2011) Local character
(2011) Architecture
(2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency
(2011) Improving air quality
(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
(2011) Planning obligations

Page 134



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work4

buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, services and premises.  Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you.  A guide for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Page 135



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I60

I58

Cranes

Opportunities for Work Experience

5

6

7

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located on the northern side of Bath Road, just to the east of the junction with
Sipson Road, opposite Heathrow Airport.  The main site frontage is to Bath Road, with a
small frontage to Egerton Road to the rear.  The site contains an L-shaped four-storey
office building, surrounded by car parking and a small amount of landscaping.  The
building is clad in two colours of brick, with a glazed and metal-clad fourth storey.  The site
is predominantly rectangular, with a small portion that extends to the rear of the
neighbouring petrol station.

The surrounding area is of high density character, with a mixture of residential and
commercial uses.  It is dominated by large buildings of various heights, with little
uniformity of height or appearance.  To the west of the site fronting Bath Road is a petrol
filling station, with a three-storey mixed used building to the rear, and the north of the site.
To the west of the site is a five-storey office building.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the existing building

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required
during its construction.  The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.  This
is explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available
at www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership. 

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd: contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE  Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Community Infrastructure Levy.  The applicant will be liable to
pay the Community Infrastructure Levy to the sum of £63,727.94 on commencement of
this development.  A separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning
Authority, however you are advised that it is your responsibility to notify the Local
Planning Authority of the anticipated commencement date and any changes in liability
through submission of the appropriate forms.

Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
(http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 136



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The relevant planning history for the site is listed above.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations; and Revised
Chapter 4, Education Facilities: September 2010.
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

from office (Use Class B1(a)) to a Hotel (Use Class C1), including 4-storey side extension
(to the rear of the adjacent petrol station) and 4-storey rear extension, together with
associated amendments to landscaping and car parking.

The proposal includes the provision of a 100 bedroom hotel, together with extensions to
the north (rear) and west, and alterations to the existing elevations to integrate the existing
building with the proposed extensions.  The hotel will provide restaurant and bar facilities,
predominantly for the use of guests.  The existing building is to be extended by the
addition of two wings, to provide bedrooms to the hotel.  The existing car parking area is
to remain, with the extensions constructed above the existing car parking area.

The existing entrance to the site will remain, but the exit from the site will be to Egerton
Road to the rear.  25 car parking spaces are to be provided, including 2 disabled parking
spaces, together with a coach parking space.  Secured covered cycle parking is also
proposed.

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

464/N/79/1100

464/P/81/1446

Airport House Bath Road Sipson 

Airport House Bath Road Sipson 

Office development - 50sq.m. (Outline)(P)

Extension/Alterations to Office premises (P) of 65 sq.m.

09-11-1979

12-03-1982

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 137



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM8

PT1.EM11

PT1.T1

PT1.T4

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Accessible Local Destinations

(2012) Heathrow Airport

AM2

AM7

AM8

AM13

AM14

BE13

BE15

BE18

BE20

BE21

BE24

BE38

OE1

OE8

OE11

T2

T4

LPP 2.6

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location, amenity and
parking requirements

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

Part 2 Policies:

Page 138



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 2.7

LPP 2.8

LPP 4.1

LPP 4.5

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.2

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.4

LPP 5.7

LPP 5.10

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.21

LPP 6.1

LPP 6.5

LPP 6.9

LPP 6.10

LPP 6.11

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.13

LPP 7.14

LPP 7.15

LPP 8.2

(2011) Outer London: economy

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Developing London's economy

(2011) London's Visitor Infrastructure

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Retrofitting

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Contaminated land

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Walking

(2011) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion and reducing traffic

(2011) Parking

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Architecture

(2011) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

(2011) Planning obligations

Not applicable24th October 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable24th October 20135.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 14 local owner/occupiers on 01/10/13.  The application was also
advertised by way of site and press notices.  One letter of objection has been received which raises
the following concerns:

i) Overdevelopment of the site.
ii) Impact on amenity and setting of neighbouring buildings.

Page 139



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT:

Comments below with regard to air quality and land contamination only. The following conditions
need to be included in any permission that may be given:

Air Quality:
The proposed development is within the declared AQMA and in an area that is significantly above
the European Union limit value for annual mean nitrogen dioxide (NO2 - 40.0 mg/m3) adjacent to
the Bath Road.  The air quality assessment has used measured background data from London
Harmondsworth because the DEFRA background map levels are considered an overestimate. The
background is likely to be high in this area due to the airport, and London Harmondsworth may not
be suitably representative.

The air quality assessment looked at the impact on the proposed development only and did not
consider nearby residential receptors.  The Energy Statement refers to CHP being feasible for the
site, although biomass has been ruled out, but provides no further details and the Transport
Statement refers to an increase in trip generation as a consequence of the development, which is
anticipated to consist of largely of taxi drop-offs and pick-ups.

As the development is in and may cause increases in an area already suffering poor air quality the
following are requested:

A Section 106 obligation up to £25,000 should be sought for contribution to the air quality
monitoring network in the area.

Nitrogen dioxide levels at the facade of the building (may have been underestimated) on all levels
is above the EU limit value. However, the report indicates there will be no staff accommodation at
the site, therefore the limit values are indicative only. Nothing specific has been said regarding
ventilation except a mention in Energy Statement about mechanical ventilation. The ingress of
polluted air condition is recommended with regard to the pollution air issues at the site and to
ensure any air inlets draw air from a clean location (treat it if necessary) and are located away from
any flues/exhausts.

Air Quality Condition 1: Ingress of Polluted Air
Before the development is commenced a scheme for protecting the proposed accommodation from
external air pollution shall be submitted and approved by the LPA. Any works which form part of
such a scheme shall be completed before any part of the development is first occupied or used and
measures put in place to ensure it is maintained for the life of the development.

iii) Increase in traffic and congestion, poor traffic circulation within site.
iv) Lack of car parking. 
v) Poor design and detailing of building.

NATS:

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and does not
conflict with our safeguarding criteria.  Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Limited has no safeguarding
objections to this proposal.

HEATHROW SAFEGUARDING:

No safeguarding objections to the proposed development, subject to an informative regarding the
use of cranes.

Page 140



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Notes: In areas where there the air pollution levels are above, or close to, the national and
European limits, this is designed to safeguard the future residents/users of the site from the ingress
of the poor outdoor air quality. The design must take into account climate change pollutants and
ensure there are no trade-offs between local and global pollutant emissions. Suitable ventilation
systems will need to: take air from a clean location or treat the air and remove pollutants; designed
to minimise energy usage; be sufficient to prevent summer overheating; have robust arrangements
for maintenance.

The following conditions are advised in order to ensure relevant information with regard to the
energy provision and to limit air pollution emissions from the energy provision at the site are
provided, in order to ensure mitigation measures can be agreed and implemented if necessary, as
part of the development. The CHP may need to be considered within the context of a wider air
quality assessment.

Air Quality Condition 2 - Details of Energy Provision
Before the development is commenced, details of any plant, machinery or fuel burnt, as part of the
energy provision for the development shall be submitted to the LPA for approval. This shall include
suitable pollutant emission rates with and without mitigation technologies, which needs to be
considered as part of a wider air quality assessment, as set out in the EPUK CHP Guidance 2012
(September 2007).

Notes: This condition relates to the operational phase of residential and commercial development
and is intended for the protection of future residents in a designated AQMA and Smoke Control
Area. Advice on the assessment of CHPs is available from EPUK at:
http://www.iaqm.co.uk/text/guidance/epuk/chp_guidance.pdf. An area up to a distance of 10 times
the appropriate stack height needs to be assessed. They should contact the Environmental
Protection Unit if they have any queries.

Air Quality Condition 3 - Control of Air Pollution
Before the development is commenced, details to limit and/or control air pollution for any CHP shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall be
provided prior to the occupation of the relevant phase in which the CHP is to be constructed and
thereafter maintained for the lifetime of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

The application indicates fewer car parking spaces than the office use, new disabled parking and a
coach parking space. It is anticipated most customers would arrive by taxi. The Transport
Statement makes no reference to a staff or customer travel plan, although there are references to
public transport access to the site. A travel plan condition is recommended for this application.
There are also no references to the provision of electric charging points at the site. A condition for
fast electric charging points is recommended for this application. Ideally, these should be suitable
for mini-cabs to use as well.

Land Contamination:
The most significant potential contamination identified in the desk top study relates to
contamination from the adjacent petrol station to the west of the site. We have ground investigation
report from 2005 which indicate fuel contamination of the soil and groundwater at the petrol station.
The boreholes located nearest to the application site (MW1, MW8) indicated soil contamination
below the detection limit for samples taken at a metre depth for TPH, BTEX and MTBE. However
this area was not investigated further in later investigations when soil contamination was identified
in other locations (where it was not previously identified due to the shallowness of the sampling) at
3 to 4 metres depth. For TPH only, contamination was also identified MW8, which is located quite
close to the proposed extension for the hotel (stairwell and lift shaft only appear to be enclosed).
MW1 ground water monitoring results based on one round of monitoring from January 2005

Page 141



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

indicate very low levels of contamination.

It appears remedial works may not have taken place, and the contamination appears to be located
to the south east of the source in the groundwater. I would recommend including the standard
contaminated land condition on any permission that may be given to ensure risk from
contamination is suitably assessed and addressed for the extension and the conversion, as
required.

It is noted the proposed development is an extension and conversion of the existing office building
to a hotel use. The desk study refers to soft landscaping such as planters, but does not expand any
further, however the landscaping specification document and plan seems to suggest there may be
more works, therefore the soil imports and landscaping condition is recommended to ensure the
soils are suitable for use.

The standard land contamination condition is recommended.

Condition to minimise risk of contamination from garden and landscaped area:
Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall be
independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or
landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

Noise:
With regard to external noise protection of new Hotel and office developments, Hillingdon's
planning policy is such that it is the responsibility of the developer to provide this protection. The
level of noise experienced in the proposed development from a room to an adjacent room is
controlled by current Building Regulations.

Therefore with reference to this planning application, it is recommended as discussed below that
the following condition and informative are applied to the application:

Condition: As per the applicant's acoustic report and with regard to noise generated internally such
as from plant equipment in the proposed development, the rating level of the noise from the
development should comply to BS:4142 1997 so that it is at least 5 dB below the measured
background noise level.

Informative: Regarding construction work.

HIGHWAYS:

The site has a PTAL of 3 with bus stops just outside the site. There are currently 47 car parking
spaces on site for the permitted office use. The 100 bed hotel proposal will reduce these to 25. 10
covered cycle parking spaces and shower facilities for staff are to be provided.  A coach drop off
area and coach parking are provided.

At present access and egress to the site is from Bath Road. The proposal is to retain this for entry
only and egress will be from a new cross over on to Egerton Way at the rear of the site. Egerton
Way via Bolton's Way links to Bath Road at a signalised junction permitting both eastbound and
westbound movements on to Bath Road. However it is intended that refuse vehicles will access and
egress the site via Egerton Way.

Based on the transport statement the hotel is likely to generate an additional daily total two way
trips of 53 vehicles which amount to 0.25% of the existing traffic on the Bath Road A4. The
maximum additional peak hour trips from the site are 10 and occur in the morning are not

Page 142



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

considered to have a significant impact on the highway network.

- The S106 should require the applicant to sign up to a hopper bus service.

- The pedestrian footway from Bath Road to the hotel entrance should be kerbed, and not just
delineated by road markings.

Subject to satisfactory conclusion of the issues in the last 3 points above no objections would be
raised on highway grounds.

TREES:

The property and its neighbour to the east was built around the 1980's and there are limited areas
of soft landscape associated with the development. The quality of the surviving trees and
landscaped areas is somewhat tired, with some of the original planting missing or in decline. There
are no Tree Preservation Orders or Conservation Area designations affecting the site.

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.  The area
around Heathrow has a record of very poor air quality. Planting in this area is particularly important
to enhance the appearance of the area and help to filter airborne particulates. 

i) No tree survey has been submitted.  However, it is evident that a small number of trees
(approximately 3No.) will be removed in order to facilitate the new layout / development. The most
prominent tree is a Cherry, situated on the east boundary towards the north-east access point.
Aside from this two small trees to the west (behind the petrol station) will be lost, as will the
hedgerow along the northern boundary.
ii) The removal of these trees is not considered to be a constraint on development due to their poor
condition and landscape value. 
iii) Two trees within the planting area to the front of the building (south-east corner) will be retained
as part of the new layout. 
iv) An additional 6No. trees, are indicated on drawing No. MCA 1513/01 Landscape Details.  The
planting plan indicates new / replacement structure planting including hedges and shrubs. The plan
is supported by a generic planting specification.
v) Unfortunately, there is no opportunity for replacement tree planting in the north-east corner which
will increase the inter-visibility between the residents of Doghurst Avenue and the site. 
vi) If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the area. 

Recommendation:
A Cherry tree (Prunus 'Tai Haku') is among the trees scheduled on the planting plan.  This tree
tends to be a low-growing tree with a very spreading/ horizontal habit - which will not be best suited
on this site where space is restricted. It is recommended that a suitable alternative be specified -
preferably with a tall but fastigiated / compact habit. 

No objection subject to the above observations and conditions COM9 (parts 1,2,4,5 and 6). 

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

I have no objections to the proposed development subject to the following:

Energy:
The energy strategy submitted is broadly sufficient but is not yet detailed enough at this stage to
understand the final design solutions.  The strategy includes a number of recommendations but it is

Page 143



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Policy T4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation will be acceptable in
principle provided: 

(i) The development is located within a mixed use area; and 

not clear how or if these will be included within the final design.  The following condition is therefore
essential:

Condition:
Prior to the commencement of development a detailed energy assessment shall be submitted
showing how the development will reduce carbon emissions by 40% from a 2010 Building
Regulations compliant development.  The assessment shall clearly show:
i) the baseline energy demand (kwhr and kgCO2) for each element of the regulated energy use
(e.g. space heating, hot water and electricity) for all the relevant uses (e.g. residential, commercial
etc).
ii) the methods to improve the energy efficiency of the development and how this impacts on the
baseline emissions and where they will be included within the development.
iii) the inclusion of CHP to service the whole development, the specification of the technology to be
used, the inputs and outputs (in kwhr and associated kgCO2) of the CHP unit and the impacts on
the baseline emissions.
iv) roof plans and elevations showing the inclusion of the PVs. 
v) how the technology will be maintained and managed throughout the lifetime of the development.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved details.

Living Walls and Roofs:
The development is within an air quality management area and needs to improve opportunities for
wildlife.  Living walls and roofs can improve air quality, operate as carbon sinks and also be of
importance for nature conservation.  The following condition is therefore necessary:

Condition:
Prior to commencement of development a scheme for the inclusion of living walls, roofs and
screens shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme
shall provide details of the types of living material to be used and the locations and methods of
maintenance where necessary.  The development should proceed in accordance with the approved
plans.

Water Efficiency:
The Council is in a severely water stressed area and is therefore mindful of the additional burdens
placed on water consumption by new development.  The proposed development will increase the
water demand from the previous use significantly.  The following condition is therefore necessary:

Condition:
Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for the reduction in water use including the
harvesting and recycling of grey water and rain water shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly set out how collected water will be reused in
areas where potable water is not required, i.e. toilet flushing and irrigation of landscaped areas.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

FLOODWATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

No objection, subject to the imposition of a sustainable urban drainage condition.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 144



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

(ii) The development is located near or on a primary or secondary road or rail or
underground station; and 

(iii) The development does not result in the loss of amenity to neighbours through noise
and other disturbances; and 

(iv) Parking to standards adopted by the local planning authority can be met within the
curtilage of the site.

(v)  Any on street parking that may be generated can be accommodated without detriment
to the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway safety.

In light of the site's location and the adequate car parking provision (refer to section 7.10
of the report) it is considered the scheme is acceptable in principle assessed against
Policy T4.

The existing building on the site has been vacant for number of years with evidence
provided in support of the application that the site has been unsuccessfully marketed for
nine years. The details provided of marketing show there has been very limited interest in
retaining the existing office use on the site, given the isolated location of the site and the
lack of local facilities, together with the competition with more modern, higher specification
office buildings nearby. 

Based on the combination of both the marketing evidence provided, the distance of the
site from a residential area, and given the poor state of repair of the building as witnessed
during the case officer's site visit, it is not considered on balance there is robust
sustainable development reasons to resist the change of use (from B1 use to C1).
According there is no objection to the principle of change of use in planning policy terms.

No residential units are proposed as part of this application.  As such, density is not
relevant to the application.

The site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character or
Archaeological Priority Area, and there are no Listed Buildings on the site.  As such, it is
considered that the scheme would not impact in the heritage of the borough.

BAA and NATS Safeguarding have reviewed the application and raise no objection to the
application from an airport safeguarding perspective.  As such, it is considered that the
proposal would not impact on the safe operation of any airport.

The site is not located within the Green Belt, so there are no Green Belt issues relating to
this application.

Policies BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) seeks to ensure that new development will complement and improve the character
and amenity of the area.

The building is, in the main, existing, and would be extended to the rear and to the
western side.  This building is flanked to the east by an existing 5-storey high building, a
petrol station to the west, a three storey commercial building to the northwest, with the car

Page 145



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

park for this building directly north of the site.  A large 3-storey building lies directly
opposite the site within the boundary of Heathrow Airport.  Residential properties lie to the
north east, the nearest being some 45 metres from the rear of the existing building. 

Accordingly the proposed height of the extensions at 4 storeys is considered, in street
scene terms, acceptable given the street context and the height of the neighbouring
properties.  The side extension would be set behind the petrol station, which would limit
views from Bath Road.  It would also be set behind the building line of the commercial
property on Sipson Road, which would limit the visual impact when viewed from Sipson
Road, as it would be viewed in conjunction with this commercial building and the forecourt
of the petrol station.

The scheme seeks to provide enhanced visual interest to the main elevations visible from
the street through the introduction timber-effect cladding to portions of the elevations,
interspersed with the existing brick built structure.  In addition to this, the recessed fourth
storey will be reclad in a coloured cladding, to add interest to the upper floor.  The
proposed extensions will use these same materials, but will include the addition of
rendered panels, to differentiate the extensions from the original building.

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that new developments do not have a detrimental
impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers through loss of light,
dominance or loss of privacy.

The proposed extensions are not considered to be over-dominant when viewed in
conjunction with the existing building, and the wider context of the site, with numerous
large commercial buildings, and as such, is unlikely to impact on the visual amenities of
neighbouring properties from loss of light, over-dominance or loss of privacy.

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to
the character or amenities of surrounding properties.   Given the nearby neighbouring
residential properties, it is considered that suitable noise conditions should be included on
any grant of permission to ensure the scheme will not give cause to noise annoyance to
surrounding properties.

It is not considered that there would be a material loss of amenity to neighbouring
properties, as the proposed buildings would be sited a sufficient distance away from
adjoining properties. It is also considered given its layout that there will be a good level of
day lighting for the proposed development. The proposed development is considered to
be consistent with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the UDP.

The proposal is for a hotel and there will be no future occupiers.  There are no policies or
standards that relate to hotel accommodation.

Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) are concerned with traffic generation, and access to public transport.
Policies AM14 and AM15 are concerned with on-site parking. 

The site has a PTAL of 3 with bus stops just outside the site. There are currently 47 car
parking spaces on site for the permitted office use. The 100 bed hotel proposal will reduce
these to 25. 10 covered cycle parking spaces and shower facilities for staff are to be

Page 146



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

provided.  A coach drop off area and coach parking are provided.

At present access and egress to the site is from Bath Road. The proposal is to retain this
for entry only and egress will be from a new cross over on to Egerton Way at the rear of
the site. Egerton Way via Bolton's Way links to Bath Road at a signalised junction
permitting both eastbound and westbound movements on to Bath Road. However it is
intended that refuse vehicles will access and egress the site via Egerton Way.

With regard to the level of car parking provision for ratio of 1:4 guest rooms is similar to
that of other hotel developments approved by the London Borough of Hillingdon located
nearby and serving Heathrow Airport.  In addition, a coach parking bay is also proposed.
Furthermore the parking provision is consistent with the Council's adopted maximum
parking standards, therefore the scheme is considered to comply with Policies AM14 and
AM15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The Council's Highway Officer has stated that based on the transport statement the hotel
is likely to generate an additional daily total two way trips of 53 vehicles which amount to
0.25% of the existing traffic on the Bath Road A4. The maximum additional peak hour
trips from the site are 10 and occur in the morning are the Council's Highway Officer does
not consider the application would have a significant impact on the highway network.

The Council's Highway Officer has been consulted on the application and raises no
objection to the scheme, subject to a S106 requirement that a 'hopper bus' service be
used, and conditions are included to ensure the access to the building is kerbed, and that
details are submitted to ensure two-way access for refuse vehicles from Egerton Way.  As
such, it is not considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental effect
on the existing highway in accordance with the aims of Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Local
Plan.

It is considered that there are no urban design or security issues arising from the
proposal.  Access is considered in other sections of the report.

Policies R16 and AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that developments of this type incorporate inclusive
design, as do Policies 7.1 and 7.2 of the London Plan. Further detailed guidance is
provided within the Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

The hotel would be consistent with the London Plan and HDAS Accessibility policy
standards including meeting the minimum provision of accessible bedrooms as a
percentage of the total number of bedrooms. Other features include disabled toilets on the
ground and first floors, lifts from the car park level to the rest of the hotel, four lifts to
service the building, and fire refuges on each upper floor.

Subject to an appropriate condition it is considered that the proposal would provide an
inclusive environment for future users in accordance with Policies R16 and AM13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)and Policies 7.1
and 7.2 of the London Plan.

No residential units are proposed as part of this application.  As such, this is not relevant
to the application.

Page 147



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

TREES AND LANDSCAPING:

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and
the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

The site as it stands is largely devoid of vegetation, albeit there are some trees that will be
required to be removed to enable the development. An accurate site survey has been
submitted with the application which plots trees on to the site, the tree species, and their
quality and spread.  None of the trees in the vicinity are protected by a Tree Preservation
Order or by Conservation Area designations. The most prominent tree is a Cherry,
situated on the east boundary towards the north-east access point. Aside from this two
small trees to the west (behind the petrol station) will be lost, as will the hedgerow along
the northern boundary. The Council's Landscape Officer considers the removal of these
trees is not a constraint on development due to their poor condition and landscape value.

With regard to the ground floor site layout the scheme provides an improvement over the
existing expanse of hard standing and palisade fencing with details provided of indicative
hard and soft landscaping.  Subject to the relevant planning conditions in respect of
landscape maintenance and revisions/further detail on the planting plan the scheme is
considered to provide a satisfactory landscape arrangement that complies with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

ECOLOGY:

The site is currently almost entirely given over to hardstanding. In view of this and the
safeguarding measures detailing within the application documents in respect to trees and
shrubs on neighbouring sites it is not considered the scheme will have an adverse impact
on the areas ecology.

London Plan policies 5.16 and 5.17 requires adequate provision of refuse and recycling
facilities for new development and for their location to be appropriate in terms of enabling
ease of collection from the site. The bin area is an enclosed area to the north of the site
with access for staff and access from Egerton Way for the refuse collectors. 

The level of waste and recycling store provision, its location and means of collection by
refuse vehicles is considered to comply with the Council's requirements.  However, it is
recommended that a condition be imposed to ensure the collection of waste is carried out
at times to avoid impacts on the neighbouring area. Subject to such a condition, the
scheme is considered satisfactory and complies with the standards set out in London Plan
policies 5.16 and 5.17.

Notwithstanding the above it should be noted the hotel ultimately has considerable
discretion over which waste management methods are used on site.

Policy 5.7 of the London Plan advises that boroughs should ensure that developments will
achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions of 40% from on site renewable energy
generation (which can include sources of decentralised renewable energy) unless it can
be demonstrated that such provision is not feasible. Policy 5.4 of the London Plan
requires submission of an assessment of the energy demand and carbon dioxide
emissions from proposed major developments, which should demonstrate the expected
energy and carbon dioxide emission savings from the energy efficiency and renewable

Page 148



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

energy measures incorporated in the development. The application has been supported
by an Energy Statement that is considered satisfactory to determine the application
favourably albeit with more information required to be provided by the applicant. This extra
information can be handled by planning condition.

Subject to conditions to secure the installation of measures in accordance with the London
Plan requirements the scheme complies with London Plan Policies 5.3, 5.4 and 5.7.

The site does not fall within a flood zone and no issues relating to flooding have been
identified.

London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13 require that development proposals should use
sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS) unless there are good reasons for not doing
so. Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(Nov 2012) requires that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development
does not increase the risk of flooding.  The scheme would need to investigate rainwater
harvesting, including the provision of a ground storage tank, and permeable paving to
replace the existing large expanse of non permeable hard standing. 

Subject to conditions, the proposal is considered to comply with the intentions of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One and Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) in
respect to water management and London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13.

The Council's Floodwater Management Officer raises no objection to the scheme, subject
to the application of the relevant SUDS and sustainable water management planning
condition.

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit has been consulted on the application and
raises no objection on noise or air quality subject to appropriate conditions and planning
obligations in respect of air quality monitoring.

The objections raised during the public consultation are addressed in the report above.

Should the application be approved, a range of planning obligations would be sought to
mitigate the impact of the development, in line with saved policy R17 of the Council's
Unitary Development Plan.

The obligations sought are as follows:

1. Highways: to secure all necessary works and the provision of a Travel Plan, including
Sustainable Transport Measures (such as a hopper bus service).

2. Construction Training: either a financial contribution, or an in-kind scheme delivered
during the construction phase of the development, should be secured (in either event the
'obligation' should be delivered equal to the formula of £2,500 for every £1 million build
cost).

3. Air Quality: in line with the SPD and given the site is located in an air quality
management area then a contribution in the sum of £25,000.

4. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a financial contribution equal to 5% of the

Page 149



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

total cash contributions towards the management and monitoring of the resulting
agreement.

In addition to S106 contributions and other requirements, the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) has introduced a charging system within Hillingdon
of £35 per square metre of gross internal floor area to be paid to the GLA to go towards
the funding of Crossrail. This application is CIL liable with respect to new floorspace being
created, and the sum calculated for this application based on the floor area proposed is
£63,727.94.

No enforcement action is required in this instance.

CONTAMINATION:
The most significant potential contamination identified relates to contamination from the
adjacent petrol station to the west of the site. The Council has a ground investigation
report from 2005 which indicate fuel contamination of the soil and groundwater at the
petrol station. However this area was not investigated further in later investigations when
soil contamination was identified in other locations.

The Council's EPU states that it appears remedial works may not have taken place, and
the contamination appears to be located to the south east of the source in the
groundwater. As such, it is recommend to include the standard contaminated land
condition on any permission that may be given to ensure risk from contamination is
suitably assessed and addressed for the extension and the conversion, as required.

It is noted the proposed development is an extension and conversion of the existing office
building to a hotel use. The desk study refers to soft landscaping such as planters, but
does not expand any further, however the landscaping specification document and plan
seems to suggest there may be more works, therefore the soil imports and landscaping
condition is recommended to ensure the soils are suitable for use.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

GENERAL
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

PLANNING CONDITIONS
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing

Page 150



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010). 

EQUALITIES AND HUMAN RIGHTS
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

There is no objection to the principle of the development involving the change of use of
the site to a hotel. 

The general size, height and massing of the proposed building is considered acceptable
echoing the height and scale found on the surrounding buildings.  It is not considered that
the development would have any detrimental impact on the street scene, or upon
anyone's residential amenity or upon the setting of the Green Belt land lying opposite. 

Consideration has been given to the principal issue of traffic generation, vehicles servicing
the hotel, and guest collection and drop off, and these matters taken together are not
considered would have any significant detrimental impact on the existing highway network
or highway safety given the sightlines outside the site, the bar on cars parking for any
length of time (with double yellow lines in place), the small number of vehicular
movements anticipated (as a 100 bedroom hotel) serving Heathrow where most guests

Page 151



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

will arrive by public transport or taxi . 

The National Planning Policy Framework is clear that there should be a presumption in
favour of sustainable economic development and that the key priority is the delivery of
new jobs. The application proposals would deliver on these objectives, bringing a number
of full time equivalent jobs on site (plus additional job creation in off site hotel servicing
role) and secure the regeneration of a site that presently is unused and does not presently
positively contribute to the street scene and with little prospect that the existing building
being brought back to active life. 

The scheme is considered to be visually acceptable and is considered to comply with
relevant London Plan and Hillingdon Local Plan policies accordingly, approval is
recommended subject to appropriate conditions and planning obligations.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations; and Revised
Chapter 4, Education Facilities: September 2010.
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Adam Flynn 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 152



Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

FORMER RAF UXBRIDGE  HILLINGDON ROAD UXBRIDGE 

Reserved matters (appearance, layout, scale and landscaping) in compliance
with conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 3, First Application (Western Side of
District Park) of planning permission ref: 585/APP/2009/2752 dated
18/01/2012 for the proposed mixed-use redevelopment of St Andrews Park
(Former RAF Uxbridge site).

18/09/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 585/APP/2013/2719

Drawing Nos: 2152-DP-LA-06 Rev A
2152-DP-TS-09
5105977/UXB/SCA/0145
5105977/UXB/SCA/0525 Rev A01
2152-DP-LA-07 Rev A
2152-DP-LA-08 Rev A
2152-DP-LA-09
2152-DP-DT-04
2152-DP-DT-01 Rev A
2152-DP-TS-04
2152-DP-TS-05
2152-DP-TS-06
2152-DP-TS-07
2152-DP-TS-08
Design and Access Statement - 2152-DP-DAS-02_LB (September 2013)
Landscape Management Specification - 2152-RE-14 (September 2013)
Soft Landscape Specification - 2152-DP-SP-02 (September 2013)

Date Plans Received: 18/09/2013
26/11/2013

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to Layout, Scale,
Appearance and Landscaping for the first application of Phase 3 for the creation of the
western side of the District Park within the site.

The application site forms part of St Andrews Park (the former RAF Uxbridge Site), for
which outline consent was granted under application reference 585/APP/2009/2752 for a
residential led, mixed-use development.

The Reserved Matters application relates to approximately 10 hectares of land, located to
the north east of the St Andrews Park Site. The application site is bordered by the River
Pinn to the east, and the residential development in Phases 3, 5 and 7 to the west.  The
proposed school sits to the north of the park.

The District Park is an existing area of open parkland and woodland, bisected by the
River Pinn, and will provide 14 hectares of public open space for residents and visitors.
The park is to be developed in two phases, the first as part of Phase 1 of the
development of the site (previously approved), and the second as part of Phase 3 (this
application).  The park as a whole will provide sports pitches and play opportunities as

18/09/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 9

Page 155



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

part of future phases of the development.

This area of park has been designed in accordance with the parameter plans and
Landscape and Open Space Strategy approved at outline stage. The proposed
landscaping would have a positive impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, in accordance with the vision of the approved design code. Therefore,
it is recommended that the application be approved.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM4

COM5

Accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 2152-DP-LA-06 Rev
A; 2152-DP-LA-07 Rev A; 2152-DP-LA-08 Rev A; 2152-DP-LA-09; 2152-DP-DT-01 Rev
A; 2152-DP-DT-04; 2152-DP-TS-04; 2152-DP-TS-05; 2152-DP-TS-06; 2152-DP-TS-07;
2152-DP-TS-08; 2152-DP-TS-09; 5105977/UXB/SCA/0145; 5105977/UXB/SCA/0525
Rev A01, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Design and Access Statement - 2152-DP-DAS-02_LB (September 2013)
Landscape Management Specification - 2152-RE-14 (September 2013)
Soft Landscape Specification - 2152-DP-SP-02 (September 2013)

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

1

2

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 156



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1 Building to Approved Drawing3

including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM2

AM7
AM8

AM9

BE13
BE18
BE19

BE23
BE38

OE1

OE7

OE8

OL1

OL2
LPP 2.6
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.16
LPP 7.18
LPP 7.21

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation
(strategies) facilities
(2011) Large residential developments
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Strategic Approach
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Walking
(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Local character
(2011) Public realm
(2011) Green Belt
(2011) Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency
(2011) Trees and woodland

Page 157



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms part of St Andrews Park (the former RAF Uxbridge Site), for
which outline consent was granted under application reference 585/APP/2009/2752 for a
residential led, mixed-use development.

The Reserved Matters application relates to approximately 10 hectares of land, located to
the north east of the St Andrews Park Site. The application site is bordered by the River
Pinn to the east, and the residential development in Phases 3, 5 and 7 to the west.  The
proposed school will sit to the north of the park.  The District Park is an existing area of
open parkland and woodland, bisected by the River Pinn, and will provide 14 hectares of
public open space for residents and visitors. 

The area surrounding the site will be predominately residential, both existing and
proposed, and comprises a combination of 3 - 4 storey apartment blocks and two and
three storey terraced and semi-detached housing. 

The site is situated within the Green Belt.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to Layout, Scale,
Appearance and Landscaping for the first application of Phase 3 for the creation of the
western side of the District Park within the site.

The Reserved Matters application relates to a 10 hectare plot of land, located to the north
east of the St Andrews Park Site. The application site is bordered by the River Pinn to the
east, and Phases 3, 5 and 7 to the east.

The District Park is an existing area of open parkland and woodland, bisected by the River
Pinn, and will provide 14 hectares of public open space for residents and visitors.  The
park is to be developed in two phases, the first as part of Phase 1 of the development of
the site, and the second as part of Phase 3.  The park as a whole will provide sports
pitches and play opportunities as part of future phases of the development.

The application involves works to the existing vegetation which is generally to be retained,
with the under storey in the woodland managed and maintained to benefit wildlife and
discourage public access.  Limited planting of large trees is proposed to extend the
parkland edge in areas to be reinstated as grassland on the park boundaries.  Areas of
shrub and hedge planting are proposed around the play area, within the attenuation
basins and to screen the infalls and outlets associated with the proposed drainage
infrastructure.  As part of the site-wide SUDS strategy, two attenuation basins are
proposed to the south of the sports pitches.  Drainage routes, both surface water and foul
water, associated with the adjacent residential development are to be routed through the
park. Ecological enhancements, including the creation of log piles and installation of bird
and bat boxes are also proposed.  Street furniture, including interpretation boards,
signage, seating and dog bins would also be installed.

The park will contain both formal and informal play opportunities, as well as sports pitches
and a retained timber trim trail.  Specific play provision will be provided within the park in a
Neighbourhood Play Space.  The existing level grass area will accommodate two sports
pitches, one senior size (90m x 45.5m) and one U11-U12 pitch (68.25m x 42m).  At
specific points on the western side of the river, vegetation will be kept clear and some
localised ground work to the bank will create shallow, gravelled access points to the river.

Page 158



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning permission was approved on 18th January 2012 under application reference
585/APP/2009/2752 for the following:

1. Outline application (all matters reserved, except for access) including demolition of
some existing buildings and:
a. Creation of up to 1,296 residential dwellings (Class C3) of between 2 to 6 residential
storeys;
b. Creation of up to 77 one-bedroom assisted living retirement accommodation of between
3 to 4 storeys;
c. Creation of a three-form entry primary school of 2 storeys;
d. Creation of a hotel (Class C1) of 5 storeys of up to 90 beds;
e. Creation of a 1,200 seat theatre with ancillary cafe (Sui Generis); office (Class B1a) of
up to 13,860 sq m; in buildings of between 4 to 6 storeys as well as a tower element
associated with the theatre of up to 30m;
f. Creation of a local centre to provide up to 150 sq m of retail (Class A1 and A2) and 225
sq m GP surgery (Class D1); means of access and improvements to pedestrian linkages
to the Uxbridge Town Centre; car parking; provision of public open space including a
district park; landscaping; sustainable infrastructure and servicing.

2. In addition to the above, full planning permission for:
a. Creation of 28 residential dwellings (Class C3) to the north of Hillingdon House of
between 2 to 3 storeys as well as associated amenity space and car parking;
b. Change of use of Lawrence House (Building no. 109) to provide 4 dwellings 
(Class C3), associated amenity space and car parking including a separate freestanding
garage;
c. Change of use and alterations to the Carpenters building to provide 1 residential
dwelling (Class C3);
d. Change of use and alterations to the Sick Quarters (Building No. 91) to provide 4
dwellings (Class C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking;
e. Change of use of Mons barrack block (Building No. 146A) to provide 7 dwellings (Class
C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking;
f. Change of use of the Grade II listed former cinema building to provide 600sq m Class
D1/2 use (no building works proposed);
g. Change of use and alterations to the Grade II listed Hillingdon House to provide 600 sq
m for a restaurant (Class A3) on the ground floor and 1,500 sq m of office (Class B1) on
the ground, first and second floors.

Since the approval the applicant has discharged a number of the pre-commencement and
other conditions attached to the permission relating to the application site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

A network of accessible paths is to be provided.  These delineated routes will provide
through-routes across the park. The existing link from Hillingdon House over the Leigh
Mallory Bridge will be retained, but vehicle access will be restricted and it will become a
cycle route linking Hillingdon House and the east of the development with the western
development and Uxbridge town centre beyond. The rerouted Celandine riverside walk will
pass through the southern section of the application site.  The three existing bridges
across the river will be retained and refurbished.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 159



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI2

PT1.EM2

PT1.EM4

PT1.EM5

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

PT1.EM8

PT1.T1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Leisure and Recreation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Open Space and Informal Recreation

(2012) Sport and Leisure

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Accessible Local Destinations

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM2

AM7

AM8

AM9

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE23

BE38

OE1

OE7

OE8

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

Part 2 Policies:

Page 160



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OL1

OL2

LPP 2.6

LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 6.1

LPP 6.9

LPP 6.10

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.5

LPP 7.16

LPP 7.18

LPP 7.21

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation (strategies)
facilities

(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Walking

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Local character

(2011) Public realm

(2011) Green Belt

(2011) Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency

(2011) Trees and woodland

Not applicable19th October 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 60 local owner/occupiers on 26/09/2013.  The application was also
advertised by way of site and press notices.  No responses have been received.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:

Provided that the reserved matters do not impact upon the floodplain compensation storage or the
buffer strip approved under application 585/APP/2009/2752, we have no objections to this
application.

Annex B of the Thames River Basin Management Plan describes the River Pinn as a heavily
modified watercourse and currently at 'moderate' status.  We would welcome bank enhancements
and measures to allow the natural flow of the river to keep the channel clear and maintain a
suitably natural river profile.

Any opportunities to improve the status of the watercourse under the Water Framework Directive
should be explored.  For example we would encourage the removal of artificial bank reinforcements
or structures to help the river return to a more natural state and improve the river habitat as well as
options to further enhance the river corridor, such as backwaters and ponds

Page 161



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

TREE/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

The landscaping drawings itemise the proposed hard and soft landscape components throughout
the park. While the proposals generally reflect the outcome of pre-application discussions, the
following issues are raised:

The Design & Access Statement includes a description of the District Park and sets out the
landscape objectives and main components of the park. However:
i) Figure 8, Concept Design for the LEAP, indicates a sketch proposal for a play area.  More
detailed plans will be required, and it may be necessary to fence the area.
ii) Further details are required of the refurbishment and repainting of the three existing bridges (3.5)
and metal railings of the bridges.

Proposed tree work:
i) The pink shading along the river corridor represents indicative areas to be kept clear of
understorey and tree canopies raised as necessary to maintain views towards Hillingdon House
(with the exact scope of works to be confirmed on site).  The Conservation Officer has noted that
there are several areas well to the north of Hillingdon House (Drawing No. 06) which will provide
views of the house. Potential views of the house are likely to be due west of the house (drawing No.
07), however, the riverside vegetation / woodland is particularly deep at this point.
ii) There may be other woodland management operations required along the river corridor,
unrelated to creating vistas.
iii) The exact scope of works on site should be subject to a detailed site inspection by Allen Pyke
(landscape consultants) and LBH specialists (including the woodland manager) to agree a tree
work schedule and mark up trees. 

Proposed swales:
i) Details of all grass swales are required to ensure that they have gentle profiles (easily mown) and
to ensure that no change of levels occurs within the vicinity of existing trees. The D&AS refers to a
maximum gradient of 1:3.  Where space permits, the slopes should be much shallower.
ii) It is not clear what the slope ratios are on the swale plan (drawing No. 2152-DP-DT-01 Rev A.
However, the parallel sides alone make it appear ditch-like.

NATURAL ENGLAND:

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the
natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future
generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. Natural England has previously
commented on this proposal and made comments to the authority in our letter dated 01 February
2013.

The lack of specific comment from Natural England should not be interpreted as a statement that
there are no impacts on the natural environment, but only that the application is not likely to result
in significant impacts on statutory designated sites, landscapes or species.  It is for the local
authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent with national or local policies on
biodiversity and landscape and other bodies and individuals may be able to help the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) to fully take account of the environmental value of this site in the decision making
process, LPAs should seek the views of their own ecologists when determining the environmental
impacts of this development.

Should the proposal be amended in a way which significantly affects its impact on the natural
environment then, in accordance with Section 4 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006, Natural England should be consulted again.

Page 162



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

iii) Details of head walls and outfalls should be provided.

Recommendation:
The proposals generally reflect the outcome of pre-application discussions.  However, issues raised
in the above bullet points require clarification or additional detail.

Officer Comment:
Revised plans have been received which address these concerns.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

The scheme appears to be generally in accordance with the approved outline scheme, but the
following further information is requested:

i) With regard to the swale from the school, a cross section is required, along with a long section to
the river, together with any changes to the maintenance requirements already agreed, as this a
new swale in an area that will be maintained by the Council in the future.

ii) With regard to Tree Clearance, the plans identify areas for tree clearance on the site, but specify
final agreement on site.  Therefore the Council is required to be part of that site agreement to
ensure it meets the duel requirements of views to the house and water framework requirements to
reduce shading.  The plans are required to be amended to indicate that the Council will be included
in this final on-site agreement.

Officer Comment:
Revised plans have been received which address these concerns.

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN:

There are no design objections in principle to the proposals, however, the following comments are
forwarded:

i) The creation of viewing points opposite Hillingdon House along the western banks of the River
Pinn are supported, although there does not seem to be one directly in front of the house in the
most obvious location; the undergrowth here seems instead to be removed for the construction of a
swale rather than to open the up the view. Further north, the views will be of the new development
within and adjacent to the original service yards of the house and it is not really necessary keep
these views open.
ii) It would be useful to have an agreed lantern and standard for lighting, which is used consistently
adjacent to and within the open areas. Has any thought been given to lighting the bridges as
features and the lighting of the memorial adjacent to the Leigh Mallory Bridge?
iii) There is very little information on way finding and signposting within the park, it would be good to
have something specific to the park that reflects its history.
iv) It would also be useful to have an agreed bench/s design, litter bin, bollard etc, the
documentation is vague on this, this seems to be noted as agreed or similar.

ACCESS OFFICER:

Having reviewed drawing in respect of the above planning permission, no accessibility comments
are deemed necessary at this stage.

HIGHWAYS:

No objection, this reserved matters application raises no highways concerns.

Page 163



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

The development of the District Park was approved as part of the outline consent for the
redevelopment of St Andrews Park. The park is proposed in accordance with the
approved parameter plan and landscape strategy and no objection is raised to the
principle of the development.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Only minor structures are proposed as part of this development.  As such, no
safeguarding issues would arise.

This portion of the site is located within the Green Belt.  The fundamental aim of the NPPF
is relation to Green Belt is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the
most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness.  Policy OL1 of the Hillingdon
UDP specifies that there is a presumption against inappropriate development.  The
proposed development is not considered inappropriate as it maintains the openness of the
Green Belt and proposes open recreational space.

The application is for works to create a District Park, on the location of a current area of
open space.  As such, no buildings are involved, and the development would therefore not
impact on the openness of the Green Belt.  The works will improve the site, and will
improve the visual amenity of the area.  As the proposal does not involve any buildings,
the development is considered to comply with Green Belt policies.

The District Park is the major component of the green infrastructure of the St Andrews
Park development.  It is an existing open area of open parkland and woodland and would
provide 14 hectares of publicly accessible open space for residents and visitors when
complete.  It is, therefore, considered that the improved landscaping and appearance of
the park would have a positive impact on the visual amenities of the surrounding area, in
accordance with Policies BE13, BE15 & BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

As the application is for the development of a park, the proposed development would
cause no significant harm to residential amenity of the future occupiers of the
neighbouring residential dwellings in terms of loss of light, loss of outlook or sense of
dominance. Therefore, the development is in accordance with Policy BE20 & BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan.

The development would include the erection of various landscape items and street
furniture across the park. However, these are of a small scale, and have been designed to
ensure no impacts occur to any surrounding properties. Therefore, the development is
considered to comply with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan.

Not applicable to this application.

This application seeks reserved matters approval for the district park.  Vehicle access,
parking and pedestrian safety are dealt with in other phases of the site's development.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 164



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The design and layout of the park is in accordance with the Design Code approved at
Outline Stage and are considered acceptable in terms of Urban Design.

Access across the park area would be improved with the refurbishment of the existing
path network.

Not applicable to this application.

The proposal includes the comprehensive landscaping of the park, which is generally in
accordance with the design and landscaping approved as part of the outline permission.
Comments were received from the Council's Tree and Landscape Officer and Floodwater
Management Officer raising some concerns regarding some aspects of the landscaping
layout and swale.  Revised details have been received that address the majority of the
concerns.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Flooding and drainage issues were dealt with and overcome as part of the Outline
Planning Permission for the development.

Not applicable to this application.

No comments received.

The planning obligations for the development of the site were secured as part of the
Outline Planning Permission.

Not applicable to this application.

No further issues for consideration.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

GENERAL
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

Page 165



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PLANNING CONDITIONS
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010). 

EQUALITIES AND HUMAN RIGHTS
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks to discharge the reserved matters relating to Layout, Scale,
Appearance and Landscaping for the first application of Phase 3 for the creation of the
western side of the District Park within the site.

The application site forms part of St Andrews Park (the former RAF Uxbridge Site), for
which outline consent was granted under application reference 585/APP/2009/2752 for a
residential led, mixed-use development.

This area of park has been designed in accordance with the parameter plans and
Landscape and Open Space Strategy approved at outline stage. The proposed

Page 166



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

landscaping would have a positive impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, in accordance with the vision of the approved design code. Therefore, it
is recommended that the application be approved.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Adam Flynn 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 167



Page 168



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UXBRIDGE TECHNICAL COLLEGE PARK ROAD UXBRIDGE 

Amendment to appearance and layout of the south block previously
approved under planning permission 1127/APP/2009/443 dated 14-05-10
(Section 73 application to vary condition 28 of the original planning
permission)

20/09/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 1127/APP/2013/2739

Drawing Nos: P105 - BLOCK PLAN AS APPROVED
P110A - BLOCK PLAN AS PROPOSED
P120 - EXISTING FLOOR PLANS
P130 - APPROVED FLOOR PLANS
P140 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
P160B - COMPARISON ELEVATIONS
P161B - COMPARISON ELEVATIONS
P162B - COMPARISON ELEVATIONS (West).
P170 - SITE PERSPECTIVE (North West).
P171 - SITE PERSPECTIVE (South West).
Design and Access Statement
P180 Accommodation Schedule
ACCESS STATEMENT

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks to vary condition 28 of planning permission
Ref:1127/APP/2009/443, granted on 14-05-10, to enable changes to the consented
development for the construction of sport facilities, teaching, student care and staff
accommodation on the Uxbridge College site, Park Road, Uxbridge.

The scheme currently before Committee represents an amended proposal for the
redevelopment site from that which was approved on 14-05-10. Phase C (the South
Block) of the approved scheme has been amended because funding has been withdrawn
from the College, meaning that they are no longer able to implement the scheme which
was previously approved.  They are therefore seeking to progress an alternative
redevelopment which would also retain more existing buildings. As such, the H block,
which was to be demolished, will now be retained, re-clad and have the addition of a
mezzanine level added internally.

There remains no in principle objection to the redevelopment of the college campus for
educational purposes.

It is still considered that the proposals will enhance the character of the site, improve the
relationship between built elements and open spaces and contribute to a more attractive
street scene along Park Road.

The siting, design and landscaping of the amended are not considered to have an
adverse impact on the character and appearance of the Green Belt, or have an adverse

26/09/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 10

Page 169



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

impact on the setting of the adjoining listed Lido.

The amended campus redevelopment would not have a significant adverse impact on the
amenities of surrounding residential properties. The scheme provides suitable habitat
mitigation for the great crested newts, a European Protected Species, while the
proposals provide evidence of the retention of existing planting, and provide adequate
room for the provision and long-term growth and retention of new planting and
landscaping.

Subject to appropriate conditions and a legal agreement, the application is recommended
for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated power be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture
to grant planning permission subject to the following:

1. The Council enter into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act (as amended) and all appropriate legislation to ensure that:

(a) Cycle and Pedestrian Network - The applicant is to upgrade the existing cycle
network in the locality, including the upgrading of the existing pelican crossing to
a toucan crossing at Park Road, to details to be approved by the Council. Upgrade
works are to provide adequate lighting and surfacing and ensure that both
pedestrians and cyclists can use the links.

(b) Construction Management - Require the applicant/developer to provide and
adhere to a responsible constructor scheme. This shall include agreement that
construction traffic shall avoid peak hours and the use of Gatting Way.

(c) Green Travel Plan    Sustainable transport measures in the form of a 10 year
Green Travel Plan (which includes car park management plan to achieve a phased
reduction in car parking provision on the campus down to 350 spaces to PPG13
(Transport) levels over the 10 year period of the Plan.) in accordance with the TfL
s guidance and be implemented for the college development.

(d) A contribution of £3,000 towards Great Crested Newt habitat maintenance and
translocation routes.

(e) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of
the Section 106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not
being completed.

(f) That the applicant meets the Council's project management and administration
costs as set out in the Council's Planning Obligations Strategy Supplementary
Planning Guidance.

2. That Officers be authorised to negotiate and agree detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

3. If a Section 106 agreement has not been signed by 26-12-13, or any other period
deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture, then the
application is to be referred back to Committee for further consideration.

Page 170



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Pre Commencement Conditions to be discharged

Time Limit - full planning permission 3 years

Details/samples to be submitted

Boundary treatment details

Existing Trees Survey

The approved phases of development are shown on drawing numbers 13021 P105
Dated July 2013.

No phase of the development shall commence until all relevant prior to commencement
conditions relating to tha phase are approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
respect of that phase.

REASON
To enable the phasing of the development and ensure that the development is in
accordance with Policies referenced within the other conditions attached to this
permission.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

No works shall commence for each phase of the development until details and/or
samples of all materials (including the use of roofing material for the Sports Hall which
has low level of reflectivity), colours and finishes to be used on all external surfaces for
that phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No works shall commence for each phase of the development until there has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the
positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected in relation to
that phase. The boundary treatment shall be completed before the buildings within that
phase are occupied or in accordance with a timetable agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than

1

2

3

4

5

4. That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers subject to
the completion of the Agreement under Section 106 and other appropriate powers
with the applicant.

5. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

Page 171



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance & development

1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.
 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing

6

7

Page 172



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Landscaping Scheme

Landscape maintenance schedule

shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No development shall take place for each phase of the development until a landscape
scheme providing full details of hard and soft landscaping works has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried
out as approved. The scheme shall include: -
* Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
* Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
* Implementation programme,

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
* A minimum 2 metre wide landscaping buffer zone to allow for structural planting shall
be provided on the western boundary of the site with the properties at 114 to 120 Park
Road.
* A 4 metre landscape buffer shall provided along the northern boundary with the
Uxbridge Lido,
* Proposed finishing levels or contours,
* Means of enclosure,
* Car parking layouts,
* Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
* Hard surfacing materials proposed,
* Minor artefacts and structures (such as furniture, refuse storage, signs, or lighting),
* Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
*
Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality, to fulfil the objectives of Green Belt enhancement, to protect the setting of
the adjoining listed Lido, and to ensure that the outlook and privacy of adjoining
residential properties are not unduly prejudiced, in compliance with policies OL1, BE8,
BE20, BE24, and BE BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

8

9

Page 173



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Landscaping scheme - implementation

Refuse & Recycling - details

Disabled parking - details

Prior to first occupation of each phase of the development hereby approved, a schedule
of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 10 years for that phase shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include details of the arrangements for its implementation. Maintenance shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

The development hereby approved for Phases B and C shall not be commenced until
details of facilities to be provided for the covered and secure storage of separate
recycling and waste within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the facilities
shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
To ensure that visual amenities are not prejudiced, in accordance with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Development shall not commence until details of parking provision for wheelchair
disabled people, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall not be occupied until all the approved details have been
implemented and thereafter these facilities shall be permanently retained.

10

11

12

Page 174



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Contaminated Land

Traffic Arrangements - details

Covered & secured cycle storage - details

REASON
To ensure that people in wheelchairs are provided with adequate car parking and
convenient access to building entrances in accordance with Policy AM5 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

If during the redevelopment works for each phase of the development, contamination is
encountered which has not previously been identified, then the contamination shall be
reported and be fully assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme agreed with the
Local Planning Authority.
Upon completion of the works, this condition shall not be discharged until a
validation/verification report has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The validation/verification report shall include details of the proposed
remediation works and quality assurance certificates to show that the works have been
carried out in full, in accordance with the approved methodology. Details of any post-
remedial sampling and analysis to show the site has reached the required clean-up
criteria shall be included in the validation/verification report, together with the necessary
documentation detailing what waste materials have been removed from the site.
Any works which may form part of this remediation scheme deemed necessary shall be
completed before any part of the development is occupied (unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority). Any imported material i.e. soil shall be tested for
contamination levels therein to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. This also
applies to soil from the site used as a capping layer or topsoil in soft landscaped areas.

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details.  Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas (where appropriate)
must be permanently retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled
parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where
two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London
Plan (July 2011).

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of 120
covered and secure cycle storage spaces, changing facilities, lockers and showers for
users of and visitors to the development have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall not be occupied or
brought into use until the approved cycling facilities have been implemented in

13

14

15

Page 175



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Energy Efficiency Report

Natural England Licence

Construction ecological method statement

accordance with the approved plan, with the facilities being permanently retained for use
by cyclists.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Chapter 6 of the London
Plan (July 2011).

No works shall commence for each phase of the development until details an energy
efficiency report relating to that phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority.  The energy efficiency report shall demonstrate how the
Mayors Energy Hierarchy will be integrated into the development, including a full
assessment of energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions for both the phase and
overall development, measures to reduce this demand and the provision of 20% of the
development sites energy needs through on site renewable energy generation. The
methods identified within the approved report shall be integrated within the development
and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 5.1, 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.7, and 5.9 of the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby approved for Phases B and C shall not be commenced until
evidence is provided to the Local Planning Authority that a Natural England Licence, in
respect of the protection of the population of Great Crested Newts, has been obtained for
that phase only

REASON
To ensure the protection of a European Protected Species and that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable ecological effects on a Nature Reserve and
Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade 1 Importance in accordance with Policy EC1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Prior to the commencement of each Phase of the development, a Construction
Ecological Method Statement for that Phase shall be submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The Construction Ecological Method Statement should
be based on the recommendations set out in the Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Protected
Species Survey (2009) and include:
(i) details of how these measures will be monitored
(ii) mitigation measures that will be taken in protecting the site during demolition,
construction and restoration phases of the proposed redevelopment; and,
(iii) sensitive lighting scheme 

Each Phase of the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
Construction Ecological Method Statement.

Prior to the Occupation of the development, an Operational Ecological Management Plan
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall

16

17

18

Page 176



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Hours of use of MUGA

Flood risk assessment

Floodlighting/external lighting

No Additional Plant & Machinary

include details of the provision for future management, monitoring and funding of the site
to maintain its biodiversity interest in the future.

The scheme shall be maintained in accordance with the approved Ecological
Management Plan.

REASON
To ensure the protection of European Protected Species and that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable ecological effects on the locality in accordance
with Policies  EC1 and E5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

The All weather multi purpose games area (MUGA) hereby approved shall only be used
between 08:00 hours and 20:00 hours Mondays to Fridays, 09:00 to 17:00 hours
Saturdays and Sundays and at no time on Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON
To protect the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring premises, in accordance with Policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The development permitted by this planning permission shall only be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated February 2009 and
the following mitigation measures detailed therein:

1. Limiting the surface water run-off generated by the 100 year plus climate change
critical storm so that it will not exceed the run-off from the undeveloped site and not
increase the risk of flooding off-site.

2. The provision of sustainable urban drainage in the form of a swale and attenuation
tank.

REASON
To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water from
the site in accordance with Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination and automatic light shut off system
the use of floodlights. Any lighting that is so installed shall not thereafter be altered
without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority other than for routine
maintenance which does not change its details. 

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties and the ecology of the area, in
accordance with policies OE1 and EC3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

19

20

21

22

Page 177



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Noise & odour control scheme

Hours of use of Sports Hall

All weather playing pitch - details

Ground & finished floor levels

No additional external plant and/or machinery shall be used on the premises until a
scheme for the control of noise emanating from the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall be fully
implemented before the development hereby approved is occupied and thereafter shall
be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in
use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policy 5.2 of
the London Plan (July 2011).

No air extraction system shall be used on each phase of the development until a scheme
for the control of noise and odour emanating from the site  for that Phase has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall
be fully implemented before that phase of the development hereby approved is occupied
and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the
building remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (July 2011).

The Sports Hall hereby approved shall be used only  between 08:00 hours and 20:00
hours Mondays to Fridays, 09:00 to 17:00 hours Saturdays and Sundays and at no time
on Bank or Public Holidays.

REASON
To protect the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring premises, in accordance with Policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Development shall not commence until details of the all weather playing pitch (MUGA)
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include surface treatments, means of enclosure, lighting and associated
infrastructure and acoustic fencing.

Any floodlighting shall only be used between the hours of 08:00 to 21:00 hours Mondays
to Fridays, 09:00 to 17:00 hours Saturdays and Sundays and at no time on Bank or
Public Holidays, incorporate an automatic light shut off system, and shall be switched off
when the courts are not in use. The approved facilities shall be provided prior to the
occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained thereafter

REASON
To protect the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring premises, in accordance with Policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been

23

24

25

26

Page 178



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Secure by design

Development in acocrdance with approved plans

Water efficiency measures - details

Electric charging points - details

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Each phase of development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the
risk of crime and to meet the specific security needs of that phase of the development.
Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to first occupation of the each phase of the development hereby
approved. Any security measures to be implemented in compliance with this condition
shall reach the standard necessary to achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation
awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA)
on behalf of the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (July 2011).

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

No phase of the development hereby approved shall take place until details of water
efficiency measures for that phase, including grey water recycling, have been submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be
used until the approved measures have been implemented and shall thereafter be
permanently retained and maintained unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure the development reduces the pressure on potable water in accordance with
Policy 5.15 of the London Plan (July 2011).

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, details of the installation
(including location and type) of at least two secure electric charging points for the college
within the car park and capable of charging multiple vehicles must be submitted and

27

28

29

30

Page 179



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Automatic light switch devices

Barrier Control for Egress onto Gatting Way

Non Standard Condition

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The electric vehicle charger points
shall be installed prior to occupation of the hereby approved and retained for the lifetime
of the building.

REASON
To comply with London Plan (July 2011) Policy  5.3 and to encourage sustainable travel.

The building hereby approved shall employ devices that automatically turn the lighting off
when the rooms are not in use.

REASON
In the interests of energy conservation in accordance with policy 6.13 of the London Plan
(July 2011).

Within three months of implementation of this permission, a permanent full height barrier
arm and 'Dragons Teeth' restricting egress from the college campus (including vehicles
exiting via Gatting Way from both the main student and staff car parks) onto Gatting Way
shall be installed on site. Once installed both the barrier arm and Dragons Teeth shall be
regularly maintained and shall remain in place for as long as the development remains on
site.

REASON
To maintain the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring premises, in accordance with
Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The constructors compound identified on drawing P206 Rev A shall be maintained at a
single level and the temporary buildings shall be screened, using green 'Netlon' to ensure
that they are not visible from the adjoining Listed Lido.

REASON
To ensure the contractors compound is not detrimental to the setting of the Listed Lido
within the Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Complex in accordance with Policy BE10 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

31

32

33

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

Page 180



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM1

AM10

AM14
AM15
AM2

AM7
AM9

BE10
BE13
BE15
BE19

BE20
BE18
EC2
EC3

EC5
OE1

OE3

OE5
OE8

OL1

OL2
OL3
OL5
R16

R17

R3
BE21
BE24

BE38

LPP 4.6

LPP 5.1
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13

Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking
distance based catchment area - public transport accessibility and
capacity considerations
Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed
cycle network
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
OL3 Green Belt -
Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
Indoor sports, leisure and entertainment facilities
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
(2011) Support for and enhancement of arts, culture, sport and
entertainment provision
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage

Page 181



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3

4

The submitted Flood risk Assessment (FRA) shows that surface water discharge for any
redeveloped areas of hard standing will be attenuated for the 100 year plus climate
change critical storm. We would advise that an improvement to the existing building and
surface water disposal should also be incorporated where possible. Please also refer to
CIRIA Guidance W012 Sustainable Water Management in Schools for further
information.  

In line with Policy 4A.14 Sustainable Drainage (Page 213) of The London Plan (Spatial
Development Strategy for Greater London, Consolidated with Alterations since 2004
(GLA February 2008), rainwater harvesting should also be incorporated within the
drainage scheme for the site.  

In order to check that the proposed storm water system meets the Environment Agency's
requirements, the following information should be provided: 

a) A clearly labelled drainage layout plan showing pipe networks and any attenuation
ponds, soakaways and other Sustainable urban Drainage(SUDS) features. This plan
should show any pipe 'node numbers' that have been referred to in network calculations
and it should also show invert and cover levels of manholes.

b) Confirmation of the critical storm duration.

c) Where infiltration forms part of the proposed storm water system such as infiltration
trenches and soakaways, soakage test results and test locations are to be submitted in
accordance with BRE digest 365.

d) Where on site attenuation is achieve through attenuation ponds or similar, calculations
showing the volume of these are also required. 

e) Calculations should demonstrate how the system operates during a 1 in 100 year
critical duration storm event, with an appropriate allowance for climate change in line with
PPS25. If overland flooding occurs in this event, a plan should also be submitted
detailing the location of overland flow paths.

You are advised that any roofing materials submitted shall be of a low reflectivity and all

LPP 5.2
LPP 5.7
LPP 6.12
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.16
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.8
LPP 8.2
LDF-AH

NPPF

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Renewable energy
(2011) Road Network Capacity
(2011) Parking
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Improving air quality
(2011) Green Belt
(2011) Biodiversity and access to nature
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology
(2011) Planning obligations
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

Page 182



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I2

I3

I4

I5

Building to Approved Drawing

Encroachment

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

Party Walls

5

6

7

8

9

materials submitted in relation to condition 3 must be appropriate to the setting, including
the neighbouring Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Complex.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours
and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays
or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that
the Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further
information and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning

Page 183



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I11

I12

I13

I15

I34

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

Notification to Building Contractors

Asbestos Removal

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

10

11

12

13

14

& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Page 184



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

15

16

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development. 

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-
· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice.  AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, services and premises.  Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you.  A guide for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that planning permission does not override any
legislation designed to protect European Protected Species, including The Conservation
(Natural Habitats etc) Regulations 1994.  You should contact Natural England (Tel: 020
7831 6922) if you require further information.

Your attention is drawn to conditions 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 25, 26, 29,
30 and 32, which must be discharged prior to the commencement of works. Subject to
the submission of the appropriate and acceptable details pursuant to these conditions,
the Council will accept the discharge of these conditions on a phased basis in
accordance with the three main phases of the development. The three main phases of

Page 185



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I28 Food Hygiene

17

18

19

3.1 Site and Locality

The Park Road Campus is one of two campuses run by Uxbridge College in the London
Borough of Hillingdon. Employing approximately 400 full-time staff, it provides a range of
courses primarily serving the young adult market.

The Campus is located in the southwest corner of a triangular piece of land, bounded by
Park Road to the west, the A40 corridor in the north, and the Metropolitan Railway Line to
the southeast, which historically formed part of Hillingdon House Farm. The campus is
immediately bounded by a residential complex known as Darrell Charles Court to the
southeast, residential accommodation to the northwest comprising, Brookfield, a former
residential home for the elderly, a newly constructed residential development adjacent to
the student's car park and privately owned housing in Brearley Close. The disused
Uxbridge outdoor pool, which is is a Grade II listed building and its associated car park

development are defined as Phase A: comprising construction of new sports hall,
covered link between A and B Block, associated external works and landscaping
including construction of MUGA and motor vehicle workshop extension; Phase B:
comprising construction of North block replacement; and, Phase C(1, 2 and 3):
comprising construction of the South Block extensions. 

Where phase/s have already been completed and conditions relating to those phase/s
have already been discharged, there will be no requirement to resubmit details relating to
those phases.

For further information and advice contact  Residents Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge
(Tel: 01895 250230).

You are advised that should a scheme for Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) be proposed
for the site, you should liaise with the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer to
ensure that this is compatible with the Council's CCTV system.

The Council's Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the use of the
premises so as to ensure compliance with the Food Safety Registration Regulations
1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The Health and Safety
at Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: - Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Telephone 01895
250190).

On this decision notice, policies from the Council's Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 186



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

has undergone major renovation and is located to the northeast. Residential development
has recently been constructed on the open land to the east of the campus, while
the Metropolitan railway lines run along the southern boundary of the College.

Located between the southeast extent of the campus and Darrell Charles Court is the
Uxbridge College Pond, which is classified as a Nature Reserve and a Nature
Conservation Site of Borough Grade 1 Importance in the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan. The pond is of ecological significance as it is identified as containing a good
population of Great Crested Newts (T. cristatus), a species whose habitat is protected
under both UK and European legislation.

Located to the east and southeast of the site is the western extent of the Uxbridge
Common Meadows Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade 2 significance. Most of
the interest lies in the old meadows to the east of the Uxbridge Common Sports Ground
but also in the vicinity of the southern extent of the Uxbridge College campus, which
includes the well vegetated bank of the Metropolitan railway line, including mature Willow
and Oak trees.

The main college car park is accessed from the eastern end of Gatting Way, which
connects with Park Road, a dual carriageway linking Uxbridge Town Centre with the A40
to the north. There are three detached houses fronting the south side of Gatting Way.
Gatting Way also serves 18 dwellings in Brearley Close which is a cul-de-sac located to
the west of the car park , the Uxbridge Cricket Ground and the Hillingdon House Farm
athletics track.

The existing buildings vary in height from one to four storey and vary in design according
to their age. The main entrance to the college buildings is via the 4 storey Academy
building. There are currently 450 parking spaces available within the college grounds.

Phases A, B and C(1) of the approved masterplan for the site have been completed.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The current application seeks a minor material amendment under S73 of the Town and
Country Planning Act to alter the approved scheme ref:1127/APP/2009/443 granted on
14-05-10 for the construction of sport facilities, teaching, student care and staff
accommodation on the Uxbridge College site. 

The approved scheme is for a phased development. Phases A, B and C1 have been
implemented. However, the applicants have submitted that due to changes to the
College's curriculum and reduced funding, the completion of all of these phases to the
approved design is now no longer feasible. The College is therefore seeking to progress
an alternative redevelopment which would reduce the scale of the proposed buildings
while providing additional faciltiies and improving the appearance and accessibility of the
retained buildings.

The proposal currently before the Council represents a set of amended plans proposing
the following amendments to the scheme previously considered:
· Phase C2 - Reduction from 4 storey to 3 storey and change to external material finish. 
· Phase C3 - Decrease in footprint, reduction from 4 storey to 3 storey and change to
external material finish.
· Existing Block H - Currently has Planning Permission to be demolished, but will now be
retained, re-clad and have the addition of a mezzanine level added internally.

Page 187



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The site has a long history of planning applications relating to additional buildings,
extensions, and associated signage and landscaping. Recent approvals include the
cladding and refurbishment of Block A and Block E, (Refs 1127/APP/2002/454 &
2003/464), granted on 3/5/2002 and 22/8/2003 respectively; the construction of the four
storey Academy Building (Ref: 1127/APP/2000/145), granted on 11/4/2001; one and 2
storey extensions to the technical centre (Ref: 1127/APP/2004/631), granted on
25/45/2004 and a three storey new mall extension approved on 5/5/2005 (ref:
1127/APP/2005/795).

Committee resolved to grant planning permission on 20/06/2005 for redevelopment of the
campus, for a scheme which included enabling residential development comprising 28
units on the college car park. This application was subject to a S106 Agreement which
has not been signed and the decision notice has therefore not been issued.

A similar scheme but with a new build nurses training, student care and staff
accommodation as enabling development, in association with the Buckinghamshire
Chilterns University College UK (ref:1127/APP/2005/1604) was granted on 21 July 2008.

The Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Centre complex has been constructed on the
neighbouring site.

On the 9th June 2009 Committee determined to grant planning permission for:
A) Part refurbishment and part demolition of existing college buildings to provide a total of

As such, consideration is limited to these changes.

The revised proposals represent a reduction in gross external floor area of 2,406m² from
the currently approved scheme. 

The proposed new Phase C2 & C3 Blocks will provide the following accommodation:
- 5x Workshops/Studios
- 18x Classrooms
- 3x Staffrooms
- 15x WC's (including 3 x Accessible WC's)
- 1x Examination Hall (to replace existing temporary facility)

The revised proposals also seek to include an enhancement to Block 'C' in the form of
elevational treatment. This will consist of an upgrade to current materials and some over
cladding to help contribute to a cohesion between the existing retained buildings and the
new proposals.

There will be two principle phases to the proposal:
· Phase C3 - Construction of the 3 storey teaching accommodation block and recladding &
internal works to Block 'H'
· Phase C2 - Construction of the 3 storey infill teaching accommodation block between
Phases C1 and C3.

In terms of sustainable design, the proposals include optimising natural light and use of
natural ventilation wherever possible. The proposals include 20% renewable energy
production by installing Ground Source Heat Pumps, and will seek to achieve a BREEAM
score of 'Excellent'.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 188



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11,421m2 Class D1 (Education) accommodation, associated sports facilities, ancillary
accommodation, access, car parking, servicing and associated landscaping; and
B) The provision of 2,933m2 of temporary accommodation for class D1 (Education)
purposes during the construction period.

The current proposal represents amendments to the scheme approved on 14-05-10. The
amendments are described within the 'Proposed Development' section of this report.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon House Farm Planning Brief:
Section 5 of Planning Brief for the site sets out the following development objectives for
Hillingdon House Farm;
(a) Safeguard the Green Belt from inappropriate development and retain and enhance its
character;
(b) Have special regard to the desirability of preserving the outdoor pool, its building and
their setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which they possess,
linked with bringing the listed pool back into beneficial use.
(c) Protect and enhance areas of importance for nature conservation.
(d) Secure a comprehensive package of environmental improvements; in particular to
enhance the visual amenity of the site and reduce the impact of any development through
comprehensive landscaping proposals.
(e) Retain key views across and within the site, and in particular to maintain the openness
of the Green Belt and the setting of the listed pool.
(f) Ensure the retention of public open space for open air recreational uses within the
Green Belt area, including the provision of playing pitches for a range of outdoor sports.
(g) Provide complementary sports/leisure/community uses on the site balanced between
formal and informal so as to provide a wide range of facilities for as large a cross section
of the public as possible.
(h) Maintain and enhance the built facilities provided by Uxbridge college for the benefit of
the community;
(i) Achieve a high quality development that respects its setting, in the context of the Green
Belt, listed outdoor pool, the areas of nature conservation values, and the existing built up
areas. In particular, to ensure that the built facilities are located, designed and landscaped
to contribute positively to the character of the area and to enhance the setting of the listed
outdoor pool and the visual amenity and openness of the Green Belt.
(j) Maintain the amenity of adjoining residents and those living in the vicinity, though
careful siting and orientation of any new buildings and activities.
(k) Improve access for informal recreation, including footpaths and cycle ways and
bridleways if appropriate.
(l) Maintain access to the site for the Middlesex Show.
(m) Ensure that the site and the proposed developments are fully accessible for
pedestrians and people with disabilities and that they meet the needs of the community.
(n) Provide a safe and secure environment.
(o) Provide safe vehicular access to and from the site, including road improvements in the
vicinity.
(p) Maximise the use of public transport and other suitable means of travel, including the
promotion of cycling and pedestrian movements.
(q) Provide sufficient car parking provision for the development in accordance with the
Council s parking standards, including provision for disabled parking.
(r) Provide safe and secure cycle parking facilities on site in line with the Council s cycle
parking standards and to meet the needs of users of the community facilities.
(s) To secure provision of appropriate levels of affordable housing within residential

Page 189



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

development in line with the Council's planning policies as set out in the Council s adopted
UDP.

PT1.BE1

PT1.CI1

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM2

PT1.EM5

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Sport and Leisure

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Heritage

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM1

AM10

AM14

AM15

AM2

AM7

AM9

BE10

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE18

EC2

EC3

EC5

OE1

OE3

OE5

OE8

Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking distance based
catchment area - public transport accessibility and capacity considerations

Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed cycle network

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

Part 2 Policies:

Page 190



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OL1

OL2

OL3

OL5

R16

R17

R3

BE21

BE24

BE38

LPP 4.6

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.2

LPP 5.7

LPP 6.12

LPP 6.13

LPP 6.9

LPP 7.14

LPP 7.16

LPP 7.19

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.8

LPP 8.2

LDF-AH

NPPF

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OL3 Green Belt -

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Indoor sports, leisure and entertainment facilities

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

(2011) Support for and enhancement of arts, culture, sport and entertainment
provision

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Road Network Capacity

(2011) Parking

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Green Belt

(2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2011) Planning obligations

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Not applicable3rd December 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was  advertised in a local newspaper, 122 nearby owner/occupiers were consulted
and a site notice posted.  No comments have been received to the public consultation.

Page 191



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NATURAL ENGLAND

Statutory nature conservation sites - no objection
Based upon the information provided, Natural England advises the Council that the proposal is
unlikely to affect any statutorily protected sites or landscapes.

Protected Species
We have not assessed the application and associated documents for impacts on protected
species.

Natural England has published Standing Advice on protected species. The Standing Advice
includes a habitat decision tree which provides advice to planners on deciding if there is a
'reasonable likelihood' of protected species being present. It also provides detailed advice on the
protected species most often affected by development, including a flow chart for each species to
enable an assessment to be made of a protected species survey and mitigation strategy.
You should apply our Standing Advice to this application.
As Standing Advice it is a material consideration in the determination of applications in the same
way as any individual response received from Natural England following consultation.

If you have any specific questions not covered by our Standing Advice or have difficulty in applying
it to this application please contact us at consultations@naturalengland.org.uk.
Local wildlife sites

If the proposal site is on or adjacent to a local wildlife site, eg Site of Nature Conservation
Importance (SNCI) or Local Nature Reserve (LNR) the authority should ensure it has sufficient
information to fully understand the impact of the proposal on the local wildlife site, and the
importance of this in relation to development plan policies, before it determines the application.
Biodiversity enhancements
This application may provide opportunities to incorporate features into the design which are
beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting opportunities for bats or the installation of
bird nest boxes. The authority should consider securing measures to enhance the biodiversity of
the site from the applicant, if it is minded to grant permission for this application. This is in
accordance with Paragraph 118 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Additionally, we would
draw your attention to Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006)
which states that 'Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is
consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity'.
Section 40(3) of the same Act also states that 'conserving biodiversity includes, in relation to a
living organism or type of habitat, restoring or enhancing a population or habitat'.

Landscape enhancements
This application may provide opportunities to enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment; use natural resources more sustainably; and bring
benefits for the local community, for example through green space provision and access to and
contact with nature. Landscape characterisation and townscape assessments, and associated
sensitivity and capacity assessments provide tools for planners and developers to consider new
development and ensure that it makes a positive contribution in terms of design, form and location,
to the character and functions of the landscape and avoids any unacceptable impacts.

SPORT ENGLAND - No comments received.

ENGLISH HERITAGE - No comments received.

Page 192



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAY OFFICER

No objection. The scheme raises no highways issues, however conditions and legal agreements on
the original application which related to highways matters should be retained/reimposed.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - No comment.

URBAN DESIGN

The revised scheme appears to propose a significant decrease in terms of the bulk and footprint of
the previously approved buildings. In addition, the scheme proposes a coherent approach to the
overall appearance of the existing and proposed structures, therefore, no objection in design terms.

TREES & LANDSCAPE OFFICER

PROPOSAL:  The proposal is a S73 application to remove or vary condition 28.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.
· Tree and landscape proposals were considered in the course of the 2009/443 approval.
· The current application seeks to reduce phase C2 from four to three storeys, decrease the
footprint of phase C3 and reduce it from four to three storeys and retain / re-clad the existing Block
H (instead of demolishing it).
· In section 7.0 of the Design & Access Statement it is confirmed that the proposal will result in
mainly internal arrangements, with a net increase in the areas of soft landscape (meadows and
mown grass).
· If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the area.

RECOMMENDATIONS:  No objection subject to the addition of all of the previous tree and
landscape conditions.

S106 OFFICER

A Section 106 Agreement is in place relating to the proposal which secures the following heads of
terms:
(a) Cycle and Pedestrian Network - The applicant is to upgrade the existing cycle network in the
locality, including the upgrading of the existing pelican crossing to a toucan crossing at Park Road,
to details to be approved by the Council. Upgrade works are to provide adequate lighting and
surfacing and ensure that both pedestrians and cyclists can use the links.
(b) Construction Management - Require the applicant/developer to provide and adhere to a
responsible constructor scheme. This shall include agreement that construction traffic shall avoid
peak hours and the use of Gatting Way.
(c) Green Travel Plan    Sustainable transport measures in the form of a 10 year Green Travel Plan
(which includes car park management plan to achieve a phased reduction in car parking provision
on the campus down to 350 spaces to PPG13 (Transport) levels over the 10 year period of the
Plan.) in accordance with the TfL  s guidance and be implemented for the college development.
(d) A contribution of £3,000 towards a Great Crested Newt habitat maintenance and translocation
routes.

Page 193



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Issues of the principle of the development has been established by virtue of planning
permission  ref:1127/APP/2009/443 granted on 14-05-10 and the established use on this
site.

The uses proposed on the site remain unchanged and the small decrease in the total level
of floorspace is not considered to impact on these principles.  Accordingly the scheme as
amended is considered acceptable.

The application seeks permission for the redevelopment of an existing college site for
educational purposes.  Residential density is therefore not relevant to this consideration of
this proposal.

ARCHAEOLOGY

In relation to archaeology English Heritage have previously advised that the proposals are
not considered to have an affect on any significant archaeological remains and previous
archaeological work on the college site has shown that there is limited archaeological
potential.  They further advised that no further archaeological work is necessary in relation
to the current proposal. The proposal would have no additional impact on archaeology
over those considered under the original consent. The application would therefore comply
with Policy BE3 of the Local Plan Part 2. 

The Hillingdon House Farm Planning Brief requires any new development to ensure that
the built facilities are located, designed and landscaped to contribute positively to the
character of the area and to enhance the setting of the listed outdoor pool. Saved Policy
BE10 seeks to protect the setting of listed buildings. The proposal would not impact on the
the open views currently available from the Listed Lido and would not be detrimental to the
setting of the adjoining Listed Lido, in accordance with Policy BE10 of the Local Plan Part
2.

The proposal does not give rise to any concerns regarding airport or aerodrome
safeguarding.

Policy OL5 seeks to protect the visual amenities of the Green Belt from development
proposals adjacent to it. Policy BE13 of the UDP are concerned with the layout and
appearance of new development, while Paragraph 2.6 of the Hillingdon House Farm brief
makes reference to the buildings of Uxbridge College being clearly visible from the
surrounding open spaces.

None of the college campus lies within the Green Belt. The nearest Green Belt land is at
Uxbridge Cricket Club, located on the northern side of Gatting Way, which is heavily
planted with mature trees on both sides. Both the Uxbridge Lido and the open land directly
abutting the college to the south-east fall outside the Green Belt.

(e) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the Section 106
Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.
(f) That the applicant meets the Council's project management and administration costs .

The revised proposals do not introduce any additional requirements that would need to be
addressed by way of a legal agreement and accordingly the proposal is considered acceptable.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 194



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

With regard to the proposed buildings on the main campus, care has been taken to limit
height of the new buildings so that they blend in with the existing college development and
are not overly prominent when viewed from outside of the site. Appropriate setbacks are
provided from the site boundaries to provide the opportunity for screen planting, to ensure
that the proposals will not overly dominate the character of the adjoining Green Belt, in
compliance with policy OL5 and BE38. 

The amended proposal will result in a reduction in the height and massing of the built form
previously approved. No objection is therefore raised to the proposals in terms of the
impact on the character and appearance of the Green Belt, in compliance with relevant
policies.

Saved Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Local Plan Part 2 seek to ensure that new
development makes a positive contribution to the character and amenity of the area in
which it is proposed. Policy BE13 states that, in terms of the built environment, the design
of new buildings should complement or improve the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and should incorporate design elements which stimulate and sustain
visual interest. Saved Policy BE38 requires new development proposals to incorporate
appropriate landscaping proposals.

The primary aspects of the development which impact on the character and appearance
of the area are considered to be the South Block, North Block extension and the proposed
landscaping to the open areas fronting Park Road. The North Block and open areas
remain identical to the scheme which was previously approved and considered
acceptable.

The design of Block C (South Block), which has been significantly amended, and the
indicative choice of materials proposed  are considered to be appropriate in terms of the
wider area.  Phase C2 & C3 of the approved scheme consists of a 4 storey extension. The
height of it's parapet is approximately 900m higher than the ridge level of adjacent Block
'G', and a storey higher than adjacent completed Phase C1 Block.

The proposed Phase C2 & C3 is a 3 storey extension. It's parapet level now sits just
below the line of the eaves level of adjacent Block 'G', and lines through with the recently
completed Phase C1 Block presenting a continuation of the south block elevation.

Completed Phase C1 Block's material finish consists of the ground floor in facing
brickwork and the upper floors in coloured render. Phase C2 & C3 Block's material finish
will imitate this elevational treatment along with it's height and fenestration, to unite the
facade along the East Elevation.

Block H is now to be retained and re-clad. The elevational enhancements will consist of
coloured render to the ground floor and aluminium cladding panels to the upper floors
reflecting that of North Block and providing a signature entrance feature to the front of the
College.

There will also be some enhancements to the facade of Block 'C'. This is proposed to be
facing brickwork to the ground floor and coloured render to the upper floors as per
completed Phase C1 Block's material finish.

Overall, a number of existing buildings to be retained will benefit from re-cladding, which
will enhance their appearance and the new build elements make reference to the existing

Page 195



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

buildings in terms of height and massing and general treatment of external materials. The
chosen surface materials although distinctly different to the materials of the existing
buildings, will complement the existing and surrounding built form. 

It is considered that the proposed amendments would not have any material adverse
impacts on the character of the area. The scheme is therefore considered to comply with
the aims of Saved Policies BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) in this respect.

In relation to outlook and privacy, Policies BE21 and BE24 require new residential
developments to be designed so as to ensure adequate outlook and privacy for occupants
of the site. In relation to sunlight access, Policy BE20 of the UDP seeks to ensure that
buildings are laid out to provide adequate sunlight and preserve the amenity of existing
houses.

With regard to the proposed college campus development, the nearest residential
properties to the site are 2 pairs of semi detached properties (114 -120 Park Road), north
of the main College entrance, the flatted development south of the main campus (Darrell
Charles Court, 100-102 Park Road) and the newly constructed flatted development
(Fulmer House and Hyde House) west of the student car park.

Under the proposed amendments, the northern part of the site remains identical to that
approved. Accordingly, the relationship with Darrell Charles Court is considered to remain
acceptable.

The amended proposal no longer seeks the demolition of blocks B & C, however a three
storey extension would be added to the west of block C (closer to Hyde House and Fulmer
House). The extension would be 32m and 39m, respectively, from the closest point of
these residential buildings and accordingly would not give rise to any concerns relating to
overdominance, overshadowing or overlooking to these occupiers.

The location of the access road to the staff/visitor car park (at the rear of 114-120 Park
Road) also remains the same as was considered by the Central and South Committee on
the 9th June 2009 and it is not considered that this road would have any detrimental
impacts on the occupiers of these properties by way of noise. Nor would the proposal
impact on the traffic management or vehicle circulation arrangements secured under the
original consent.

It is proposed that directional lighting be secured by condition in order to ensure that no
nuisance to neighbouring properties arises by way of lighting.

Overall, it is considered that the distance between these residential properties and the
proposed buildings will ensure no adverse impact on adjoining occupiers in terms of loss
of light, overdominance and loss of privacy, in accordance with Policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The application seeks permission for the redevelopment of a non-residential college and
accordingly this consideration is not relevant.

Policies AM1, AM2, AM7, AM9, AM14 and AM15 of the UDP Part 2 are concerned with
traffic generation, road capacity, on-site parking and provisions for parking for people with
disabilities.  Issues relating to the compliance of access for surrounding developments

Page 196



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

with the Hillingdon House Farm Brief remain unchanged within the amended proposals 

The proposal would not alter any of the arrangements in respect of the number of parking
spaces, cycle parking, or vehicular access which were previously agreed within the
original grant of planning permission (1127/APP/2009/443) granted on 14-05-10.

The development currently proposed, which would be accompanied by a travel plan, will
not give rise to an increase in traffic generation and would benefit from an adequate level
of parking.

The Council's Highways Officer has reviewed the proposal and considers it to be no more
intensive in terms of trip generation than the scheme previously approved.  An adequate
level of parking would be retained on site to meet the needs of the college, without
resulting in overspill car parking, in line with the Council's Parking Standards and national
policy.

Measures relating to the proposed travel plan and the need for improvements to the wider
cycle network have already been secured under the previous consent.  The proposed
amendments do not altered the requirement for, or the appropriateness of these
measures which should be carried through as part any decision on the current proposal.

Issues of design and access have been discussed elsewhere in the relevant sections of
this report.

In respect of security, it is not considered that the proposal would have any significant
adverse impacts in terms of security. A condition would ensure that the scheme needed to
comply with Secured by Design Standards.

A Design and Access Statement has been submitted in support of this planning
application, which includes a detailed assessment of access arrangements.

The existing Uxbridge campus is a cluster of buildings of varying ages, quality and
functionality. The individual blocks are linked by stair cases and ramps where there are
minor level differences. Inevitably there are therefore areas in the existing buildings which
are not accessible for disabled users and therefore not compliant with the current
Disabled Discrimination Legislation.

As part of the revised proposals the main entrance to the college remains where currently
located on the northern elevation of 'G' block. Due to the sloping nature of the site, many
of the existing buildings have different ground floor levels but from the main reception
area direct access to the ground floor of the existing adjoining buildings/areas (circulation
mall [-600mm], 'A' block [-600mm], 'H' block [+610mm]) is available via appropriate
wheelchair accessible ramps which are supplemented in some areas with steps designed
to be accessible for ambulant disabled people.

Access to the new Examination Hall located within the phase C3 area is available either
directly from the Refectory or via a wheelchair platform lift from the existing 'H' block level
Stepped access adjacent to the platform lift has been designed to be accessible to
ambulant disabled people.

Access to the upper floors of 'G' block remains unchanged and is via the existing
wheelchair accessible passenger lift at the eastern end of 'G' block. Access to the upper

Page 197



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

floors of the phase C2 areas is provided via the existing wheelchair lift. An accessible
passenger lift was installed during the construction of phase C1 whilst access to the upper
floors of the phase C3 areas is provided via a new wheelchair accessible passenger lift
located within 'H' block.

Internal circulation generally will meet the requirements of Approved Document 'M' of the
Building Regulations to ensure that all areas of the building are fully accessible. This will
include suitably sized door leafs, lobbies corridor widths etc. to provide sufficient
manoeuvring space & access for wheelchairs users.The proposal will meet the
requirements and obligations under the Disability Discrimination (2005) Act and the
Special Educational Needs Disability Act (2001) with regard to the provision of physical
access.

Existing wheelchair accessible WC's are provided at each floor of 'G' block & the recently
completed phase C1 areas. These remain unchanged by the revised proposals. Access to
an existing wheelchair accessible WC facility is available from all floors of the phase C2
proposals. Fully accessible unisex WC's are provided at each level of the revised phase
C3 proposals within central circulation areas. In every location where separate sex WC
facilities are provided, at least one cubicle has been designed to be suitable for use by
ambulant disabled people.

Where necessary, materials/colours will be selected to ensure that adequate levels of
visual contrast exist between floor/wall/ceiling/door/fittings etc. in accordance with the
requirements of Approved Document 'M'.

All emergency exits at ground level of the revised phase C2 & C3 proposals include level
access thresholds to ensure that wheelchair & ambulant disabled people can safely
evacuate the building.
Both the existing staircase constructed during the phase C1 project & the new internal
staircase located within the phase C3 area have been designed to be fully accessible by
ambulant disabled people. All new & existing staircases forming part of the escape
strategy from the upper floors of the C2 & C3 proposals incorporate suitable wheelchair
refuges with communication facilities to ensure that wheelchair users can be assisted to
safely evacuate the upper floors in an emergency situation in accordance with the
colleges' evacuation management plan.

The previous scheme was reviewed in detail by the Council's Access officer who raised no
objections to the scheme, subject to conditions and Building Regulations Compliance. The
Access officer has  have evaluated the plans and the Access Statement document, and
consider there to be no adverse effect on accessibility as regards this latest proposal. The
most recent plans the design objectives of the current proposal remain the same as within
the previous scheme and seek to overcome the same shortcomings with regard to
existing accessibility on the site, in accordance with the Council's adopted policies on
accessibility.

This is not a residential scheme.

The Hillingdon House Farm Planning Brief (2003) requires that the impact of the buildings
on the visual impact of the Green Belt should be mitigated (reduced) by tree planting and
other means as appropriate, and that any new buildings on the site of the existing car park
should be located, designed and landscaped to contribute positively to the character of
the area and to enhance the setting of the listed outdoor pool. The Brief also requires that

Page 198



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15 Sustainable waste management

car parking areas in the main site should be landscaped. Policy BE38 aims to retain and
utilise landscape features of merit and to provide new planting and landscaping. The
proposal will result in the removal of fifty-six trees. Of these, only eight are considered by
the Arboricultural Assessment to be desirable specimens. Another two are considered to
be exempt from planning control due to their condition. The overall impact of the tree
losses is not considered by the assessment to be so great as to be prejudicial to the
character of the site or general public amenity.

Due to the proposal consisting of mainly internal amendments, elevational treatments and
a reduction in footprint, the circulation and landscaping will remain as per approved
scheme (Ref:  1127/APP/2009/443), with the addition of more meadow grassland and
mown grassland. The proposal would not significantly alter the development in terms of
landscaping, trees and ecology from the scheme previously agreed within the original
grant of planning permission (1127/APP/2009/443, granted on 14-05-10).

Subject to compliance with the originally imposed landscape conditions the Trees/
Landscape Officer considers that the development complies with Policy BE 38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies.

ECOLOGY

Policy EC1 states that the Council will not permit development which would be
unacceptably detrimental to sites of Borough (Grade I) Importance for Nature
Conservation and where appropriate, an Ecological Assessment must be submitted.

The ecological impacts of the previous scheme were addressed in detail including the
proposed mitigation measures. 

Natural England have stated that the proposed amendments are unlikely to affect any
statutorily protected sites or landscapes and its standing advice should be applied with
regad to protected species.

Subject to the proposed mitigation measures already agreed, it is not considetred that the
proposed amendments would have no detrimental impact on ecology. The approach
taken  with respect to Great Crested Newts is considered to be sound, as it would appear
that newts will not be affected by the works.  However, an informative is recommended to
remind the applicant that regardless of planning conditions, it is their responsibility to
ensure that great crested newts are not affected by the works and if the proposals do
result in harm to this species, they are responsible.

The agreed S106 agreement secures a contribution of £3,000 for the maintenance of the
existing pond which provides a habitat for Great Crested Newts and to ensure that
translocation routes are available on the adjoining site known as Hillingdon House Farm
(LBH Ref No: 2543/APP/2005/410).

Officers consider that the combination of a financial contribution towards ecological
enhancement in the area and conditions contained within the recommendation to
safeguard and enhance biodiversity interest addresses the requirements of Natural
England and that the ecological interests of the site and locality would be protected, in
accordance with Policies OL3, OL5, EC1 and EC3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Page 199



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.16

7.17

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Details of facilities for the storage of refuse and recyclables are to be secured by
condition.

London Plan (February 2008) policies 4A.4 and 4A.7 require the submission of an energy
demand assessment based on sustainable design and construction; a demonstration of
how heating and cooling systems have been selected in accordance with the Mayor's
energy hierarchy; and how the development would minimise carbon dioxide emissions,
maximise energy efficiencies, prioritise decentralised energy supply, and incorporate
renewable energy technologies, with a target of 20% carbon reductions from on-site
renewable energy.

The applicant has submitted a Sustainability Statement in support of the application. This
Sustainability Statement sets out, and justifies where necessary, the measures to be
incorporated across the lifecycle of the proposed Development, to ensure high levels of
performance and long-term viability. It demonstrates the commitment of the applicant to
the principles of sustainable development.

The Proposed Development includes the following sustainability and renewable energy
measures:
*use of natural ventilation and natural daylight where possible;
*efficient mechanical ventilation systems with heat recovery;
*low-energy lighting with associated daylight and PIR control;
*exploitation of building thermal mass to dampen peak cooling loads; and,
*20% renewable energy production by installation of Ground Source Heat Pumps.

A formal BREEAM pre-assessment has taken place, which has assessed the proposal
from the whole design team. The scheme is expected to score a minimum 75% at this
stage. Current Learning and Skills Council Guidance requires all capital projects to
achieve BREEAM 'Excellent'. The formal full BREEAM assessment is currently taking
place, with a completion date expected after works commence on site.

At this stage the scheme design is proposed to incorporate ground source heat pumps
only, as this option will be able to provide part of the buildings' annual heating, hot water
and cooling requirements. It also complements the current site infrastructure. Renewable
provision through the use of combined heat and power (CHP) was not deemed viable. An
assessment was undertaken very early in the project which demonstrated that use of CHP
would add little value and CHP relies on a relatively constant level of background heat and
the majority of heating to the site is already being provided by high efficiency boilers,
which the development will continue to use. It is estimated that the ground source heat
pump provision will supply 20% of the scheme's annual energy requirements.

The scheme would acheieve the same level of energy efficience and sustainable design
as that originally approved. Therefore no objection is raised in this respect.

A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted as part of the original application. The full
extent of the site is located in an area of low flood risk, Flood Zone 1, as shown on the
Environment Agency Flood Zone Map.

The area of the site to be developed is currently located outside the flood risk zones from
both the Fray's River and the River Pinn. The Environment Agency had previously
confirmed that it had no record of the area of the site ever flooding. It is therefore
considered that the site is not liable to a probable flood risk from major watercourses.

Page 200



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

The Environment Agency raised no objection to the original scheme, provided a condition
requiring the development to be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk
Assessment is imposed and discharged. Subject to compliance with this condition, it is
considered that the statutory functions of the Environment Agency will not be
compromised, the risk of flooding will be minimised and the quality of the water
environment will be protected. The proposals are therefore considered to be in
compliance with policies OE7 and OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

Therefore the proposal as amended is not considered to give rise to any concerns relating
to flood risk, subject to the imposition of the previously recommended condition.

A noise assessment was submitted as part of the original application and concluded that
the noise impact of the scheme at nearby housing will be acceptable. The assessment
identified mitigation measures, including provision of a noise barrier around the MUGA
and control of building services plant using engineering techniques.

As there is a reduction built development, it is not considered that the scheme would
significantly affect the existing residents in terms of noise from that source.

It is recommended that the original conditions limiting the hours of use of the proposed
MUGA to between the hours of 08:00 hours and 20:00 hours Mondays to Fridays, 09:00
to 17:00 hours Saturdays and Sundays and at no time on Bank Holidays be reimposed.
With regard to the new Sports Hall, it is recommended that the facility shall only be used
between 08:00 hours and 20:00 hours Mondays to Fridays, 09:00 to 17:00 hours
Saturdays and Sundays and at no time on Public & Bank Holidays, as per the original
permission.

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit also recommended a series of conditions
controlling external plant and extraction systems. Subject to the compliance with the
conditions mentioned above, it is not considered that the operational activities and vehicle
movements associated with the proposed development would result in the occupiers of
surrounding properties suffering any significant additional noise, pollution, disturbance, in
compliance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies.

Comments on the original scheme were considered in the report to the Central and South
Planning Committee on the 9th June 2009.
(i)  Light pollution, overlooking and access implications for properties on Honeycroft Hill.
These issues are considered to have been addressed within this report and the report to
the 9th June 2009 Committee.  It is noted that the long term access arrangements remain
unchanged and it is not considered that the construction access proposals have any
significant implications with regard to Honeycroft Hill.

(ii) No need for additional sports facilities.  Both national and local planning policy resist
the loss of sports facilities and encourage enhanced or additional facilities, there is not
considered to be any need to justify the provision of additional sports facilities on this site
and the principle of the development is acceptable.

A S106 Agreement was completed as part of the approved scheme, securing a full range
of planning obligations required to offset the impact of the development, including
contributions towards the provision of upgrade the existing cycle network in the locality, a
Green Travel Plan and a contribution of £3,000 towards Great Crested Newt habitat

Page 201



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

maintenance and translocation routes. A contribution was also secured in respect of
project management and monitoring.

The proposed amendments to the approved scheme would not affect the level of planning
benefits which have already been secured, which are considered adequate and
commensurate with the scale and nature of the proposed development, in compliance
with Saved Policy R17 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the Council's Planning Obligations
SPD.

However, it will be been necessary to complete a Deed of Variation, in order to insert the
new planning reference number into the existing Agreement attached to planning
permission Ref:1127/APP/2009/443.

Not applicable.

There are no other issues associated with this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010). 

Equalities and Human Rights

Page 202



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."
Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

Planning permission is sought for the construction of sport facilities, teaching, student
care and staff accommodation on the Uxbridge College site, Park Road, Uxbridge.

The scheme currently before Committee represents an amended proposal for the
redevelopment site from that which was approved on 14-05-2010.

There remains no in principle objection to the redevelopment of the college campus for
educational purposes. It is still considered that the proposals will enhance the character of
the site, improve the relationship between built elements and open spaces and contribute
to a more attractive street scene along Park Road. The proposals as a whole are not
considered to have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the Green
Belt, or have an adverse impact on the setting of the adjoining listed Lido.

The amended campus redevelopment would not have a significant adverse impact on the
amenities of surrounding residential properties. The scheme provides suitable habitat
mitigation for the great crested newts, a European Protected Species, while the proposals
provide evidence of the retention of existing planting, and provide adequate room for the
provision and long-term growth and retention of new planting and landscaping.

The applicant has demonstrated that traffic associated with the development can be
adequately accommodated on the adjoining highway network. As such, it is not
considered that the development will be prejudicial to the free flow of traffic and conditions
of general highway safety.

The proposed alterations are not considered to impact on the necessary level of
obligations and accordingly the proposal would comply with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's Planning
Obligations.

Page 203



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (8th November 21012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan 2011
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Sport England's policy statement 'A Sporting Future for the Playing Fields of England'
The Ministerial Statement 'Planning for Schools Development'
The Greater London Authority Sustainable Design and Construction (2006)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon January 2010)
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts

Karl Dafe 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 204



Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

FORMER NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES (NATS) HEADQUARTERS
PORTERS WAY WEST DRAYTON 

Reserved matters (appearance and landscaping) in compliance with
conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 3, Block D (76 residential units) of planning
permission ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348 dated 01/10/2010

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 5107/APP/2013/2325

Drawing Nos: 3304/602 Rev A
3304/603 Rev A
3304/604 Rev B
3304/605
3304/609
BHNL-STB-LT02 Rev A
100678-1801
MCA 1113/01 Rev C
5479 SS 3 Rev DC
100678-200 Rev P1
18795
Design and Access Statement - 3304/DAS/01 Rev A
3304/001 Rev B
3304/010 Rev C
3304/100 Rev E
3304/101 Rev B
3304/102 Rev B
3304/103 Rev B
3304/104 Rev B
3304/105 Rev C
3304/106 Rev B
3304/200 Rev C
3304/201 Rev C
3304/202 Rev C
3304/203 Rev C
3304/400
3304/401
3304/402
3304/403
3304/404
3304/600 Rev A
3304/601 Rev B
Accommodation Schedule - 3304/800
Letter Re C58 - 120813.L2
Letter Re C46 - 120813.L3
Construction Management/Logistics Plan - 414/CMP/001
Planning Conditions Schedule
Landscape Maintenance Schedules
Landscape Management Plan - 19/11/2013
Landscape Specification - August 2013
Pre-Assessment Report - Code Level 4 - 09/08/2013
PV Allocation - 2249

Agenda Item 11

Page 207



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

14/08/2013

Bathroom Assessment - Bellway
Code for Sustainable Homes Calculator - Type A - X

Date Plans Received: 21/11/2013
13/09/2013
15/10/2013

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Outline Planning Permission for the comprehensive, mixed-use re-development of the
former NATS site was granted 1 October 2010 (LBH Ref: No. 5107/APP/2009/2348). The
outline application was for consideration of 'Means of Access', 'Layout' and 'Scale'.
Matters which were reserved were 'Appearance' and 'Landscaping'.

Condition 2 of this consent relates to the approval of Appearance and Landscaping
'Reserved Matters'. Condition 3 requires the approval of the details of the landscaping
and appearance of individual phases of the development. Condition 3 also describes the
extent of the information required.  The subject of this reserved matters application is for
a portion of Phase 3 of the masterplan, known as Block D, and proposes 76 residential
units in a flatted block, as well as associated landscaping and all associated facilities.

In respect of 'appearance', the design of the building and landscape strategy is
consistent with the design code in the supporting documents and illustrative information
considered as part of the outline application.

The appearance of the proposed units in the context of the site and its wider
surroundings is considered to be acceptable. The submitted plans align with the
masterplan approved in outline and are considered to represent high quality design. The
development accords with Policies BE13 and BE38 of the Local Plan and Policies 7.1,
7.2, 7.3, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

In respect of 'Landscaping', the proposal is consistent with the supporting documents and
illustrative information considered as part of the outline application. As considered
previously, it deals appropriately with the site features, landscaping for residential
amenity, nature conservation, tree protection and landscape enhancement. The scheme
accords with Policies BE13 and BE38 of the Local Plan and Policies 5.10, 7.1, 7.4 and
7.21 of the London Plan (July 2011).

Although, the application is for approval of reserved matters for Appearance and
Landscaping, the outline application had a strong design code and covered these
matters in great detail.

This reserved matters application for a portion of Phase 3 accords with the outline
scheme including and in respect of the following: development principle; development
density; character and appearance; neighbour relationships and the consideration of

13/09/2013Date Application Valid:

Page 208



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

potential impacts; amenity for future occupiers; traffic and parking and safety; urban
design; access for people with a disability; affordable housing provision; landscaping;
waste management; renewable energy; drainage; as well as noise and air quality. The
scheme remains consistent and in accordance with the relevant planning polices and
guidance relating to these abovementioned issues, accordingly the application is
recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM4

COM5

Accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 3304/001 Rev B;
3304/010 Rev C; 3304/100 Rev E; 3304/101 Rev B; 3304/102 Rev B; 3304/103 Rev B;
3304/104 Rev B; 3304/105 Rev C; 3304/106 Rev B; 3304/200 Rev C; 3304/201 Rev C;
3304/202 Rev C; 3304/203 Rev C; 3304/400; 3304/401; 3304/402; 3304/403; 3304/404;
3304/600 Rev A; 3304/601 Rev B; 3304/602 Rev A; 3304/603 Rev A; 3304/604 Rev B;
3304/605; 3304/609; BHNL-STB-LT02 Rev A; 100678-1801; MCA 1113/01 Rev C; 5479
SS 3 Rev DC; 100678-200 Rev P1; 18795, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Design and Access Statement - 3304/DAS/01 Rev A
Accommodation Schedule - 3304/800
Letter Re C58 - 120813.L2
Letter Re C46 - 120813.L3
Construction Management/Logistics Plan - 414/CMP/001
Planning Conditions Schedule
Landscape Maintenance Schedules
Landscape Management Plan - 19/11/2013
Landscape Specification - August 2013
Pre-Assessment Report - Code Level 4 - 09/08/2013
PV Allocation - 2249
Bathroom Assessment - Bellway
Code for Sustainable Homes Calculator - Type A - X

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

1

2

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 209



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM2

AM7
AM8

AM9

AM13

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H4
H5
OE1

OE5
OE7

OE8

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Page 210



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The wider application site considered at Outline stage comprises a 12.59 hectare
generally rectangular shaped plot at Porters Way, West Drayton.  The application site was
previously occupied by the National Air Traffic Services (NATS) as the main air traffic
control centre for the southern England and London airports. The previous buildings have
been demolished and the construction of the previous phases has commenced on the
application site, with a large majority completed and occupied.

This Reserved Matters application relates to a portion of Phase 3 of the wider
development. It comprises the construction of a flatted block of 76 units towards the
centre of the southern area of the site, together with landscaping and associated works.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

OE11

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.8
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 3.10
LPP 3.11
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.7
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy
(2011) Outer London: Transport
(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all
(2011) Increasing housing supply
(2011) Optimising housing potential
(2011) Quality and design of housing developments
(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation
(strategies) facilities
(2011) Large residential developments
(2011) Housing Choice
(2011) Mixed and Balanced Communities
(2011) Definition of affordable housing
(2011) Affordable housing targets
(2011) Climate Change Mitigation
(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Renewable energy
(2011) Urban Greening
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Strategic Approach
(2011) Better Streets and Surface Transport
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Walking
(2011) Parking
(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Designing out crime
(2011) Local character
(2011) Public realm
(2011) Architecture
(2011) Improving air quality
(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

Page 211



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The wider Phase 3 area is split into two sections, this section between Phases 1, 2 and 4,
and the larger section running along the northern boundary of the site.  This site is located
to the rear of recently completed Block E and the under construction care home.  The
'Village Green' lies directly to the north of this site.

The most relevant planning history for the application site is the Outline Planning
Permission (LBH Ref: No.5107/APP/2009/2348 granted 1 October 2010), reserving
matters of landscaping and appearance.

Conditions 2 of this consent relate to the approval of Appearance and Landscaping
'Reserved Matters'. Condition 3 requires the approval of the details of the landscaping and
appearance of individual phases of the development. Condition 3 also describes the
extent of the information required.

CONDITION 2
Application for approval of the following reserved matters shall be made to the Local

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application relates to the portion of Phase 3 comprising 76 residential flats.

PROPOSED HOUSING IN THIS APPLICATION
The dwelling mix and numbers proposed include:
* 1-bedroom flat - 13 (3 of which are wheelchair accessible)
* 2-bedroom flat - 61 (6 of which is wheelchair accessible)
* 3-bedroom flat - 2 

All of the proposed buildings would be two or three storeys in height with conventional
tiled pitched roofs. The dwellings would not have any accommodation in the roof space.

AMENITY SPACE
All except three flats would be provided with outdoor amenity space in the way of gardens,
patios, or balconies. A 750sqm communal amenity space would be provided at first floor
level.  A total of approximately 1860sqm of amenity space would be provided on the site,
which is in accordance with adopted policy.

CAR PARKING PROVISION
This portion of Phase 3 would include the provision of 78 car parking spaces across the
development, with 67 provided at ground floor level within the building, and 11 along the
adjacent access roads.

ACCESSIBLE HOUSING
All of the 76 units would be constructed to Lifetime Homes standards. It is proposed that 9
of the flats would be wheelchair accessible, which complies with the requirement to
provide 10% of units as wheelchair accessible.  10 car parking spaces would be
wheelchair accessible. It is proposed to locate wheelchair accessible car parking spaces
close to the main entrance of the building.

SITE ACCESS
All vehicular and pedestrian access to the site would be via the permanent on-site roads
linking Porters Way to the separate areas of the development.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 212



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning Authority before the expiry of five (5) years from the date of this permission: 
(a) Appearance
(b) Landscaping

CONDITION 3
Approval of the details of the landscaping and appearance of individual phases of the
development (hereinafter called the reserved matters) shall be obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority for each phase of development, before development of that
phase is commenced.

For each phase, the detailed drawings and supporting documentation to be submitted
shall, as part of the reserved matters, accord with Design and Access
Statement Part 2 - Masterplan Design Coding (Revised March 2010) and include the
following:
(i) Hard and soft landscaping plans including drawings, specifications and supporting
details which shall include:
- An accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than 1:200, showing:-
a) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
b) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
c) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
- Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained.
- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
- Implementation programme,
- Proposed finishing levels or contours,
- Means of enclosure and boundary treatments including the positions, design, materials
and type of treatments. Generally, the boundary treatment shall ensure that adequate
pedestrian visibility splays are provided through the use of visually permeable rather than
solid fencing unless otherwise agreed with the Local planning Authority,
- Car parking layouts (including landscaping around car parking areas),
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
- Minor artefacts and structures (such as furniture, refuse storage, signs and shall include
lighting for amenity spaces and streets),
- The final design and specification of play equipment and play areas including the style of
enclosure as well as any associated furniture and features applicable
- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant,
- A schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years. The
maintenance scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its implementation.
(ii) Plans of the site showing the existing and proposed ground levels and the proposed
finished height of all proposed buildings. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed
and know ordinance datum point,
(iii) Full plans of the buildings including roof form and details of photovoltaic, ecological
roofs, lift overruns plant and any other features/installations/projections
(iv) Elevations of the buildings, including samples of materials to be used on external

Page 213



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

faces of the building shall be submitted on a materials palette board and drawings of
appropriate scale;
(v) Details at an appropriate scale showing the provision of bat and bird boxes in the
facade;
(vi) Design of lower floor elevations of commercial units including shopfronts at an
appropriate scale;
(vii) Full elevations, plans and sections at an appropriate scale showing the future
potential provision of intake/extract ventilation and ductwork for future Class A3 uses in
Block F and if applicable, the future nursing home. Alternatively, plans showing the
creation of voids through the building to roof level for the future potential provision of
extract ventilation ductwork;
(viii) Plans and elevations of all boundary treatment and means of enclosure and
incorporation of full details of height and materials;
(ix) Full plans and elevations of all buildings and any other structures, incorporating details
of materials to be used for external surfaces, including samples of all such materials;
(x) Full drawings showing the siting, design and finish heights of obscure glazed privacy
screens on all balconies and terraces.
Thereafter and prior to occupation of each phase, the scheme shall be completed in strict
accordance with the approved details and thereafter maintained for the life of the
development.

Matters relating to access, layout and scale were approved under the outline consent.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

PT1.BE1

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM8

PT1.EM11

PT1.H1

PT1.H2

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Housing Growth

(2012) Affordable Housing

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Page 214



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.T1 (2012) Accessible Local Destinations

AM2

AM7

AM8

AM9

AM13

AM14

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H4

H5

OE1

OE5

OE7

OE8

OE11

LPP 2.6

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

(2011) Outer London: vision and strategy

Part 2 Policies:

Page 215



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 2.8

LPP 3.1

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.6

LPP 3.7

LPP 3.8

LPP 3.9

LPP 3.10

LPP 3.11

LPP 5.1

LPP 5.2

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.7

LPP 5.10

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 6.1

LPP 6.7

LPP 6.9

LPP 6.10

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.5

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.14

LPP 7.15

(2011) Outer London: Transport

(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation (strategies)
facilities

(2011) Large residential developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2011) Definition of affordable housing

(2011) Affordable housing targets

(2011) Climate Change Mitigation

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Urban Greening

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Strategic Approach

(2011) Better Streets and Surface Transport

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Walking

(2011) Parking

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Public realm

(2011) Architecture

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

Not applicable11th October 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 23 local owner/occupiers on 18/09/13.  The application was also

Page 216



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

ACCESS OFFICER:
Having reviewed drawings and all related documents and photographs, Conditions 2 and 3,
pertaining to the above Planning Application are considered to have been satisfactorily met from an
accessibility perspective.

HIGHWAYS:
No objections on highways grounds.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
No objection to the proposal.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT:
No objection to this application.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:
Soft Landscape:
The restricted external space associated with this site includes an apron of Beech hedging around
the outer perimeter. This will help to visually 'anchor' the building to the ground, and provide a
planted buffer between ground floor windows, the narrow private paved spaces and the public
domain beyond.  According to this plan the railings will be installed on the outer edge of the site.

According to the hedge management strategy agreed with Inland Homes, it would be preferable to
place the hedge on the outer edge.  This will mean the establishment and maintenance of the
hedge can be managed efficiently and consistently as part of the communal maintenance contract.
It will be an inconvenience for residents to manage their own strip of hedge and is likely to lead to
variable / inconsistent quality and timing of hedge trimming.

Further details - construction, soil depths, cross-sections through the site and planters - are
required to illustrate how the podium garden will look.  Where opportunities occur, notably within
the inner podium-level courtyard garden, the planting palette includes the use of trees, multi-
stemmed shrubs and other ornamental planting with lower growing herbaceous plants, wildflowers,
grasses and ferns. 

The maintenance specification should refer to the particular needs of the roof / podium garden.

Hard landscape:
Hard landscape details include a schedule of paving, boundary railings (see above) and seating for
the inner courtyard. Only two seats are provided for this residential site. 

Given the scale of the development it would seem to be desirable to have additional seats to
enable residents to relax out of doors and enjoy the courtyard garden. 

Taps / watering points should be provided for the podium garden.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the above points are addressed.

advertised by way of site and press notices.  No responses have been received.

BAA SAFEGUARDING:
The application has been assessed against safeguarding criteria, and no safeguarding objections
are raised.

Page 217



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

The development principle was considered as part of the outline application (LBH Ref. No.
5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant
on 25th May 2010 and the decision was issued on the 1st October 2010 following the
Mayoral Stage II approval and completion of the s106 legal agreement.

As stated in the outline application committee report, it is noted in the Council's adopted
Porters Way planning brief SPD 2005, that the previous use of the site was predominantly
a single employment use. However, redevelopment (and specifically the current
application by Inland Homes) provides an excellent opportunity to create a mixed,
balanced and sustainable community as embodied in the Sustainable Community
Strategy 2008-2011, the Unitary Development Plan and the emerging Local Development
Framework, along with regional and national government policies.

Given the range of planning policy considerations in the outline application assessment
including the Hillingdon Employment Land Study (2009), Council's UDP Saved Policies,
H8, the Former NATS site, Porters Way, West Drayton SPD (NATS SPD), London Plan
Policies as well as the Mayors Stage 1 response, the loss of industrial and business land
is considered justified and a mixed use, residential-led redevelopment appropriate and
acceptable in accordance with the NATS SPD and UDP Saved Policies LE2 and LE4
which enable consideration of a change of use of industrial/employment uses.

The current reserved matters application for landscaping and appearance is consistent
with the principles and illustrative information of Outline Planning Permission. Therefore,
the scheme for this part of Phase 3 remains acceptable in principle.

Residential density can be used as an indicator of the overall character and acceptability
of a proposal. The density of the whole site was considered as part of the outline
application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning
Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision was issued on the 1st
October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II and completion of the s106.

As part of the outline application for the whole site, the provision of 773 residential units
(2585 habitable rooms) on the 12.59 ha site equates to a density of 61 units per hectare
or 205 habitable rooms per hectare. The density of the scheme remains unchanged, and
for the reasons set out in the 25th May 2010 committee report the density remains
acceptable, and it is considered to comply with London Plan policies 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, and 7.1
which seek to maximise the use of the site with a design that is appropriate and
sustainable.

The site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character or
Archaeological Priority Area, and there are no Listed Buildings on the site.  As such, it is
considered that the scheme would not impact in the heritage of the borough.

BAA Safeguarding have reviewed the application and raise no objection to the Reserved
Matters application from an airport safeguarding perspective.  As such, it is considered

Officer Comment:
Revised plans have been received that address these points raised, with the exception of the
hedging and fencing.  It is considered that as the majority of the site features the hedging within the
fencing, this approach is acceptable on this scheme also.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 218



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

Impact on the green belt

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

that the proposal would not impact on the safe operation of any airport.

The site is not located within or near to the Green Belt.  As such, it is considered that the
scheme would not impact on the Green Belt.

Not applicable to this application.

The objectives for the wider site included in the master plan, include amongst other
things, the promotion of a high quality scheme reflective of the area's general character as
well as reinforcing local distinctiveness.

This portion of Phase 3 of the development proposes 76 residential flats in a part 3, part-
4, and part 5-storey block. The building design is intended to be simple in form and
comply with the overall site principles of standardisation, economic delivery and functional
form. Detailing such as bays, windows, entrances, roof forms, structural landscaping and
balconies are similar to the existing flatted block on the site to ensure that the buildings
would be harmonious in the streetscene when viewed together.

As part of the Outline planning permission, the supporting information included a Design
and Access Statement, Design Coding and 3D perspective drawings, an Environmental
Statement, and a Townscape and Visual Analysis. These provided an analysis of the
scheme from vantage points around and within the development. Illustrative building
elevation drawings were provided as a suggestion of the future detailed design of
buildings. The Council's Urban Design Officer and the GLA were supportive of the
scheme in respect of its appearance and character and no impacts were identified to
neighbours or the area in general in this regard.  Along with details of buildings,
comprehensive information pertaining to landscaping was considered at the outline stage
by a range of consultees including Council's Landscape architect.

The subject application for reserved matters provides supporting information pertaining to
'appearance' and 'landscaping' including in particular, building elevations and sections, as
well as plans of the hard and soft landscaping arrangements. The reserved matters are
consistent with the details and principles considered at the outline stage. The scheme for
this portion of Phase 3 is considered to be wholly appropriate within the context of the
locality. It integrates with and poses no harmful impact to the character and appearance of
the area, particularly in its relationships to residential properties adjacent to the site to the
east. In addition, a sufficiently high standard of design has been achieved for the buildings
and landscaping of the site noting the extensive pre-application negotiations held with
Council's officers. 

The scheme is considered acceptable and accords with Local Plan Policies BE13, BE19,
and London Plan Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 and is not considered to generate any
significant adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

It should be noted that the consideration of potential impacts upon neighbours formed part
of the assessment of the outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which
the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and was
subsequently approved on 1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II approval and
completion of the S106. Matters considered include the following: construction impacts;
traffic and car parking; noise and general disturbance; overlooking, outlook and
overshadowing. The reserved matters are consistent with the details and principles

Page 219



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

considered at the outline stage which were considered acceptable on balance.

This part of Phase 3 is located centrally on the site, so there are unlikely to be any
impacts generated from this development that would affect neighbouring properties.  In
addition, the scale and location of the building was approved at outline stage, and the
proposed building corresponds with the information provided at that stage.

No additional or different issues have been identified as part of the consideration of this
reserved matters application for this part of Phase 2. As such, the scheme is considered
to be acceptable. The scheme accords with the UDP policies and design guidance which
seek to protect the amenity of neighbours.

AMENITY SPACE
Policy BE23 of the Local Plan states that new residential buildings should provide or
maintain external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the occupants
of the proposed and surrounding buildings and which is usable in terms of its shape and
siting.

The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) 'Residential Layouts' requires
residential developments to provide the following amenity space:

a) 1-bed flat - 20sqm of shared amenity space.
b) 2-bed flat - 25sqm of shared amenity space.
c) 3+ bed flat - 30sqm of shared amenity space.

Based on these amenity requirements, the amenity space requirements for the proposed
development results in the following:

a) 13 x 1-bed flats - 13x20 = 260sqm.
b) 61 x 2-bed flats - 61x25 = 1525sqm.
c) 2 x 3+ bed flats - 2x30 = 60sqm.

The scheme results in an HDAS requirement of 1845sqm of amenity space.

All except three flats would be provided with outdoor amenity space in the way of gardens,
patios, or balconies. A 750sqm communal amenity space would be provided at first floor
level.  A total of approximately 1860sqm of amenity space would be provided on the site,
which is in accordance with the required amount to be provided.

As such the total amenity space across the site exceeds the requirements, and provides
adequate provision for future residents across the site.  Defensible space is also provided
to all ground floor habitable room windows.

INTERNAL SPACE
In terms of internal space standards and the quality of accommodation provided, the
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) 'Residential Layouts' requires all
new residential units to be built to lifetime home standards. The London Plan 2011
provides guidance on floor space standards for new residential development to ensure
sound environmental conditions are provided on site. The outline scheme was assessed
under the requirements of the Council's HDAS, and the layout of the scheme was
developed in accordance with these standards. 

Page 220



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

The floor space provided for the units indicates that all of the units within this portion of
Phase 3 achieve, and in many cases exceed the recommended floor space standards for
the units contained in the London Plan.  In addition, the internal room layout and sizes
maintain a high quality living environment for future occupiers, and the units also provide
gardens in excess of the Council's size requirements.

The applicant has confirmed that Lifetime Home standards will be met for all the units,
and wheelchair accessible housing is provided for on site.

Overall, it is considered that the proposals meet the aims and objectives of the Council's
Local Plan, and policies within the London Plan, and would provide a high quality living
environment for all of the proposed units.

OUTLOOK
In terms of outlook for future residents, Policy BE21 of the Local Plan seek to ensure that
new development would not have a significant loss of residential amenity, by reason of the
siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings.

In this regard, it is considered that the site layout would provide a high standard of
amenity for future occupiers. The layout provides sufficient space within the block and
ensures that there is adequate separation between the units. This will result in a
satisfactory outlook from the proposed units in the block and reduces the potential for
nuisance and disturbance to the future occupiers. As such, the development is considered
to be consistent with relevant design guidance and policies BE21 and OE1 of the UDP.

All of the units would benefit from an acceptable level of privacy and light, in compliance
with the Council's standards given in The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement
(HDAS) 'Residential Layouts'.

Part of the consideration of the outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348)
included means of access for the entire site.  The Council's Highways Engineer and TFL
have considered the traffic and parking impacts of the scheme on the surrounding area.
The outline application was specifically supported by a transport assessment and travel
plan along with drawings detailing access, turning (refuse vehicle swept paths) and
parking (cars, bicycles, car club, motorcycle allowance, 10% accessible parking provision
allowance). Transport has also been considered as part of the EIA. In addition,
appropriately worded conditions of approval in respect of traffic management, parking
numbers and allocation for example were imposed on the outline consent.

It should be noted that matters relating to access and layout were approved under the
outline consent.  All potential transport impacts of the scheme were considered at the
outline stage with details for on-site matters being secured as part of planning conditions,
and no significant changes or differences posed in the current application, there are no
further issues raised by this scheme.

The reserved matters application for landscaping and appearance for this portion of
Phase 3 accords with the outline permission. The hard and soft landscaping, including car
parking locations, road layout and widths, landscaping, as well as access, are consistent
with the outline proposal.  Revised tracking diagrams have been provided with the details
of the hard and soft landscaping, which demonstrate that vehicles will be able to access
and manoeuvre around the site without damage to any landscape features or buildings.

Page 221



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

As part of the consideration of the outline scheme considered by the Central and South
Planning Committee on 24th May 2010 the details of layout, scale and access along with
illustrative information pertaining to appearance and landscaping, was considered to have
addressed urban design, access and security issues. The scheme is based on a
comprehensive masterplan which has been the subject of extensive pre-application
negotiation as evidenced by the supporting drawings, Design and Access Statement,
Design Coding and Environmental Statement.

The subject application for reserved matters 'landscaping' and 'appearance' is considered
to accord with the principles established in the supporting documents and illustrative
material of the outline application. In addition to pre-application negotiation with the
Principal Urban Design officer, resulting in the scheme submitted, the Council's
Landscape architect, Trees Officer and Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer are
all satisfied with the details of the reserved matters, noting that they are consistent with
the outline. Appropriately worded conditions have already been imposed on the outline
planning permission to cover detailed design specifics prior to commencement of work.

Overall, the illustrative information in support of the outline application has been carried
through to the subject reserved matters application, reaffirming that the proposal has the
makings of a high quality development, subject to the detailed design elements already
covered by conditions approval under the outline. This specific application for this portion
of phase 3 is considered acceptable and in line with the aspirations of the Council's SPD
and the abovementioned policies which seek high quality design in development
proposals.

The applicant has confirmed that Lifetime Home standards will be met for all the units.  It
is proposed that nine of the flats (3 x 1-bed and 6 x 2-bed) would be wheelchair
accessible.  This equates to 10% of the units on the site.  Of the car parking spaces
proposed on this portion of the site, 10 spaces would be wheelchair accessible, which
equates to one per wheelchair accessible unit. It is proposed to locate wheelchair
accessible car parking spaces close to the main entrance of each section of the building.

Since the extensive pre-application negotiations and through the assessment of the
outline scheme, access for people with a disability has been accounted for in the
illustrative information pertaining to site and particularly in the consideration of important
aspects such as individual dwelling layouts. Access for people with a disability has been
considered by the Council's Access Officer and subject to appropriately worded
conditions, which are already imposed on the outline permission, the scheme is
acceptable in this regard.

The proposed affordable housing and specialist housing components of the development
were considered as part of the outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348)
which the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and
the decision finally issued on 1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II approval
and completion of the s106 legal agreement.

The overall unit mix and affordable housing component was approved at the outline stage,
specifically, 10.9% affordable housing split between 72% is social housing (72%)
intermediate rent (28%) tenures. This equated to a proposal for 59 affordable dwellings in
Phase 1, which has been approved and is currently nearing completion.  As such, the
scheme continues to accord with the abovementioned policies which seek to maximise the
affordable housing provision to satisfy housing need.

Page 222



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.14

7.15

7.16

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Trees and landscaping have been implicit in the scheme from pre-application discussion
through to the consideration of the outline scheme, and were considered as part of the
outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South
Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision finally issued on
1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II approval and completion of the s106 legal
agreement.

The planting proposals include the provision of a hedge around the block at ground floor
level and a podium level garden for residents.  The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer
has stated that the revised landscape proposals are acceptable, and are broadly in
accordance with the plans previously submitted in support of the Phase 3 layout, with
some minor concerns. Revised plans have been received that address the points raised,
with the exception of the ground floor hedging and fencing.  It is considered that as the
majority of the site features the hedging within the fencing, this approach is acceptable on
this scheme also.

The sustainable waste features of proposed development was considered as part of the
outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South
Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision finally issued on
1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II approval and completion of the s106 legal
agreement. The application is supported by a Waste Strategy, Waste Management Plan
as well as drawings describing waste vehicular access into the site. In the course of
considering the outline scheme, the Highways and Waste teams confirmed that waste
arrangements could be suitably accommodated on the site. 

The proposed development would create refuse storage points within the building for the
storage of waste and recycling. These will be accessible for occupiers without requiring to
leave the building. The Highways Officer has reviewed the proposed development and is
satisfied with the refuse collection arrangements, which will allow for a refuse vehicle to
service the site from the streets of the development.

In accordance with the London Plan Policy 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, and 5.6, an assessment of the
energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions is required, including consideration of
energy and carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions. A scheme needs to demonstrate the
expected energy and CO2 emission savings (an overall 20% reduction is targeted) from
the energy efficiency and renewable energy measures incorporated in the development,
including the feasibility of combined cooling, heat, and power (CCHP), combined heat and
power (CHP) and community heating systems. This assessment should form part of the
sustainable design and construction statement in support of a planning application.

The sustainable features of the proposed development were considered as part of the
outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348).  The renewable and sustainable
measures imposed were considered acceptable by both the Council and the GLA and
appropriately worded conditions and s106 undertaking agreed accordingly. The subject
application for reserved matters of this part of Phase 3 is consistent with the principles
established at the outline stage, and the permanent energy centre is now approved and is
under construction. The construction of this energy centre is a key component of the
overall sites objectives for reducing carbon emissions.   In other respects, matters such as
the detailed design and inclusion of energy efficient features in dwellings are separately
controlled as part of applications to discharge conditions of approval on the outline
consent. As such, this matter requires no further consideration, the scheme considered to

Page 223



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

be acceptable and in accordance with the abovementioned policies which seek lean,
efficient, sustainable and renewable energy measures in schemes.

Whilst the application site is in an area of low risk (Flood Zone 1), a Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) was submitted as part of the Environmental Statement and flooding
issues were considered as part of the Outline application.  The assessment demonstrated
that the proposal would not have an adverse impact to neighbouring properties as it will
not increase flood risk through increased surface runoff.

The Environment Agency reviewed the application and raised no objection subject to a
condition to ensure the development be carried out in accordance with the FRA.
Consideration of Flood Risk was satisfactorily addressed as part of the Outline permission
and is not relevant to this landscape and appearance Reserved Matters application.

Noise and air quality aspects were considered as part of the outline application (LBH Ref.
No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to
grant 25th May 2010 and the decision finally issued on 1st October 2010 following the
Mayoral Stage II approval and completion of the s106 legal agreement. The
Environmental Statement submitted as part of the outline application considered the
potential noise and air quality impacts associated with the development and appropriately
worded conditions of approval were imposed on the outline planning permission. The
Council's Environmental Protection Unit confirmed they would continue to control these
detailed design aspects through the discharge of conditions and as such, there are no
issues to consider in the subject application for reserved matters.

No public comments have been received.

Planning obligations were secured as part of the Outline Planning approval.  Therefore,
there is no requirement for any obligations as part of this Reserved Matters application.

No Enforcement action is required in this instance.

No other issues for consideration.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

GENERAL
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

Page 224



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PLANNING CONDITIONS
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010). 

EQUALITIES AND HUMAN RIGHTS
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons provided throughout this report, the application for the Reserved Matters
of Appearance and Landscaping is considered to be appropriate and acceptable and to
comply with the relevant policies and planning guidance for the site. Therefore, the
application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 225



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Adam Flynn 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 226



29.3m
29.3m

E
l S

u
b

 S
ta

Kensington

63

House

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

EVERGREEN DRIVE

92

FOUR SEASONS TERRACE

2

8
2

20
2

17

47

17

25

1

35

59

15
1

S
pring P

rom
enade 22

Play
Area

12

4

P
E

N
N

Y
 R

O
Y

A
L

 D
R

IV
E

W
IN

T
E

R
 G

R
E

E
N

Brecon Lodge

2
4

1 to 19

20
 to

 6
9

70 to 88

Posts

Play Area

36

24

21

´

December
2013

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Former NATS Headquarters
Porters Way

Major Application

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

5107/APP/2013/2325

Page 227



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

FORMER NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES HEADQUARTERS SITE
PORTERS WAY WEST DRAYTON 

Reserved matters (appearance and landscaping) in compliance with
conditions 2 and 3 for Phase 3, second application ('Block G' comprising 107
residential units) of planning permission ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348, dated
01/10/2010: Proposed mixed-use redevelopment of the Former NATS Site..

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 5107/APP/2013/2747

Drawing Nos: MDL-1188-PL-114 Street Extract 2 - Block G5
MDL-1188-PL-113 Street Extract 1 - Block G3
MDL-1188-PL-111 Street Scene 3 & 4 Blocks G4, G5, G6 & G8
MDL-1188-PL-110 Street Scene 1 & 2 Blocks G1, G2 & G3
MDL-1188-G7-PL03 Block G7 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G7-PL04 Block G7 - Roof Plans
MDL-1188-G7-PL02 Block G7 - Second and Third Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G7-PL01 Block G7 - Ground and First Floor Plans
Block G7 Schedule of Accommodation
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL05 Block G6 and G8 Elevations - Sheet 2
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL04 Block G6 and G8 Elevations - Sheet 1
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL06 Block G6 and G8 - Roof Plan
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL03 Block G6 and G8 - Fourth Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL02 Block G6 and G8 - Second and Third Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL01 Block G6 and G8 - Ground and First Floor Plans
Block G8 Schedule of Accommodation
Block G6 Schedule of Accommodation
MDL-1188-G4/G5-PL06 Block G4 and G5 - Roof Plans
Renewable Energy Strategy November 2009 Revision B
Energy Strategy - PV allocation
Design & Access Statement
PA1007-500-305G Masterplan - Site Phasing
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL05 Block G4 and G5 Elevations - Sheet 2
PA1007-500-307G Masterplan - Open Space Phasing
MDL-1188-PL100 Proposed Site Layout Phase 3
INL-E4137-100 Engineering Layout Sheet 1 of 2
INL-E4137-101 Engineering Layout Sheet 2 of 2
INL-E4137-102 Building Setting Out Layout Sheet 1 of 2
INL-E4137-103 Building Setting Out Layout Sheet 2 of 2
INL-E4137-104 Kerb Setting Out Layout Sheet 1 of 2
INL-E4137-105 Kerb Setting Out Layout Sheet 2 of 2
INL-E4137-106 Survey Control Stations
INL-E4137-107 Standard Construction Details Sheet 1 of 3
INL-E4137-108 Standard Construction Details Sheet 2 of 3
INL-E4137-109 Standard Construction Details Sheet 3 of 3
INL-E4137-110 Domestic Drainage Construction
INL-E4137-202 F Refuse Vehicle Swept Path Blocks G5 & G6
INL18767-11C Sheet 1 of 2 Landscape Proposals
INL18767-11C Sheet 2 of 2 Landscape Proposals
INL 18767 12 Detailed Extract: Doorstep Play Area 1
INL 18767 13 Detailed Extract: Doorstep Play Area 2

Agenda Item 12

Page 229



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

20/09/2013

MDL-1188-BC-PL01 External Bin and Cycle Stores
Block G1 Schedule of Accommodation
MDL-1188-G1-PL01 Block G1 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G1-PL02 Block G1 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G1-PL03 Block G1 - Roof Plan
Block G2 Schedule of Accommodation
MDL-1188-G2-PL01 Block G2 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G2-PL02 Block G2 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G2-PL03 Block G2 - Floor Plans
Block G3 Schedule of Accommodation
MDL-1188-G3-PL01 Block G3 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G3-PL02 Block G3 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G3-PL03 Block G3 - Roof Plan
Block G4 Schedule of Accommodation
Block G5 Schedule of Accommodation
MDL-1188-G4/G5-PL01 Block G4 and G5 - Ground and First Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL02 Block G4 and G5 - Second and Third Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL03 Block G4 and G5 - Fourth Floor Plan
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL04 Block G4 and G5 Elevations - Sheet 1
PA1007-500-306G Masterplan - Car Parking Phasing
Sample Railings
External Materials Schedule
Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan
Soft Landscape Specification
Ecological Mitigation & Maintenance Plan

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Outline Planning Permission for the comprehensive, mixed-use re-development of the
former NATS site was granted 1 October 2010 (LBH Ref: No. 5107/APP/2009/2348). The
outline application was for consideration of 'Means of Access', 'Layout' and 'Scale'.
Matters which were reserved were 'Appearance' and 'Landscaping'.

Condition 2 of this consent relates to the approval of Appearance and Landscaping
'Reserved Matters'. 

Condition 3 requires the approval of the details of the landscaping and appearance of
individual phases of the development. Condition 3 also describes the extent of the
information required. 

This application relates to Section 2 (Blocks G1-G8) of Phase 3 and is located on the
north-western part of the development site. This part of the site is bordered to the north
by part of Phase 4 and another part of Phase 3. Phase 2 is located to the east with
another part of Phase 4 located to the south. The western boundaries of this section of
Phase 3 abuts the neighbouring Parkwest scheme.

The proposal is for 107 flats and 123 parking spaces, set out in parking courts, and the
detailed landscaping of the application site. The scheme comprises:

08/10/2013Date Application Valid:

Page 230



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3 x studio flat
24 x 1 bed flat
70 x 2 bed flat
10 x 3 bed flat

Concurrent applications for the discharge of conditions associated with the site are
currently being considered.

In respect of 'Appearance', it is considered that although the proposal has evolved from
the original design code, the design, detailing and materials of the eight residential blocks
would not be detrimental to the appearance of this Phase. As such the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in relation to appearance, thereby complying with Policies
BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

In respect of 'Landscaping', the proposal is considered to be consistent with the
supporting documents and illustrative information considered as part of the outline
application. It deals satisfactorily with the site features, landscaping for residential
amenity, tree planting, details of the two doorstop play areas, and general overall
landscape enhancement.

Appropriately worded landscape-related conditions have already been imposed on the
outline permission and no further conditions are required. The scheme accords with
Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
as well as the Porters Way planning brief SPD which variously seek consideration of a
full range of landscape and ecological matters.

This reserved matters application, for Section 2 (Blocks G) of Phase 3, broadly accords
with the outline scheme including and in respect of the following: development principle;
development density; character and appearance; neighbour relationships and the
consideration of potential impacts; amenity for future occupiers; traffic and parking and
safety; urban design; access for people with a disability; landscaping; waste
management; renewable energy; as well as noise and air quality. 

The scheme remains consistent and in accordance with the relevant planning polices and
guidance relating to these above mentioned issues. As such the application is
recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, 

PA1007-500-305G Masterplan - Site Phasing
PA1007-500-306G Masterplan - Car Parking Phasing
PA1007-500-307G Masterplan - Open Space Phasing
MDL-1188-PL100 Proposed Site Layout Phase 3
MDL-1188-G1-PL01 Block G1 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G1-PL02 Block G1 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G1-PL03 Block G1 - Roof Plan
MDL-1188-G2-PL01 Block G2 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G2-PL02 Block G2 - Elevations

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 231



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

MDL-1188-G2-PL03 Block G2 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G3-PL01 Block G3 - Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G3-PL02 Block G3 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G3-PL03 Block G3 - Roof Plan
MDL-1188-G4/G5-PL01 Block G4 and G5 - Ground and First Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL02 Block G4 and G5 - Second and Third Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL03 Block G4 and G5 - Fourth Floor Plan
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL04 Block G4 and G5 Elevations - Sheet 1
MDL-1188-G4-G5-PL05 Block G4 and G5 Elevations - Sheet 2
MDL-1188-G4/G5-PL06 Block G4 and G5 - Roof Plans
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL01 Block G6 and G8 - Ground and First Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL02 Block G6 and G8 - Second and Third Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL03 Block G6 and G8 - Fourth Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL04 Block G6 and G8 Elevations - Sheet 1
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL05 Block G6 and G8 Elevations - Sheet 2
MDL-1188-G6/G8-PL06 Block G6 and G8 - Roof Plan
MDL-1188-G7-PL01 Block G7 - Ground and First Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G7-PL02 Block G7 - Second and Third Floor Plans
MDL-1188-G7-PL03 Block G7 - Elevations
MDL-1188-G7-PL04 Block G7 - Roof Plans
MDL-1188-PL-110 Street Scene 1 & 2 Blocks G1, G2 & G3
MDL-1188-PL-111 Street Scene 3 & 4 Blocks G4, G5, G6 & G8
MDL-1188-PL-113 Street Extract 1 - Block G3
MDL-1188-PL-114 Street Extract 2 - Block G5
INL-E4137-100 Engineering Layout Sheet 1 of 2
INL-E4137-101 Engineering Layout Sheet 2 of 2
INL-E4137-102 Building Setting Out Layout Sheet 1 of 2
INL-E4137-103 Building Setting Out Layout Sheet 2 of 2
INL-E4137-104 Kerb Setting Out Layout Sheet 1 of 2
INL-E4137-105 Kerb Setting Out Layout Sheet 2 of 2
INL-E4137-106 Survey Control Stations
INL-E4137-107 Standard Construction Details Sheet 1 of 3
INL-E4137-108 Standard Construction Details Sheet 2 of 3
INL-E4137-109 Standard Construction Details Sheet 3 of 3
INL-E4137-110 Domestic Drainage Construction
INL-E4137-202 F Refuse Vehicle Swept Path Blocks G5 & G6
MDL-1188-BC-PL01 External Bin and Cycle Stores
INL18767-11C Sheet 1 of 2 Landscape Proposals
INL18767-11C Sheet 2 of 2 Landscape Proposals
INL 18767 12 Detailed Extract: Doorstep Play Area 1
INL 18767 13 Detailed Extract: Doorstep Play Area 2

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

Page 232



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

3.1 Site and Locality

The wider application site was previously occupied by the National Air Traffic Services
(NATS) as the main air traffic control centre for the southern England and London
airports. Since 2008, the NATS operation has relocated to the new London Area Control
Centre at Swanwick, near Fareham in Hampshire. The application site, measuring some
12.6ha, is now a major construction site that also includes an increasing number of
completed and newly occupied homes together with an increasingly extensive and well
landscaped public realm.

This Reserved Matters application relates to Section 2 (Blocks G1-G8) of Phase 3 and is

planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM7
AM6

AM9

AM14
AM15
BE13
BE19

BE21
BE23
BE24

BE38

OE1

OE8

EC2
EC3

EC5

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access
Roads by through traffic
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

Page 233



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

located on the north-western part of the development site. This part of the site is bordered
to the north by part of Phase 4 and another part of Phase 3. Phase 2 is located to the east
with another part of Phase 4 located to the south. The western boundaries of this section
of Phase 3 abuts the neighbouring Parkwest scheme.

The site is located within a PTAL level of 1b and within the Site Specific Proposal 8: RAF
West Drayton site, as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
(November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Outline Planning Permission for the comprehensive, mixed-use re-development of the
former NATS site was granted 1 October 2010 (LBH Ref: No. 5107/APP/2009/2348).

The Committee has already approved a number of reserved matters applications for sites
within phases 1 and 2. This application seeks approval for the Appearance and
Landscaping of Section 2 (Blocks G1-G8) of Phase 3 and comprises 107 flats and 123
parking spaces and the detailed landscaping of the application site.

Proposed Housing
The housing mix includes:
3 x studio flat
24 x 1 bed flat
70 x 2 bed flat 
10 x 3 bed flat

The eight apartment blocks vary in height between three storeys (Blocks G1, G2 and G4),
four storeys (G3 and G6) and five storeys (G5 and G8). Block G7 is part four storey and
part three storey. All heights are in accordance with the outline consent. 

Amenity Space
Individual flats would be provided with private amenity space by way of balconies and
terraces, along with communal amenity space around the apartment blocks. This part of
Phase 3 is located west of Autumn Green, one of two primary open spaces on the wider
NATS site. Along with this neighbouring open space, this part of Phase 3 will have two
doorstep play areas; one located in the southwest corner (118sq.m) and the other located
along the southern boundary between Blocks G3 and G4 (180sq.m). These play areas are
detailed in accordance with the outline approval and will provide for an important facility of
benefit to families on the application site.

Car Parking Provision
This portion of Phase 3 includes the provision of 123 parking spaces, of which 13 will be
for disabled parking. 11 parking spaces would have electric charging points. The car
parking spaces are located in four private parking courts at the rear of the apartment
blocks with an additional parking court located at the southern end of the site, which
comprises residential and visitor parking.

Accessible Housing 
All of the 107 units would be constructed to Lifetime Homes standards. The original
masterplan required a total of 10% wheelchair accessible units to be provided throughout
the whole of the NATS site, which equates to 78 wheelchair accessible units. Three
wheelchair accessible units would be provided within this part of the site, whilst the
remaining wheelchair accessible units would be provided within other phases. The
scheme for this part of Phase 3 would provide 13 disabled parking spaces, along with 8

Page 234



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The most relevant planning history for the application site is the Outline Planning
Permission (LBH Ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348 granted 1 October 2010), reserving matters
of Landscaping and Appearance.

Condition 2 of this consent relate to the approval of Appearance and Landscaping
'Reserved Matters' while Condition 3 requires the approval of the details of the
landscaping and appearance of individual phases of the development. Condition 3 also
prescribes the extent of the information required.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

extra wide spaces.

Site Access
All vehicular and pedestrian access points to the site would be via the permanent on-site
roads and pavements linking Porters Way to the separate areas of the development.

Landscaping
A comprehensive schedule of hard landscaping materials has been provided together with
detailed supporting information in respect of the soft landscape planting. These are of an
acceptable quality and range.

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

AM6

AM9

AM14

AM15

BE13

BE19

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

OE1

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access Roads by
through traffic

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 235



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OE8

EC2

EC3

EC5

area

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

Not applicable1st November 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Access Officer:
Having reviewed plans and correspondence related to Conditions 2 & 3, no accessibility
observations are offered. 

Conservation Officer:
Whilst I consider that the design approach has significantly evolved from the original design code, I
have no objection to the design, detailing and materials of the blocks as now proposed.

Environmental Protection Unit:
Any contamination issues would need to be addressed irrespective of the lay out. I have no specific
concerns as these can be addressed under condition 58. However, specific information with regard
to how it will be addressed has not been provided with details application ref: 5107/APP/2013/2796,
and comments have been provided for this separately.

Highways:
Car parking layout and refuse vehicle tracking acceptable. No objections on highway grounds.

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 141 local owners/occupiers. Two responses were received:
i) the flats will be very close to neighbouring properties
ii) loss of privacy and light to neighbouring properties
iii) noise from construction
iv) concerns over secluded nature of doorstep play area in south-west corner of the site and
potential anti-social behaviour 

Environment Agency:
No objection

Heathrow Aerodrome Safeguarding:
I have now assessed the reserved matters (appearance & landscaping) in compliance with
conditions 2 & 3 for phase 3, second application for block G against safeguarding criteria. I can
confirm that we have no safeguarding objections to the proposed development.

NATS:
No safeguarding objection to the proposal.

Page 236



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The development principle was considered as part of the outline application (LBH Ref.
5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant
on 25th May 2010 and the decision was issued on the 1st October 2010 following the
Mayoral Stage II approval and completion of the S106 legal agreement.

As stated in the outline application committee report, it is noted in the Council's adopted
Porters Way planning brief SPD 2005 that the previous use of the site was predominantly
a single employment use. However, redevelopment provides a good opportunity to create

Sustainability Officer:
The above application is for the approval of the Landscaping and Appearance related to the
reserved matters approval.

This application cannot be approved yet, because the issues regarding the living walls, ecology
enhancements and PVs are integral to this stage.

Once the information has been provided that satisfies these concerns as set out for the condition
discharge application the reserved matters can also be considered. 

Officer comments:
Issues relating to living walls and ecology enhancements were considered at the outline stage and
were subject to appropriately worded conditions. It is considered that the level of information
submitted as part of this Reserved Matters application is sufficent at this stage and that any
additional information requested by the Sustainability Officer can be adequately dealt with as part
of the concurrent details application. No PVs were proposed on this part of the Phase 3 at the
outline stage. It was considered that an adequate amount of PVs would be located elsewhere in
Phase 3 and the wider NATS site. 

Trees/Landscape Officer:
A Design & Access Statement, by Metropolis, sets out the landscape design objectives, which are
in accordance with the approved masterplan.

ACD drawing Nos. INL18767-11C (sheets 1 and 2 of 2), Landscape Proposals, provide details of
the hard and soft landscape which reflect the outcome of pre-application discussions. The
schedules detail the range of hard landscape details (surfacing and furniture). This is supported by
a number of 'Standard Construction Details', by Rogers Cory Partnership. The planting plans
include plant schedules with approximately 109No. specimen trees, extensive lengths of ready-
made hedges (as seen elsewhere at Drayton Garden Village) and bold blocks of ornamental
shrubs and grasses. The plans are supported by ACD's Landscape Management & Maintenance
Plan, which if adhered to, should ensure the successful establishment and long-term maintenance
of the planting.

RECOMMENDATION
No objection.

Waste Strategy:
Further to our recent discussion I would ask that dropped kerbs are installed to allow the safe
transfer of bulk (wheeled) refuse bins from the waste storage area to the vehicle carriageway
where the collection vehicle will be parked to empty them.

Officer comments:
The applicant has confirmed that dropped kerbs will be installed by the bin stores.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 237



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

a mixed, balanced and sustainable community as embodied in the Sustainable
Community Strategy 2008-2011, the Unitary Development Plan and the emerging Local
Development Framework, along with regional and national government policies.

Given the range of planning policy considerations in the outline application assessment,
including the Hillingdon Employment Land Study (2009), Council's UDP Saved Policies,
H8, the Former NATS site, Porters Way, West Drayton SPD (NATS SPD), London Plan
Policies as well as the Mayors Stage 1 response, the loss of industrial and business land
is considered justified and a mixed use, residential-led redevelopment appropriate and
acceptable in accordance with the NATS SPD and UDP Saved Policies LE2 and LE4
which enable consideration of a change of use of industrial/employment uses.

The current reserved matters application, for Landscaping and Appearance as it relates to
107 residential units is sufficiently consistent with the principles and illustrative information
of the Outline Planning Permission. Therefore the scheme for Section 2 (Blocks G1-G8)
of Phase 3 is considered acceptable in principle.

Residential density can be used as an indicator of the overall character and acceptability
of a proposal. The density of the whole site was considered as part of the outline
application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South Planning
Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision was issued on the 1st
October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II and completion of the s106.

As part of the outline application for the whole site, the provision of 773 residential units
(2585 habitable rooms) on the 12.59 ha site equates to a density of 61 units per hectare
or 205 habitable rooms per hectare. 

For the reasons set out in the 25th May 2010 committee report the density remains
acceptable and unchanged, and it is considered to comply with the London Plan.

The site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local Character or
Archaeological Priority Area. There are no Listed Buildings on the site.

Heathrow Aerodrome Safeguarding and NATS have reviewed the application and raise no
objection to the Reserved Matters application from an airport safeguarding perspective.

The site is not located within or near to the Green Belt.

The requirement to consider the proposal's potential future impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area is contained in London Plan Policies, Policy BE1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Polices BE13
and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). In
addition, Policy BE35 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) requires a high standard of design and providing for an attractive view
for sites adjacent to major rail connections into Central London.

In respect of the NATS SPD, the objectives of the site include, among other things, the
promotion of a high quality scheme reflective of the area's general character as well as
reinforcing local distinctiveness.

This section of Phase 3 would provide 107 flats in eight apartment blocks together with

Page 238



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

123 parking spaces set out in parking courts. The Layout and Means of Access to and
around the apartment blocks and parking courts were considered acceptable at the outline
state. Therefore, consideration is limited to the Appearance and Landscaping.

As part of the outline planning permission the supporting information included a Design
and Access Statement, Design Coding and 3D perspective drawings, and an
Environmental Statement which included a Townscape and Visual Analysis. These
provided an analysis of the scheme from vantage points around and within the
development. Illustrative building elevation drawings were provided as a suggestion of the
future detailed design of buildings to show how these areas would be framed by buildings
in the future. The Council's Principle Urban Design Officer and the GLA were supportive
of the scheme at Outline stage in respect of its appearance and character and no impacts
were identified to neighbours or the area in general in this regard. Along with details of
buildings, comprehensive information pertaining to hard and soft landscaping for the
entire site was considered at the outline stage by a range of consultees including the
Council's Trees/Landscape Officer.

Although the appearance of the apartment blocks has evolved from the original design
code, the scheme is relatively consistent with the principles considered at the outline
stage. The landscaping at this detailed stage is considered to be acceptable. As such, the
scheme for this section of Phase 3 is considered to be appropriate within the context of
the locality and would not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of
the area or its emerging adjacent neighbours.

The proposed materials for the apartment blocks would be as follows:

i) Facing Brickwork - Wienerberger, Brookhurst Yellow Multi brick 
ii) Render - white, grey and blue render
iii) Roof - flat roof system
iv) Rainwater goods - black colour uPVC
v) Windows & Doors - white colour uPVC
vi) Galvanised steel balconies - black

These materials, along with the proposed hard surfaces for the parking courts, access
roads and footpaths are considered to be acceptable. The scheme would also include
timber bollards, black galvanised metal hoop topped railings and wooden benches. 

Overall, the scheme is considered to result in an acceptable character and appearance to
this part of West Drayton, thereby complying with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Polices BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

This application provides supporting information pertaining to 'Appearance' and
'Landscaping', and in particular, building elevations and sections, as well as plans of the
hard and soft landscaping arrangements.

It should be noted that the consideration of potential impacts upon neighbours formed part
of the assessment of the outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which
the Central and South Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and was
subsequently approved on 1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II approval and
completion of the S106. Matters considered include the following: construction impacts;
traffic and car parking; noise and general disturbance; overlooking, outlook and

Page 239



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

overshadowing. Matters considered include the following: construction impacts; traffic and
car parking; noise and general disturbance; overlooking, outlook and overshadowing. The
reserved matters are consistent with the details and principles considered at the outline
stage which were considered acceptable.

The scale and location of the eight apartment blocks were approved at the outline stage,
and the proposed buildings generally correspond with the information provided at that
stage. It is considered that the apartment blocks are situated at sufficient distances from
the neighbouring Parkwest development to the southwest, the recently constructed Phase
2 dwellings to the east and the proposed new houses to the north. As such the scheme
would comply with privacy requirements to existing and proposed neighbours and would
not lead to significantly reduced levels of light to neighbouring residential units.

No additional or significantly different issues have been identified as part of the
consideration of this reserved matters application for this section of Phase 3, and so the
scheme is considered to be acceptable. 

The scheme thereby complies with the relevant policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and design guidance which seek to protect the
amenity of neighbours.

The outline application considered living conditions for future occupiers. Adequate levels
of internal floor areas and amenity space are required for all new developments. The
internal floor area of the proposed units comply with the recommended space standards
set out in the London Plan, thereby providing adequate floorspace. 

Private amenity space would be provided to each individual flat by way of balconies or
private terraces which are considered to be acceptable, whilst additional communal
amenity space would be provided around the apartment blocks. Overall, the scheme
would provide over 2590 sq.m of amenity space, thereby complying with the Council's
guidelines. Residents would also have access to two primary open spaces on the wider
NATS site; Spring Green and Autumn Green. Autumn Green is located east of Blocks G4
and G5 and can be easily accessed from this part of the site.

Two doorstep play areas would be provided for this section of Phase 3. One of the
doorstep play areas (118sq.m) would be located in the south-west corner of the site whilst
the other play area (180sq.m) would be located along the southern boundary between
Blocks G3 and G4. These play areas have been detailed in accordance with the outline
approval and will provide for an important facility of benefit to families on the application
site.

New residential developments are required to provide adequate levels of light and privacy,
and should not result in overdominance through their siting and bulk. The scale and
location of the proposed apartment blocks are similar to the scale and location approved
at the outline stage whilst the different heights break up the development and reduce its
dominance. The units have been carefully laid out to ensure that privacy is maintained and
adequate levels of light are provided to habitable rooms and kitchens.

The living conditions for future occupiers are considered to be acceptable and in line with
the principles established by the outline planning permission and Design Code, all of
which were a product of the extensive pre-application negotiations. The scheme is
therefore considered to be acceptable in this regard.

Page 240



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The Council's Highways Engineer and TFL considered traffic and parking impacts along
with means of access for the entire site as part of the original application (ref:
5107/APP/2009/2348). In addition to a transport assessment and travel plan, the outline
application provided drawings detailing access, turning (refuse vehicle swept paths) and
parking (cars, bicycles, car club, motorcycle allowance, 10% accessible parking provision
allowance). Transport was also considered as part of the Environmental Impact
Assessment, particularly in chapters 5, Construction and Phasing, (which contains the
framework Construction Management Plan) and 9, Transport Accessibility and Movement,
of the Environmental Statement. The outline consent imposed appropriately worded
conditions of approval in respect of traffic management, parking numbers and allocation.

Matters relating to access and layout were approved as part of the outline consent. The
car parking locations, road layout and widths as well as access are broadly consistent with
the outline proposal. The Council's Highways Engineer raises no objection to the reserved
matters.

The eight apartment blocks would comprise of a mixture of brickwork and render to create
visual detailing. Although the appearance of the eight apartment blocks has significantly
evolved from the original design code, the Council's Conservation Officer considers that
the proposed design, detailing and materials of the blocks would be acceptable.

Issues of access and security were considered as part of the outline planning application.
Secure by Design principles, such as defensible space around the apartments, visual
surveillance and secure parking areas, were a key component of the original masterplan. 

Concern was raised during the public consultation over the secluded nature of the
doorstep play area in the south-west corner of the site and potential anti-social behaviour.
It is considered that Block G7 would provide natural surveillance of this doorstep play
area, thereby reducing the risk of anti-social behaviour. 

It should be noted that appropriately worded conditions relating to CCTV and security
measures were imposed on the outline permission and are being dealt with through a
concurrent details application.

The Council's Access Officer has reviewed the reserved matters and raises no objection.
The proposed scheme is therefore acceptable in terms of disabled access to the
residential units and the amount of disabled parking.

The proposal seeks permission for reserved matters 'Landscaping' and 'Appearance' for
107 units, accordingly considerations relating to affordable or special needs housing are
not relevant to the application.

This application seeks approval of the landscaping which was part of the reserved matters
under condition 2 of the original planning permission. Approval of the details of the
landscaping and appearance of individual phases of the development were required as
part of condition 3, which also prescribed the extent of the information required.

The proposed landscaping proposal provides a varied mixture of trees, hedges, shrubs
and grassed areas along with varied hard surfacing. Some native species would be
included with the landscaping to aid in the ecological diversification and enrichment of the

Page 241



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

site and wider environs.

The Council's Trees/Landscape Officer considers the proposed landscape to be
acceptable in terms of the proposed planting, and the proposed landscape management
and maintenance.

The sustainable waste features of proposed development were considered as part of the
outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348). In the course of considering the
outline scheme, the Highways and Waste teams confirmed that waste arrangements
could be suitably accommodated on the site. 

This portion of Phase 3 involves 107 residential units. Bin storage for the eight blocks is at
ground floor level, comprising of six stores within the blocks and two stores separate from
the blocks. The provision for bin storage is appropriate and therefore the reserved matters
details are considered acceptable in this regard. Furthermore, details of the proposed bin
stores are being dealt with through condition 10 in details application ref:
5107/APP/2013/2746.

The renewable/sustainable features of the development were considered as part of the
outline application (LBH Ref. No. 5107/APP/2009/2348) which the Central and South
Planning Committee resolved to grant 25th May 2010 and the decision finally issued on
1st October 2010 following the Mayoral Stage II approval and completion of the s106 legal
agreement.

The renewable and sustainable measures imposed were considered acceptable by both
the Council and the GLA and appropriately worded conditions and s106 undertaking
agreed accordingly. The subject application for reserved matters of this part of Phase 3 is
consistent with the principles established at the outline stage, and the permanent energy
centre is now approved and is nearing completion on a separate part of the site.

Whilst the application site is in an area of low risk (Flood Zone 1), a Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) was submitted as part of the Environmental Statement and flooding
issues were considered as part of the outline application.

The assessment demonstrated that the proposal would not have an adverse impact to
neighbouring properties as it will not increase flood risk through increased surface runoff.

The Environment Agency reviewed the application and raised no objection subject to a
condition to ensure the development be carried out in accordance with the FRA.

Consideration of Flood Risk was satisfactorily addressed as part of the outline permission
and is not relevant to this landscape and appearance Reserved Matters application.

This section of Phase 3 is located in the northwestern part of the NATS site and is set
back some way from the railway line along the northern site boundary. The site is set well
back from Porter's Way to the south. As such it is unlikely to be adversely impacted upon
by any significant noise source. 

Nevertheless, the Council's Environmental Protection Unit confirmed they would continue
to control these detailed design aspects through the discharge of conditions and, as such,
there are no issues to consider in the subject application for reserved matters.

Page 242



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Concerns raised during the public consultation have been dealt with elsewhere in this
report.

Not applicable to this reserved matters application.

Not applicable to this reserved matters application.

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None

10. CONCLUSION

Conditions 2 and 3 of the outline planning consent (ref: 5107/APP/2009/2348) required
the provision of details of the landscaping and appearance of individual phases of the
development. This Reserved Matters application for Section 2 (Blocks G1-G8) of Phase 3
considers the Appearance and Landscaping to be acceptable, and in compliance with the
relevant policies and planning guidance for the site. Therefore, the application is
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Page 243



Central & South Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Katherine Mills 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 244



Page 245



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

21 HIGH STREET YIEWSLEY

Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in compliance
with conditions 2 and 4 of planning permission ref: APP/R5510/A/10/2130048
dated 03/12/2010 for Redevelopment of site for mixed use development
comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m² of office space and 135 m²
restaurant/bar, with associated access, car parking and landscaping (Outline
application for approval of access).

09/09/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 26628/APP/2013/2604

Drawing Nos: Sustainability and Energy Statement prepared by Turley Associates
Environmental Desk Study Report prepared by WYG
Air quality Assessment prepared by WYG
Noise Assessment prepared by WYG
Transport Assessment prepared by WYG
Flood Risk Assessment prepared by WYG
Letter Update to Tree Survey Report, March 2009 prepared by WYG
Tree Survey Report (March 2009) prepared by WYG
1260_200 Location Plan
1260_206 Proposed Elevations
1260_207 Proposed Elevations
1260_208 Proposed Sections
1260_209 Proposed Sections
1260_210 Proposed Site Plan
1260_211 Unit Layout
1260_212 Lobbies Layout
1260_213 Amenity Areas
1260_214 Canal Amenity Section
1260_220 Lower Ground Floor Plan
1260_221 Ground Floor Plan
1260_222 First Floor Plan
1260_223 Second Floor Plan
1260_224 Third Floor Plan
1260_225 Forth Floor Plan
1260_226 Roof Plan
1260_230 Proposed Site Landscaping
Design and Access Statement prepared by Dunthorne Parker Architects

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site for mixed use development
comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m² of office space and 135 m²
restaurant/bar, with associated access, car parking and landscaping was granted by the
Secretary of State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010.
The Secretary of State's Decision approved details relating to access and established the
principle and amount of development, all other matters were reserved.

20/09/2013Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 13

Page 247



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The current application seeks approval of reserved matters of appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale in relation to the extant outline permission.

The submitted scheme complies fully with the parameters approved at outline stage,
although the detailed appearance of the development has been improved following
discussions with the Council's Urban Design Officer.  Having regard to the findings within
the appeal decision and the amendments to the design it is considered that the scheme
would have an appropriate appearance.

The scheme would provide appropriate accommodation for its future residents and would
not have any adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

In addition the landscape scheme indicates an appropriate relationship between the
landscaping, built form and site surroundings. It would also provide an appropriate
mixture of spaces for the benefit of future residents.

The appeal decision granting outline planning permission included 25 pre-
commencement conditions covering levels, materials, boundary treatment, refuse
storage, landscape maintenance, disabled access, cycle storage, contamination,
security, noise mitigation, buffer zone, canal wall, parking, deliveries, aircraft
safeguarding and management/length of stay in the a-part hotel.  These matters would
necessarily form part of a separate condition discharge application.

The redevelopment of this long vacant site would also provide jobs, benefit the economy
and be beneficial overall to the vitality and viability of the Yiewsley and West Drayton
Town Centre.

Accordingly, the scheme is recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

1260_200 Location Plan;
1260_206 Proposed Elevations;
1260_207 Proposed Elevations;
1260_208 Proposed Sections;
1260_209 Proposed Sections;
1260_210 Proposed Site Plan;
1260_211 Unit Layout;
1260_212 Lobbies Layout;
1260_213 Amenity Areas;
1260_214 Canal Amenity Section;
1260_220 Lower Ground Floor Plan;
1260_221 Ground Floor Plan;
1260_222 First Floor Plan;
1260_223 Second Floor Plan;
1260_224 Third Floor Plan;
1260_225 Forth Floor Plan;
1260_226 Roof Plan; and
1260_230 Proposed Site Landscaping

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 248



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM5

COM9

General compliance with supporting documentation

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Sustainable Drainage and Surface Water reduction measures [Flood Risk Assessment
Version 1.0 dated September 2013]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policy OE8 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1.    Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a  Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b  Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c  Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Hard Surfacing Materials
2.b External Lighting
2.c Other structures

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual
amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London

2

3

Page 249



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC Non Standard Condition

Plan (July 2011)

No development shall take place until details of measures to protect the privacy of the a-
part hotel units from users of the roof garden have been submitted to, and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be completed
and maintained in full accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To protect the amenity of the future occupiers in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to APPROVE these reserved matters has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to APPROVE these reserved matters  has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

LPP 2.15
LPP 4.2
LPP 4.3
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.5
LPP 5.6
LPP 6.13
LPP 6.9
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.24
LPP 8.2
BE13
BE32

BE38

AM14
AM2

(2011) Town Centres
(2011) Offices
(2011) Mixed use development and offices
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2011) Water use and supplies
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Decentralised energy networks
(2011) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals
(2011) Parking
(2011) Cycling
(2011) Improving air quality
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Blue Ribbon Network
(2011) Planning obligations
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
New development and car parking standards.
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

Page 250



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I59

I45

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Discharge of Conditions

3

4

5

6

7

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
 On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

You are advised that there may be a Coots nest located to the north east of the site,
adjacent to the canal bridge which is concealed by vegetation.

You are further advised that it is a criminal offence, under the Wildlife and Countryside
Act to damage or destroy the nest of a wild bird.  Appropriate precautions should be
taken to protect any nesting birds within any redevelopment of the site.

Your attention is drawn to condition 3 of this reserved matters approved and conditions 
5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, and 25 of the Secretary of
State's Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 which must be discharged prior to the
commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should you
commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these conditions. The Council may
consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of this conditions. For further
information and advice contact - Planning & Community Services, Civic Centre,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

The applicant/developer should refer to the current "Code of Practice for Works affecting 
the Canal & River Trust" to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-property).

The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment onto or surface water
discharge into the canal, requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they

AM7
AM9

OE1

OE11

OE3

OE5
OE7

OE8

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Page 251



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an irregularly shaped approximately 0.2 hectare plot on the
eastern side of the High Street in Yiewsley.  It was formerly occupied by a three-storey
1980's brick-built office block.  The site is bounded to the north west by Union Walk, a
relatively newly built 5-storey residential development; to the north/north-east by the
Grand Union Canal, beyond which is a vacant site formerly occupied by a public
house/club, and Morrisons Supermarket; to the south east by the High Street, which is
largely characterised by a mix of retail, office and residential uses; and to the south west
by Bentinck Road, beyond which are service areas serving the rear of shops and
residential properties along the High Street, and Global House, a large office building.

The site falls within the Secondary Shopping Area of Yiewsley/West Drayton Town
Centre, and the Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, as shown on the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Proposals Map

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site for mixed use development
comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m² of office space and 135 m² restaurant/bar,
with associated access, car parking and landscaping was granted by the Secretary of
State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010.  The Secretary
of State's Decision approved details relating to access and established the principle and
amount of development, all other matters were reserved.

The application seeks approval of reserved matters of appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale in relation to the extant outline permission.

The parameter plans and indicative details approved at outline stage indicated a scheme
that comprised the erection of a four-storey office block located towards the south east
side of the site, with frontages to the High Street and Bentinck Road, and an adjoining
larger 5-storey block, fronting the Grand Union Canal and comprising the 44 apart-hotel
units and the restaurant/bar facility.

Amenity was to be provided by way of a roof terrace comprising decking, seating and
planting on the roof of the office block to provide a communal amenity area.  A large
communal amenity area comprising decking, seating and planting would also be provided
at lower ground level overlooking the canal.  Smaller communal amenity areas would also
be provided at ground floor level adjacent to the north west and south west elevations of
the apart-hotel block. 35 car parking spaces, including 4 disability standard spaces, would
be provided at lower-ground level under the apart-hotel block. 

In relation to the Reserved Matters Submission, access which was approved as part of the
outline application remains from Bentinck Road and provides access to a largely
undercroft parking area.  A detailed landscaping plan indicates that the car parking would
be interspersed with landscaping and an amenity deck would be provided adjacent to the
canal in accordance with the outline details.  3 integral refuse stores would be provided as
would cycle parking for 52 bicycles.

should contact the Canal & River Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young
(jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) for more information.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 252



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

In terms of layout, scale, massing and apperance the building itself is a roughly 'L' shaped
building and would would be 6 stories in height, although the height in relation to street
level would differ around the site due to changes in levels, particulary adjacent to the high
street and canal bridge. The a-part hotel would contain 44 (although they are numbered 2
- 45 on the plans) beds and be located in the portion of the building fronting the canal, this
element of the building would have a series of 5 pitched roofs. Each of the units would be
served by a balcony and a roof terrace would be provided on the portion of the building
fronting the high street.  The restaurant/cafe/ bar would be provided in the north eastern
corner of the site adjacent to the canal and the high street. 4 stories of office space would
be provided within the portion of the building facing the high street.

As mentioned all aspects of the scheme fully comply with the parameters approved by the
Secretary of State under the outline permission, however as appearance is a reserved
matter the applicant has undertaken pre-application discussions with Council Officers and
as a result has changes a number of the elevational treatments.

The changes to the elevational treatments from the indicative details considered at outline
stage can be summarised as:
1. The use of materials has been improved, with the same palette of materials used
between the two uses (i.e. brick and glass). Timber cladding has been replaced by
brickwork and areas of glazing have been reduced by approximately 50%.

2. The elevations have been amended to appear more textured. The parapets have been
broken down by extending the revised brick panels to create a more "castellated" effect so
that there is no longer a single roof line.

3. The glass rotunda to the north of the building has been replaced by a square tower of
the same height to improve the visual form of the building. The Inspector noted the merit
of the bulk and scale of this feature in giving a sense of enclosure and adding to the
"interest of the whole composition when seen from the High Street".

4. The original metal railings between the car parking and the amenity space have been
replaced with a low brick wall to separate and create privacy between the two uses. This
removes an overt visual connection and prevents exhausts from disturbing the users of
amenity area.

The building would be finished with a combination of zinc sheeting, curtain walling, render,
aluminium canopies, glass balustrades, glazing, brickwork, stainless steel railing,
photovoltaic panels and green walls. However, the actual material specifications and
details would be addressed under a condition of the outline consent.

26628/APP/2009/2284

26628/APP/2009/557

21 High Street Yiewsley

Harrier House, 21 High Street Yiewsley 

Redevelopment of site for mixed use development comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320
m² of office space and 135 m² restaurant/bar, with associated access, car parking and
landscaping (Outline application for approval of access)

Redevelopment of site for mixed use development comprising a 46 unit apartment hotel,
1.344sq metres of office space, with associated access, car parking and landscaping (Outline

05-01-2010Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

AllowedAppeal: 03-12-2010

Page 253



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

On the 13th Januray 2010 the the Local Planning Authority refused application
26628/APP/2009/2284 which sought the redevelopment of site for mixed use
development comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m² of office space and 135 m²
restaurant/bar, with associated access, car parking and landscaping (Outline application
for approval of access) for the following reason:

'The proposed development by reason of the size, scale and design of the proposed
building represents an overdevelopment of the site and would have an adverse impact on
the appearance of the street scene and the character of the area. The proposals are
therefore considered to be contrary to policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and policy 4B.1 of the Mayors
London Plan ( February 2008).'

An appeal against the Council's decision was allowed and outline planning permission
granted on the 3 December 2010 under appeal reference APP/R5510/A/10/2130048.

The current application seeks approval of reserved matters in respect of the outline
planning permission granted under appeal APP/R5510/A/10/2130048. The submitted
reserved matters application complies fully with the approved parameter plans and the
Inspectors findings that the  size, scale and design of the building were wholly
appropriate, and positive commentary on the indicative details of appearance are a
significant material consideration in the determination of this application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

26628/APP/2010/1382 21 High Street Yiewsley

application)

Use of site as a 65 space car park for a temporary period of 2 years.

06-07-2009

08-09-2010

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 254



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.E5

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM11

PT1.EM3

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM8

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Town and Local Centres

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

(2012) Blue Ribbon Network

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

LPP 2.15

LPP 4.2

LPP 4.3

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.14

LPP 5.15

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.5

LPP 5.6

LPP 6.13

LPP 6.9

LPP 7.14

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.24

LPP 8.2

BE13

BE32

BE38

AM14

AM2

AM7

AM9

OE1

(2011) Town Centres

(2011) Offices

(2011) Mixed use development and offices

(2011) Flood risk management

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2011) Water use and supplies

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Decentralised energy networks

(2011) Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals

(2011) Parking

(2011) Cycling

(2011) Improving air quality

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Blue Ribbon Network

(2011) Planning obligations

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

Part 2 Policies:

Page 255



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OE11

OE3

OE5

OE7

OE8

area

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Not applicable13th October 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was advertised in the local press, a site notice posted and 158 local
owner/occupiers consulted including the Yiewsley & West Drayton Town Centre Action Group and
the Yiewsley Community Involvement Group.

Only a single response has been received.  This response brings attention to a Coots Nest to the
North East of the site, adjacent to the bridge. Indicating a wish that adequate measures be put in
place to protect this.

BAA SAFEGUARDING
No objection.

NATS SAFEGUARDING
No objection.

CANAL AND RIVER TRUST
Thank you for your consultation dated 20 September 2013 in respect of the above.

After  due  consideration  of  the  application  details, the  Canal  &  River Trust  has  the  following
comments to make: 

Canal elevation 
We  had  concerns about the previous scheme's relationship with the canalside, which has not
changed  significantly  in  this  reserved  matters  application.  We  do  not  support  the  car
parking abutting the canal, and feel that this prevents the development from integrating with the
canalside.
The waterside amenity area, bounded by the car park and accessed either through here of via an
indirect  route  down  narrow  stairs  and  a  lift from the floors  above,  makes it feel like a 'back
yard' space, that seems unlikely to be well used.  We were also concerned that the ramp from the
car park  also  offers  opportunities  for  fly-tipping  into  the  canal,  but  this  access  can
presumably  be controlled and made secure. 

Page 256



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

URBAN DESIGN
Proposal:  Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in compliance with
conditions 2 and 4 of planning permission ref: APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010 for

We do acknowledge the potential for  overlooking from the bar/restaurant, which is beneficial and
will provide some animation to the canalside.  However, we consider that the access from it onto
the  canalside  amenity  area  could  be  improved, and  better  incorporated  as  a  sitting  out
area,  for example. 

Landscaping
We note that the previous wrought iron screen that was proposed between the canalside amenity
area  and  the  car  park  has  been  amended  to  a  brick  wall.    We  would  recommend  that
this  be planted to soften its urban appearance.

We would query if the timber decking is the most appropriate material adjacent to the canal, as this
can  become  slippery  if  not  properly  maintained.    The  appeal  decision  required  a waterway
wall survey be carried out, and this and any associated repairs should be carried out prior to the
area being landscaped, especially if this does involve decking, as it will be subsequently more
difficult to maintain the wall. 

We would like to see further details of lighting of the canalside elevation - no lighting should spill
over the waterpace, which can adversely affect bats using it as a feeding corridor. 

Sustainability
The Canal & River  Trust encourages the use of the canal  water for heating and cooling, and we 
note that  the  design  and  access statement  refers to  a  heat  pump  using  the  canal. This  heat
exchange  technology  offers  significant  savings  on  energy  costs  and  is  a  sustainable
solution  to power heating and air cooling units. For more information please see the attached fact
sheet.

We would welcome the incorporation of brown or green roofs, and bat and bird boxes.

Art work 
We would be interested in the proposed potential art work on the bridge abutment. 

If the Council is minded to grant planning permission, it is requested that the following informatives
be attached to the decision notice: 

"The applicant/developer should refer to the current "Code of Practice for Works affecting 
the Canal & River Trust" to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained 
(http://canalrivertrust.org.uk/about-us/for-businesses/undertaking-works-on-our-property)."

"The applicant/developer is advised that any encroachment onto or surface water discharge 
into the canal, requires written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should 
contact the Canal & River Trust's Estates Surveyor, Jonathan Young 
(jonathan.young@canalrivertrust.org.uk) for more information."

(Officer Comment: The comments of the Canal and River Trust are noted.  The concerns regarding
the relationship of the building to the canal and the principle of the canalside amenity space were
expressed in relation to the outline application and were considered acceptable by the Inspector.
The other matters relating to additional details are covered by either conditions on the outline
permission or within the recommendation on this application.)

Page 257



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Redevelopment of site for mixed use development comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m²
of office space and 135 m² restaurant/bar, with associated access, car parking and landscaping
(Outline application for approval of access).

Background:   This application was allowed on appeal, with the Inspector advocating a review of
design and materials.  Subsequently, a new architect took over the project, and design solutions
were readily agreed with officers.  In particular the High Street frontage was remodelled to reflect
the vertical lines and use of brick characteristic of the surrounding area, and the tower was lowered
and integrated more successfully into the rest of the design.

The appearance, layout and scale are now considered to be acceptable.

Recommendations:  Acceptable.

TREES AND LANDSCAPING
Reserved Matters:
Reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) in compliance with conditions 2 and
4 of planning permission ref: APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010 for Redevelopment of
site for mixed use development comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m² of office space and
135 m² restaurant/bar, with associated access, car parking and landscaping (Outline application for
approval of access). 

The proposed landscape layout reflects the scheme which was allowed at appeal by the Planning
Inspector.

Dunthorne Parker drawing titled Proposed Site Landscaping, indicates areas of hard and soft
landscape along the canal and associated with the site entrance and car park, off Bentinck Road.
The planting palette should use native plants along the canal or ornamental planting which is
beneficial to wildlife.  It is also to provide an attractive canalside environment for people to enjoy.
The planting associated with the car park should be unfussy and contain structural planting of
robust shrubs (hedges) and trees which will establish and thrive in a relatively hostile environment
and be uncomplicated to maintain.

· At present the planting palette should be reviewed, as some of the plants listed are not considered
to be particularly suitable. 
· Plant schedules should include full botanical names, for clarification.
· Canalside plants should be justified for the inclusion - with brief notes regarding their benefit for
wildlife.
· Full details of all hard and soft landscape features will be required.

Dunthorne Parker drawing, Proposed Aparthotel, Fourth and Office Floor Plan, shows the amenity
roof garden on top of the southern arm of the building.  This indicates the provision of hedging
around the edges, sheltered seating and large specimen plants in containers. The detailing of this
space and plant selection will need to be carefully handled and detailed to ensure its success. The
plan should ensure that the microclimate will be conducive to both the specified plants and the site
users.

· Full details of construction, irrigation and drainage will also be required. 
· Landscape management and maintenance details are required for all landscaped areas.

Recommendation:
No objection in principle.

Page 258



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The principle of the proposed development has been established by way of the outline
planning permission for the redevelopment of site granted by the Secretary of State under
appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010.

The quantum of development within the proposed development has been established by
way of the outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site granted by the
Secretary of State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010.

The site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority Area and there are no
Conservations Areas, listed buildings, or Areas of Special Local Character within the
vicinity of the site.  In addition the principle of the proposed development has been
established by way of the outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site
granted by the Secretary of State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated
03/12/2010.

Both BAA Safeguarding and NATS Safeguarding have been consulted in relation to the
proposal and raise no safeguarding objections. Accordingly, it is not considered that the
reserved matters submission raises any concerns with respect to airport safeguarding.

The site is not within close proximity to any Green Belt land.

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)seeks to ensure that new developments maintain an appropriate appearance within
their surrounding context. Policy BE19 seeks to ensure developments do not adversely
impact on the amenity of residential areas and Policy BE32 seeks to ensure the
appropriate design of developments adjacent to canals. The London Plan and National

(Officer Comment: Verbal discussions with the landscape officer have confirmed that the overall
landscape layout of the site in terms of the relationship of landscaping to built form, the location,
size and functions of the landscape areas are acceptable.  The issues where further information is
required therefore relate to detailed matters such as species selection, planting specifications etc.
These are detailed issues which relate to one of the reserved matters under consideration and can
therefore be secured by condition.)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No objections.

ACCESS
The Council's Access Officer provided officers with a list of matters which should be shown on the
approved plans.  The plans have been reviewed in detail and all necessary design features are
clearly shown on the submitted plans. Other matters such as signage would be dealt with under the
separate consideration of detail in respect of condition 10 of the outline planning permission.

FLOODWATER MANAGEMENT AND DRAINAGE OFFICER
Subject to the storage being provided as illustrated in the FRA and water being used for non
potable uses on site as indicated, the proposal would be acceptable.

(OFFICER NOTE: A condition to ensure compliance with the Flood Risk Assessment is
Recommended. Water reduction measures, which might include re-use of water for non-potable
purposes are addressed separately under condition 15 of the outline planning permission.)

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 259



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning Policy Framework seek to achieve the highest standards of design.

The NPPF does however, make clear that:

'Planning policies and decisions should not attempt to impose architectural styles or
particular tastes and they should not stifle innovation, originality or initiative through
unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles. It is,
however, proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness.' 

The impact on the character and appearance of the area was the main focus of the
Inspectors considerations in reaching a decision to grant outline planning permission.  The
Inspectors comments are provided below:

'2. The main issue in this case is the effect of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the area. The planning application was submitted in outline with access
only to be determined at this stage.

3. The appeal site is a large plot situated in a prominent town centre location at the
interface between the High Street and the Grand Union Canal. There are some traditional,
modest scale buildings within the area, particularly to the south west of the appeal site
beyond the railway bridge, and the buildings previously occupying the site were three-
storey in height. However, recent developments along the High Street particularly around
the Grand Union Canal are larger in scale, and both adjacent to and opposite the appeal
site there are fairly substantial four/five storey buildings.

4. Although access only is to be determined at this stage, the maximum parameters for
the buildings have been set out. A five storey apartment hotel is proposed along the
Grand Union Canal. This would be compatible with the scale of the adjacent Union Wharf
building which is of similar height. The office/restaurant block would be four storeys in
height. Although slightly lower than the apartment hotel, the combined development would
form a robust and clearly defined waterside frontage. The office/restaurant block would
have a corner feature, shown as a turret which could be higher than the main building.
This would mark the corner and add to the interest to the whole composition when seen
from the High Street. The bulk and scale would give a sense of enclosure to the High
Street reinforcing its primacy as the main shopping street in the area. The parameters
indicating the scale of the buildings, their function and location would therefore be
acceptable.

5. The Council and interested parties are concerned with the detailed design and
appearance of the scheme but these matters are not to be determined at this stage.
Notwithstanding this, illustrative plans show a mainly glazed building for the apartment
hotel, which would be light and airy, and would complement its canal side setting.
Different colour blinds and curtains would be unlikely as
the building would be used as a hotel, but in any event these would be interior features
which would not detract from the quality and appearance of the exterior.

6. The office would have a more solid appearance but it would create a strong and
articulated building which would be entirely suitable for its town centre and canal side
location. Although there are concerns about the proposed materials, these could be
considered in detail with the submission of the reserved matters. Regardless of the style
of building approved at 39 High Street, the illustrative drawings demonstrate that buildings
of an acceptable form and appearance could be achieved at the appeal site.'

Page 260



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

The outline consent grants approval for a building of the layout, scale, mass and bulk set
out within the approved parameters plans and the appeal inspectors decision is quite clear
in reaching the view that a building of this general form would be acceptable in the locality.
 Further, while the detailed appearance and final form of the development was reserved
for later considered the Inspectors decision  within paragraph 5 and 6 is that a building in
general accordance with illustrative details would be appropriate within the street scene
and locality.  The outline consent and the Inspectors decision are significant material
considerations in respect of the current application seeking approval of reserved matters.

In respect of the current application, the submitted details fully accord with the parameters
which were approved as part of the appeal decision and accordingly the layout, scale,
mass and bulk of the building are considered appropriate.

In respect of the detailed design and appearance of the building, the proposal is in
general accordance with the illustrative details, upon which the Inspector provided
favourable comments.  However, in acknowledgement of the Local Planning Authorities
concerns with these details the applicant entered into pre-application discussion and has
made a number of alterations in relation to the detailed design and appearance. In
particular the High Street frontage has been remodelled to reflect the vertical lines and
use of brick characteristic of the surrounding area, and the tower element (located on the
corner of Bentinck Road and High Street) has been lowered and integrated more
successfully into the rest of the design.

Having regard to the appeal decision the Council's Design Officer is supportive of the
development in terms of its appearance, layout and scale.  The indicative palette of
materials is appropriate, and the detailed specification (e.g. makes, brands and final
colours) of these would need to be submitted in compliance with condition 6 of the appeal
decision.

Overall, it is considered the proposal would have an acceptable appearance within the
street scene and would comply with Policy BE13, BE18 and BE32 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

In terms of impacts on the amenity of neighbouring properties, given the proximity of this
development to the adjoining Union Walk (residential flats to the north-west), there is the
potential that occupiers of this building may be impacted upon by this scheme. 

The apart-hotel block will present a flank wall to the adjoining Union Walk development,
which is to be complemented with a green wall finish. However, it is not considered that
the scheme will impact upon the internal living environment of adjoining residents,
especially given that the apart-hotel block steps back from the adjoining boundary and
does not have any habitable windows facing towards the Union Walk development.
Furthermore, there is no external amenity space at ground level immediately adjacent to
the adjoining development. 

It is concluded that there will be no undue loss of light or privacy to, or outlook from, these
properties as a result of the erection of the new building. As such the scheme is
considered to be in accordance with Policies BE19, BE20, and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Policies relating to living conditions largely relate to residential developments, and there
are no specific guidelines relating to hotel guest or a-part hotel accommodation.

Page 261



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Nevertheless it is important to ensure that suitable accommodation would be provided for
future occupiers.

Each apartment would comprise a bedroom, living room with small kitchen area, and
bathroom. 28 of the units would have floor areas of 45 sq.m, 14 of 46 sq.m, 1 of 52 sq.m
and 1 of 67 sq.m. Each unit, except the corner units, would also have a 5m² balcony. This
compares with a minimum floorspace requirement of 37 sq.m for a 1 bedroom 1 person
flat, and 50sq.m for a 1 bedroom 2 person flat, as outlined in the London Plan. Given the
transient nature of hotel guests, albeit that apart-hotel guests may be longer-term than
those using a traditional hotel, the quality and size of the accommodation is considered
wholly acceptable to meet their needs. 

Approximately 780m² of communal amenity space would be provided across the
development, approximately 550m² of which would be provided by way of a roof garden
above the office block, and approximately 160m² of which would be provided alongside
the canal. In addition 42 of the units would have 5m² balconies. This equates to a total of
approximately 1,000m² of amenity space across the development. Whilst most of this
space would be communal for use by office staff and hotel guests, it is considered to be
sufficient to serve the needs of occupiers of the development, especially given the short-
term nature of the accommodation. It should be noted that there are no amenity space
guidelines for commercial developments, including hotels or a-part hotels, however, if this
were a residential scheme of 44 1-bedroom flats the developer would only be required to
provide 880m² of amenity space.

The outline application was accompanied by a daylighting and sunlighting report which
assessed the internal living environment for future occupiers and concludes that the
orientation of the apart-hotel block would allow an adequate level of sunlight into each of
the units.  The provision of windows and the orientation/layout of the units remain as
shown within the outline application and accordingly it is considered that each of the units
would benefit from adequate levels of daylight.

The impact of the development with regard to traffic impact and the vehicular access to
the site from Bentinck Road were considered as acceptable and have been established by
way of the outline planning permission for the redevelopment of the site granted by the
Secretary of State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010.

The Inspector, in reaching her decision also considered the adequacy of parking provision
within the outline scheme commenting that:

'Local residents and the Yiewsley Community Involvement Group are concerned about
traffic and parking associated with the appeal scheme, indicating that, at times, there is
already local congestion and parking pressure. However, the site is within easy walking
distance of West Drayton Station with four bus routes running nearby, a travel plan is
proposed and there would be 40 cycle parking spaces. The proposed level of parking
provision would therefore be appropriate and comply with national policy aimed at
encouraging travel by sustainable modes of transport. There would be vehicles visiting the
site, but the vehicular trips generated would not appear to be greater than those arising
from the previous commercial use of the site and there would be no harmful
effect on highway safety.'

The number of parking spaces proposed within the reserved matter submission (35
spaces, 4 of which are disabled) remain the same as that considered acceptable by the

Page 262



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Planning Inspector. The Council's Highways Engineer has also fully considered the
detailed layout of the parking area, which is considered appropriate in terms of
manouvring and highways safety.  A Green Travel Plan was secured by way of a
unilateral undertaking attached to the outline planning permission and the submitted
reserved matters demonstrate the provision of 52 cycle spaces, an increase over the
number considered acceptable by the Planning Inspector.

Accordingly, the development is considered acceptable with regard to car/cycle parking
and pedestrian safety and would represent a slight improvement over the appeal scheme
through the provision of additional cycle parking which would serve to further encourage
sustainable modes of transport.

Issues relating to design and access are addressed within section 7.07 and 7.12 of this
report respectively.

Matters relating to security were considered by the Inspector in reaching her decision on
the outline planning permission and conditions 13 and 21 require the submission of details
of lighting, CCTV and general security measures.  There are no security issues intrinsic to
the reserved matters design and the conditions on the outline consent provide adequate
control to ensure the final development is secure.

Policy 7.2 of the London Plan and the Council's Accessible Hillingdon SPD require all new
developments to ensure the highest levels of inclusive design.

In order to ensure that the outline consent met appropriate standards a condition 10 was
attached to the outline consent which requires that:

'No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority details of access (including signposting) to buildings
for people with disabilities, parking for wheelchair disabled, details of the location and
layout of four wheelchair
accessible bedrooms. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of the development and retained thereafter.'

In relation to the submitted plans they clearly demonstrate appropriate levels of access to
the building, including adequate and appropriately located disabled parking spaces,
suitable level and/or gently graded access routes to entrances and the canalside amenity
area (and provision of a platform lift), lobbies of a suitable design, provision of accessible
WC's and appropriate refuge areas within stairways.

The design and access statement also fully demonstrates that 4 of the units within the
apart hotel are designed to fully meet the needs of disabled occupiers.

It is apparent that, with the exception of signage, the reserved matters consent clearly
demonstrates all necessary accessible design features.  In relation to signage, one would
not normally expect a reserved matters submission to contain this detail and the matter
can be appropriately dealt with under condition 10 of the outline consent, which has not
yet been submitted by the applicant.

Overall, the submitted reserved matters demonstrates appropriate levels of inclusive
design and would accord with the details required under the outline consent.

Page 263



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.14

7.15

7.16

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site granted by the Secretary of
State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010 does not
require the provision of affordable or special needs housing which is not necessary in
relation to the proposed development.

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires developments to retain topographical or landscape fear

The proposed landscape layout reflects the scheme which was allowed at appeal by the
Planning Inspector.

The submitted plans indicate the landscaping scheme would provide areas of hard and
soft landscape along the canal and associated with the site entrance and car park, off
Bentinck Road.   An attractive  canalside environment would also be provided for people
to enjoy and enhancing the relationship of the development with the waterway frontage.

In addition a generous amenity roof garden would be provided on top of the southern arm
of the building.  Which would benefit from sheltered seating areas, structures hedging and
large specimen plant in planters.

The overall landscape layout of the site is shown in full on the submitted drawings and in
terms of the relationship between the landscaping with the proposed and built form and
site surrounding is considered fully acceptable.  The location, size and type of landscaping
are also considered wholly appropriate for the development and location.

The landscape officer has indicated that further details relating to specific matters, such
as species and planting specifications should be provided.  However, as this additional
detail relates to one of the reserved matters under consideration it can be secured by
condition.  Accordingly, the landscaping details are considered acceptable and approval is
recommended subject to appropriate conditions.

Condition 8 of the outline planning permission requires the submission, and approval, of
full details of covered, sign posted, secure and screened storage of refuse at the
premises.  The final detailed design of refuse storage would be dealt with under a
separate application relating to this condition, however the reserved matter submission
clearly demonstrates that adequate and appropriately located refuse and recycling
storage could be made within the proposed layout.

Matters relating to renewable energy and sustainability were considered by the Inspector
in granting outline planning permission and condition 15 of the appeal decision requires
the submission of a scheme to reduce energy usage, reduce water usage and provide
renewable energy.

While a detailed application in respect of condition 15 has not been submitted at this
stage the reserved matters application is supported by a sustainability and energy
assessment.  This demonstrates that the building proposed within the reserved matters
submission could incorporate a combined heat and power system, solar photovoltaic
panels and water reduction measures which would meet the requirements of condition 15
of the outline consent.

While the final details and specification of the energy reduction measures would be dealt
with through a separate application in respect of condition 15 of the outline consent there

Page 264



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

is adequate information to demonstrate that the scheme proposed as part of this
submission would be capable of achieving the necessary level of sustainable design.

At the time of the outline application the reports indicated that part of the site fell within
Flood Zone 2 and, as such, a Flood Risk Assessment was submitted alongside the outline
application. At this stage the Environment Agency confirmed that they had no objections
to the development subject to conditions regarding drainage and contamination, however
such conditions do not appear to have been attached to the outline planning permission
granted at appeal.

Having reviewed the current flood risk map it is apparent that flood zones 2 and 3 are
constrained to the canal itself, and the application site itself is in flood zone 1 (i.e. not at
risk of flooding).

Notwithstanding this, the applicant has provided an updated flood risk assessment, which
sets out proposals to minimise surface water run off to within appropriate levels.  The
Council's Floodwater Management and Drainage Officer has reviewed the details and
considers them acceptable.  Subject to compliance with these details the scheme would
be acceptable in this respect.

The outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site granted by the Secretary of
State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010  contains
conditions 16, 17 and 22 which require the submission of a noise insulation measures and
restrict the hours for delivery vehicle movements.

The conditions on the outline permission secure that necessary measures will be
implemented to protect the future and neighbouring occupiers from noise in accordance
with Policies OE1, OE3 and OE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

The outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site granted by the Secretary of
State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010 established that
the development is acceptable in terms of air quality, subject to a travel plan which is
secured by way of the existing unilateral undertaking.  Accordingly, no objections raised in
respect of air quality.

The only comment raised relates to the need to protect a nearby Coots nest.  The nests of
wild birds are protected under The Wildlife and Countryside Act and damaging such a
nest is a criminal offence.  An informative is recommended to bring the matter to the
attention of the applicant.

Planning Obligations were considered under the outline planning permission for the
redevelopment of site granted by the Secretary of State under appeal decision
APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010 and necessary obligations relating to a
contribution towards public realm improvements and a travel plan were secured by a
unilateral undertaking.  This undertaking would remain in force and further consideration
in respect of planning obligations is not required.

Not applicable to this application.

Page 265



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

CONTAMINATION
Contamination was considered under the outline planning permission for the
redevelopment of site granted by the Secretary of State under appeal decision
APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010 and appropriate conditions were attached to
the outline planning permission.  Further consideration of contamination issues is
therefore not necessary in respect of this reserved matters submission.

ECONOMIC GROWTH AND THE VITALITY AND VIABILITY OF THE TOWN CENTRE
The National Planning Policy Framework indicates that proposals which support economic
growth and are beneficial to the vitality and viability of existing centres should be
supported.  In this respect it is noted that the redevelopment of this long vacant site would
provide jobs, benefit the economy and be beneficial overall to the vitality and viability of
the Yiewsley and West Drayton Town Centre.  These factors weigh in favour of approving
the development.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

Outline planning permission for the redevelopment of site for mixed use development
comprising a 44-unit apartment hotel, 1,320 m² of office space and 135 m² restaurant/bar,
with associated access, car parking and landscaping was granted by the Secretary of
State under appeal decision APP/R5510/A/10/2130048 dated 03/12/2010.  The Secretary

Page 266



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

of State's Decision approved details relating to access and established the principle and
amount of development, all other matters were reserved.

The current application seeks approval of reserved matters of appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale in relation to the extant outline permission.

The submitted scheme complies fully with the parameters approved at outline stage,
although the detailed appearance of the development has been improved following
discussions with the Council's Urban Design Officer.  Having regard to the findings within
the appeal decision and the amendments to the design it is considered that the scheme
would have an appropriate appearance.

The scheme would provide appropriate accommodation for its future residents and would
not have any adverse impacts on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

In addition the landscape scheme indicates an appropriate relationship between the
landscaping, built form and site surroundings. It would also provide an appropriate mixture
of spaces for the benefit of future residents.

The redevelopment of this long vacant site would also provide jobs, benefit the economy
and be beneficial overall to the vitality and viability of the Yiewsley and West Drayton
Town Centre.

Accordingly, the scheme is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

Adrien Waite 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 267



Page 268



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

CHARLES CURRAN HOUSE BONIFACE ROAD ICKENHAM 

Demolition of existing care home and construction of 6 semi-detached 4-bed
dwellings, together with associated car parking, landscaping and new
pedestrian access.

15/08/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 1022/APP/2013/2347

Drawing Nos: 2013/D115/P/01 Site Location Plan
2013/D115/P/02 Existing Site Plan Topographical & Tree Survey
2013/D115/P/04 Proposed Floor & Roof Plans
Tree Report
2013/D115/P/07 Typical Section
2013/D115/P/08 Locally Listed Wall New Opening
Design & Access Statement
Cabinet Report - Consultation on Disabilities Commissioning Plan
2013-D115-P-05 Rev B Proposed Elevations
2013-D115-P-06 Rev B Proposed Sectional Elevations
2013/D115/P/03 Rev A Proposed Site Plan

Date Plans Received: 30/09/2013
16/09/2013
15/08/2013
26/11/2013

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of an existing care home and the
construction of six semi-detached 4-bed dwellings, together with associated car parking,
landscaping and new pedestrian access.

It is not considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental impact on
the locally listed wall or on the character of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. The
proposal would provide adequate levels of internal floor space and private amenity space
for future occupiers.

The proposal complies with Policies AM14, BE4, BE8, BE10, BE13  BE19, BE20, BE21,
BE23 and R11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts. It is
therefore recommended that the application is approved.

2. RECOMMENDATION

15/08/2013Date Application Valid:

1. This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the
Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall ensure only for
the benefit of the land.

2. That the Council enter into a Statement of Intent/Legal Agreement under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278
of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure
the following:

Agenda Item 14

Page 269



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES3

RES4

RES7

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

Materials (Submission)

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, 

2013/D115/P/01 Site Location Plan
2013/D115/P/02 Existing Site Plan Topographical & Tree Survey
2013/D115/P/03 Rev A Proposed Site Plan
2013/D115/P/04 Proposed Floor & Roof Plans
2013-D115-P-05 Rev B Proposed Elevations
2013-D115-P-06 Rev B Proposed Sectional Elevations
2013/D115/P/07 Typical Section
2013/D115/P/08 Locally Listed Wall New Opening

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have

1

2

3

1: A contribution of £82,366 to be used towards capacity enhancements in near by
educational facilities made necessary by the development

2: Project Management and Monitoring Fee: in line with the SPD if a s106
agreement is entered into then a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contributions should be secured to ensure the management and monitoring of the
resulting agreement. 

C. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

D. If the Legal Agreement/s have not been finalised within 3 months, delegated
authority be given to the Head of Planning, Sport and Heritage to refuse planning
permission for the following reason:

 'The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the capacity
enhancements in nearby educational facilities made necessary as a consequence
of demands created by the proposed development. The proposal therefore
conflicts with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)'.

E. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

Page 270



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES8

RES9

Tree Protection

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1.   Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a  Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b  Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c  Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

4

5

Page 271



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES10 Tree to be retained

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage
2.b Cycle Storage (for 12 bicycles)
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Car Parking Layouts for 12 cars (including demonstration that 3 parking spaces are
served by electrical charging points and 1 parking space is designed and allocated for
disabled persons)
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials
2.f External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance
3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July 2011)

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs' 
Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

6

Page 272



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES15

RES16

RES18

Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

Code for Sustainable Homes

Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime. 
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards.

REASON

7

8

9

Page 273



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

RES24

RES12

RES13

RES14

Non Standard Condition

Secured by Design

No additional windows or doors

Obscure Glazing

Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the flanks walls or roof slopes of any of the dwellings hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The first floor bathroom windows in the dwellings hereby approved shall be glazed with
permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from
internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor
extension or roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of
further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

10

11

12

13

14

Page 274



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES6

NONSC

Levels

Non Standard Condition

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Prior to the commencement of any works to the locally listed wall, precise and detailed
plans at a scale of 1:20 of the new gate shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter the gate shall be installed and maintained in full accordance with the approved
details for the life of the development.

REASON
To ensure that the works to the locally listed wall and the final appearance of the
structure is appropriate in compliance with Policies BE8 and BE13 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

15

16

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7
AM14
BE4
BE8
BE10
BE13
BE15

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Page 275



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15

I59

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

3

4

5

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy.  At this time the
Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £3,867.58 which is due on
commencement of this development.  The actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be
calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a separate liability notice
will be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require further information
please refer to the Council's Website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon

BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

R11

R17

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for
education, social, community and health services
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

Page 276



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I43

I47

I1

I15

Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

Damage to Verge

Building to Approved Drawing

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

6

7

8

9

Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
 On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section

Page 277



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I25A

I32

The Party Wall etc. Act 1996

Trees in a Conservation Area

10

11

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the northern side of Swakeleys Road. 6-8 Swakeleys
Road (The Coach House) is located east of the site whilst the Grade II Listed Appletree
Cottage, 20 Swakeleys Road, is located west of the site. The site backs onto the rear
gardens of 22-28 Boniface Road located north of the site. Access to the application site is
via Boniface Road. The site is covered by TPO 4 and is located within the Ickenham
Village Conservation Area, as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies (November 2012). The site also contains a locally listed wall along the south site
boundary and part of the west site boundary.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of an existing care home and the
construction of six semi-detached 4-bed dwellings, together with associated car parking
and landscaping. A new pedestrian access would be installed in the locally listed wall
facing onto Swakeleys Road.

61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1)      carry out work to an existing party wall;
2)      build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
3)      in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control
will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

As the application site is within a conservation area, not less than 6 weeks notice must
be given to the Local Planning Authority of any intention to cut down, top, lop or uproot or
otherwise damage or destroy any trees on the application site. Please contact the Trees
& Landscape Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3N/02, Civic Centre, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW for further advice.

1022/AC/76/1014 25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

Res.dev - Hostel/Boarding/Guest house (Outline)(P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 278



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

1022/AF/78/1964

1022/AG/79/0127

1022/AH/79/0905

1022/AJ/86/1632

1022/APP/2013/2345

39824/C/91/1608

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

Charles Curran House Boniface Road Ickenham 

Charles Curran House Boniface Road Ickenham 

Road).

Reserved mats. of outline 1022/4526  (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Reserved mats. of outline 1022/4526  (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Reserved mats. of outline 1022/4526  (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Householder dev. (small extension,garage etc) (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of existing care home.

Retention of garden shed

06-10-1976

09-05-1979

09-05-1979

27-11-1979

15-10-1986

21-11-1991

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

ADH

ALT

ALT

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 279



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

AM7

AM14

BE4

BE8

BE10

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

R11

R17

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for education, social,
community and health services

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable25th September 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Page 280



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

19th September 2013

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Conservation Officer:
The most remarkable feature on this site in Ickenham Conservation Area is the tall, brick boundary
wall, which is locally listed.

The proposal would involve the building of two pairs of semi-detached houses immediately behind
the wall, with another pair to the rear at right angles. It would be necessary to insert a new gateway
within the wall for access, but this has been designed sensitively. Minor amendments have been
sought to the design of the roofs and front facades of these houses, and these have been received.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Acceptable

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 35 local owners/occupiers and a site notice was displayed. 3
responses were received making the following comments/objections:
i) Resident was not consulted
ii) There is no area for storage/collection of refuse
iii) The sliding gate to the car park could restrict access to the fence at the rear of 22-28 Boniface
Road for their occupiers 
iv) There will be a significant impact on the appearance of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area
v) The 'new pedestrian access' is a breach in the main structure of the locally listed wall - private,
lockable gate for the sole use of the development

One petition regarding parking restrictions for The Buntings was received, raising concerns over
increased parking caused by the proposed dwellings.

Ickenham Residents Association:
The proposed site plan shows two of the three semi-detached 4-bed dwellings facing Swakeleys
Road, i.e. set very far forward facing a 3.8 m locally listed brick wall with a new pedestrian access
operated by a push-button lock system. We feel it would be a far better arrangement, if the said
two dwellings would be facing the other way - into the site - with their back gardens towards the
south brick wall.

This would also mean that it would be much easier for the occupants to use the proposed parking
spaces at the top of the plot (north/east) which would then be a lot nearer. If not, it would be more
than likely that occupants would park their vehicles in Swakeleys Road and use the newly proposed
pedestrian access. 

We understand that pedestrian and vehicular access will be off Boniface Road, with which we
would agree, but are concerned that the existing restrictions on vehicular traffic using the gated exit
to Swakeleys Road (closest to the listed building of The Coach House) should be maintained.

We are completely in the hands of your Planning Team with their greater expertise and facilities to
arrive at the correct decision. 

Ickenham Conservation Area Panel:
No response received.

Page 281



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Highways:
The development proposals are for the demolition of the existing care home and the construction of
6 x 4 bedroom dwellings within the site. As part of the proposals 12 car parking spaces will be
provided to serve the development with vehicle access maintained from Boniface Road. In addition,
cycle parking will be provided within the rear garden area of each dwelling. 

When undertaking assessment of the proposals, it is noted that the PTAL index within the area is 2,
which is classified as poor. As a result, the maximum car parking provision of 2 car parking spaces
per dwelling is considered acceptable. 

In addition, it is clear that based on the scale of the existing use at the site, there would be  no
increase in traffic generation or the servicing requirements associated with the proposals. 

Therefore, it is considered that the development would not be contrary to the Policies of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, Part 2 and no objection is raised in relation to the highway
and transportation aspect of the proposals. 

Section 106 Officer:
Proposed Heads of Terms:
1. Highways: in line with the SPD any and all highways works as required by the highways
engineers are to be implemented with the full cost met by the developer. Please liaise with
highways in the first instance.

2. Education: in line with the SPD a contribution in the sum of £82,366 should be secured as a
result of this proposal. 

3. Project Management and Monitoring Fee: in line with the SPD if a s106 agreement is entered
into then a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contributions should be secured to ensure the
management and monitoring of the resulting agreement. 

Waste Strategy:
The plan does not appear to show that a space has been allocated for the storage of waste from
the properties. Hillingdon is not a wheeled bin borough. Bins or other containment would have to be
provided by the developer. 

The current waste and recycling collection systems are: - 

·  Weekly residual (refuse) waste - using sacks purchased by the occupier 
·  Weekly dry recycling collection - using specially marked sacks provided by the Council. 
·  Weekly green garden waste collection - three specially marked reusable bags - approximately 80
litre in volume - provided by the Council free of charge.

The waste and recycling should be presented near the curtilage of the property on allocated
collection days.

Trees and Landscape Officer

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER / CONTEXT:
The site is occupied by a part single, part two-storey care home (now vacant) situated behind, and
largely hidden from view by, a high brick wall to the north of Swakeleys Road.  Accessed via
Boniface Road, the site is particularly verdant due to trees and shrubs within the garden which

Page 282



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Policy R11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

surrounds the building, together with off-site trees along the northern boundary and to the north-
east of the site entrance.
Trees on the site are protected by virtue of their location within the Ickenham Village Conservation
Area and specific trees in the vicinity are protected by Tree Preservation Order No. 4. (The only
tree affected by the TPO is T17, a flowering Cherry, which no longer exists on site.) 

PROPOSAL:
The proposal is to demolish the existing care home and construct 6No. semi-detached, 4-bed
dwellings, together with associated car parking, landscaping and new pedestrian access. 

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

· A Tree Report, by John Cromar, dated 12 August 2013, assesses the condition and value of
41No. individual trees, groups and larger shrubs on, and close to, the site which may be affected by
the proposed development. 
· The table of tree data concludes that there are no 'A' grade trees on (or close to) the site. 16 No.
trees are considered to be 'B' grade trees (fair), 22No. are graded 'C' (poor) and 3 No. are 'U' grade
trees whose removal is justified on the grounds of sound arboricultural management. 
· The Proposed Site Plan, Hillingdon drawing No. 2013/D115/P/03 shows the site layout with six
dwellings arranged as three pairs of semi-detached houses, together with private gardens and a
communal parking court on the northern boundary. A new secure entrance is to be provided in the
wall, providing pedestrian access directly on to Swakeleys Road.
· All off site trees have been retained, as have the better quality ('B' grade trees).  However,
Hillingdon drawing 2013/D115/P/02 indicates that a number of poor quality trees will be retained,
contrary to the recommendations of the tree report.  The retention of these poor quality trees is ill-
advised. In the short term they will constrain the demolition and construction operations. In the
longer term they will do little to enhance the appearance site (or value of the new houses) and will
be more difficult to remove once the scheme is complete.
· The Arboricultural Report includes a proposed site layout drawing No. 1-38-3265P3 which
indicates the trees which are worthy of retention and the opportunities for new / replacement tree
planting. These recommendations should be followed.
· The same drawing has a key to all of the Tree Protection Proposals which are specified in section
06 of the report.  The adherence to the tree protection measures and supervision by the tree
surveyor at critical parts of the development - including prior to demolition- should be confirmed by
condition.
· If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to
ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the area.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
No objection subject to the above comments and conditions RES6, RES7, RES8 (parts 1,2,5 and
6), 10

INFORMATIVE:
· All tree work should be carried out in accordance with the recommendations of BS3998:2010
'Tree Work-Recommendations'.
· The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 to disturb roosting bats or nesting birds or other species. It is advisable to
consult your tree surgeon/consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out any work.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 283



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

states that:

"The local planning authority will assess proposals which involve the loss of land or
buildings used or whose last authorised use was for education, social, community and
health services by taking into account whether:-
(i) there is a reasonable possibility that refusal of permission for an alternative use would
lead to the retention and continued use of the existing facility;
(ii) adequate accessible alternative provision is available to meet the foreseeable needs of
the existing and potential users of the facility to be displaced;
(iii) the proposed alternative use accords with the other policies of this plan and
contributes to its objectives".

The site has previously been used as a care home and is currently vacant. There has
been considerable change in the way care is delivered in the borough over the last few
years, with accessible and adequate care being provided in different locations within the
borough. The existing care facilities at Charles Curran House is thereby surplus to
requirements. Given this, it is not considered that refusal of permission would lead to the
retention or continued use of the existing facility.

Policy R11 also requires that the proposed alternative use accords with the other policies
of this plan, and consideration of this matter is set out in the remaining sections of this
report.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2011) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals achieve the highest possible intensity of use compatible with local
context and the site's public transport accessibility. The London Plan provides a density
matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at different locations.

The site has a PTAL of 2 and is located within a suburban setting. The London Plan
provides for a residential density between 50 - 95 u/ha. The proposed density for the site
would be 28 units/ha, which is below London Plan guidance. However, given the context
of the site in the Ickenham Village Conservation Area, and the constraints of the site
resuting from retained trees and surrounding development, the density is considered
appropriate in this case.

The site is located within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area and contains a locally
listed wall which faces onto Swakeleys Road. The proposal would provide a new
pedestrian opening in the Locally Listed wall facing onto Swakeleys Road. The pedestrian
opening would be made secure by way of a lockable steel gate and would provide access
to residents in the four dwellings fronting Swakeleys Road. The gate would measure 1.2m
wide and 2.1m high with corbelling arch bricks which will match the orange brickwork of
the wall. The Council's Conservation Officer has no objection to the installation of a new
pedestrian access in the Locally Listed wall.

The proposed dwellings would be of a similar height of the neighbouring properties and
have an acceptable roof design. Following initial comments from the Council's
Conservation Officer, the roof design and front facades of the dwellings have been
amended to ensure that the scale and design of the development is in keeping with the
surrounding area. The changes are considered to be acceptable and would not have a
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the Ickenham Conservation Area.

The scheme is considered to comply with Policies BE4, BE8, BE10 and BE13 of the

Page 284



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Not applicable for this application.

Not applicable for this application.

See Section 7.03.

The proposed dwellings would be two-storey with accommodation provided within the
roofs, with rear dormer windows and front rooflights.

Privacy

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) seeks to ensure that the designof new buildings protects the privacy of the
occupiers and their neighbours. The supporting text to this policy states that 'the
protection of privacy, particularly of habitable rooms (including kitchens) and external
private amenity space is an important feature of residential amenity'. The Council's HDAS
also provides further guidance in respect of privacy, stating in particular that the distance
between habitable room windows should not be less than 21m.

The Council's HDAS at paragraph 4.12 states that 'new residential development should be
designed so as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining
residential property from windows above ground floor, an angle of 45 degrees each side
of the normal is assumed in determining facing, overlooking distances. This requirement
has been adhered to so as to respect the residential amenity of existing residents.

Outlook

Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states that planning permission will not be granted for new development, which by
reason of its siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential
amenity of established residential areas. The Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Hillingdon Design and Access Statement' (HDAS) states that where a two or
more storey building abuts a property or its garden, adequate distance should be
maintained to overcome possible over domination. 

As part of the design, sufficient distances are maintained between the new buildings and
the nearest adjoining dwellings. The massing of the 2 storey semi detached properties
relative to the adjoining properties is considered satisfactory. It is therefore considered
that the proposal would not result in an over dominant form of development which would
detract from the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Saved Policy
BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)and
relevant design guidance.

Sunlight/Overshadowing

The proposed dwellings fronting Swakeleys Road (units 1-4) would project forward of the
established building line to the west of the site. In relation to the front facing windows of
the adjoining property to the west (Appletree Cottage), unit 1  would marginally breach the
45 degree principle designed to ensure that adequate daylight and sunlight is enjoyed in

Page 285



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

existing dwellings.

However there is an existing  3.7 metre high wall on the site's western boundary, which
will be retained and the eaves height of the two storey dwelling at 4.7 metres  would be
only marginally higher than the existing wall. In addition, a distance of over 5 metres will
be maintained between the flank wall of unit 1 and the side boundary with Appletree
Cottage. Given these factors and the orientation of the proposed development, it is not
considered that there would be a material loss of daylight or sunlight to the occupiers of
that property. With regard to other surrounding development, it is not considered that
there would be a material loss of daylight or sunlight to neighbouring occupiers, as the
proposed dwellings would be sited a sufficient distance away from adjoining properties.
The proposal is considered to be consistent with Policy BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and relevant design guidance.

Amenity Space

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that residential developments should provide adequate external amenity space for
occupants. Four-bed dwellings require a minimum of 100sq.m. The proposed dwellings
would have their own private amenity space ranging from 102sq.m to 121sq.m and so
would benefit from an adequate amount of external amenity space.

Floor Space

The Council's HDAS - Residential Layouts sets out minimum floorspace standards which
should be achieved in order to ensure appropriate living standards. A minimum floorspace
of 103sq.m is required for four-bed three-storey houses. The six dwellings would all have
an internal floorspace of 148sq.m, thereby exceeding the minimum requirement and
providing occupiers with an acceptable amount of living space.

Privacy

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and the Council's SPD: Residential Extensions seek to prevent new developments
from causing unacceptable levels overlooking and loss of privacy to occupiers and
neighbours.

The rear garden of unit 4 would be partially overlooked by offices in the Coach house
located to the east of the site. However, these offices are unlikely to be occupied in the
evenings  and weekends when future occupants of the unit would be more likely to utilise
their private amenity area.

No windows are proposed in the flank elevation of unit 5 facing units 1 - 4. However, the
first floor windows and rear dormers of  units 1 - 4 would be less than 21 metres from the
rear garden of unit 5, thereby raising an issue of privacy to the external amenity area of
unit 5. Nevertheless, the views of the rear garden from units 3 and 4 would be mainly
outside the 45 degree field of vision. Overlooking from Unit 1 would be reduced by the
retention of existing trees in its rear garden. The rear gardens of all the units would be
separated by 1.8m high closed boarded fencing to prevent overlooking from the ground
floor windows. 

On balance it is not considered that the proposed dwellings would be subject to

Page 286



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

unacceptable levels overlooking as to warrant refusal of the scheme.

Outlook, Sunlight and Daylight

It is considered that in relation to the pair of semis to the rear (units 5 and 6), adequate
distances have been maintained to the site boundaries in order to ensure that future
occupants of these units would would enjoy adequate levels of sunlight, daylight and
outlook  from habitable windows and the rear gardens. A distance of 15 metres can
generally be achieved between the flank wall of unit 5 and the rear of units 1 -4 apart from
one corner where it this distance reduces to 14.5 metres. 

However, south facing ground floor habitable windows of units 1 - 4 would be only 6.5
metres from the  boundary wall and belt of trees fronting Swakeleys Road, thereby
restricting to some degree, the amount of sunlight and outlook that could reasonably be
expected for future occupiers of these units. All but one of these trees along the road
frontage are shown to be retained, including a number of poor quality trees, which is
contrary to the recommendations of the tree report.

The Tree and Landscape Officer notes that the retention of these poor quality trees is ill-
advised, as in the short term they will constrain the demolition and construction operations
and in the longer term they will do little to enhance the appearance site, or the amenity
value of the new houses and will be more difficult to remove once the scheme is
complete. The submitted Arboricultural Report indicates the trees which are worthy of
retention and the opportunities for more appropriate new and replacement tree planting.
The Tree and Landscape Officer considers that these recommendations should be
followed. This would improve the outlook from these units and ensure that adequate
daylight/sunlight would be enjoyed  by future occupiers. These matters can be secured by
condition.

Subject to conditions, it is considered that a good level of day lighting and outlook for the
proposed development can be achieved, in accordance with Policies BE20 and BE21 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)and relevant
design guidance.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would provide good living
conditions for all of the proposed units in accordance with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), HDAS
Residential Layouts and the provisions of the London Plan.

The scheme would provide 12 car parking spaces, two spaces per dwelling, at the rear of
the site with vehicle access maintained from Boniface Road. The parking area would have
secure fencing and would be accessed by a metal sliding gate, details of which can be
secured by way of condition.

The PTAL index within the local area is 2, which is classified as poor. The proposed car
parking provision for the dwellings are considered acceptable. The Council's Highways
Engineer raises no objection to the proposal. The proposal thereby complies with Policies
AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Urban Design
Discussed elsewhere in the report.

Page 287



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Security
The development has incorporated measures such as secure fencing and security gates
to reduce the risk of crime. The development would be required to meet the Metropolitan
Police's 'Secure By Design' criteria. This can be dealt with by way of a condition should
approval be granted.

The applicant's design and access statement confirms that the proposed development
would comply with Lifetime Homes Standards and part M of the Building regulations. One
of the dwellings would be wheelchair accessible. Relevant conditions would be attached
should approval be granted to ensure the criteria are met.

Not applicable for this application.

The layout plan indicates that the majority of vegetation along the boundaries is to be
retained, which strongly contributes to the character and appearance of the street scene.
Additional landscaping would be provided within the proposed front gardens and along the
side elevation of Unit 4. Details of the final landscape scheme can be dealt with by way of
a condition.

Refuse and recycling would be stored in the rear gardens of the proposed dwellings and
would be required to be presented near the curtilage of the property on allocated
collection days. Refuse from Houses 1-4, located along Swakeleys Road, would be
collected from inside the new pedestrian access on Swakeleys Road whilst the refuse
from Houses 5 and 6 would be collected from the car park to the north of the site which is
accessed from Boniface Road. It is considered that the facilities for the storage of refuse
and recycling would be acceptable for the development.

Policies within Chapter 5 of the London Plan require developments to provide for
reductions in carbon emissions, including a reduction of 25% in carbon emissions, in line
with Code for sustainable Homes Level 4.

The applicant's design and access statement states that the development is expected to
achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. Therefore, subject to an appropriate
condition to secure this implementation within the final design, the scheme will comply
with adopted policy.

Not applicable for this application.

Not applicable for this application.

A number of responses were received during the public consultation raising a number of
objections, including the impact on the Ickenham Village Conservation Area and the
locally listed wall, storage of waste and parking. These concerns are dealt elsewhere
within this report.

Regarding a resident not being consulted, the Local Planning Authority has consulted all
nearby local residents and posted site and press notices in line with statutory guidelines.

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Page 288



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

states that the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the
provision of recreation open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and educational facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals.

In this instance planning obligations relating to education contributions and project
management and monitoring are required.

The proposed scheme represents chargeable development under the Mayor's Community
Infrastructure Levy. At this time the Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be
£3,519.15.

Not applicable for this application.

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable for this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of an existing care home and the
construction of six semi-detached 4-bed dwellings, together with associated car parking,

Page 289



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

landscaping and new pedestrian access.

It is not considered that the proposed development would have a detrimental impact on
the character of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. The proposal would provide
adequate levels of internal floor space and private amenity space for future occupiers.

The proposal complies with Policies AM14, BE4, BE8, BE10, BE13  BE19, BE20, BE21,
BE23 and R11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: part 2- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts. It is therefore
recommended that the application is approved.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations
London Plan (July 2011)

Katherine Mills 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 290



Page 291



Page 292

This page is intentionally left blank



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

CHARLES CURRAN HOUSE BONIFACE ROAD ICKENHAM 

Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of existing care home.

15/08/2013

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 1022/APP/2013/2345

Drawing Nos: 2013/D115/P/01 Site Location Plan
2013/D115/P/02 Existing Site Plan Topographical & Tree Survey
2013/D115/P/04 Proposed Floor & Roof Plans
Tree Report
2013/D115/P/07 Typical Section
2013/D115/P/08 Locally Listed Wall New Opening
Design & Access Statement
2013-D115-P-05 Rev B Proposed Elevations
2013-D115-P-06 Rev B Proposed Sectional Elevations
2013/D115/P/03 Rev A Proposed Site Plan

Date Plans Received: 30/09/2013
26/11/2013

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site is located on the northern side of Swakeleys Road. 6-8 Swakeleys
Road (The Coach House) is located east of the site whilst the Grade II Listed Appletree
Cottage, 20 Swakeleys Road, is located west of the site. The site backs onto the rear
gardens of 22-28 Boniface Road located north of the site. Access to the application site is
via Boniface Road. The site is covered by TPO 4 and is located within the Ickenham
Village Conservation Area, as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies (November 2012). The site also contains a locally listed wall along the south site
boundary and part of the west site boundary.

Conservation Area Consent is sought for the demolition of an existing care home (Charles
Curran House) which is currently vacant. The consent is sought in association with a
parallel planning application (ref: 1022/APP/2013/2347) to also demolish the existing
building and to construct six semi-detached 4-bed dwellings. The existing locally listed
wall on the site is to be retained.

1022/AC/76/1014 25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

Res.dev - Hostel/Boarding/Guest house (Outline)(P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface
Road).

06-10-1976Decision Date: Approved

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

15/08/2013Date Application Valid:

Appeal:

Agenda Item 15

Page 293



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable 25th September 2013

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

EXTERNAL
Ickenham Conservation Area Panel:
No response received

Ickenham Residents Association:
The proposed site plan shows two of the three semi-detached 4-bed dwellings facing
Swakeleys Road, i.e. set very far forward facing a 3.8 m locally listed brick wall with a new
pedestrian access operated by a push-button lock system.

We feel it would be a far better arrangement, if the said two dwellings would be facing the
other way - into the site - with their back gardens towards the south brick wall.

This would also mean that it would be much easier for the occupants to use the proposed
parking spaces at the top of the plot (north/east) which would then be a lot nearer. If not, it

1022/AF/78/1964

1022/AG/79/0127

1022/AH/79/0905

1022/AJ/86/1632

1022/APP/2013/2347

39824/C/91/1608

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

25-99 (Odds) Boniface Road Ickenham 

Charles Curran House Boniface Road Ickenham 

Charles Curran House Boniface Road Ickenham 

Reserved mats. of outline 1022/4526  (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Reserved mats. of outline 1022/4526  (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Reserved mats. of outline 1022/4526  (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Householder dev. (small extension,garage etc) (P) (Charles Curran House, 36 Boniface Road).

Demolition of existing care home and construction of 6 semi-detached 4-bed dwellings, together
with associated car parking, landscaping and new pedestrian access.

Retention of garden shed

09-05-1979

09-05-1979

27-11-1979

15-10-1986

21-11-1991

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Approved

Approved

ADH

ALT

ALT

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Page 294



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE4

BE8

BE10

BE13

BE19

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Part 2 Policies:

would be more than likely that occupants would park their vehicles in Swakeleys Road
and use the newly proposed pedestrian access.

We understand that pedestrian and vehicular access will be off Boniface Road, with which
we would agree, but are concerned that the existing restrictions on vehicular traffic using
the gated exit to Swakeleys Road (closest to the listed building of The Coach House)
should be maintained. 

We are completely in the hands of your Planning Team with their greater expertise and
facilities to arrive at the correct decision.

Officer comments:
The concerns raised relate to the application for planning permission ref:
1022/APP/2013/2347 of six semi-detached 4-bed dwellings.

INTERNAL
Conservation Officer:
The current building is of no particular merit, although it does sit nicely behind the tall
locally listed front boundary wall. The roofs of the proposed new houses have been
designed in such a way as to relate well to the boundary wall too, so there is no objection
to the loss of Charles Curran House.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Acceptable

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main planning issue relates to the impact the demolition of the existing Charles
Curran House will have on the Ickenham Village Conservation Area. The site contains a
locally listed wall along the boundary with Swakeleys Road, which will be retained. Charles
Curran House itself is not listed and of no particular merit. The Council's Conservation
Officer raises no objection to the proposed demolition.

The proposed demolition would allow for the redevelopment of the site under planning
application ref: 1022/APP/2013/2347 which is recommended for approval. It is therefore

Page 295



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

CA1

CA7

Time Limit (3 years) - Conservation Area Consent

Extent of demolition

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

REASON
To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

No demolition beyond that indicated on the approved drawings shall take place without
the approval of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in
accordance with Policy BE11 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

1

2

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT Conservation Area Consent has been taken having
regard to all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and
Council policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which
makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights,
specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private
and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article
14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT Conservation Area Consent has been taken having
regard to the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan
(2012) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and
national guidance.

RECOMMENDATION6.

considered that the proposed demolition would not have a detrimental impact on the visual
amenity, character and appearance of the Ickenham Village Conservation Area.

The proposal complies with Policies BE4, BE10, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

BE4

BE8

BE10

BE13

BE19

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Page 296



Major Applications Planning Committee - 10th December 2013
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3

Katherine Mills 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall
only be carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to
Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No
works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's
Best Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction
and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in
carrying out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in
(A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Page 297



Page 298



Agenda Annex

Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



Page 495



Page 496



Page 497



Page 498



Page 499



Page 500



Page 501



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 October 2013
	6 26-36 Horton Road, Yiewsley - 3507/APP/2013/2327
	7 Old Coal Depot, Tavistock Road, Yiewsley - 18736/APP/2013/1784
	8 272-276 Bath Road, Heathrow - 464/APP/2013/2115
	9 Former RAF Uxbridge, Hillingdon Road, Uxbridge - 585/APP/2013/2719
	10 Uxbridge Technical College, Park Road, Uxbridge - 1127/APP/2013/2739
	11 Former NATS Headquarters, Porters Way, West Drayton - 5107/APP/2013/2325
	12 Former NATS Headquarters, Porters Way, West Drayton - 5107/APP/2013/2747
	13 21 High Street, Yiewsley - 26628/APP/2013/2604
	14 Charles Curran House, Boniface Road, Ickenham - 1022/APP/2013/2347
	15 Charles Curran House, Boniface Road, Ickenham - 1022/APP/2013/2345
	Plans for North Planning Committee

